1959-1960 TO 2018-2019

60th Anniversary Book



ENGADINE
DRAGONS
CRICKET
CLUB

1959 - 2018

60 YEARS OF CRICKET ENGADINE DRAGONS CRICKET CLUB Inc.



FOREWORD

This journal highlights the achievements, records and history of a suburban Cricket Club over the past 60 years.

Whilst previous literature has concentrated on the following:

- History of the club
- Players and their achievements
- Naming of the Best Junior and Senior Teams and the 50th Anniversary Gala

This edition has highlighted the volunteers and their families that have been the driving force and contributors since the inception of the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club.

History and tradition has been a normal occurrence within the cricket community however in the past decade, cricket has adapted its playing conditions in line with players and community expectations and in this vain we have seen the emergence or adaption in the following areas

- A shorter and faster version of cricket has seen the emergence of the 20/20 game.
 Whilst it did not cause the same controversy as the World Series Cricket (1977), it has created further interest in cricket for players and spectators especially amongst the younger age group.
- Cricket Australia recommended changes in playing conditions to increase player
 participation in our junior ranks. Whilst it is the early stages, reduction in hours of
 play, bowler's restrictions and batsman paired to a number of overs has forced
 changes to club and representative cricket alike. This strategy is to be reviewed
 overtime to see if desired player retention or player development is achieved.
- The wider acceptance and coverage of Women in sport at the elite level. Engadine Dragons have supported women in our junior teams, which have allowed them to follow their sporting endeavours.

We are a proud and successful club that will continue to provide a platform for all to enjoy their sport and develop long-term friendships. Our successes have come in many forms and we are especially chuffed that our players continue to represent at all levels of our game.

I hope that you enjoy the tales and information contained in this book.

Our sincere gratitude to our Life Member Ian Latham for compiling this chapter in our history.

Steve Jones Life Member

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS & AUTHOR'S NOTES

The contents of this publication reflect the efforts of our players, coaches, managers, committee members and families that have all contributed to 60 years of Engadine Dragons Cricket. Much of the early details contained in this work were derived from the book's "History of Engadine Dragons Cricket Club" written by Harry Robbins to celebrate the Club's 40th Anniversary and ten years later "50 Years of Cricket" written by Russ Waddell and Ian Latham. All other information was sourced from the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club, Sutherland Shire Cricket Association and Sutherland Shire Junior Cricket Association Annual Reports and from other available online resources. All details are correct as of the conclusion of the 2018/19 season.

I would like to thank Life Member Steve Jones for writing the foreword and Gerry Dwarshuis for proof reading this book.

Finally, although I strived to faithfully record the correct details contained in this book I apologise in advance for any misspelt or incorrect names and omissions.

lan Latham Life Member



Engadine Dragons Cricket Club

Celebrating 60 Years 1959-2018

PROUDLY SPONSORED BY

GOLD SPONSORS









SILVER SPONSORS

































BRONZE SPONSORS



www.engadinedragonscc.org.au

THE CONTENTS

Table of Contents

FOREWORD	3
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS & AUTHOR'S NOTES	4
OUR SPONSORS	5
THE CONTENTS	6
THE BEGINNINGS	10
THE FIRST ANNUAL MEETING 1960 – PRESIDENTS REPORT	12
THE PEOPLE WHO FORGED OUR CLUB	17
Barry McManus (senior)	17
Harry Robbins	18
Families & Individuals – 1959 to 2019	19
HISTORY IN REVIEW	33
OFFICE BEARERS	47
LIFE MEMBERSHIP	51
CLUB PLAYING SERVICE	52
Consecutive Playing Service	52
Broken Playing Service	52
CLUB COACHING SERVICE	53
PLAYER & TEAM NUMBERS	54
JUNIOR PREMIERSHIP TEAMS	55
SENIOR PREMIERSHIP TEAMS	56
CLUB RECORDS	57
CURRENT JUNIOR RECORDS	57
Junior Batting Records – 2018/19 Onwards	57
Junior Bowling Records – 2018/19 Onwards	57
Junior Wicket Keeping Records – 2018/19 Onwards	58
SENIOR RECORDS	58
Senior Batting Records	58
Senior Bowling Records	58
Senior Wicket Keeping Records	59
ARCHIVED JUNIOR RECORDS	59
Archived Junior Batting Records – 1991/92 to 2017/18	59
Archived Junior Bowling Records – 1991/92 to 2017/18	59
Archive Wicket Keeping Records – 1991/92 to 2017/18	60

Archived Junior Batting Records – 1959/60 to 1990/91	60
Archived Junior Bowling Records – 1959/60 to 1990/91	61
Archived Junior Wicket Keeping Records – 1959/60 to 1990/91	61
CENTURY MAKERS	61
HAT TRICKS	65
OUTSTANDING BOWLING PERFORMANCES	67
ARCHIVED MAJOR CLUB AWARD WINNERS	69
Senior Club Champion – "The Les Johnson Trophy"	69
Junior Club Champion – "The Joe Weymouth Trophy"	70
Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket – "EDCC Trophy"	70
Club Sportsman of the Year – "The Ron Dudman Trophy"	70
Top Boys Club Batsman – "The Peter Schiller Trophy"	70
Top Boys Club Bowler – "The Peter Schiller Trophy"	71
Top Under Sixteen Batsman – "The Ken Johnson Trophy"	71
Top Boys Club Wicket Keeper – "The George Beames Memorial Trophy"	71
Wicket Keeper Encouragement	71
Ray Noakes Memorial Scholarship	72
Ray Noakes Memorial Trophy	72
Rookie of the Year – "The Lance Bartlett Trophy"	72
Most Improved Team – "The Alan Wishart Memorial Trophy"	72
Robert Tickner Encouragement Trophy	72
Robert Tickner Fielding Trophy	72
Barry McManus Memorial Shield	72
Wesley Adams Memorial Award	73
EDCC Bradman Scholarship	73
CURRENT MAJOR CLUB AWARDS	73
Perpetual Trophies and Awards Criteria	74
Current Major Award Recipients	81
Most Consistent U10 Player – "The EDCC Trophy"	81
Junior Club Champion – "The Barry McManus Trophy"	81
Senior Club Champion – "Harry Robbins Trophy"	81
Junior Club All Rounder – "The Ian Latham Trophy"	81
Senior Club All Rounder – "The Dean Griffith Trophy"	81
Junior Rookie of the Year - "The Ken Tever Trophy"	81
Senior Rookie of the Year – "The Bill Knowles Trophy"	82
Most Improved Team – "The Bob Vannan Trophy"	82

	Encouragement Award – "The Bob Price Shield"	82
	Club Member of the Year – The Val Tever Trophy"	82
	Junior Division Batting Performance Award – "The Ray Noakes Trophy"	83
	Junior Division Bowling Performance Award – "The Col Keenan Trophy"	83
	Junior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award – "The Mike Fordyce Trophy"	83
	Junior Division Fielding Award – "The Paul Waddell Trophy"	83
	Intermediate Division Batting Performance Award – "The Russ Waddell Trophy"	83
	Intermediate Division Bowling Performance Award – "The Alf Lemmon Trophy"	83
	Intermediate Division Wicket Keeping Award – "The Clem Heffernan Trophy"	84
	Senior Division Batting Performance Batting Award – "The Drew Lake Trophy"	84
	Senior Division Bowling Award – "The John Carlisle Trophy"	84
	Senior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award – "The Col Berry Trophy"	84
	Senior Division Fielding Award – "The Greg Knowles Trophy"	84
SI	UTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATIVE HONOURS	85
	NSWDCA Male Shield Players	85
	NSWDCA Female Shield Players	89
	SSJCA Under 10 Development Squad Players	89
	SSJCA Inter Districts Presidents Players	89
C	RICKET NSW ACADEMY, EMERGING BLUES & NSWJCU PLAYERS	91
	Cricket NSW Academy Players	91
	Cricket NSW State Challenge Players	91
	Emerging Blues Players	91
	NSWJCU Players	92
	School Representatives Players	92
S	UTHERLAND SHIRE CRICKET ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATIVE HONOURS	94
	NSWDCA Shield Players	94
S	YDNEY DISTRICT GRADE CRICKET HONOURS	96
	Sutherland District Cricket Club Academy	96
	Sutherland District Cricket Club AW Green Shield Players	96
	Sydney Grade Cricket AW Green Shield Players	97
	Sydney Combined AW Green Shield Players	97
	Sutherland District Cricket Club Poidevin-Gray Shield Players	97
	Sydney Grade Cricket Poidevin-Gray Shield Players	97
	Sydney Grade Cricket 1st Grade Players	98
	Other Grade Cricket 1st Grade Players	98
	Sutherland District C.C. 1st Grade Players	98

HIGHER HONOURS	98
Daniel McLauchlan	98
Ben Dwarshuis	98
Brad Simpson	99
SUTHERLAND SHIRE CRICKET ASSOCIATION INDIVIDUAL AWARD WINNERS	99
SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION INDIVIDUAL AWARD WINNERS	105
NSWDCA & NSWJCU AWARD WINNERS	113
SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION "CRICKETER OF THE YEAR"	114
Engadine Dragons Recipients	114
ALL TIME BEST ENGADINE DRAGONS TEAMS	126
60th Anniversary A1 Team	126
60th Anniversary 16A Team	127
BEST ENGADINE DRAGONS JUNIOR TEAMS OF THE MILLENNIUM	129
16A Team	129
14A Team	130
12A Team	131
10A Team	132
SPONSORS	133
SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION ARCHIVES	135
SSJCA Junior Club Championship – Bertshell Trophy – By Number of Wins	135
SSJCA Junior Club Championship – Bertshell Trophy – By Season	135
SSJCA Cricketer of the Year – John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy	136
SSJCA Life Members	137
SSJCA Service to Shire Junior Club Cricket	138
SSJCA Office Bearers	138
SSJCA Premiership Teams	140
SUTHERLAND SHIRE CRICKET ASSOCIATION ARCHIVES	148
SSCA Life Members	149
SSCA Office Bearers	149
SSCA Premiership Teams	151

THE BEGINNINGS

The first organised competitive cricket in the Shire dates back to 1921 where it continued until 1937 when, due to certain circumstances, it was disbanded. In 1947 the competition reformed. In the season of 1956/57 a small number of juniors (6 teams) were playing in the Sutherland Shire Cricket Association (SSCA), the senior association. They played in a "C Grade" competition. It was this, which led to the creation of a specific boy's association in 1957/58 to cater for all players under the age of sixteen. Engadine was not part of this body at the outset but joined in 1959.

Barry McManus (Snr) was a local roof tiler and bricklayer who loved his rugby league and cricket. Barry formed the Cricket Club in 1959 with support from Alan Hemmett and Reg Lingard, coached two teams of youngsters in the local Aussie Rules Competition in 1958. The following winter season the boys decided to play Rugby League, which led to the birth of the Engadine Dragons Rugby League Club.

To keep the boys together in the summer of 1959/60, Barry decided to enter three teams U10, U12 and U14 into the Sutherland Shire Boys Cricket Association. The U/10 side coached by Danny Carroll was graded into the Division 2 competition and the U/12 coached by Barry McManus (Snr) and U/14 coached by Bob Bain teams were both graded into the Division 1 competition. All three sides finished the season as runners up.

In the first Engadine Dragons Annual Report Barry stated, "We now own 150 pounds of football gear and 80 pounds worth of cricket gear. Properly maintained this gear has many more years of use, and we can go into our second season as a well established club". He also made reference to the contributions of his wife Ada in her role as U/12 team manager, Mrs. Carroll as U/12 team scorer, Ken & Marie Binner who would go from ground to ground to distribute drinks and a band of fathers that would umpire each week, Dave Moss, Jack Shanahan, Fred Terone (Snr) and George Cranston. George went on to coach for the Club for the next decade.

The structure of the Engadine Dragons has changed over the years, from 1959 to 1968, cricket activity was part of the Engadine Dragons Rugby League Club. In 1967 due to the growth of teams in both rugby league and cricket it was decided to form two separate committees to run each individual sport. The first members of the separate cricket committee were, President – Ken Horsnell, Secretary – Barry Blanchard & Treasurer – Warren McPhee. In 1969 cricket became part of a larger "Engadine Dragons Sports Club" organization, which comprised many sporting bodies (Soccer, Netball, and Hockey to mention a few). Then subsequently, in 1974, following the dissolution of the former body it became what it is today, Engadine Dragons Cricket Club.

The title "Dragons" originated from the famous St. George Rugby League Club and the original colours of the club were red and black. The Dragons first home ground "Engadine Oval" was located in the National Park about 800 metres east of the Railway station. The pitch is still there, but the playing area is overgrown with shrubs and long grass. Vic McGarigle, the Stationmaster, allowed the club to store the cricket kits and mats in the Lost Property Office. As there were no facilities such as dressing sheds, toilets and fresh water, it was decided to support the construction of a new oval (now known as Anzac Oval) alongside Forbes Creek; the oval was first used for a cricket match in 1960.

The decision to form senior teams came in 1967 and culminated from a series of events that created a lot of controversy and ill feeling amongst the members of the two local senior clubs, Engadine Hotel and Southern United. In the previous three seasons these two clubs consisted of the Shire's top players, with both clubs finishing either first or second in the A1 competition.

Seven of these players that represented in Sutherland's Martin Shield team decided to have both Engadine Hotel and Southern United hold separate meetings in an attempt to dissolve both clubs and form a combined club to be named "Engadine United", enabling them all to play together. Their other aim was to develop and advance younger players through the grades giving them the opportunity to play in the A1 competition and if capable play for the Sutherland District Grade Club.

The majority of members in each club agreed to the merger, but because of the objections from a small minority it decided to continue as two separate clubs. With this decision Harry Robbins and Barry Blanchard, together with Col Keenan then decided to approach Engadine Dragons for permission to form senior teams within the existing (junior) club.

In 1967/68 season the Club fielded its first senior team in the Sutherland Shire Cricket Association (SSCA) competition. The club applied for the A1 competition, but were graded A2's, they finished the season as undefeated premiers.

PRESIDENTS REPORT ENGADINE DRAGONS FIRST ANNUAL MEETING It is with great pleasure, and a certain amount of finde, that I present the Tirst tver report of tongadine Dragons, and I am quite sure it is only a fore runner of many more annual Reports in years to come as this that grows with the Eistrict. We have surmounted our greatest hurdle, namely our initial year in which we started from scratch without any funds or gear. I am very happy to report that we have finished our first year with all our sporting equipment paid for, and a credit balance in our Bank account. a full account of our income and expenditure will be presented in the Treasurers report. We now own 2150.0.0 worth of football year and 180.0.0 worth of cricket gear. Properly maintained this gear has many more years use, and we can go into our second year as a well established club. It is all the more remarkable when one looks back just on 10 months to our inaugral meeting and remember that we had to borrow 20 from Ms Bill loate to pay a deposit on our football gear. The above results have been achieved with a ridiculously small, but very active committee and the good support of the people of the boys themselves who fly for represent this' Clut on the Playing fields. Touching on the Committee, first, on average attendance at monthly meetings would not gaceed six persons. I Sincerely hope that we can

get more active support from Parents of the boys playing and any other interested persons. We have been boundated with requests from lads wanting to play in our teams, but unfortunately finance to procure gear, and also lack of managers to look after boys restricted our activities. This coming year we hope to double our number of teams in both cricket and football, but this can only be done with more active help from the adults of Engadine. The present Committee has been grossly overworked to raise finance and provide transport and supervise the sport itself. We hope this position can be alleviated this coming year. To the people of Engadene who have supported us go our many thanks. This includes the house holders who have lought raffle lichets from our youngsters at their door, and to the customers of Mr Namy Synchis Hostelry, who have donated to a weekly contribution list in a really amazing fashion. Our boys appreciate their great support. We have had a lot of individual donations which were greatly appreciated, but it would not be a true report unless sweral persons were mentioned. To the Engadine Chamber of Commerce for their substantial, donation early in our activities, many thanks. To Massis Harry Lynch, Bell Melrose, Harry Trinder and Nerbee damb, go our thanks for their very substantial donations to buy trophies for our football teams and help towards cost of year. Ourselves and the

boys really appreciated their generosity. Last, but not least, thanks to Mr. Jom Jamieson who has been a regular donator, and has given a great amount of money lowards the Engadine Dragons many thanks Jom. The boys themselves have not been idle in the matter of raising money. They have been very heen workers in selling raffle lickets the Club. To the actual sport itself. the boys of Engadine have made quite an impression on rival clubs not only in their ability on the field of play, but also in their behavior on and off the field. We entered four teams in the Rugby League Schoolboys Competition and two of them made the Semi- Tinals. These were the 4 at 7 th team , 6.7 team. These two teams also made the Grand I enal of the Throck out competition, and were both beaten in finals. This was a great performance for first year in great performance for first year in, and we can look forward to highe successful season this coming season. The boys showed great potential to do so well, but the main credit must go to our coaches Messos. L. Wellman and K. Keine. of hard work with the boys during week to prepare them for their week end matches and must have derived a lot of satisfaction at end of season when they saw the results of their many hours put in with these toys. ble assistance was given to coaches by

Messn Col Steenan, Col Grimwood, and arthur Sruhen, Two boys who showed a touch of class were Warren Harries and Robert Walker, and we should see some really good football from these lads this year. In the cricket ofhere our boys have done equally as well, all teams being near the leaders in respective divisions. Many thanks to Messon. George Granston, Dave Moss, Jack Shanahan and Fred herore, who have given a certain amount of time to assist in umpiring on Saturday mornings for our boys. Jack and Fred travel from Waterfall to do this job, and it is much appreciated by Engadine Dragons. The boys are well looked after in orichet. Mr. Danny Carroll has not missed a Saturday morning with the under 10 team and is really wraffed up in them. In the under 12 team we have the unique position of two ladies looking after boys. Mrs. MeManus is manager and at times has umpired, and Mrs. Carroll is the scorer. Both there ladies, neglect their housework and husbands, so that the boys can have their sport, Mr. Bob Bain has looked after under 14 team, and the boys are doing well. Mr and Mrs. Sen Binner have done a great job with the drinks, running a shuttle. service from ground to ground in

true Gunga Din fashion, bringing liquid refreshment (very ooft) and encouragement to boys when most needed. We were very happy to report that three of our boys were selected to represent the Sutherland Shire in inter-district competition. They were Robert Bain in the under 14 team, and Trover Hedkinson and Barry Mi Manus in the under 12 team? The Committee congratulate these lads on their winning of District Caps and wish them every success in the future. We had a very successful Presentation night at end of football season. Trophies were given to logs who earned them, and every boy who played with club received an inscribed permant. Thanks to all the mothers who came along with plates of food to make night a great success. We will do repeat same at conclusion of cricket season. In conclusion I would like to thank all who have assisted during year, and stress the fact that we have literally hundreds of school-age children clamoring for organised weekend sport. It is up to us to organise and supply facilities for same on a scale that great enough, so that we will have to refuse no child who wants to play.

B. M'Manus .

3

THE PEOPLE WHO FORGED OUR CLUB

In 1999 Harry Robbins wrote "Engadine Dragons Cricket Club – A Proud History in Sutherland Shire Sport" which commemorated the first 40 years of our club. As a tribute Harry wrote about the families & individuals that contributed to the success of the club during this period.

In consultation with Harry I have now written a few lines to acknowledge those that have followed in the next 20 years and have included a revised version of Harry's original summary for the families and individuals that contributed in the first 40 years and expanded on those that have bridged the two eras.

It is only fitting that the first two tributes go to Barry McManus (senior) the founder of the Club and Harry Robbins the longest and most loyal serving member of the Club.



Barry McManus (senior)

Barry McManus joined the Militia in 1938 and left Australia on February 4, 1941 on board the Queen Mary bound for Malaya. Barry became a prisoner of war in February 1942 and spent six months in the Changi prison camp before being sent to Thailand to work on the infamous Thai - Burma railway, which was completed in 1944. The last twelve months of the war he spent working in the copper mines on the island of Shijoku, just off Japan. Barry's fortitude and courage enabled him to survive the horrendous hell camps in which he was imprisoned for nearly four years.

Barry married Ada in 1946, moving to Engadine in 1948. Working as a roof tiler and bricklayer until his war injuries forced an early retirement. As the population of Engadine grew, Barry and Ada realised there was a real need for something to be done to give boys an opportunity to participate in playing sport and so began the formation of the Engadine Dragons. Barry was the Club's President for both Cricket and Rugby League from 1959 to 1963 and was duly honoured with life membership by both clubs.

In 1960 to 1962 he was Secretary of the Boys Committee for the Sutherland Shire division of the St. George Junior Rugby League and also delegate to the St. George Junior Rugby League. Then, in 1963, the Cronulla Sutherland Junior League and the Sharks Grade Club were formed with Barry as Secretary of the Sharks 2nd division team in their formation year. The Cronulla Sutherland Junior League rewarded his services with life membership.

Barry was also a committeeman with the Sutherland Shire Junior Cricket Association from 1960-1963 and also coached Representative teams as well as coaching our club teams, with his wife Ada doing the scoring. Barry was also involved with the RSL movement in which he served with great distinction for countless years.

Some of his achievements were -

- Life Membership of RSSAILA
- Life Membership of Engadine RSL Memorial Club
- Past President of both these bodies.
- Life Membership of Engadine RSL Fishing Club.

Barry was also deeply involved with the welfare and legacy functions of the RSL movement.

In 1997 the 'Junior Club Champion' trophy was perpetuated in his name.

Barry (Snr.) passed away on May 25, 1993.

Son Barry (junior) played junior cricket with the club from 1959 to 1965, coached junior teams for a number of seasons and was the club's first "Junior Club Champion" in 1962/63. Barry represented the SSJCA for 6 seasons and in 1964/65 was awarded the "SSJCA Cricketer of the Year" after scoring 578 runs at an average 72.25 and taking 37 wickets. Barry went on to play for the Sutherland District Cricket Club. Barry's sons Kaine and Mark played for the club with Barry returning to play senior cricket with both boys. Barry's grandson Deakin Struthers has just played his first season of cricket for the club.



Harry Robbins

Harry's first cricket involvement within the Sutherland Shire started way back in 1947 playing for the Heathcote Cricket Club. In 1949 Harry took over from his father Phillip as the Club Secretary of the Heathcote Cricket Club. In the early 1950's he joined the North Cronulla Cricket Club and from 1949 to 1953 he captained the SSCA Telegraph Shield Team and continued through the 1950's and 1960's as a regular member of the SSCA Martin Shield team, on many occasions as captain.

In 1964 he joined the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club and in 1967-68 Harry with assistance of Col Keenan and Barry Blanchard was instrumental in establishment of the Club's first senior cricket. Success was immediate with the A2 team winning the premiership in its fledgling season followed by three consecutive A1 premierships. Harry played seniors with the Club from day one before retiring at 52.

During the glory days of the 1970's Harry was known to all as "Mr Engadine Dragons" which says it all. Harry's three sons Phillip, Peter and Ken all played junior cricket for the club with Ken representing the SSCJA in their 1973/74 Foster Shield No.2 team and Phil captaining the 1967-68 12B Premiers team. Phil and Ken also played seniors for the Club.

Some of his achievements were –

Service to the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club -

- Secretary for 7 seasons. (1973/74, 74/75, 76/77, 77/78, 81/82, 82/83, 83/84)
- Treasurer for 1 season. (1966/67)
- Property Officer for 14 seasons. (1964/65 to 1977/78)
- Wrote articles for the local newspaper for 32 seasons commencing 1964/65.
- Newsletter Editor for the first 5 seasons of publication commencing 1964/65.
- Coaching junior teams for 27 seasons. (11 Premierships and 6 Runners Up)
- Club coach for 5 seasons. (2001 to 2006)
- Ran School Holiday coaching clinics for 7 seasons. (2004/05 to 2010/11)
- Club delegate to the SSJCA for 8 seasons. (1973 to 1979) & (1981 to 1984)
- Club delegate to the SSCA for 9 seasons. (1967 to 1976)

Service to the SSCA & SSJCA Associations & Sutherland Grade Club -

- SSCA Auditor for 17 seasons.
- SSCA General Committee for 3 seasons.
- SSJCA Grading Committee for 5 seasons.
- SSJCA Representative Selector for 6 seasons.
- Coached Watson Shield Teams for 3 seasons.
- Coached Green Shield teams for 1 season (Undefeated Premiers).

Honours received -

- Life Membership of the Sutherland Shire Cricket Association in 1970.
- Life Membership of the Engadine Dragons Rugby League Football Club in 1975.
- Life Membership of the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club in 1978.
- Senior Club Champion Trophy named after Harry in 1996.

- Hughes Community Award in 1998.
- Australian Sports Medal in 2000.
- Cricket Australia 50 Year Service Award in 2005.
- Club training facilities & Meeting Rooms named "The Harry Robbins Rooms" in 2006.
- Service to Shire Junior Cricket Award in 2016.

After coaching countless premiership teams over the years the 2006/07 10A Premiership victory at the age 76 years showed Harry had lost none of his ability to guide teams at the highest level. In 2008 Harry hung up his coaching boots, but still continued to help out teams where ever he could and was still actively contributing to the Club by writing his "Around the Grounds" column in the Club Newsletter and in the local paper. Ill health in 2014 saw Harry's 65 years of active contribution to cricket in the Sutherland Shire come to an end.

They say behind every good man there's a good woman and in Harry's case that woman was his wife Heather, another staunch worker for the Club typing the Club Newsletter in the early years as well as being a hard working member of the social committee in the 1970's and 1980's. Heather sadly passed away July 26, 2016.

Families & Individuals – 1959 to 2019

Adams

Commencing in 1984/85 Brett played 26 years seasons of cricket for our club, which included 8 consecutive seasons playing juniors and represented the SSJCA in their 1984/85 Foster Shield team. Brett coached junior teams for 5 seasons starting in 1998/99 going on to captain the same boys as they entered the senior ranks. In 2019 Brett was awarded Life Membership of the Club.

Alewood

Mick played senior cricket with the club in the 1960's and was a member of our first A1 premiership team. Mick assisted in coaching our junior teams and his sons Craig and Mike both played for the club with Craig being awarded "Senior Club Champion" in 1980/81. Craig's sons Daniel and Bryce also played junior cricket for the Club with Bryce awarded the "Junior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Trophy" in 2001/02.

Alterator

Phil coached junior teams for 5 seasons and also managed for 2 seasons as well as being a member of the clubs grading committee for 4 seasons. His son Nathan played junior cricket for the club and went on to captain senior sides. Nathan was awarded 'The Robert Tickner Encouragement Trophy" in 1992/93 and the "Barry McManus Memorial Shield" in 1995/96. He served as the Senior Registrar in 2005/06 and coached junior teams for 3 seasons with two of his sides being awarded the "The Most Improved Team" in 2003/04 and on the second occasion in 2006/07 with his father Phil as manager.

Atkins

Warren coached junior teams and captained the "Old Buffer" teams to premierships and was the "Senior Club Champion" in 1973/74. His sons Steven and Bradley both played junior cricket for the Club.

Bailey

Three brothers Alan, Trevor and Mick played for our club in the 1960's. Trevor was the "Junior Club Champion" in 1967/68 and represented the SSJCA.

Berry

Col is the club's second longest serving player with 35 season commencing 1978/79 and was awarded "Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket" in 1980/81. Col was Vice President for 3 seasons from 2002/03 to 2004/05 and has been Treasurer for 13 seasons commencing in 2005/06. Col was

awarded Life Membership in 2009 with the "Senior Wicket Keeping Performance Trophy" being named in his honour. All three sons Tim, Matthew and Joshua all played junior and senior cricket for the club. In 2015/16 season Tim set a club record for the highest innings with 339 not out and at the same time with brother Matthew set the record for the club's highest ever partnership of 329. Tim set two more club records as the first Dragon's player to break 1000 runs in a season with 1083 runs @ 90 and scored the most centuries in one season with 5 and was awarded the SSCA "Batting Aggregate", "Batting Average" and "Cricketer of the Year". Tim also received the "Intermediate Wicket Keeper Performance Trophy" back to back 2010/11 & 2011/12, "Senior Batting Performance Trophy" in 2015/16 and "Senior Fielding Performance Trophy" in 2017/18. Josh was awarded "Junior Wicket Keeper Performance Trophy" and "Junior Batting Performance Trophy" in 2010/11 and the "Intermediate Wicket Keeper Performance Trophy" in 2012/13. Tim and Matthew have represented the SSCA in the Telegraph Shield team for the past 4 seasons commencing in 2015/16. The 4 Berry family members have a combined playing service of 85 seasons, the most of any family to play for the club.

Blanchard

Barry along with Col Keenan assisted Harry Robbins to establish the Club's first senior cricket. Barry captained the club's first 4 seasons of Senior 'A' grade teams to premierships. Barry held positions of President in 1972/73, Secretary in 1967/68 & 1968/69, SSCA Club delegate and coached junior teams for 2 seasons.

Bland

John coached junior teams for 3 seasons and was the winner of the "Most Improved Team" award in 1975/76. Son Peter was awarded "Top Club Batsman" in 1979/80 and in 1981/82 was awarded "Top Under Sixteen Batsman" and "Junior Club Champion". Peter represented the SSJCA in every age group before going on to play for the Sutherland District Grade Cricket Club, then returning to the Club in our A1 team.

Brownscombe

Craig played both junior and senior cricket for the club and has coached junior teams for 6 seasons. Craig was awarded the "Robert Tickner Encouragement Trophy in 1987/88 and in 1994/95 he was awarded "Top Under Sixteen Batsman", "Top Boys Club Batsman" and "Junior Club Champion". Craig represented SSJCA for 6 seasons in their Shield teams and was selected in the Sutherland District Cricket Club Green Shield side in 1994/95. Craig's three sons Lachlan, Zachary and Mitchell have all played junior cricket for the club with Lachlan also representing the SSJCA in their Moore Shield team.

Carlisle

John was Treasurer for 13 consecutive seasons commencing in 1992/93 and was awarded Life Membership in 2002 with the "Senior Bowling Performance Trophy" being named in his honour. Son Stephen played junior cricket for the club and was awarded the "Top Boys Club Bowler" in 1994/95. Stephen represented the SSJCA for 4 seasons and was selected in the Sutherland District Cricket Club Green Shield team in 1994/95. Stephen coached junior teams for 3 season with both of his sons Laythen and Balin playing junior cricket for the club.

Carroll

Danny Carroll was Secretary of our club in its first season 1959/60 and coached junior teams for 2 seasons. His sons Robert and Tony both played for the club with Tony representing the SSJCA in their Moore Shield team. Robert was awarded the "Junior Club Champion" in 1964/65. Robert's son Matthew commenced playing juniors for the club in the 1993/94 season and in 2018 was awarded a Life Membership for 25 consecutive seasons of playing service. Matthew was awarded the "Barry McManus Memorial Shield" in 1994/95. Matthew is also the club's most successful spin bowler taking over 500 wickets with the best bowling figures of 9 for 16 in 2005/06.

Chudleigh

Graham was one of the NSW leading leg spin bowlers in the 1960's playing with Cumberland, St. George and Sutherland District Cricket Club, scoring 150 runs in his last grade match. He captained our A1 team to premierships and coached junior teams for 2 seasons winning the "Most Improved Team" award in 1978/79. Graham went on to umpiring grade cricket after finishing his cricket career. His son Peter also played junior cricket with the club and represented the SSCJCA in their Foster and Cawsey Shield teams.

Cranston

George was one of the original stalwarts in the early years coaching for 7 seasons and captaining senior sides. George's wife Pat was a regular scorer in both junior and senior cricket. Son lan played 13 seasons for the club and represented the SSJCA in every age group. "Crano" was the first example of a "True Blue" Dragon cricketer, coaching junior teams for 4 seasons with great success, playing senior cricket and was awarded "Junior Club Champion" in 1972/73. He represented the Sutherland District Cricket Club in their 1973/74 Green Shield team, then going on to play grade cricket. Ian returned to the club to play in our A1 teams and was awarded the "Senior Club Champion" in 1984/85.

Croker

Neil joined our committee in 2009/10 and has served as Club Secretary (current) for 9 seasons commencing in 2010/11, held the role of Treasurer in 2014/15, coached junior teams for 6 seasons and was awarded "Club Member of the Year" in 2011/12. During his time as secretary he has been our delegate to the SSJCA as well as also serving the junior association on their Grading Committee and as a representative selector for 5 seasons. Neil's term as secretary has navigated our club through the biggest changes in SSJCA history. Both sons Dylan and Bailey played junior cricket for the club. Dylan represented the SSJCA for 5 seasons as well as playing Green Shield for the Sutherland District Cricket Club in 2015/16. He was awarded "Junior Rookie of the Year" in 2008/09, "Junior Division Batting Performance Trophy" 2009/10 and "Intermediate Fielding Performance Trophy" 2015/16. Bailey was a member of the SSJCA U10 Development squad in 2016/17. In 2019 Neil was awarded Life Membership of the Club.

Dudman

Ron captained our Premiership B3 team in 1969/70 and in the same season had the "Club Sportsman of the Year Trophy" named in his honour. Wife Betty was a member of the club's first Ladies Auxiliary which was formed in 1962/63. Sons Neil and Scott both played junior and senior cricket for the club with Neil's claim to fame being dismissing Australia's future test opener John Dyson twice in the one match. Scott won several club team awards.

Duncan

The Duncan's have a combined total of 43 seasons of playing service for the club with father Peter 10 and son's Jordan 16 and Jaryd 17 seasons. Jaryd was awarded the "Senior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Trophy" in 2011/12 and "Senior Club Champion" in 2014/15 & 2016/17.

Dwarshuis

Gerry played junior and senior cricket for the club as well representing the SSJCA Watson Shield team in 1977/78 as a leg spin bowler. Gerry also managed many junior sides. Son's Ben and Jack played junior cricket for the club and were both recipients of the Bradman Scholarship. Ben was awarded the "Junior Division Batting Performance Award" in 2005/06, "Intermediate Fielding Performance Award" in 2007/08 and "Junior Club Champion" in 2009/10. Jack was awarded the "Sutherland Medal" for being the 2014/15 "16A Player of the Final" taking 5 for 34. Ben and Jack both represented the SSJCA in every age group, Sydney East PSSA, NSW PSSA Team, Sydney East CHSSA and Sutherland District Cricket Club's Green Shield Team, then going on to play Grade Cricket. Ben made his 1st Grade debut for Sutherland in 2012 and was selected in the NSW U19 team in the same year. In 2013 he was given a NSW Blues Rookie Contract and signed for the Sydney Sixers the

same season. Ben has gone on to represent the NSW Blues from 2015 onwards. In 2018 he was selected for the Kings XI Punjab in the Indian Premier League, Australian T20 Squad and the Prime Ministers XI verse South Africa.

Entwistle

Ray played senior cricket and was a member of the club's first senior team, Treasurer of the club for 5 seasons from 1977/78 to 1981/82, Club Registrar for 9 seasons 1977/78 to 1985/86, coached junior teams for 4 seasons and served as the club delegate to the SSJCA during this time. Son Rodney played junior cricket for the club as well as representing the SSJCA in the Moore Shield

Ferguson

John played with and captained our senior sides as well as coaching junior teams. His two sons Dean and Brett both played junior cricket for the club and both represented the SSJCA. Dean was awarded the "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1973/74 and "Top Under Sixteen Batsman" & "Junior Club Champion" in 1974/75. He represented in the Sutherland District Cricket Club's Green Shield team in 1974/75 & 1975/76 and their Poidevin-Gray Shield team in 1978/79 before going on to play grade cricket with the St. George Cricket Club. Brett captained a number of 'A' grade junior premiership teams and was "Junior Club Champion" in 1975/76 and was awarded the SSJCA "Best Performance 14A" in 1975/76.

Fordyce

Mike was the "Junior Club Champion" in 1966/67, "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1976/77 and he played in our original senior team. Mike was the first youngster to coach junior teams (9 seasons), was the SSJCA club delegate for many seasons, held the roles of Treasurer for 3 seasons from 1968/69 and Secretary in 1975/76. Mike was awarded Life Membership in 1984 and has been honoured with his name on the "Junior Wicket Keeper Performance Trophy" in 1997. Wife Elizabeth was a regular scorer for Mike's senior team and won the SSCA A1 scorebook award in 1980/81.

Gleeson

Tony served as Publicity Officer for 6 seasons between 1977/78 & 1984/85, Club Secretary in 1979/80 & 2005/06, Property Officer in 1979/80, 1983/84 & 1984/85 and coached junior teams for 9 seasons. Tony's wife Trish assisted with the production of the club's newsletter. Tony oversaw the planning, council applications and construction of the Dragon's Club Rooms and spent many an hour fitting out the room's interior so that the club's history could be displayed. Tony was the "Club Member of the Year" in 2004/05 and was awarded Life Membership of the club in 2011. Sons James and Michael played junior cricket for the club as well as representing the SSJCA. Michael was awarded the "Top Boys Club Bowler" in 1983/84 & 1984/85.

Goodman

Geoff played senior cricket and coached our junior teams for 6 seasons winning the "Most Improved Team" award in 1982/83. His two sons Greg and Glen played for the club with Greg an outstanding wicket keeper batsman who was awarded "Wicket Keeper Encouragement Award" in 1983/84, "Top Boys Club Wicket Keeper" 1988/89, 1989/90 & 1990/91, "Top Under Sixteen Batsman" in 1989/90 & 1990/91, "Junior Club Champion" in 1989/90 & 1990/91 and "Senior Club Champion in 2001/02. Greg was graded with and played for the St. George Cricket Club before returning to the Dragons to win back to back A1 premierships in 1999/00 & 2000/01.

Goodman

Anthony has been our Uniform Officer (current) for 9 seasons commencing in 2010/11 and was awarded "Club Member of the Year" in 2015/16. Anthony's son Luke played junior and senior cricket for the club and was awarded the "Bob Price Encouragement Shield" in 2010/11 and "Senior Rookie of the Year' in 2017/18.

Griffith

Dean joined our Club in 1994/95 in our U8 team and played 24 consecutive seasons for the Club as well as coaching junior teams. Dean sadly passed away in July 2018 just before the start of what would have been his 25th season. Dean was posthumously awarded Life Membership in 2019 for his playing service to the club with the "Senior All Rounder Trophy" being named in his honour. Dean's father Ray coached junior teams for 2 seasons as well as managing sides.

Heffernan

Phil was a member of our first senior team in 1967/68 and together with his brother Clem played in our 1968/69 and 1969/70 Premiership A1 teams. Clem coached junior teams for 8 seasons and was "Senior Club Champion" in 1974/75 and was awarded Life Membership in 1992 with the "Intermediate Wicket Keeping Performance Trophy" being named in his honour. Clem's son Greg commenced playing in 1973/74 and played 33 seasons for the club of which 32 were consecutive. Greg coached junior teams for 4 seasons, was Senior Secretary in 1993/94", "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1979/80 and "Senior Club Champion" in 1982/83, 1991/92 & 2004/05. Greg was awarded Life Membership in 1999 with the "Intermediate Fielding Performance Trophy" being named in his honour.

Johnson

Ken Johnson was President of the Club for 5 seasons between 1963-64 and 1969/70 with his name perpetuated on "Top Under Sixteen Batsman Trophy" in 1971/72. His wife Pauline helped form the Women's auxiliary in 1962 and assisted with coaching junior teams. Sons Mark, Steven and Brett all played for the club and all won SSJCA Wicket Keeping Awards. Mark was "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1971/72. Brett played junior and senior cricket for the club as well as representing the SSJCA in every age group. Brett played in our 1977/78 A1 premiership team before embarking on a 15 year grade career with the Sutherland District Cricket Club debuting in 1st grade in 1981. Brett returned to the club to captain back to back A1 Premierships in 1999/00 & 2000/01 and also coached our 16As at the same time. Brett was awarded the "Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket" in 1975/76 and "Senior Club Champion" in 1977/78.

Jones

Trevor played in our A1 teams and assisted in coaching junior teams. Trevor held the position of President of the Sutherland Shire Cricket Umpires Association and was honoured with Life Membership for his service. His wife Sheila was a team scorer for many years and was one of the mainstays in running the club's Ladies Auxiliary. Son Graham played in our 1981/82 A1 premiership team.

Jones

Steve managed junior teams and initially joined the committee in 2001/02 and was the Minutes Secretary from 2002/03 to 2004/05 before going on to serve as Vice President in 2005/06 and President for 9 seasons from 2006/07 to 2014/15. Steve was our club's delegate to the "Anzac Youth & Recreation Centre's 527 Committee" for 13 seasons commencing in 2006/07. For the past 12 seasons Steve has been the MC of our junior and senior Presentations, as well as all our club's social events after taking on the role in the 2007/08. Steve was Awarded Life Membership of the club in 2015. His son Andrew played junior and senior cricket for the club and was awarded the "Greg Heffernan Fielding Trophy" in 2000/01 and was the inaugural recipient of the "Bradman Foundation Scholarship" in 2001/02. Andrew was a regular member of SSJCA representative teams for 5 seasons including the 2000/01 Foster Shield Premiers.

Keenan

Col was the club's "Senior Club Champion" in 1971/72 and held the positions of President in 1971/72 & 1972/73, Secretary in 1969/70 & 1970/71 and coached junior teams for 3 seasons. Col was awarded a Life Membership in 1981 with the "Junior Bowling Performance Trophy" being named in

his honour. His son Peter played for the club and his wife Gladys was a regular team scorer and a member of the club's first Ladies Auxiliary in 1962/63.

Knight

Rob played 18 seasons of cricket for the club from 1996/97 to 2013/14 captaining senior teams. Rob was awarded the "Senior Division Bowling Performance Trophy" back to back in 2011/12 & 2012/13 and was awarded the SSCA "Best Bowling Aggregate" 2011/12 with 42 wickets. He coached junior teams for 12 consecutive seasons commencing in 1999/00, Promotions and Advertising Officer for 4 seasons 2004/05 to 2007/08, Club Coach for 3 seasons 2009/10 to 2011/12. Rob initiated and coordinated the school visits & recruitment program for 2 seasons as well as being involved in the U10 Development squads. Rob was the "Club Member of the Year" in 2003/04 and was awarded a Life Membership of the club in 2010.

Knowles

Bill played senior cricket and coached junior teams for the club. He held the position of Property Officer for the club for 15 years from 1987/88 to 2001/02 after which the position was split into two parts, Equipment and Uniforms. Bill continued on as Uniform Officer for another 8 years from 2002/03 to 2009/10. Bill was the "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1993/94 and was awarded Life Membership in 1998 with the "Most Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket" trophy being named in his honour. Bill's son Greg played 26 years for the club from 1983/84 to 2007/08 and returned again for 1 season in 2009/10 and was awarded Life Membership in 2008 with the "Senior Fielding Performance" trophy being named in his honour. Greg also coached junior teams for the club and was a member of the 1999/00 & 2000/01 A1 Premier teams. Bill's brother Ross known to all as "Doc" coached junior teams with the club for 4 seasons, Club Secretary for 3 seasons 1988/89 to 1990/91 and Junior Registrar for 4 seasons 1988/89 to 1991/91. Ross was "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1991/92 and made a return to cricket in the 1998/99 to play alongside his son Beau who was "Senior Club Champion" in the same season.

Lake

Fred coached junior teams for the club for 3 seasons with his sons Drew and Chris both playing junior and senior cricket for the club. Drew will be remembered as the Dragon's greatest ever clubman and has just completed his 40 consecutive season of playing for the club. Drew has won 3 "Senior Club Champion" awards in 1995/96, 2005/06 & 2011/12 and was a member of our A1 team that won back to back Premierships in 1999/00 & 2000/01. Drew also served as Senior Secretary in 1994/95. In 2004 Drew was awarded a Life Membership of the club with the "Senior Division Batting Performance Award" being named in his honour. Chris was arguably the club's best ever junior batsman scoring 2801 runs for the club and represented the SSJCA in every age group. He was awarded the "Top Boy's Club Batsman" in 1990/91, 1992/93 & 1993/94, "Top Boy's Club Bowler" in 1992/93, "Top Under Sixteen Batsman' in 1993/94, "Junior Club Champion" in 1992/93 & 1993/94, SSJCA "Best Performance 12A" in 1989/90 & 1990/91, SSJCA "Best Performanc 14A" in 1992/93 and was the SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" in 1993/94. Chris was selected in the NSW U/15 team to tour the Northern Territory in 1993/94 and represented in the Sutherland District Grade Cricket Club's Green Shield team for 2 seasons where he scored a record 490 runs in the 1993/94 season. He also played 4 seasons in the Poidevin-Gray team between 1995/96 & 1997/98 before making his 1st Grade debut for Sutherland District Cricket Club 1998. In 2006/07 Chris returned to the Club and played seniors for one season and was awarded the SSCA "Batting Average" with 98.5.

Langston

Three brothers Greg, Russell and Glen all played for the club. Their mother was another of our faithful scorers in junior and senior cricket. Russell was the clubs "Top Boys Club Batsman" in 1981/82 scoring 2 consecutive centuries in that same season and represented in the SSJCA Watson Shield No.2 team in 1983/84.

Latham

Ian joined the club in the 1993/94 season and has coached junior teams for 18 seasons. He was Club Secretary for 10 consecutive seasons from 1995/96 to 2004/05, Assistant Junior Secretary for 2 seasons 2013/14 & 2014/15, Property Officer for 2 seasons 2005/06 & 2006/07 and 8 seasons as Webmaster commencing in 2011/12. In 2003 Ian along with Bob Price successfully lobbied the Anzac Oval 527 Committee for permission to build our Dragon's club rooms and then applied for two Department of Sport & Recreation grants to fund their construction between 2004 & 2006. He was "Club Member of the Year" in 1997/98 & 2008/09, awarded Life Membership in 2003 and honoured with his name on the "Junior Club All Rounder Trophy". Ian received the "Hughes Community Award" in 2006 and the SSJCA "Services to Shire Junior Cricket Award" in 2016. Sons Daniel and Ben have played both junior and senior cricket for the club. Ben represented the SSJCA for 2 seasons including the 2000/01 Foster Shield Premiership side.

Lee

Jim joined the Club Committee in 2009/10 and was Vice President for 5 seasons from 2010/11 to 2014/15, Club President (current) for 4 seasons commencing in 2015/16 and coached junior teams for 6 seasons. Jim was also involved in our school visits & recruitment program as well as the U10 Development squads for a number of seasons and established the Bunnings BBQ fund raiser. He has represented the Club as a delegate to the SSJCA and also served the SSJCA as their Representative Manager for a number of seasons. He was awarded the "Club Member of the Year" in 2009/10 and in 2019 Jim was awarded Life Membership of the Club. His daughter Rebecca played U8's for the club, where as son Alex played 10 seasons of junior cricket for the club. Alex also represented the SSJCA in every age group as well as representing the Sutherland District Cricket Club in their Green Shield teams in 2014/15 & 2015/16 and Poidevin-Gray Shield team in 2017/18.

Lees

Joy was treasurer for 2 seasons 1975/76 & 1976/77 and together with her husband Jim published the club's magazine between 1975/76 & 1978/79. Jim also played in the clubs "Old Buffers" teams. Their sons Hilton and Darren both played junior and senior cricket for the club.

Lemmon

Alf played senior cricket for the club, coached junior teams for 2 seasons, Senior Registrar for 11 seasons 1987/88 to 1996/97, Senior Secretary for 7 seasons 1984 to 1989 & 1995 to 1997, President for 1 season in 1989/90 and Vice President for 4 seasons 1990 to 1994. Alf was the clubs regular delegate to the SSCA and led the group known as the "Magnificent Seven" who for three years regularly ran meat tray raffles at the Engadine Hotel raising funds for the club. Alf was awarded "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1978/79 and awarded Life Membership in 1985 with the "Intermediate Bowling Performance Trophy" being named in his honour.

Lofthouse

Allan captained senior teams for the club playing 28 consecutive seasons from 1985 to 2013. He held the position of Senior Secretary for 14 seasons from 2000 to 2013, Senior Registrar in 2012/13 and graded our senior sides for over 14 years. He was awarded "Club Member of the Year" in 2002/03 and received a Life Membership of the club in 2008. Allan's wife Judy was a regular team scorer winning the "SSCA Scorebook Award" on no less than 18 occasions between 1992/93 & 2012/13. Judy was Senior Registrar for 6 seasons from 2006/07 to 2011/12 and was awarded "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1995/96 and "Club Member of the Year" in 2005/06. Their son Brendan played cricket for the club, coached junior teams for 2 seasons and was awarded the "Wicket Keeping Encouragement Trophy" in 1988/89. Alan is currently in his 7th season as the SSCA Competition Manager commencing in 2012/13. In 2019 Allan was awarded a Life Membership of the SSCA becoming the third member of our Club to receive this honour following in the footsteps of Harry Robbins and Ray Noakes.

Lovett

Ron played a leading role for the club in the 1970's, playing senior cricket for the club for 20 seasons commencing in 1967/68. Ron coached junior teams for 10 seasons and held the positions of Secretary in 1978/79 and President for 5 seasons from 1979 to 1984. Ron was awarded the "Club Sportsman of the Year" trophy in 1984/85. His two sons Grant and Anthony played for the club with Anthony being awarded 3 "Top Boys Wicket Keeper Awards "1978/79, 1980/81 & 1981/82 and was "Senior Club Champion" in 1986/87. Diane Lovett helped form the Ladies Auxiliary body and won 2 Association Awards for best score book.

Marciante

Tony coached junior teams for 3 seasons, Assistant Secretary & Junior Registrar for 6 seasons from 2007/08 to 2012/13 and awarded "Club Member of the Year" in 2012/13. Sons Ben and Nathan played junior cricket for the club. Ben was awarded "Junior Division Batting Performance Trophy" in 2002/03 and the "Intermediate Division Batting Performance Trophy", "Junior Club All Rounder" in 2006/07, "Junior Club Champion" 2005/06 & 2006/07 and SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" in 2006/07. Nathan was awarded "Junior Division Bowling Performance Trophy" in 2006/07, the "Junior Division Batting Performance Trophy" in 2008/09, the "Intermediate Division Batting Performance Trophy", "Intermediate Division Bowling Performance Trophy", "Junior Club All Rounder" and "Junior Club Champion" in 2012/13. He was awarded the SSJCA "Best Performance 12A" in 2008/09 and SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" in 2012/13. Both brothers represented the SSJCA in every age group and both played Green Shield for the Sutherland District Cricket Club, Ben in 2006/07 and Nathan in 2012/13, with both players being selected in the Combined Green Shield team. Ben and Nathan also played Poidevin-Gray Shield, Nathan in 2013/14 and Ben for 3 seasons from 2007/08 to 2009/10. Ben made his 1st Grade debut for the Sutherland District Cricket Club in 2008.

Mazurkiewicz

Andrew coached junior teams for 3 seasons, managed for 4 seasons and published the club's Annual Report for 2 seasons. In 2007 he took over the role of Club Webmaster from Ken Newman and rebuilt the current club website www.engadinedragonscc.org.au, a position he held for 4 seasons from 2007/08 to 2010/11 and in 2007/08 he was awarded "Club Member of the Year". Andrew also served as the SSJCA Secretary from 2008/09 to 2010/11. His son Jarrod played junior and senior cricket for the club and was awarded with "Junior Rookie of the Year" in 2007/08 and "Senior Division Batting Performance Trophy" in 2014/15 also winning the SSCA C1 batting, bowling and wicket keeper award in the same season. Jarrod was a regular member of SSJCA representative teams and won a number of association awards including the "Best Performed 10A Player" in 2008 and was awarded the SSJCA "Sutherland Medal" for being the 2013/14 "16A Player of the Final" taking 4 for 7. He played Green Shield for St. George in 2013/14 & 2014/15.

McLauchlan

Daniel McLauchlan played his entire junior cricket with the club and was awarded the "Top Under Sixteen Batsman" award in 1992/93. He represented the SSJCA in every age group, represented the Sutherland District Cricket Club Green Shield team in 1993/94 and five seasons in Poidevin-Gray Shield 1994/95 to 1998/99. In 1994/95 he was selected in the NSW U17 side and in the same season debuted in 1st Grade for the Sutherland District Cricket Club. In 1996/97 Daniel represented NSW at the U19 National Championships where against South Australia he set the record for the most wickets in an innings with 9 for 11 and the most wickets in a match with 14 for 15. The record still stands today. As a result of his performance he was selected in the Australian U19 team that played Pakistan in a test series in Pakistan. The following season he played in the NSW Colts team going on to play for the Western Australian Warriors in 2006/07 & 2007/08 before returning to play 1st Grade cricket again in Sydney for various clubs. His brothers Ryan and Mitchell also played juniors for the club, Ryan also played seniors.

McMillan

Bob coached junior teams for 5 seasons. His son's David and Dean are long serving players for the club in both junior and senior teams with Dean just completing his 21st consecutive season. David

has also played 21 seasons for the club, assisted in coaching junior teams for 3 seasons and was awarded the "Senior Division Batting Performance Award" in 2008/09.

McPhee

John was one of the early faithfuls, who coached junior teams for 5 seasons. His 2 sons Warren and Robert both played for the club with Warren playing in our first senior team and assisted with coaching junior teams. Warren also served as Treasurer 1967/68 & 1968/69. Betty McPhee was a team scorer for many seasons.

Messiter

Brian played in our senior teams and was the "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1977/78. Brian's wife Karlene was team scorer for many seasons. Their sons Steven and David played junior and senior cricket for the club. Steve represented the SSJCA in their 1976/77 Watson Shield No.2 team, coached junior teams for 3 seasons and was "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1980/81.

Mitchell

The Mitchell boys have a combined total of 61 consecutive seasons of playing service for the club with Mark 22, Ian 21 and Kurt 18 seasons. Mark coached junior teams for 2 seasons and was awarded the "Intermediate Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award" in 1999/2000 and the "Senior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award" in 2000/01. Ian was "Junior Rookie of the Year" in 1998/99. Kurt was awarded the "Senior Division Bowling Performance Award" in 2008/09.

Morando

Fred coached junior teams for 2 seasons and his wife Cheryl acted as a delegate to the SSJCA and was the President of our Ladies Auxiliary. Their sons Sean and Nathan both played for the club with Sean coaching junior teams for 3 seasons winning the "Most Improved Team Award" in 1988/89. Nathan was one of the club's best all rounders and awarded more club special awards than anyone previously being awarded with "Top Boys Club Batsman" in 1983/84, 1986/87, 1987/88 & 1988/89, "Top Boys Club Bowler" in 1985/86, 1986/87, 1987/88 & 1988/89, "Top Under Sixteen Batsman" in 1988/89 and "Junior Club Champion" in 1987/88 & 1988/89. Nathan was awarded the SSJCA "Best Performance 10A" in 1983/84 and SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" in 1988/89. A regular member of SSJCA representative teams, selected in the NSW PSSA team in 1986 and represented the Sutherland District Cricket Club in their 1988/89 & 1989/90 Green Shield team and their 1990/91 & 1991/92 Poidevin-Gray team. Nathan returned to the club and played a couple of seasons of senior cricket when his son Fred played juniors.

Moreland

The three Moreland boys Tim, Brad and Chris all played cricket for the club. Tim played juniors for the club up until the U14s and was awarded the "Wicket Keeping Encouragement Trophy" in 1993/94. He was a regular member of the SSJCA representative teams going on to play Green Shield, Poidevin-Gray Shield and grade cricket with the Sutherland District Cricket Club. Brad served the Club as a junior player, coach and committee member. Taking on coaching in 1997 Brad coached teams for 6 seasons, he was the Property Officer for 3 seasons from 2002/03 to 2004/05 and Vice President for the past 4 season commencing in 2015/16. In 2000/01 he was awarded "Club Member of the Year" and received Life Membership of the club in 2008. Chris played junior and senior cricket for the club and represented the SSJCA for 4 seasons. Chris was awarded the "Junior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award" in 1998/99, the "Intermediate Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award" in 2002/03 and the "Senior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award" in 2004/05, 2006/07 and 2007/08. He coached junior teams for 3 seasons and has been the joint Promotion Officer for 3 seasons commencing in 2016/17. Chris was awarded "Club Member of the Year" in 2016/17 and received a Life Membership of the club in 2018 after playing 25 consecutive seasons for the Club. Tim, Brad and Chris's parent's Dave and Lorraine have both been great supporters of the club.

Morrison

Graham as Secretary was the strength in running the Dragons Sports Club from 1968 to 1973, which was the cricket club's parent body. Graham was a member of the 1969-70 A1 Premiership team and also assisted in coaching our junior teams. Wife Norah was involved with publication of the Club's Newsletter and was a member of the club's first Ladies Auxiliary in 1962/63. Their sons Ross and Murray played cricket for the club with Murray also representing the SSJCA in their 1970/71 Foster Shield No.2 team.

Morrison & Rolleston

The 2002/03 season produced a club record that I'm sure will never be broken. For the first time in the Club's history we had two sets of father and three daughters all playing for the Club in the same season. I'm sure this record will never be equalled by any other cricket club in Australia.

- Tom Morrison (B3) and daughters Rebecca (14D), Katherine (14D) & Eleanor (10C)
- Alan Rolleston (B9) and daughters Alex (14D), Caryn-Lee (14D) & Kelly (10B)

Napper

lan played for St. George lower grades as a youngster before joining the Sutherland District Cricket Club where he was captain of their 1st Grade for several seasons. He then joined our club captaining our A1 team and assisted in coaching our junior teams in the 1980's. His son Cameron won several club awards between 1984-85 & 1986-87 and represented the SSJCA in Moore and Watson Shield teams, played in the Sutherland District Cricket Club's Green Shield teams in 1987-88 and 1988-89 and the U/16 Metropolitan team in 1988-89.

Newman

Ken played senior cricket for the club, MC of our Trivia Night for 4 seasons commencing in 2002/03 and in 2004/05 designed and administered the Club's first Website. Ken was Webmaster from 2004/05 to 2006/07 and in 2004/05 was awarded "Club Member of the Year". Ken's sons Matthew and Sam played for the club and both boys coached for 1 season. Matthew was awarded the "Wicket Keeping Encouragement Award" 1995/96 and the "Senior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Trophy" in 2002/03. Sam was awarded the club's "Junior Division Bowling Performance Trophy" in 2001/02 & 2002/03 and the "Intermediate Division Bowling Performance Trophy" in 2005/06. He represented the SSJCA in every age group and played in the Sutherland District Cricket Club's Green Shield teams in 2005/06, 2006/07 & 2007/08 and the Poidevin Shield team in 2009/10. Sam also represented at school cricket being selected in the NSWCHA Team in 2008, 2009 & 2010 and the All Schools Team in 2008 & 2009.

Noakes

Ray was one of Shire's best ever cricketers playing lower grades with St. George before playing for Engadine Hotel and then joining Dragons in our 1968/69 A1 team. Ray coached junior teams for 9 seasons, coached SSJCA representative sides and served on the club's committee as President for 3 seasons 1976/77 to 1978/79, Publicity Officer in 1980/81 and was "Senior Club Champion" 1972/73. In 1980 he was awarded a Life Membership of the SSCA as well as a Life Membership of the Dragons with the "Junior Batting Performance Trophy" being named in his honour. Ray was also awarded a Life Membership of the SSCA in 1980. Ray's wife Vi was one of the founders of the Ladies Auxiliary, club recorder for many seasons and a regular team scorer. Their sons Peter and Mark both played junior and senior cricket with the club with Mark representing the SSJCA in their Foster Shield team. Peter coached our junior teams for 4 seasons as well holding the positions of Senior Secretary in 1981/82 & 1982/83 and Vice President in 1984/85 & 1985/86. Peter represented the SSJCA in every age group and went on to play for the Sutherland Grade Cricket Club in their Green Shield teams from 1973/74 to 1975/76. Mark's two sons Harrison and Cooper both played junior cricket for the club.

Pascoe

Adam has played junior and senior cricket for the club for 16 seasons commencing in 1982/83 and represented the SSJCA. Adam coached junior teams for 5 seasons, Senior Registrar (current) for 6 seasons commencing 2013/14 and also Senior Secretary in 2017/18 & 2018/19. Adam was "Senior Club Champion" in 2013/14 and "Club Member of the Year" in 2014/15. His mother Pat was a member of the Ladies Auxiliary and his son Daniel played junior cricket for the club.

Pendergast

Dennis (Pendo) coached for 14 years from 1994/95 onwards and was a member of the Club's Management Committee for 4 years, coach of our U/10 Development Squad for 2 years and was a member of the Club's Grading Committee for 13 years. Dennis was awarded "Club Member of the Year" in 2006/07 and received a Life Membership of the club in 2010. In 2015 he was awarded Life Membership of the SSJCA for 11 seasons of representative coaching. Dennis's son Chris played both junior and senior cricket for the club and was awarded the "Intermediate Division Batting Performance Trophy" in 1997/98. Chris was a regular member of SSJCA representative teams from U10 to U16 and played Green Shield for the Sutherland District Cricket Club in 1998/99 & 1999/00.

Perritt

Tony coached junior teams for 2 seasons. Sons David and Aaron played junior and senior cricket for the club with both boys being awarded the "Ray Noakes Memorial Scholarship", Dave in 1983/84 and Aaron in 1986/87. David represented the SSJCA for 4 seasons and was awarded the "Senior Club Champion" in 1987/88 and represented in the Sutherland District Cricket Club Green Shield team in 1984/85. Aaron's son Joshua also played junior and senior cricket for the club.

Price

Bob was the Club's Publicity Officer for 24 seasons from 1988/89 to 2011/12 publishing and printing the club's fortnightly Newsletter and Annual Report. Bob coached junior teams for 6 seasons and together with son Darren they coached the Most Improved team in 1996/97. Bob was also successful with the 12D team in 1990/91. He was a regular scorer for our senior teams. Bob was awarded the "Club Sportsman of the Year" trophy in 1992/93 and "Club Person of the Year" in 2005/06. Bob's ability to organise our club raffles and draw sponsorships proved invaluable for the Club's finances and in 1999 Bob was awarded a Life Membership of the club with the "Encouragement Award Shield" being named in his honour. He was also awarded the 'Hughes Community Award' in 2006 for his work in both soccer and cricket. Sons Darren and Graham played junior and senior cricket for the club. Darren was awarded the "Robert Tickner Encouragement Trophy" in 1988/89, "Ray Noakes Memorial Trophy" in 1992/93 and the "Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket" in 1994/95. Graham started playing cricket for the Dragon's in the 1986/87 season and was awarded the "Ray Noakes Memorial Trophy" in 1991/92 and in 2011 was awarded a Life Membership for twenty five years of consecutive playing service. He has just completed his 33rd season for the club. Graham through his business "GNP Marine Trimmings" and Darren's business "Southern Cross Framing & Mirrors" have been a long time sponsors for the club. Darren's son Wil plays junior cricket for the club. Bob's two nephews Geoff and Michael also played for the club with Geoff representing in SSJCA teams for 4 seasons and Michael awarded "Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket" in 1979/80 and "Senior Club Champion" in 1985/86.

Rice

Craig managed junior teams, was Junior Registrar in 2005/06 & 2006/07 and Club Secretary for 4 seasons from 2006/07 to 2009/10. Son Mark played juniors for the club and was the "Junior Club Champion" and "Junior Club All Rounder" in 2007/08. He represented the SSJCA in every age group and played in the Sutherland District Cricket Club's Green Shield team in 2007/08 and was selected in the Combined Green Shield Team the same season, member of the Poidevin Shield team from 2008/09 to 2011/12 and also represented in school teams being selected in the NSWCHS Team in 2010. Mark went on to debut in 1st Grade for Western Suburbs in 2014.

Richardson

John was club Treasurer for 6 seasons from 1982 to 1988, played senior cricket for a decade and coached junior sides for 2 seasons winning the "Most Improved Team" award in 1981/82. He was awarded "Senior Club Champion" in 1983/84 and "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1987/88.

Ritchie

Doug played senior cricket for the club, coached junior teams for 4 seasons and has been the Junior Registrar (current) for 6 seasons commencing in 2013/14. His wife Michelle has managed junior teams, has been the Publicity Officer (current) for 7 seasons commencing in 2012/13 and was awarded Club Member of the Year" in 2017/18. Son's Andrew, Luke and Lachlan all played for the Club. Andrew was awarded the "Junior Division Batting Performance Trophy" in 2012/13 and "Junior Club Champion" in 2016/17. Andrew represented the Sutherland District Cricket Club in Green Shield in 2016/17 and is currently playing third and fourth grade for Sutherland. Luke was awarded the "Junior Division Bowling Performance Trophy" in 2012/13 & 2014/15, "Junior Division Batting Performance Trophy" in 2015/16, "Junior Club All Rounder" in 2017/18 and "Junior Club Champion" in 2015/16 & 2017/18. Luke was also awarded the SSJCA "Best Performance 12A" in 2015/16. Lachlan was awarded the "Junior Rookie of the Year" in 2014/15, "Junior Division Bowling Performance Trophy" in 2015/16, and "Junior Division Batting Performance Trophy" in 2016/17 and was selected in the NSW PSSA State Team in 2018. All three boys have represented the SSJCA with Lachlan being awarded the "Representative Individual Achievement Award NSWDCA" in 2017/18 and the NSWDCA "Gee Shield Player of the Year" in 2018/19.

Rossiter

Brothers Grant and Cameron both scored centuries in their first season playing U10 cricket with Grant scoring 2 more centuries in 1980/81. Cameron won the club's "Top Boys Best Batsman" in 1977/78. Their mother Pat was involved with the Ladies Auxiliary for several years.

Rushbourne

Robert was one of the best all-rounders this club has produced as a fast bowler and attacking batsman and one of the best junior fieldsmen the club has seen and represented the SSJCA in their Moore and Watson Shield teams. Robert coached junior teams for 2 seasons and was our first "Senior Club Champion" in 1967/68.

Russell

Ted coached junior teams and played senior cricket and could bat or bowl both right or left handed. His son Dean was "Junior Club Champion" in 1980/81 and served as club delegate to the Association and coached junior teams for 1 season. Dean represented the SSJCA in every age group and played in the Sutherland District Cricket Club 1980/81 Green Shield team.

Russell

John coached for 2 seasons as well as managing junior teams for the club. Son's Matthew, Tim and Sam have all played junior and senior cricket for the club with Matt just completing his 23rd season and Tim his 25th. Tim has coached junior teams for 3 seasons, captained senior teams, has been the joint Promotion Officer for 3 seasons commencing in 2016/17 and established and administrated our Club's Facebook. He was awarded "Club Member of the Year" in 2016/17 and "Senior Club Champion" in 2018/19 as well as being awarded Life Membership of the club in the same season after playing 25 consecutive seasons for the Club.

Scott

Gordon was Vice President for 2 seasons 2000/01 & 2001/02, President for 4 seasons from 2002/03 to 2005/06 as well as coaching junior teams for 6 seasons. Gordon's son Rowan played junior cricket for the club.

Sheehy

John has played senior cricket for the club for 10 seasons, coached junior teams for 7 seasons, Club Coach for 2 seasons 2016/17 to 2017/18 and Assistant Junior Secretary for 3 seasons 2015/16 to 2017/18. John was awarded the "Senior Batting Performance Award" in 2009/10 and "Senior Bowling Performance Award" in 2010/11. John was awarded the SSCA "Batting Average" in 2009/10 and the SSCA "Batting Average" & "All Rounder" in 2010/11. His three sons Josh, Tom and Lucas all play junior cricket with the club. Josh was awarded the "Junior Wicket Keeping Performance Award" in 2014/15 and the "Intermediate Wicket Keeping Performance Award" 2017/18 and has represented the SSJCA. Tom is a regular member of SSJCA representative teams and a very promising leg spin bowler. Lucas was awarded "Junior Rookie of the Year" in 2017/18 and was also awarded the SSJCA Andrew Hilditch Trophy for the "Best Performance 10A". John's brother Craig and nephew Mitchell also played for the club.

Shepherd

Ron played senior cricket for the club. Son Ryan played junior and senior cricket for the club and was awarded the "Junior Division Batting Performance Award" 1997/98, "Intermediate Division Batting Performance Award" 1999/00, 2000/01 & 2001/02, "Junior Club Champion" 1999/00, 2000/01 & 2001/02, SSJCA "Best Performance 14A" in 1999/00 and SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" in 2000/01. He represented the SSJCA for 6 seasons and the Sutherland District Cricket Club in Green Shield in 2000/01 & 2001/02 and Poidevin-Gray Shield in 2002/03, 2003/04, 2004/05 & 2006/07.

Slack

Stuart played 22 consecutive seasons of junior and senior cricket for the club from 1989/90 and then returned to play a further 3 seasons in 2013/14. He was awarded the "Wicket Keeping Encouragement Award" in 1989/90, "Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket" in 1995/96 and "Club Member of the Year" in 2001/02. Stuart coached junior teams for 9 seasons from 1995/96 to 2003/04, Club Coach in 2004/05, Senior Secretary in 2015/16 & 2016/17 and in 2016 he was awarded Life Membership of the club for 25 years of playing service. Stuarts father Alan also coached junior teams for the club.

Stuve

Doug played senior cricket and was Vice President in 1982/83 & 1983/84, President in 1984/85 & 1985/86, Junior Registrar in 1987/88 and coached junior teams for 8 seasons. Doug son Bradley won the "Clubs Top Boys Wicket Keeper" award in 1983/84and represented the SSJCA in their Cawsey Shield No.2 team.

Terone

Fred (senior) scored for teams in the 1960's and 1970's. Fred (junior) played junior cricket and was in our clubs first senior team and winning 4 successive A-grade competitions. Ted was a wicket keeping batsman and was the first player from the Sutherland Shire Cricket Association to represent N.S.W. in Junior Union Teams, before being graded with Sutherland District Cricket Club and made his 1st Grade debut in 1973.

Tever

Val and Ken were the club's most devoted couple publishing and printing the Club Newsletter on an old Gestetner for 12 years from 1978 to 1989. For a further 15 years they collated the newsletter to be collected from their front door step. Ken served as Vice President for 10 seasons, in two stints from 1986/87 to 1989/90 and then again from 1994/95 to 1999/00 with 3 seasons of President from 1990/91 to 1992/93. Ken played an invaluable role for the Club as its delegate to the Anzac Youth Centre 527 committee since its inception. In 1994 Ken was awarded Life Membership of the club with the "Junior Rookie of the Year Trophy" named in his honour. Val was involved in running our Ladies Auxiliary Committee and was awarded "Clubman Sportsman of the Year" in 1989/90 and then awarded Life Membership in 1994 with the 'Club Member of the Year Trophy" named in her honour. Their son Craig played both junior and senior cricket for the club and was the "Senior Club Champion" in 1988/89.

Vannan

Bob was Club Treasurer for 4 seasons 1988/89 to 1991/92 and was the club's regular delegate to the SSCA meetings during this period being awarded "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1990/91 and was awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1994 with the "Most Improved Team Trophy" named in his honour. His sons Mark, Phil and Adrian all played junior and senior cricket for the club. Adrian was involved in the club for 15 seasons as the Senior Secretary for 4 seasons 1989/90 to 1992/93, captained senior teams, club delegate to the SSCA and was awarded the "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1981/82. Adrian was instrumental in the club being incorporated.

Waddell

Russ was a senior player, coached junior teams for 6 seasons and was Club President for 11 seasons, first from 1986 to 1989 and then returned in 1994 serving until 2002. Russ was the MC for our Club's presentations and social events for 21 years commencing in the 1987/88 season and was responsible for creating the club's first Constitution, guidelines and criteria that are mostly still used today. Russ was awarded "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1985/86, "Club Member of the Year" in 2008/09 and was awarded Life Membership in 1996 with the "Intermediate Batting Performance" trophy being named in his honour. In 2000 Russ was awarded with the "Australian Sports Medal", the "Hughes Community Award", "Mayoral Volunteer Award" and in 2002 he was awarded Life Membership of the SSJCA for his role as the Association Secretary. Russ authored the SSJCA 50TH History Book in 2007 and co-authored the Dragon's 50TH Anniversary Book in 2009. Son's Geoff and Paul both played for the club. Paul Waddell played 26 consecutive seasons for the club taking over 600 wickets and was the "Senior Club Champion" in 1996/97. Paul also coached junior teams for 4 seasons and served as the club's Property Officer in 2007/08 & 2008/09. Paul was awarded Life Membership in 2008 with the "Junior Fielding Performance" trophy being named in his honour.

Ward

Peter was the Junior Registrar for 3 seasons from 1997/98 to 1999/00, Assistant Secretary for 8 seasons from 2000/01 to 2006/07 as well as being the Club Delegate to the SSJCA during this time. Peter managed and coached junior teams for 4 seasons and was awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 2008. Son Jonathan played 18 seasons of junior and senior cricket for the club and represented the SSJCA in their President's U/12 & U/14 teams. Daniel played 10 seasons of juniors for the club and was awarded "Junior Division Bowling Performance Award" in 2000/01 and represented the SSJCA for 7 seasons including being a member of the 2000/01 Foster Shield Premiership team. Daniel played Green Shield for the Sutherland District Cricket Club in 2005/06 & 2006/07.

Warner

Wally Warner and his wife Nellie were Property Officers for both the cricket and rugby league clubs for several seasons 1961/62 to 1967/68. Nellie Warner looked after junior cricket teams in the early 1960's when no coaches were available and help start the Women's auxiliary in 1962. Their sons Phillip and Larry played junior and senior cricket for the Club with Larry a member of the 1978/79 A1 Premiership team. Phillip was awarded the club's inaugural "Club Sportsman of the Year" trophy in 1969/70.

Westlake

John has played 22 seasons for our club commencing in 1974/75. As a player he was awarded "Top Boy's Club Bowler" in 1976/77, "Top Under Sixteen Batsman" in 1982/83, "Junior Club Champion" in 1982/83 and "Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket" in 1984/85. He has coached junior teams for 8 seasons, our Equipment Officer (current) for 10 seasons commencing in 2009/10 and was our "Club Member of the Year" 2013/14. Sons Matthew and Cameron played cricket for the club with Cameron representing for the SSJCA as well as playing Green Shield for the Sutherland District Cricket Club. Cameron was awarded "Junior Wicket Keeping Performance Trophy" in 2012/13 and the "Intermediate Fielding Performance Trophy" in 2016/17. In 2019 John was awarded Life Membership of the Club.

Wishart

Alan was a member of the clubs committee and assisted with coaching our junior teams with both sons Steve and Wayne playing for the club. Steve and was awarded "Club Sportsman of the Year" in 1973/73 and "Junior Club Champion" in 1971/72 & 1973/74. He represented the SSJCA for 5 seasons in their Cawsey, Moore and Watson Shield teams and also represented the Sutherland District Cricket Club in their Green Shield team in 1972/73 and Poidevin-Gray Shield team in 1977/78 & 1978/79. He went on to play 2nd & 3rd grade for Sutherland and in the 1977/78 season Steve scored 697 runs, including 3 centuries, which is the record for the highest season aggregate by any Sutherland 3rd grade player. Wayne played both junior and senior cricket for the club playing a leading role in three Premiership teams – 16A, A3 & A1 and was awarded "Top Boys Club Batsman" in 1975/76, "Top Under Sixteen Batsman" in 1977/78 and "Junior Club Champion" in 1977/78. In 1971/72 he set a SSJCA 10A record of 83 wickets in a season and in 1973/74 was awarded the SSJCA "Best Performed 12A Player". He represented the SSJCA for 5 seasons with the best bowling figures of 7 for 6 in the 1973/74 Cawsey Shield and 8 for 27 in the 1975/76 Moore Shield. In 1980 at the age of 17 Wayne was selected in 4th Grade for the Sutherland District Cricket Club and within 7 matches debuted for 1st Grade. He also played Poidevin-Gray Shield in 1979/80 & 1980/81.

Woodhill

Bob captained senior teams, coached junior teams for 2 seasons, Assistant Secretary in 1983/84, Secretary in 1984/85 & 1985/86 and Publicity Officer in 1987/88. His son Trent was an outstanding leg spin bowling all rounder that represented the SSJCA in every age group, selected in the NSW PSSA team in 1983 and was awarded "Junior Club Champion Award" in 1986/87. Trent represented the Sutherland District Cricket Club Green Shield team in 1985/86 & 1986/87, Poidevin-Gray Shield team from 1989/90 to 1991/92 and 1991 made his 1st Grade debut for the Sutherland District Cricket Club.

HISTORY IN REVIEW

"The 1960's was to be a decade of establishment, growth and the finding of identity"

1959/60 – Engadine Dragons entered three teams U/10, U12 and U/14 into the Sutherland Shire Boys Cricket Association. Our first home ground was 'Engadine Oval'. The Engadine Dragons Foundation Committee was – Barry McManus (Snr) (President), Danny Carroll (Secretary), Ron Chapman (Treasurer), Ken Binner, Bernie Howard, Laurie Crosby, Bill Coates, Kel Keene, Bill Hadfield, Harold Barker, Bill Melrose, Harry Emptage and Claude Pollard. The following players became the Club's first representative players – Barry McManus (Jnr) (Cawsey), Trevor Hodkinson (Cawsey) and Robert Bain (Moore).

1960/61 – Saw the construction of a new oval alongside Forbes Creek (now known as Anzac Oval), the oval was first used for a cricket match in 1960. Barry McManus (Snr) takes on his first role at Association level managing the Shire's Cawsey Shield side in which son Barry (Jnr) is a member.

1961/62 — Saw long standing coach George Beames come to the Club. In the early days George would pack up the kit, mat and the team and travel to the match by rail. The Boy's Association introduce the "Cricketer of the Year" award named after John Woodhouse. The first recipient is Ray Tozer from the Miranda club.

1962/63 – This season saw the formation of the Ladies Auxiliary that became the cricket and rugby league club's main source of income. The first auxiliary members were – Lorna Gardner, Judy Membrey, Heather Robbins, Norah Morrison, Irene Carter, Norma Horsnell, May McStay, Nellie Warner, Pauline Johnson, Glad Keenan, Carrie Macken, Linda Snell, Betty Long, Elaine Hinton, Betty Dudman, Barbara Woodbridge and Noreen Blewitt. This season also saw the first club perpetual trophy introduced with the inception of the "Joe Weymouth Trophy" to be awarded to our "Junior Club Champion". Barry McManus (Jnr) was the first recipient.

"Junior Club Champion" was – Barry McManus (Jnr) 14A – 274 runs & 47 wkts

1963/64 – After consistent growth over the first few seasons, player numbers peaked with the Club fielding 8 teams and 98 players. With the Club facing such an influx of new players we were fortunate to gain the services of John McPhee who became the corner stone of coaches for our Club into the seventies. This season saw our original black and red cap replaced by a royal blue baggy with red piping.

"Junior Club Champion" - Peter Doherty 12C - 276 runs & 60 wkts

1964/65 — With record registrations of 114 teams and 1594 players the SSBCA were forced to increase the number of grades to cope with the influx. 1964 marked the introduction of the first weekly magazine called the "Dragons News". This season also saw Barry McManus (Jnr), son of Club founder become the first player from our Club to be honoured as SSBCA "Cricketer of the Year" 578 runs @ 72.25 and 37 wickets @ 14.51. Our Junior Presentation was held at the Institute Hall in Engadine from 1964/65 until 1970/71.

"Junior Club Champion" - Robert Carroll 14B - 478 runs & 70 wkts

1965/66 – The Club was finally rewarded with its first premiership. Our 14B side coached by Reg Spiers and managed by Mick Williams had a great season thanks to outstanding performances by Wayne Headley (59 wickets) and Russell Skuse (417 runs). The players in the 14B team were – Mick Williams, Colin Warn, Les Ledwidge, Russell Skuse, John Carlson, Barry Rose, Norm McGee, Peter Doherty, Neville Spiers (v/capt), Wayne Headley (capt), Jeff Ahearn and Mark Johnson. On the 30th June 1965 the Sutherland District Cricket Club was formed and first participated in the NSW Cricket Association grade competition in the 1965-66 season. Robert Bain was the first Dragon's junior to play first grade for Sutherland debuting September 25, 1965. This season heralded the introduction of the SSBCA "Club Championship".

"Junior Club Champion" - Wayne Headley 14B - 191 runs & 59 wkts

1966/67 – Barry McManus (Snr) is awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1966. Our newsletters and yearbooks took on a new look with the introduction of covers. The covers were designed by Gordon Alley and Neil Carter, with Harry Robbins canvassing local businesses and shops to advertise in the magazine. Also this season Heathcote entered their first junior sides, which had a direct impact on our own numbers.

"Junior Club Champion" - Mike Fordyce 16B - 365 runs & 38 wkts

1967/68 – This season the Club fielded its first senior team in the Sutherland Shire Cricket Association (SSCA) competition. The club applied for the A1 competition, but were graded A2's, they finished the season as undefeated premiers. The team was as follows – Barry Blanchard (capt), Harry Robbins (v/capt), Col Keenan, Mike Fordyce, Robert Rushbourne, Fred Terone, Warren McPhee, John Barnes, Phil Heffernan, Peter Doherty, Ted Russell, Warwick Sheehy, Ron Lovett, Gordon McElroy and Cliff Hams. In 1967 due to the growth of teams in both rugby league and cricket it was decided to form two separate committees to run each individual sport. The first members of the separate cricket committee were – Ken Horsnell (President), Barry Blanchard (Secretary) and Warren McPhee (Treasurer).

"Junior Club Champion" – Trevor Bailey 12B – 181 runs & 51 wkts

1968/69 – This season Ray Noakes the Shire's leading all rounder decided to leave Engadine Hotel Club and join the Dragons. Other outstanding players followed – Trevor Jones, George Cranston, Ray Dunn, John Ferguson, Dennis Pullen, Ron Dudman, Graham Morrison, Ray Monaghan, Graham Chudleigh and Gordon Beames. This season Dragons won their first A1 premiership and 7 of the next 14. In the junior ranks U/10 leg spinner Peter Noakes recorded the Club's best bowling match figures taking 9 for 37 and 8 for 27 against Gymea. Peter also formed a formidable partnership with wicket keeper Brett Johnson in Sutherland's Cawsey Shield side. Noakes captured 22 wickets, nine with Johnson.

"Junior Club Champion" - Lance Howes 14B - 338 runs & 39 wkts

"For the Dragon's the 1970's were to be the glory years and under the guidance of Club Secretary Harry Robbins the Club prospered winning 39 premierships (27 junior & 12 senior) and 7 SSJCA Club Championships"

1969/70 – Saw the formation of the "Engadine Dragons Sports Club". Dragons also won its first junior "A Grade" competition thanks to our 12A side coached by Ray Noakes and Gordon Beams. In 1970, Anzac Oval complex expanded from one oval and a rubbish tip to three ovals to accommodate the needs of Rugby League and Soccer thus providing a second larger cricket ground at the Achilles Road end. For the first time our Club adopted the current royal blue, sky blue and red baggy cap with the Dragon emblem. The cap was designed by Graham Morrison and only presented to premiership teams. The royal blue caps with the red piping were still worn by all other players. This season also saw the inception of the "Les Johnson Trophy" for the "Senior Club Champion". Robert Rushbourne is the first recipient.

"Club Champions" Senior - Robert Rushbourne A1 & Junior - Malcolm Haynes 16A

1970/71 – This season saw us win our first SSBCA "Club Championship". The SSCA introduced Finals for the first time with Dragon's A1's victorious in their Final. Previously the Premiers were decided by first past the post. In 1970 Harry Robbins was honoured with a Life Membership of the SSCA. This season sees Terry Humphries awarded the Association "Best Performed 12A Cricketer" 233 runs @ 33.20 and 70 wickets @ 4.60.

"Club Champions" Senior - Barry Blanchard A1 & Junior - Jim Shooter 16A

1971/72 – We made it two SSBCA "Club Championship" in a row. We won the 14A competition for the first time. Ray Noakes and George Cranston were the coaches. Six of these players were also members of the champion undefeated Sutherland Moore Shield team. The players were – Brett Johnson, Stephen Wishart, Graham Beames, Peter Noakes, Ian Cranston and Terry Humphries. Our Junior Presentation was held at the Senior Citizens Community Centre in Engadine from 1971/72 until 1978/79. Our Senior Presentation was held at the Engadine Bowling and Recreation Club from 1971/72 until 1972/73.

"Club Champions" Senior – Col Keenan B2 – 443 runs & Junior – Steven Wishart 14A – 323 runs & 23 wkts

1972/73 – This season saw the introduction of joining and match fees. The men's joining fee \$2.50 and \$0.80 match fee. The boy's joining fee \$0.60 and \$0.40 match fee. Steve Gorry set an Association record in the 10C'c by taking 70 wickets @ 2.14. This team also held 72 catches. *"Club Champions" Senior – Ray Noakes A1 & Junior – Ian Cranston 16A*

1973/74 – Won the SSBCA "Club Championship". This season saw the first of 5 consecutive "Club Championships between 1973/74 and 1977/78. From this season until 1995/96 the Senior Presentation was held jointly with the Junior Presentation.

"Club Champions" Senior – Warren Atkins B3 – 500 runs & 29 wkts & Junior – Steven Wishart 16A – 334 runs & 20 wkts

1974/75 – Won the SSBCA "Club Championship". In 1974, following the dissolution of the "Engadine Dragons Sports Club" Engadine Dragons Cricket Club stood as a separate entity for the first time. Harry Robbins became the first club member to serve on the SSCA Management Committee. This season saw the passing of Club stalwart Alan Wishart. The father of Steve and Wayne passed away on 21st July 1974.

"Club Champions" Senior – Clem Heffernan A1 – 414 runs & Junior – Dean Ferguson 16A – 447 runs

1975/76 – Won the SSBCA "Club Championship" Due to the ongoing expense involved in providing mats and the cost of repairs the Boy's Association introduced plastic balls and the concrete pitches were painted green. At a meeting at the end of this season delegates from our Club spoke in support of retaining mats and leather balls for the 16A and 14A competitions but this proposal was rejected. Sees the inception of the "Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket" trophy, Brett Johnson is the first

recipient.

"Club Champions" Senior – Ernie Price A3 – 55 wkts & Junior – Brett Ferguson 14A – 224 runs & 44 wkts

1976/77 – Won the SSBCA 'Club Championship' The royal blue cap with the red piping was phased out this season and replaced by the current royal blue, sky blue and red cap. The SSJCA introduced the use of plactic cricket balls accross all age groups and grades. Matches were played on green painted concrete pitches.

"Club Champions" Senior – Peter Royle B2 – 62 wkts & Junior – Brett Martin 14B – 480 runs & 40 wkts

1977/78 – Engadine came of age winning its first 16A premiership. This team was coached by lan Cranston and Harry Robbins. This season also produced record junior association registrations with 2028 players and 152 teams. Engadine provided 184 players and 16 teams. Both records still stand today. Our A1 side won the "Knockout Endeavour Cup" thanks to the efforts of "Player of the Series" Graham

Chudleigh.

"Club Champions" Senior – Brett Johnson A1 – 350 runs & 34 w/k dismissals & Junior – Wayne Wishart 16A – 347 runs & 28 wkts

1978/79 – Harry Robbins is awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1978. The Club wins its seventh SSBCA "Club Championship". For the first time match fees were abolished and were replaced by a one off registration fee of \$16.00 for junior players and \$24.00 for senior players. Ray Noakes was honoured with a Life Membership of the SSCA. This season also saw the reformation of the Ladies Auxiliary. This band of mothers continued on the hard work of their predecessors in providing a valuable source of income and social activity for the Club. Most popular venues for these social events were Miranda RSL and the Engadine Palace. The auxiliary members were – Vi Noakes, Di Lovett, Val Tever and Deidre Forshaw.

"Club Champions" Senior – Jeffrey Huyben B3 – 292 runs & 33 wkts & Junior – Glen Anderson 16A – 276 runs & 22 wkts

"The 1980's was to be a decade of change in the way we played the game and what we played it on"

1979/80 — Was the first season that the junior competition was played under the banner of the Sutherland Shire Junior Cricket Association (SSJCA). Tabloid cricket was developed by Barry Davison and introduced to provide an alternative for the players in the lower age group. This form of the game consisted of a three-phase competition. 1. Competitive skills. 2. Series of average cricket. 3. Series of traditional cricket. This season saw the introduction of the six ball over. Our Junior Presentation was held at the Bosco Hall in Engadine from 1979/80 until 1980/81. "Club Champions" Senior — Steven Gorry B1 — 70 wkts & Junior — Glen Anderson 16A — 379 runs & 45 wkts

1980/81 – Ray Noakes is awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1980. The 1980's started off as the last decade finished with good player numbers and plenty of premierships. A review of Tabloid cricket resulted in the concept of "Average Cricket". This form of cricket was to be played over two days with 12 players able to bat for six overs as a pair. The match was determined by dividing the runs by the total of times dismissed, thus the name "Average

"Club Champions" Senior – Craig Alewood C2 – 451 runs & Junior – Dean Russell 16A – 295 runs

1981/82 – This season further reforms were brought in by the SSJCA to increase player involvement. "Rotating batting" was introduced for E & D in the U/12 and U/14 competitions. Our Junior Presentation returned to the Senior Citizens Community Centre in Engadine from 1981/82 until 1985/86. The practice nets at Anzac Oval were constructed in 1982. The Club grieved the loss of Life Member Ray Noakes, who passed away on 14th May 1982.

"Club Champions" Senior – Steven Wearne B1 – 255 runs & 32 wkts & Junior – Peter Bland 16A – 328 runs & 19 wkts

1982/83 – Col Keenan is awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1982. This season brought the introduction of the synthetic covered wickets and more importantly the reintroduction of the leather ball. The 16As are the first grade to use the new wickets at Lincoln, Gwawley Nth, Woolooware and Port Hacking rugby.

"Club Champions" Senior – Greg Heffernan A3 – 626 runs & Junior – John Westlake 16A – 242 runs

1983/84 – This season saw Nathan Morando awarded the SSJCA "Best Performed 10A Cricketer" 479 runs @ 59.88 and 32 wickets @ 7.22. The 12As joined the 16As in playing on synthetic covered wickets using leather balls.

"Club Champions" Senior – John Richardson A2 – 50 wkts & Junior – Trent Woodhill 14A – 246 runs & 18 wkts

1984/85 – Mike Fordyce is awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1984. Our A1 side captained by Clem Heffernan defeated Minor Premiers Sylvania by the narrowest of margins to win the Final. Engadine 9 for 192 defeated Sylvania all out 191. This increased our A1 record to 8 premierships and 4 times runners up in 17 seasons.

"Club Champions" Senior – Ian Cranston A1 – 37 wkts & Junior – Craig Parsons 16A – 302 runs & 19 wkts

1985/86 – Alf Lemmon is awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1985. Craig Parsons named SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" 343 runs @ 57.16 and 19 wickets @ 14.63. Nathan Morando was selected in the NSW PSSA Team and also was awarded the NSWJCU Cawsey Shield Batting Award scoring 379 runs @ 42.1 as well as taking 37 wickets in Sutherlands winning team.

"Club Champions" Senior – Mick Price B1 – 159 runs & 39 wkts & Junior – Craig Parsons 16A – 343 runs & 19 wkts

1986/87 – The Club introduced the first set of criteria as used to determine award winners. Since then the criteria has been constantly reviewed. Greg Rowe (C1) set the record for the best senior bowling figures in an innings by taking 9 for 15. That same year saw a young lady by the name of Fiona Kark draw the Club's batting dragon which has been featured on the Club's Newsletters, Year Books and other publications ever since. Our Junior Presentation was held at Engadine High School from 1986/87 until 1994/95. Alf Lemmon as Secretary for the senior club led a small team of hard workers who every week could be found at the Engadine Hotel raffling meat trays. These used to be purchased from the butcher located at the end of Kingswood Road. That year alone saw Alf and his band raise \$3,000.

"Club Champions" Senior – Anthony Lovett B2 – 407 runs & Junior – Trent Woodhill 16A – 224 runs

1987/88 — Saw disappointment for the Ladies Auxiliary members — Cheryl Morando, Val Tever, Denise Pearson, Judy Lofthouse, Jill Vaughan and Adrienne Tindall as the meat raffle at the Engadine Hotel and the dinner dance were poorly supported and only raised \$500 for the season. A special thanks went to Vi Noakes for co-ordinating the junior results and phoning them through to the Association. In July 1987 Russ Waddell's revised constitution replaced the Club's original 1969 version written by Harry Robbins and Fred Gardner. Russ Waddell also took on the roll of MC at the Club's Presentation Night, a roll that would span the next twenty seasons.

"Club Champions" Senior – David Perritt A3 – 44 wkts & Junior – Nathan Morando 14A – 332 runs & 47 wkts

1988/89 – The club only fielded nine junior teams as against fifteen the previous year. The junior double wicket competition introduced in 86/87 was dropped for lack of support and the Club did not award a Sportsman of the Year award for failure to find someone who fit the criteria. In addition the year saw the demise of the Ladies Auxiliary after many years of fund-raising for the Club. A victim of the "recession we had to have" and a downturn in cricket interest generally, meant that this long

standing and hardworking band of mums and wives, faded away from our cricket scene. Nathan Morando was named the SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" 354 runs @ 39.33 and 30 wickets @ 12.76 "Club Champions" Senior – Craig Tever B3 – 411 runs & Junior – Nathan Morando 16A – 354 runs & 30 wkts

"The 1990's was to be a decade of reform and new direction that would pave the way to future success"

1989/90 – Was a watershed year. Alf Lemmon stood up and as reliable as ever took over the role of President to ensure the club survived. He guided the club through a rocky twelve-month period where it was down on numbers and though not facing extinction was not progressing either. This season saw Chris Lake awarded the SSJCA "Best Performed 12A Cricketer" 442 runs @ 44.20. "Club Champions" Senior – Not Awarded & Junior – Greg Goodman 16A – 354 runs

1990/91 — Saw the introduction of Finals for juniors as distinct from "first past the post" competitions. This season the Club embarked on its first major attempt to raise funds through an M & M Sales drive and were successful in raising \$1100. The season also saw the acquisition of our storage room at the Anzac Complex, the first time we had had a central storage location close to the nets. This season saw Chris Lake again awarded the SSJCA "Best Performed 12A Cricketer" 576 runs @ 51.50.

"Club Champions" Senior - Not Awarded & Junior - Greg Goodman 16A - 281 runs

1991/92 – Saw player numbers hover at the lowest level since the Club's inception and accordingly results reflected the times with only two premierships in four seasons (since 1988/89). Under Ken Tever's guidance as President the club continued to hold firm and as Ken pointed out himself in his annual report, "we need new blood, new ideas". This season the SSJCA changed the junior competition rules as follows: – from time limit to an over limit game, with restrictions on individual bowlers, the number of competition rounds were set at ten. Consequently, it meant a new approach to setting records and the "old" records were, ruled off, and from thence a new set of records introduced.

SSJCA Annual Report extract -

"Recent changes to our competition rules have resulted in the move from time limit to an over limited game, with restrictions on individual bowlers. The number of rounds are now limited to 10 per season. Because of these alterations it is almost impossible for the old individual competition records to be broken. Accordingly it has been decided to move the "old records" to a separate section and to quote only records achieved in restricted cricket in the general competition results." As a result our Club also decided to move our records to a separate section.

"Club Champions" Senior – Greg Heffernan & Junior – Dean Heslehurst 16A – 412 runs

Engadine Dragons players who were SSJCA record holders until this season -

- 14C bowling average 2.12 Lance Barrett 1971/72
- 14D Batting aggregate 503 runs Craig Dow 1976/77
- 12A Bowling aggregate 80 wickets Greg Heffernan 1975/76
- 12B Bowling aggregate 76 wickets Ian Cranston 1968/69
- 12F Bowling aggregate 34 wickets Chad Moodie 1984/85
- 10A Bowling aggregate 83 wickets Wayne Wishart 1971/72

1992/93 — On the 25th April 1993 the Club grieved the passing of Club founder Barry McManus (Snr). Clem Heffernan is awarded with a Life Membership of the Club in 1992. Under Eight cricket is introduced by the SSJCA. Ken Tever continued as President in the absence of "New Blood". Under his leadership money was raised to upgrade the practice nets at Anzac Oval with concrete poured to provide bowling run-ups and synthetic grass laid for the first time. Adrian Vannan as Assistant Secretary took on the responsibility for guiding the Club through the processes of Incorporation to provide a better legal base for the club and to offer the Management Committee members a measure of protection against the likelihood of legal claims should a misadventure occur. He also

rewrote the Club's Constitution to bring it in line with the terms of the Incorporation. This season saw Chris Lake awarded the SSJCA "Best Performed 14A Cricketer" 643 runs @ 71.44 and 19 wickets @ 9.21. Daniel McLauchlan of the 16A team was selected in a NSW U16 team to tour the Northern Territory in June-July 1993.

"Club Champions" Senior – Jason Crimlisk A2 – 42 wkts & Junior – Chris Lake 14A – 643 runs & 19 wkts

1993/94 – This season the SSJCA introduced semi finals for the first time and our 16A team was successful in winning the premiership after finishing the season in fourth position. This format was scrapped after only one season. Chris Lake was named "SSJCA Cricketer of the Year" 510 runs @ 63.75 and 19 wickets @ 11.47. Chris was also selected to tour the Northern Territory with the NSW U/15 team. This season also saw our first Under 8 team take the field. Shaun Mealing coached the team of twelve, which included our first female player, Christina Cuddy. The other players were – Brett Bullock, Nathan Bullock, Justin Champion, Timothy Greenway, Mitchell Hatch, Craig Lowe, Peter Mealing, Chris Moreland, Matthew Newman, Sunil Patel and Kurt Ridley. "Club Champions" Senior – Anthony Stanley B3 – 41 wkts & Junior – Chris Lake 16A – 510 runs & 19 wkts

1994/95 – Val Tever, Ken Tever and Bob Vannan were awarded Life Memberships of the Club in 1994. This season showed early signs of resurgence with Russ Waddell once again taking over the reins of President. Although player numbers stayed low the Club produced a further three titles with the A1 side finishing runners up, a feat that they would reproduce the following season. Matthew Barnes (12A) set the record for the best junior bowling figures in an innings by taking 9 for 22. This season was the start of a long standing commitment from one of the Club's greatest supporters, Jim Emerian, owner of Cosmo Lighting. Jim's longstanding sponsorship has provided the financial backing to undertake major developments. Jim was introduced to the Club by long time hard working member, Bob Price.

"Club Champions" Senior – Anthony Stanley B2 – 244 runs & 34 wkts & Junior – Craig Brownscombe 16A – 417 runs & 18 wkts

1995/96 — Saw a new positive direction taken by an enthusiastic Management Committee led by Russ Waddell and ably supported by new Club Secretary Ian Latham. A number of creative initiatives were taken including a social event being held for the first time in a number of years, the inaugural Club Trivia Night organised by Steve Bourke and Laurie Daly. Steve and Laurie went on to run this successful evening from 1995/96 until 2000/01. Sponsorships were sought to help finance the improvement in facilities and equipment. This was a defining season for the Dragons and set the high standard that has been carried through to the present day. This season also saw the introduction of the Dragon's royal blue baseball cap. The Junior Presentation night was held at Heathcote High School for the first time. This season saw the SSJCA introduce bowling restrictions in compliance with standards laid down by Cricket NSW. Bowlers were restricted by age in the numbers of overs they could bowl in a spell and in an innings.

"Club Champions" Senior – Drew Lake A1 – 359 runs & Junior – Not Awarded.

1996/97 — Russ Waddell was awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1996. This season player numbers soared with fourteen junior teams and 158 players taking the field and although senior numbers were still low signs of improvement were evident. The season saw the reintroduction of the Senior Presentation Night, held at the Engadine Bowling and Recreation Club. Thanks to the efforts of the State Member for Heathcote Ian McManus funding was granted for the upgrading of our practice nets at Anzac Oval (\$8000). Service awards were introduced and following a review of older trophies new perpetual trophies were purchased and awards introduced to perpetuate the efforts of Life Members over the years. 1996 saw Daniel McLauchlan, a Dragons' junior selected in the NSW U/19 team to compete in U/19 National Carnival in Adelaide. In the match against South Australian Daniel recorded the best bowling figures in an innings with 9 for 11 and the most wickets in a match with 14 for 15, a record that still stands today. As a result Daniel was selected in the Australian U/19 Team to tour India and Pakistan.

1997/98 – At the start of this season President Russ Waddell, following a request from the Junior Association, took up the position of SSJCA Secretary/Public Officer. He became the fourth Club Member in 40 years to occupy a position on the SSJCA Management Committee following in the footsteps of Col Keenan, Mike Fordyce and Ian Latham. The Senior Presentation moved to the Engadine RSL and Citizens' Club.

"Club Champions" Senior – Marcus Loxley B5 – 230 runs & 32 wkts & Junior – Not Awarded.

1998/99 – Bill Knowles was awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 1998. Harry Robbins received a Hughes Community Award for his service to sport. This season saw a number of new developments take place including the establishment of a cricket pitch (\$5500) and an upgrade of practice nets (\$2500) at Engadine West Public School. Our 10C and 10E teams were the first to use the facilities. The SSJCA introduced compulsary "Level O Coaching Certificate" for all junior team coaches. "Club Champions" Senior – Beau Knowles C1 – 194 runs & 45 wkts & Junior – Michael Lavallee 12A – 339 runs & 9 wkts

"The Noughties, the new millennium was to be a return to the glory days of the seventies. During this decade the Club would win 10 senior premierships including back-to-back A1 titles. The Club would also win 25 junior premierships including the 10A's three times, the 12A's twice, the 14A's five times and the 16A four times. During this time, the Club won 4 SSJCA "Club Championships" and produced 4 SSJCA "Cricketers of the Year". Also set was the record of contending 7 of the 9 16A Finals played, the "pinnacle of junior cricket"

1999/2000 – Bob Price and Greg Heffernan were both awarded Life Memberships of the Club in 1999. In the Chinese calendar the year 2000 is the year of the dragon. How apt! It certainly was our year with five Premierships including our first A1 competition for 17 seasons. "Mr. Engadine Dragons" Harry Robbins wrote the Club History Book, (Engadine Dragons Cricket Club – A Proud History in Sutherland Shire Sport), a comprehensive history of the first forty seasons of our Club. At the AGM in June the Club Constitution was replaced with the updated version by Russ Waddell and Ian Latham. The Senior Presentation was once again held at the Engadine Bowling and Recreation Club. In 1999 the SSJCA (Peter Risby) launched their first website through the 'Isport Internet System'. This season saw Ryan Shepherd awarded the SSJCA 'Best Performed 14A Cricketer' 665 runs @ 95.00 and 22 wickets @ 10.00.

"Club Champions" Senior – Andrew Hine B2 – 394 runs & Junior – Ryan Shepherd 14A – 665 runs & 22 wkts

2000/01 – The Sydney Olympic year saw the restructure of the junior competition to cope with the late start to the season. Juniors played six two day and four one day fixtures. Due to the increase in junior numbers Sunday cricket was introduced to a great deal of opposition. The Club won its first SSJCA 'Club Championship' in 21 years. And our A1 team win back-to-back premierships. All players in that side were former Dragon juniors and were again captained by Brett Johnson. On Sunday 22nd October 2000 Harry Robbins and Russ Waddell were awarded Australian Sports Medals by the Governor General for services to cricket. In the same year Russ received a Hughes Community Award and a Mayoral Volunteer Recognition award, again for cricket activities. The Senior Presentation returned to the Engadine RSL and Citizens' Club. Ryan Shepherd was named SSJCA 'Cricketer of the Year' 481 runs @ 96.20 and 7 wickets @ 18.14.

"Club Champions" Senior – Will Wooster B5 – 295 runs & 24 wkts & Junior – Ryan Shepherd 16A – 481 runs

2001/02 — Marked the inception of the Bradman Foundation Coaching Scholarships. These scholarships came about from an inspiration of Harry Robbins who having visited Bowral the home of the Foundation suggested the Club follow up on his visit. Accordingly, through the combined efforts of Harry, Russ Waddell and Ian Latham consultations and correspondence with the Foundation resulted in the establishment of what is known as "The Bradman Foundation

Scholarships". Each year two promising U/12 players are sent to Bowral for coaching under the guidance of the Bradman Foundation. Andrew Jones and Bryce Daenell were the first recipients. The season saw the Club receive a Commonwealth Government Grant applied for by Ian Latham to purchase a bowling machine (\$3900) a piece of equipment that has benefited players greatly.

"Club Champions" Senior – Greg Goodman A1 – 286 runs & 10 w/k dismissals & Junior – Ryan Shepherd 16A – 533 runs

2002/03 – John Carlisle was awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 2002. This year also saw Club stalwart Russ Waddell honoured with a Life Membership of the SSJCA for his work as Association Secretary. A number of firsts evolved during this season. For the first time in SSJCA history Dragons registered an entire team of females and entered them into the 14D competition. Paul Marsh was their coach. We combined with St. John Bosco and together entered two joint teams into the SSJCA Competition; they were known as the (14C & 16B) Bosco Dragons. We also teamed up with Bosco to run the first Engadine District "Have 'a' Go" Cricket Centre. The centre coordinators were Ian Latham and Steve Mulally (St. John Bosco). After a break last season the Club Trivia Night was reintroduced with Ken Newman taking over the reins of MC. Russ Waddell completed his total of 11 years as President and this saw the finale of the Waddell/Latham team as players in pursuing high standards for the club in its endeavours. Jay Davis was named SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" 525 runs @ 58.34 and 18 wickets @ 11.89.

"Club Champions" Senior – Paul Cameron A1 – 206 runs & 30 wkts & Junior – Jay Davis 16A – 525 runs & 18 wkts

2003/04 - Ian Latham was awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 2003. Cameron Turner set the record for the Club's highest junior score with 162 not out in a 16A match against Illawong/Menai. This season saw the Club win its third successive 16A premiership with one of the Club's best ever coaches Stuart Slack at the helm for all three. In July 2003 the SSJCA (Peter Risby) launched the www.ssjca.com.au website. After the initial approaches to the Anzac 527 Committee by Ian Latham and Bob Price our new club president Gordon Scott led the way as EDCC was given permission by the 527 Committee to build within the upper level of the Anzac complex, Stage No.1 of our clubrooms, the indoor practice nets. With funding required for the new project Ian Latham applied for a Grant and thanks to the assistance of State Member for Heathcote Paul McLeay we received a Department of Sport and Recreation Grant (\$7400) towards the cost of work. Dragons again in conjunction with St. John Bosco ran the Engadine District "Have 'a' Go" Cricket Centre. This season was the last due to poor returns in registrations from the program. After a great deal of opposition Sunday junior cricket is abandoned. Another big move this season was the introduction of the compulsory use of helmets in all grades from Under 10 to Under 16.

"Club Champions" Senior - Jim Bonser B2 – 345 runs & 20 wkts & Junior - Cameron Turner 16A – 482 runs & 11 wkts

2004/05 - Drew Lake was awarded a Life Membership of the Club in 2004. We win our ninth SSJCA 'Club Championship'. September 2004 saw Stage No.1 of our clubhouse completed (\$19,000), an indoor practice net, incorporating a bowling machine. Thanks to work of Tony Gleeson co-ordinating the planning, construction and fit out the facility it was completed in time for the start of the season. Ken Newman brought the Club into the world of the Internet by designing and administrating the Club's first Website. Robbie Knight became the Club's first ever Promotions Officer, a roll that would see him raise countless dollars for the Dragons over the following seasons. Robbie also went onto be one of the Club's most successful and long standing coaches. Nicole Dowd became the Club's first female coach (10C) in almost four decades as she followed in the footsteps of Nellie Warner and Pauline Johnson who a coached in the mid 1960's. The conclusion of this season marked the end of two of our longest serving committee members. John Carlisle retired as Treasurer after thirteen consecutive years of guiding the Club's financial interests. Ian Latham completed his tenth consecutive year as Club Secretary to take on the role of Equipment Officer. At the June AGM our Club Constitution was amended to bring it into line with present day issues. The SSJCA (Tom Croucher) further updated their website featuring a computer generated file for each team.

2005/06 - With new Club Secretary Tony Gleeson at the reins we win our tenth SSJCA 'Club Championship'. Team photos are reintroduced but for this season only. This season sees a record four U/8 sides registered and eight Dragon's senior teams entered into the SSCA Competition. Club Life Members Val Tever and Bob Price are presented Hughes Community Awards for their service to the Engadine District. The Senior Presentation this season moved to St Moritz Room at the Engadine Hotel. Committee member Brad Loder joined the ranks of the SSJCA as the Associations Vice President. In September 2005 Paul Waddell captured 8 for 59 to be the first player in our Club to reach 500 wickets. Permission was given by the Anzac Oval 527 Committee to build stage two of our clubrooms, the administration and meeting room. The first Annual U/16 Bradman Oval Match was played in Bowral in April 2006.

"Club Champions" Senior - Drew Lake A2 – 394 runs & Junior - Ben Marciante 16A – 265 runs & 21 wkts

2006/07 - Under the enthusiastic leadership of our new look committee led by President Steve Jones and Club Secretary Craig Rice Stage No.2 (\$13,000) of our clubrooms, the administration and meeting room, was completed with the assistance of a second Department of Sport and Recreation Grant (\$4000), which Ian Latham was again successful in gaining. The completion of this project initiated and overseen by Ian Latham ensured that Club Members not only had a place to call "home" but the best training facilities of any cricket club in the Shire, if not Sydney. In tribute to the greatest Engadine Dragon the rooms were named "The Harry Robbins Rooms". Glenn Caukill set the record for the Club's highest senior score with 231 not out in a C1 match against Illawong/Menai. Dennis Pendergast completed a rare coaching feat this year. He started with a bunch of boys in the under 10A's way back in 2000 and every second year won an "A Grade" premiership culminating in the ultimate prize of the 16A title this year. Ian Latham received a Hughes Community Award for his services to cricket. On the 28th May 2007 the Club grieved the sad passing of Life Member Ken Tever. Dragon's junior Daniel McLauchlan makes a sensational debut for the Western Warriors in the Pura Cup Competition and wins a contract for the 2007/08 season. Russ Waddell roll of MC at the Club's Presentation Nights conclude this year after twenty continuous seasons. The SSJCA (Tom Croucher) launched the "Cricket Online" internet program to manage all player, club, team and match results. Not to be outdone the SSCA launched their website www.ssca.asn.au. Ben Marciante was named SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" 464 runs @ 58.00 and 19 wickets @ 13.74

"Club Champions" Senior – Stewart Vella B2 – 903 runs & 30 wkts & Junior – Ben Marciante 16A – 464 runs & 19 wkts

2007/08 - Greg Knowles, Allan Lofthouse, Paul Waddell and Peter Ward were all awarded Life Memberships of the Club in 2008. Life Member Mike Fordyce received a Hughes Community Award for his selfless and sustained contribution to the youth of the area, through his work with the Engadine Church of Christ, Engadine Dragons and other camping ministries. We won our eleventh SSJCA "Club Championship" and three junior and three senior premierships. Allan Lofthouse became only the second member of our Club to take a position on the SSCA Management Committee. Harry Robbins was our first. "Club Member of the Year" Andrew Mazurkiewicz took over from Ken Newman the roll of Club Webmaster and rebuilt the Club website www.engadinedragonscc.org.au. Thanks to the assistance of Jan Forshaw and the Sutherland Shire Council our practice nets at Anzac received a much need upgrade including new netting. Also with the assistance of the Engadine Sporting Complex 527 Committee we were able to extend the concrete run-ups in the practice nets at Anzac Oval. This season through the efforts of Club Secretary Craig Rice all teams were provided with sunshades and scorebook holders. President Steve Jones took over the role of MC at our Presentation Nights from Russ Waddell. The SSCA introduced sixes for the first time into the senior competition. Ryan Marlow became the eighth Dragon to be named SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" 358 runs @ 29.83 and 12 wickets @ 18.75.16A captain Mark Rice had an outstanding Green Shield season scoring 334 runs @ 55.67 and as a result was awarded by the Sutherland District Grade Club the "Ken Gardner Memorial Award" as the U/16 Player of the Year. Mark was selected into the Combined Green Shield Team and the Provisional 2008/09 U/17 NSW City Squad.

"Club Champions" Senior – Stewart Vella B1 – 466 runs& 17 wkts & Junior – Mark Rice 16A – 405 runs & 28 wkts

2008/09 - Col Berry, Glenn Hickey and Bill Ziegler were all awarded Life Memberships of the Club in 2009. In 2009, our club celebrated its 50th year which saw us return to our original colours of black & red for this year only. Culmination of the celebrations was a luncheon held at the St Moritz Room, whereby close to 200 people attended the function, which was hosted by Ex Australian cricketer Len Pascoe and we were entertained by another Ex Australian cricketer, Rodney Hogg and singer Dave Prior. It was great to see that all 18 of our life members were able to attend, and family representing our 3 "retired" life members made it such a special day to acknowledge the services of players, administrators and supporters over many eras. Russ Waddell & Ian Latham must be congratulated for their efforts in organising this event & they also found time to compile the book "50 Years of Cricket - A history of a community club and the people who make it 1959 - 2008." This year we introduced our U/10 development squad to assist our up and coming U8's make the transition to traditional cricket that little bit easier. Renowned coach Peter Schofield put the boys through their paces with an army of helpers. Fab Floors provided sponsorship for the initiative. The SSJCA introduced sixes into the junior competitions and our 10A, 12A, 12E & 16A teams were crowned premiers for 2008/09 season. Both the 12E's and 10A's went through undefeated. Our Men's teams found it a little tougher this year and although three teams made the final series all were defeated but not before putting in sterling efforts. Ryan Almond was named SSJCA Cricketer of the Year, 507 runs at 58.11, 15 wickets at 12.93. This is our ninth cricketer of the year, and the third in succession. Jonathan Haslam, broke the club's highest innings record with an amazing 167* off 48 overs. In addition he won the SSJCA Best Performance 14's, along with club mates, Nathan Marciante – Best Performance 12's and Jarrod Mazurkiewicz – Best Performance 10's. This is the first time one club has been awarded all 4 performance awards. Former Dragon, Ben Marciante was awarded the Margaret Mann Memorial Award (U21 Player of the Year) at the Sutherland District Grade Club. Ben also made his 1st Grade debut, the first Dragon to do so since Chris Lake, 10 years

"Club Champions" Senior – Matthew Sambuco B1 – 305 runs & 18 wkts & Junior – Ryan Almond 16A – 507 runs & 17 wkts

"The tweenies saw new challenges to our game"

2009/10 – Dennis Pendergast was awarded Life Membership of the Club in 2010. In 2010, our club was awarded the Club Championship by the SSJCA, after all 4 "A" grade teams made the final, with the 10A and 12A being undefeated, along with the 10C's. On the day, only the 12A's brought home the silverware with a convincing win in the final. In the Seniors, the A2's won the competition, while the B5 & C1's were runners up. In the juniors, we fielded an all girls team who played in our U8 division, had a fantastic year developing their skills and continuing friendships from their winter sport. We were runner up in the "Australia Wide Weetbix Competition", where individuals show their support for their club, collecting \$3000 along the way.

"Club Champions" Senior – Stewart Vella A1 – 265 runs & 18 wkts & Junior – Ben Dwarshuis 16A – 302 runs & 11 wkts

2010/11 – Tony Gleeson, Robbie Knight and Graham Price were all awarded Life Membership of the Club in 2011. The Club continued its success under the watchful eye of our new Club Secretary Neil Croker with the winning of back to back SSJCA Club Championships, and Premierships in the 12A, 14A and B7 competitions. Our 12A's (right) were also crowned the 2010/11 Weetbix 20/20 Champions after clinching a well fought victory on the SCG. Andrew Mazurkiewicz was recognised for all his hard work in junior cricket as recipient of NSW Cricket "South East Cricket Volunteer of the Year". This season saw the last "Club Newsletter" roll off the presses as the great club man Bob Price called it a day after twenty five years as Publicity Officer.

2011/12 – The pre-season saw the upgrade of our practice nets at Engadine West. With the assistance of a \$5000 grant from the SSJCA and money raised from our inaugural "Bunnings BBQ" the Club was able to lay concrete run ups. This season saw the introduction of "split innings" matches in the U/10 and the lower U/12 competitions, an initiative by the SSJCA to provide a greater involvement for the players. The SSCA followed in the footsteps of their junior counterpart with the launching of online recording of match scores. This season we were successful in winning the B5, 14E and 16A (left) Premierships and Dane Fisher was awarded the SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year". Jack Dwarshuis was selected in the PSSA NSW Team and ex-Dragon James Bills made his first grade debut for Sutherland. This season saw the end of the printed Annual Report with future Reports being published online.

"Club Champions" Senior – Drew Lake B2 – 379 runs & 12 wkts & Junior – Dane Fisher 16A – 351 runs & 7 wkts

2012/13 – Brad Moreland was awarded Life Membership of the Club in 2013. The 2012/13 season saw declining playing numbers especially in the senior competition, but our Club remained strong fielding 24 teams, 14 junior and 10 senior, which was the same amount of teams as the previous season. Allan Lofthouse took on the role of SSCA Competition Manager and along with Tony Marciante completed their final season as our Club's senior and junior registrars. Our Annual Bradman Oval Match was unfortunately washed out. This season we had 10 of our teams competing in the final series of their respective competitions with the B6, C1, 16A, 16C and 14A teams going on to win Premierships. Our 16A side (left) were also successful in winning the Weet-Bix T20 Metropolitan Cup and then going on to be crowned the Weet-Bix T20 at the SCG. In a remarkable 12 months ex-Dragon Ben Dwarshuis was selected in the NSW U/19 team, Sutherland 1st Grade followed by been given a rookie contract with the NSW Speed Blitz Blues. Nathan Marciante became the Club's 11th SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year" and was also selected in the Combined Green Shield team.

"Club Champions" Senior – Adam Pascoe B1 – 410 runs & 12 wkts & Junior – Nathan Marciante 16A – 547 runs & 23 wkts

2013/14— Harry Tattersall became the Club's twelfth 'SSJCA Cricketer of the Year'. Playing numbers remained strong with the Club fielding 23 teams, 16 junior and 7 senior consisting of 304 players. This season saw the grandson's of Life Member's Bob Price and John Carlisle represent the Club with Laythen & Balin Carlisle and Will Price playing their first season of cricket. Our Annual Bradman Oval Match was washed out for the second consecutive season.

We had 7 of our teams competing in the finals of their respective competitions with the 16A and C2 teams going on to win Premierships. Club junior Ben Dwarshuis received another rookie contract with the NSW Blues and was also contracted to the Sydney Sixers. Our 2007/08 Junior Club Champion Mark Rice made his first grade debut for Western Suburbs. Two 16A players were selected to represent in NSW U/15 school teams with Harry Tattersall named in the NSWCHS team and Dylan Koprivec in the NSWCCC and the NSW All School Team. "Club Champions" Senior – Adam Pascoe A2 – 386 runs & 18 wkts & Junior – Matthew Simpson 14A – 383 runs & 8 w/k dismissals

2014/15 – Steve Jones was awarded Life Membership of the Club in 2015. Player numbers were steady with the Club fielding 8 senior and 14 junior teams with 307 players registering for the season. We had Premiership success with our B3, C1, 16B-1 and 16A and the Club finished in fourth place on the SSJCA Club Championship. Our Bradman Oval Match was washed out for the third season in a row. At the Sutherland Shire Junior Cricket Association's 2015 A.G.M. Dennis Pendergast

was awarded a Life Membership of the SSJCA for 11 years of coaching DCA Shell Shield teams. Also in 2015 Dragon's junior Tim Cutler was appointed the first CEO of the Hong Kong Cricket Club a position he held until 2017.

"Club Champions" Senior – Jaryd Duncan A2 – 296 runs & 9 wkts & Junior – Dylan Koprivec 16A – 436 runs & 5 wkts

2015/16 - Stuart Slack was awarded Life Membership of the Club in 2016 in recognition of his 25 years of playing service to the Club and 9 seasons of coaching junior teams. This season as Senior Secretary Stuart introduced the 'Senior Season Launch' and re-introduced the Senior Presentation Night. This season the Sutherland Shire Junior Cricket Association introduced the 'Service to Shire Junior Cricket Awards' to recognize outstanding service to cricket. Harry Robbins and Ian Latham were two of the four recipients along with Errol Gilbert from St. John Bosco and Warren Daley from St. Patricks. Nick Amos had a tremendous season in the 16A competition and was awarded 'SSJCA Cricketer of the Year'. As a result of his efforts in the Green Shield and Watson Shield representative competitions Nick was the recipient of the Sutherland Grade Cricket Club's 'Ken Gardner Memorial Award' for the best U/16 player of the year and the 'Cliff Paddy Trophy' NSWDCA Representative Individual Achievement Award. Nick was selected in the AW Green Shield Merit team as well as the Metropolitan Team. This season saw a record 191 junior players register for the Club with 17 teams entered into the SSJCA Competition. In the seniors there were 135 players registered with 8 teams entered into the SSCA Competition. The Club had seven teams contest the SSCA and SSJCA Finals with our 10A, 10C and C2 all victorious with Minor Premier B2 and 16A teams and B5 and B6 sides finishing runners up. The Club finished 5th in the SSJCA Club Championship. Tim Berry smashed the Club Record for the highest innings with 339 not out and at the same time with brother Matthew set the record for the Club's highest ever partnership of 329 Scorecard of Innings . Tim finished the season with two more Club records being the First Dragon's player to break 1000 runs in a season with 1083 runs @ 90 and the most ever centuries scored in a season with 5. "Club Champions" Senior – Matthew Sambuco A1 – 336 runs & 15 wkts & Junior – Luke Ritchie 12A - 593 runs & 4 wkts

2016/17 – February 26, 2017 saw the passing of one of the Club's greatest member's Russ Waddell. Russ was our Club President for 11 seasons and MC'd our Senior and Junior Presentations for 21 years. His contribution to our Club and to cricket in the Sutherland Shire was outstanding and for his efforts was awarded 'Life Membership' of our Club in 1996, the 'Australian Sports Medal', 'Hughes Award' from the Federal Member, a 'Mayoral Volunteer Award' in 2001 and 'Life Membership' of the Sutherland Shire Junior Cricket Association in 2003 for his work as Association Secretary. He will be greatly missed. This season saw 143 junior players register for the Club with 12 teams entered into the SSJCA Competition. In the seniors there were 119 players registered with 7 teams entered into the SSCA Competition. These numbers were a significant drop from the previous season, but in line with the reduced registrations across the Shire. The Club had four teams contest the SSCA and SSJCA Finals with only our B1/2 victorious and our 16C, B4 and C1 teams finishing runners up. The Club again finished 5th in the SSJCA Club Championship. Two new trophies were introduced this season - Junior Division Fielding Performance Award and Senior Division Fielding Performance Award with the Greg Heffernan Fielding Trophy being renamed the Intermediate Division Fielding Performance Award - The Greg Heffernan Trophy. Also the Wes Adams Memorial Trophy was discontinued.

Our 16A player Brad Simpson was selected in the U16 Australian Squad. Brad played in the U17 National Cricket Championships in Brisbane in September 2017 before taking on Pakistan in Perth in January 2018.

"Club Champions" Senior – Jaryd Duncan B1 – 389 runs & 17 w/k dismissals & Junior – Andrew Ritchie 16A – 361 runs & 12 wkts

2017/18 - Matthew Carroll and Chris Moreland were awarded Life Membership for 25 years of continuous playing service to the Club. On the representative front it was a great year for ex-junior players with Nick Amos debuting in Sutherland 1st Grade and Ben Dwarshuis being selected in the Australian T20 Squad and also being picked up by Kings XI Punjab in the Indian Premier League auction. Brad Simpson was selected in the U17 Cricket Australia XI and from this was selected into the U16 Australian team to play a six match series against Pakistan. After fourteen seasons of using Tom Croucher's 'Cricket' Online both the SSCA and SSJCA officially switched to MyCricket for entering match results. Cricket NSW launched the T20 Blast program to replace the under eight cricket with all teams playing at the one venue, Kareela Oval on Saturday mornings. With only four players registering Dragons formed a joint team with Como-Jannali. Also the first stage of Cricket Australia's new formats was implemented into our U10 competition with U12's to follow next season. This season saw the Club win a record equalling 6 Premierships with our B2, B3, 16C, 12A, 10A and 10F teams all victorious. Lachlan Ritchie was the recipient of the NSWDCA "Cawsey Shield Cricketer of the Year". The Senior Presentation was held at the Engadine Bowling and Recreation Club as well as the Junior Presentation, which was for the first time was conducted on a Sunday lunchtime breaking away from a 23 year tradition of a Friday evening at Heathcote High School.

"Club Champions" Senior – Spencer White A2 – 497 runs & Junior – Luke Ritchie 14A – 331 runs & 13 wkts

2018/19 – This season the Club awarded Life Memberships to Brett Adams, Neil Croker, Dean Griffith, Jim Lee, Tim Russell and John Westlake. We had six teams contest the SSJCA Finals with our 16A, 12A and 10A teams winning their respective Premierships taking our Club's tally to 101 junior premierships. Our 16C, 14C and 12D teams finished as Runners Up. In the seniors only our B2 team progressed as far as the Semi-Finals. This season Cricket Australia's introduced the Stage No.1 playing format, which saw the U10 and U12 playing conditions modified to fewer fielders, restricted batting and shorter pitches. As a result the Club decided to set aside the old Club records. Also as a consequence the Club decided to no longer award team trophies for U10 cricket with all players receiving a participation trophy. U10 players were also made ineligible to receive "Performance Awards" so the Club introduced the "U10 Most Consistent Player Trophy". On the representative front Ben Dwarshuis was selected in the Prime Ministers XI to play South Africa as well as playing in the NSW Blues and Sydney Sixers. Kobey Freer and Lachlan Ritchie were selected to represent NSW in the U12 Schoolboy Championships in Bunbury Western Australia. Lachlan was also the recipient of the NSWDCA "Gee Shield Cricketer of the Year".

"Club Champions" Senior – Tim Russell B1 – 407 runs & 15 wkts & Junior – Kobey Freer 14A – 312 runs & 4 wkts

SSJCA Record holders at the conclusion of this season -

- 16C batting aggregate 665 Ryan Emerson 2007/08
- 14C batting aggregate 638 Hamish Jacka 2016/17
- 12A batting aggregate 593 Luke Ritchie 2015/16
- 12C batting aggregate 549 Dylan Beardow 1999/00
- 12D bowling average 2.70 Simon Andrews 1994/95
- 10B batting aggregate 248 Harrison Dannes 2018/19
- 10B batting average 209 Lachlan Ritchie 2014/15

OFFICE BEARERS

Since the establishment of the Club in 1959-60

YEAR	PRESIDENT	VICE PRESIDENT	SECRETARY	ASSISTANT SECRETARY	TREASURER
		VICE PRESIDENT		ASSISTANT SECRETART	
1959-60	BARRY McMANUS		DANNY CARROLL		RON CHAPMAN
1960-61	BARRY McMANUS		BERNIE HOWARD		KEVIN BINNER
1961-62	BILL FOSTER &		NOEL FORESHAW		KEVIN BINNER
4002.02	BARRY McMANUS		NOTI FOREGUANA C		WENTER DIAMATER
1962-63	BARRY McMANUS		NOEL FORESHAW & CLIVE GREENWOOD		KEVIN BINNER
1963-64	NOEL FORESHAW &		REG SOMMER		HAROLD SHOOTER
1303-04	KEN JOHNSON		REG SOIVIIVIER		TIAROLD SHOOTER
1964-65	KEN JOHNSON		KEVIN WOODBRIDGE		HAROLD SHOOTER
1965-66	KEN JOHNSON		KEVIN WOODBRIDGE &		HAROLD SHOOTER
	NEW YOUR DOOR		HAROLD SHOOTER		
1966-67	KEN JOHNSON		HAROLD SHOOTER		HARRY ROBBINS
1967-68	KEN HORSNELL		BARRY BLANCHARD		WARREN McPHEE
1968-69	G. McELROY		BARRY BLANCHARD		WARREN McPHEE &
					MIKE FORDYCE
1969-70	KEN JOHNSON		COL KEENAN		MIKE FORDYCE
1970-71	DON MORRISON		COL KEENAN		MIKE FORDYCE
1971-72	COL KEENAN		WARREN ATKINS &		DON CRANSTON
			GEOFFREY ARNOTT		
1972-73	COL KEENAN		GEOFFREY ARNOTT		DON CRANSTON
1973-74	BARRY BLANCHARD		HARRY ROBBINS		MRS BETTY CROSBY
1974-75	GEOFFREY & ARNOTT		HARRY ROBBINS		MRS BETTY CROSBY
1975-76	COL KEENAN		MIKE FORDYCE		MRS JOY LEES
1976-77	RAY NOAKES		HARRY ROBBINS		MRS JOY LEES
1977-78	RAY NOAKES		HARRY ROBBINS		RAY ENTWISTLE
1978-79	RAY NOAKES	MRS JOY LEES	RON LOVETT		RAY ENTWISTLE
1979-80	RON LOVETT	RAY NOAKES	TONY GLEESON		RAY ENTWISTLE
1980-81	RON LOVETT	RAY NOAKES	MIKE FORDYCE	DETER MONKES	RAY ENTWISTLE
1981-82	RON LOVETT	MIKE FORDYCE	HARRY ROBBINS	PETER NOAKES	RAY ENTWISTLE
1982-83	RON LOVETT	DOUG STUVE	HARRY ROBBINS	PETER NOAKES	JOHN RICHARDSON
1983-84	RON LOVETT	DOUG STUVE PETER NOAKES	HARRY ROBBINS	BOB WOODHILL	JOHN RICHARDSON
1984-85 1985-86	DOUG STUVE DOUG STUVE	PETER NOAKES	BOB WOODHILL BOB WOODHILL	ALF LEMMON ALF LEMMON	JOHN RICHARDSON JOHN RICHARDSON
1986-87	RUSS WADDELL	KEN TEVER	PETER CLOTHIER	ALF LEMMON	JOHN RICHARDSON
1987-88	RUSS WADDELL	KEN TEVER	JIM THORNTHWAITE	ALF LEMMON	JOHN RICHARDSON
1988-89	RUSS WADDELL	KEN TEVER	JIM THORNTHWAITE &	ALF LEMMON	BOB VANNAN
_1300-03	NOOS WADDELL	KEIV ILVEI	ROSS KNOWLES	ALI ELIVIIVIOIV	DOD VARIAN
1989-90	ALF LEMMON	KEN TEVER	ROSS KNOWLES	ADRIAN VANNAN	BOB VANNAN
1990-91	KEN TEVER	ALF LEMMON	ROSS KNOWLES	ADRIAN VANNAN	BOB VANNAN
1991-92	KEN TEVER	ALF LEMMON	JOHN UEBEL	ADRIAN VANNAN	BOB VANNAN
1992-93	KEN TEVER	ALF LEMMON	JOHN UEBEL	ADRIAN VANNAN	JOHN CARLISLE
1993-94	IAN McCREA	ALF LEMMON	JOHN UEBEL	GREG HEFFERNAN	JOHN CARLISLE
1994-95	RUSS WADDELL	KEN TEVER	TERRY DUFFIELD	DREW LAKE	JOHN CARLISLE
1995-96	RUSS WADDELL	KEN TEVER	IAN LATHAM	ALF LEMMON	JOHN CARLISLE
1996-97	RUSS WADDELL	KEN KEVER	IAN LATHAM	ALF LEMMON	JOHN CARLISLE
1997-98	RUSS WADDELL	KEN TEVER	IAN LATHAM	BLAKE COUSEMAKER	JOHN CARLISLE
1998-99	RUSS WADDELL	KEN TEVER	IAN LATHAM	BLAKE COUSEMAKER	JOHN CARLISLE
1999-00	RUSS WADDELL	KEN TEVER	IAN LATHAM	JACKSON MALL	JOHN CARLISLE
2000-01	RUSS WADDELL	GORDON SCOTT	IAN LATHAM	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE & PETER WARD	JOHN CARLISLE
2001-02	RUSS WADDELL	GORDON SCOTT	IAN LATHAM	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE &	JOHN CARLISLE

				PETER WARD	
2002-03	GORDON SCOTT	COL BERRY	IAN LATHAM	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE &	JOHN CARLISLE
				PETER WARD	
2003-04	GORDON SCOTT	COL BERRY	IAN LATHAM	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE &	JOHN CARLISLE
2004-05	GORDON SCOTT	COL BERRY	IAN LATHAM	PETER WARD ALLAN LOFTHOUSE &	JOHN CARLISLE
2004 03	GONDON SCOTT	COLBERT	IAW DATHAW	PETER WARD	JOHN CAREISEE
2005-06	GORDON SCOTT	STEVE JONES	TONY GLEESON	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE & PETER WARD	COL BERRY
2006-07	STEVE JONES	BRAD LODER	CRAIG RICE	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE & PETER WARD	COL BERRY
2007-08	STEVE JONES	BRAD LODER	CRAIG RICE	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE & TONY MARCIANTE	COL BERRY
2008-09	STEVE JONES	BRAD LODER	CRAIG RICE	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE & TONY MARCIANTE	COL BERRY
2009-10	STEVE JONES	BRAD LODER	CRAIG RICE	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE & TONY MARCIANTE	COL BERRY
2010-11	STEVE JONES	JIM LEE	NEIL CROKER	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE & TONY MARCIANTE	COL BERRY
2011-12	STEVE JONES	JIM LEE	NEIL CROKER	ALLAN LOFTHOUSE & TONY MARCIANTE	COL BERRY
2012-13	STEVE JONES	JIM LEE	NEIL CROKER	TONY MARCIANTE	COL BERRY
2013-14	STEVE JONES	JIM LEE	NEIL CROKER	MICHAEL DALY & IAN LATHAM	COL BERRY
2014-15	STEVE JONES	JIM LEE	NEIL CROKE	MICHAEL DALY & IAN LATHAM	NEIL CROKER
2015-16	JIM LEE	BRAD MORELAND	NEIL CROKER	STUART SLACK & JOHN SHEEHY	COL BERRY
2016-17	JIM LEE	BRAD MORELAND	NEIL CROKER	STUART SLACK & JOHN SHEEHY	COL BERRY
2017-18	JIM LEE	BRAD MORELAND	NEIL CROKER	ADAM PASCOE & JOHN SHEEHY	COL BERRY
2018-19	JIM LEE	BRAD MORELAND	NEIL CROKER	ADAM PASCOE & VACANT	COL BERRY
YEAR	PRESIDENT	VICE PRESIDENT	SECRETARY	ASSISTANT SECRETARY	TREASURER

YEAR	REGISTRARS	PROPERTY OFFICER	PROMOTIONS OFFICER
1959-60	BARRY McMANUS	BARRY McMANUS	
1960-61	BARRY McMANUS	BARRY McMANUS	
1961-62	BARRY McMANUS	NELLIE & WALLY WARNER	
1962-63	BARRY McMANUS	NELLIE & WALLY WARNER	
1963-64		NELLIE & WALLY WARNER	
1964-65		HARRY ROBBINS	
1965-66		HARRY ROBBINS	
1966-67		HARRY ROBBINS	
1967-68		HARRY ROBBINS	
1968-69		HARRY ROBBINS	
1969-70		HARRY ROBBINS	
1970-71		HARRY ROBBINS	
1971-72		HARRY ROBBINS	
1972-73		HARRY ROBBINS	
1973-74		HARRY ROBBINS	
1974-75		HARRY ROBBINS	
1975-76		HARRY ROBBINS	
1976-77		HARRY ROBBINS	
1977-78	RAY ENTWISTLE	HARRY ROBBINS	
1978-79	RAY ENTWISTLE	HARRY ROBBINS	
1979-80	RAY ENTWISTLE	TONY GLEESON	
1980-81	RAY ENTWISTLE	HARRY ROBBINS	
1981-82	RAY ENTWISTLE	HARRY ROBBINS	
1982-83	RAY ENTWISTLE	HARRY ROBBINS	
1983-84	RAY ENTWISTLE	TONY GLEESON	
		HARRY ROBBINS	
1984-85	RAY ENTWISTLE	TONY GLEESON	
		ASHLEY HITCHINGS	
1985-86	RAY ENTWISTLE	ALF LEMMON	
		HARRY ROBBINS	
1986-87	PETER CLOTHIER	ALF LEMMON	
	RUSS WADDELL	HARRY ROBBINS	

1987-88	SENIOR: ALF LEMMON	BILL KNOWLES	
1988-89	JUNIOR: DOUG STUVE SENIOR: ALF LEMMON	BILL KNOWLES	
1989-90	JUNIOR: ROSS KNOWLES SENIOR: ALF LEMMON	BILL KNOWLES	
1990-91	JUNIOR: ROSS KNOWLES SENIOR: ALF LEMMON	BILL KNOWLES	
	JUNIOR: ROSS KNOWLES		
1991-92	SENIOR: ALF LEMMON JUNIOR: ROSS KNOWLES	BILL KNOWLES	
1992-93	SENIOR: ALF LEMMON JUNIOR: JOHN UEBEL	BILL KNOWLES	
1993-94	SENIOR: ALF LEMMON JUNIOR: JOHN UEBEL	BILL KNOWLES	
1994-95	SENIOR: ALF LEMMON	BILL KNOWLES	
1995-96	JUNIOR: TERRY DUFFIELD SENIOR: ALF LEMMON	BILL KNOWLES	
1996-97	JUNIOR: IAN LATHAM SENIOR: ALF LEMMON	BILL KNOWLES	
	JUNIOR: IAN LATHAM		
1997-98	SENIOR: BLAKE COUSEMAKER JUNIOR: PETER WARD	BILL KNOWLES	
1998-99	SENIOR: BLAKE COUSEMAKER JUNIOR: PETER WARD	BILL KNOWLES	
1999-00	SENIOR: JACKSON MALL JUNIOR: PETER WARD	BILL KNOWLES	
2000-01	SENIOR: ALLAN LOFTHOUSE JUNIOR: PETER WARD	BILL KNOWLES	
2001-02	SENIOR: ALLAN LOFTHOUSE JUNIOR: PETER WARD	BILL KNOWLES	
2002-03	SENIOR: ALLAN LOFTHOUSE	UNIFORM: BILL KNOWLES	
2003-04	JUNIOR: PETER WARD SENIOR: ALLAN LOFTHOUSE	PROPERTY: BRAD MORELAND UNIFORM: BILL KNOWLES	
2004-05	JUNIOR: PETER WARD SENIOR: ALLAN LOFTHOUSE	PROPERTY: BRAD MORELAND UNIFORM: BILL KNOWLES	ROB KNIGHT
	JUNIOR: PETER WARD	PROPERTY: BRAD MORELAND	
2005-06	SENIOR: NATHAN ALTERATOR JUNIOR: CRAIG RICE	UNIFORM: BILL KNOWLES PROPERTY: IAN LATHAM	ROB KNIGHT
2006-07	SENIOR: JUDY LOFTHOUSE JUNIOR: CRAIG RICE	UNIFORM: BILL KNOWLES PROPERTY: IAN LATHAM	ROB KNIGHT
2007-08	SENIOR: JUDY LOFTHOUSE	UNIFORM: BILL KNOWLES	ROB KNIGHT
2008-09	JUNIOR: ANTHONY MARCIANTE SENIOR: JUDY LOFTHOUSE	PROPERTY: PAUL WADDELL UNIFORM: BILL KNOWLES	VACANT
2009-10	JUNIOR: ANTHONY MARCIANTE SENIOR: JUDY LOFTHOUSE	PROPERTY: PAUL WADDELL UNIFORM: BILL KNOWLES	VACANT
	JUNIOR: ANTHONY MARCIANTE	PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE	
2010-11	SENIOR: JUDY LOFTHOUSE JUNIOR: ANTHONY MARCIANTE	UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE	VACANT
2011-12	SENIOR: JUDY LOFTHOUSE JUNIOR: ANTHONY MARCIANTE	UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE	VACANT
2012-13	SENIOR: ALLAN LOFTHOUSE JUNIOR: ANTHONY MARCIANTE	UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE	VACANT
2013-14	SENIOR: ADAM PASCOE JUNIOR: DOUG RITCHIE	UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE	VACANT
2014-15	SENIOR: ADAM PASCOE	UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN	VACANT
2015-16	JUNIOR: DOUG RITCHIE SENIOR: ADAM PASCOE	PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN	VACANT
2016-17	JUNIOR: DOUG RITCHIE SENIOR: ADAM PASCOE	PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN	CHRIS MORELAND
	JUNIOR: DOUG RITCHIE	PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE	TIM RUSSELL
2017-18	SENIOR: ADAM PASCOE JUNIOR: DOUG RITCHIE	UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE	CHRIS MORELAND TIM RUSSELL
2018-19	SENIOR: ADAM PASCOE JUNIOR: DOUG RITCHIE	UNIFORM: ANTHONY GOODMAN PROPERTY: JOHN WESTLAKE	CHRIS MORELAND TIM RUSSELL
YEAR	REGISTRARS	PROPERTY OFFICER	PROMOTION OFFICER

NOTE: The first Promotions Officer was introduced in 2004/05.

YEAR	CLUB COACH	PUBLICTY OFFICER	NEWSLETTER PUBLICATION	WEB MASTER
1959-60				
1960-61				

1961-62			
1962-63			
1963-64			
1964-65	HARRY ROBBINS	HARRY & HEATHER ROBBINS	
1965-66	HARRY ROBBINS	HARRY & HEATHER ROBBINS	
1966-67	HARRY ROBBINS	HARRY & HEATHER ROBBINS	
1967-68	HARRY ROBBINS	HARRY & HEATHER ROBBINS	
1968-69	HARRY ROBBINS	HARRY & HEATHER ROBBINS	
1969-70	HARRY ROBBINS	HARRY & HEATHER ROBBINS	
1970-71	HARRY ROBBINS	HARRY & HEATHER ROBBINS	
1971-72	HARRY ROBBINS	HEATHER ROBBINS, NORAH MORRISON & IRENE CARTER	
1972-73	HARRY ROBBINS	HEATHER ROBBINS, NORAH MORRISON & IRENE CARTER	
1973-74	HARRY ROBBINS	JOY LEES, NORAH MORRISON & IRENE CARTER	
1974-75	HARRY ROBBINS	JOY & JIM LEES	
1975-76	HARRY ROBBINS	JOY & JIM LEES	
1976-77	HARRY ROBBINS	JOY & JIM LEES	
1977-78	TONY GLEESON	JOY & JIM LEES	
1978-79	TONY GLEESON	JOY & JIM LEES	
1979-80	TONY GLEESON	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1980-81	RAY NOAKES	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1981-82	TONY GLEESON	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1982-83	HARRY ROBBINS	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1983-84	TONY GLEESON	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1984-85	TONY GLEESON	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1985-86	RUSS WADDELL	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1986-87	RUSS WADDELL	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1987-88	BOB WOODHILL	VAL TEVER KEN TEVER	
1988-89	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1989-90	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1990-91	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1991-92	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1992-93	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1993-94	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1994-95	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1995-96	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1996-97	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1997-98	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1998-99	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE KEN & VAL TEVER	
1999-00	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	

			KEN & VAL TEVER	
			LAURIE DALY	
2000-01		BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	
			KEN & VAL TEVER	
			LAURIE DALY	
2001-02		BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	
			KEN & VAL TEVER	
2002-03		BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	
			KEN & VAL TEVER	
2003-04		BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	
			KEN & VAL TEVER	
2004-05	STUART SLACK	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	KEN NEWMAN
			KEN & VAL TEVER	
2005-06	VACANT	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	KEN NEWMAN
			KEN & VAL TEVER	
2006-07	PETER SCHOFIELD	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	KEN NEWMAN
			KEN & VAL TEVER	
2007-08	PETER SCHOFIELD	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	ANDREW
			VAL TEVER	MAZURKIEWICZ
2008-09	HARRY ROBBINS	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	ANDREW
2000 40	DOD WHOLIT	202 22105	VAL TEVER	MAZURKIEWICZ
2009-10	ROB KNIGHT	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	ANDREW
2010.11	DOD WALLSTIT	DOD DDICE	VAL TEVER	MAZURKIEWICZ
2010-11	ROB KNIGHT	BOB PRICE	BOB PRICE	ANDREW
2011 12	DOD KNIICHT	IAALI ATIIAA	VAL TEVER	MAZURKIEWICZ
2011-12	ROB KNIGHT	IAN LATHAM	IAN LATHAM	IAN LATHAM
2012-13	PETER SCOFIELD	MICHELLE RITCHIE	MICHELLE RITCHIE	IAN LATHAM
2013-14	PETER SCOFIELD	MICHELLE RITCHIE	MICHELLE RITCHIE	IAN LATHAM
2014-15	PETER SCHOFIELD	MICHELLE RITCHIE	MICHELLE RITCHIE	IAN LATHAM
2015-16	PETER SCOFIELD	MICHELLE RITCHIE	MICHELLE RITCHIE	IAN LATHAM
2016-17	JOHN SHEEHY	MICHELLE RITCHIE	MICHELLE RITCHIE	IAN LATHAM
2017-18	JOHN SHEEHY	MICHELLE RITCHIE	MICHELLE RITCHIE	IAN LATHAM
2018-19	VACANT	MICHELLE RITCHIE	MICHELLE RITCHIE	IAN LATHAM
YEAR	CLUB COACH	PUBLICITY OFFICER	NEWSLETTER	WEBMASTER
			PUBLICATION	

 $NOTE: The\ first\ Newsletter\ was\ published\ in\ 1964/65\ and\ the\ Club\ Coach\ and\ Webmaster\ were\ introduced\ in\ 2004/05.$

LIFE MEMBERSHIP

LIFE ME	MBERS
Barry McManus (1966) (Dec'd)	Peter Ward (2008)
Harry Robbins asm (1978)	Col Berry (2009)
Ray Noakes (1980) (Dec'd)	Glen Hickey* (2009)
Col Keenan (1982)	Bill Ziegler* (2009)
Mike Fordyce (1984)	Dennis Pendergast (2010)
Alf Lemmon (1985)	Anthony Gleeson (2011)
Clem Heffernan (1992)	Rob Knight (2011)
Ken Tever (1994) (Dec'd)	Graham Price* (2011)
Val Tever (1994)	Brad Moreland (2013)
Bob Vannan (1994)	Steve Jones (2015)
Russ Waddell asm (1996) (Dec'd)	Stuart Slack* (2016)
Bill Knowles (1998)	Matthew Carroll* (2018)
Bob Price (1999)	Chris Moreland* (2018
Greg Heffernan* (1999)	Brett Adams* (2019)
John Carlisle (2002)	Neil Croker (2019)
Ian Latham (2003)	Dean Griffith* (2019) (Dec'd)
Drew Lake* (2004)	Jim Lee (2019)
Greg Knowles* (2008)	Tim Russell* (2019)
Allan Lofthouse (2008)	John Westlake (2019)
Paul Waddell* (2008)	

 $\underline{\textbf{Note}} : \text{* Next to the name represents Life Membership awarded for 25 years of playing service with our Club.}$

CLUB PLAYING SERVICE

Consecutive Playing Service
At the conclusion of the 2018/19 season the following players have served the Club as a player for more than 20

Consecutive	Players Name	Total
	Trayers runne	Seasons
Seasons		Seasons
40	Drew Lake (1979/80 onwards)	40
33	Graham Price (1986/87 onwards)	33
32	Greg Heffernan (1973/77 to 2004/05) & (2006/07)	33
28	Allan Lofthouse (1985/86 to 2012/13)	28
27	Bill Ziegler (1983/84 to 2009/10)	27
26	Matthew Carroll (1993/94 onwards)	26
26	Chris Moreland (1993/94 onwards)	26
26	Paul Waddell (1983/84 to 2008/09)	26
25	Tim Russell (1994/95 onwards)	25
25	Stuart Dibb (1994/95 onwards)	25
25	Greg Knowles (1983/84 to 2007/08) & (2009/10)	26
24	Glenn Hickey (1980/81 to 2003/04) & (2006/07 to 2010/11)	29
24	Dean Griffith (1994/95 to 2017/18)	24
23	Mark Mitchell (1996/97 onwards)	23
23	Stuart Slack (1989/90 to 2010/11) & (2013/14 to 2017/18)	28
22	Michael Daly (1995/96 to 2016/17)	22
21	Stewart Lumsden (1998/99 onwards)	21
21	Dean McMillan (1998/99 onwards)	21
21	lan Mitchell (1998/99 onwards)	21
21	Matthew Russell (1994/95 to 2014/15) & (2017/18 onwards)	23
21	Adam Logan (1995/96 to 2015/16)	21
21	Ross Stuart (1985/86 to 2005/06)	21
20	Matthew Sambuco (1996/97 to 2015/16)	20
20	Paul Cameron (1985/86 to 2004/05)	20
20	Ron Lovett (1967/68 to 1986/87)	20

Broken Playing Service

At the conclusion of the 2018/19 season the following players have served the Club as a player for more than 20 seasons-

Seasons	Players Name
35	Col Berry (1978/79 to 1994/95) & (2000/01 onwards)
26	Brett Adams (1984/85 to 1991/92), (1997/98 to 2011/12) & (2013/14, 2015/16 & 2017/18)
22	John Westlake (1974/75 to 1985/86), (2008/09 to 2012/13) & (2014/15 onwards)
21	David McMillan (1996/97 to 2009/10) & (2012/13 onwards)
20	Chris Jackson (1994/95 to 2008/09) & (2009/10, 2011/12, 2012/13, 2014/15 & 2018/19)
20	Spencer White (1993/94 to 1998/99) & (2005/06 onwards)

52

CLUB COACHING SERVICE

As of the conclusion of the 2018/19 Season

Engadine Dragons would like to thank all the coaches and assistant coaches that have guided our junior players since the establishment of the Club in 1959/60.

establishment of the Club in 1959/60.					
COACH	YEARS				
HARRY ROBBINS	23				
IAN LATHAM	18				
ROB KNIGHT	15				
DENNIS PENDERGAST	14				
RON LOVETT	10				
MIKE FORDYCE	9				
RAY NOAKES	9				
STUART SLACK	9				
TONY GLEESON	9				
CLEM HEFFERNAN	8				
DOUG STUVE	8				
MATTHEW SAMBUCO	8				
JOHN WESTLAKE	8				
GEORGE CRANSTON	7				
JOHN MIFSUD	7				
JOHN SHEEHY	7				
JIM LEE	6				
BOB PRICE	6				
BRAD MORELAND	6				
RUSS WADDELL	6				
STEVE CHAPMAN	6				
WADE HORSNELL	6				
GORDON SCOTT	6				
PETER SCHOFIELD	6				
JEFF GOODMAN	6				
ALEX MANN	6				
CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE	6				
MARK ALLEN	6				
NEIL CROKER	6				
PAUL WADDELL	5				
PHIL ALTERATOR	5				
ROB MOWLAN	5				
BRETT ADAMS	5				
BOB McMILLAN	5				
MITCHELL DURIE	5				
JOHN McPHEE	5				
ADAM PASCOE	5				

NOTE: Minimum 5 seasons of coaching.

PLAYER & TEAM NUMBERS

Player and team numbers since the establishment of the Junior Club in 1959-60 and the Senior Club in 1967-68.

SEASON	JUNIOR	JUNIOR	PREMIERSHIPS	SEASON	SENIOR	SENIOR	PREMIERSHIPS
1959-60	TEAMS 3	PLAYERS 52	NIL	1959-60	TEAMS NO TEAMS	PLAYERS NO PLAYERS	NO TEAMS
	4	56	NIL				
1960-61		74		1960-61	NO TEAMS	NO PLAYERS	NO TEAMS
1961-62	6		NIL	1961-62	NO TEAMS	NO PLAYERS	NO TEAMS
1962-63	7	91	NIL	1962-63	NO TEAMS	NO PLAYERS	NO TEAMS
1963-64	8	98	NIL	1963-64	NO TEAMS	NO PLAYERS	NO TEAMS
1964-65	7	89	NIL	1964-65	NO TEAMS	NO PLAYERS	NO TEAMS
1965-66	6	85	14B	1965-66	NO TEAMS	NO PLAYERS	NO TEAMS
1966-67	5	78	NIL	1966-67	NO TEAMS	NO PLAYERS	NO TEAMS
1967-68	5	81	12B	1967-68	1	15	A2
1968-69	5	76	14B, 10B	1968-69	2	40	A1
1969-70	7	106	12A	1969-70	3	41	A1, B3
1970-71	8	109	14D, 12A, 10B	1970-71	3	46	A1
1971-72	8	112	16B, 14A	1971-72	3	58	NIL
1972-73	10	138	10C, 10D	1972-73	5	89	B4
1973-74	8	115	12A, 12E, 10A, 10C	1973-74	5	86	A1, B3
1974-75	7	91	14D, 12C	1974-75	4	76	NIL
1975-76	10	128	14B, 14D, 12A, 10D	1975-76	4	74	NIL
1976-77	11	131	16C, 14B, 14C, 10A	1976-77	3	52	A3
1977-78	16	184	16A, 10C	1977-78	4	61	A1, B4
1978-79	13	153	16A, 12A, 10A	1978-79	4	60	A1, B3, C2
1979-80	15	170	NIL	1979-80	4	58	B4, C2
1980-81	14	159	14B, 14D, 12A	1980-81	5	72	NIL
1981-82	13	146	16B, 14B, 10D	1981-82	5	72	A1, B2
1982-83	12	136	12D	1982-83	5	71	B4, B6
1983-84	13	143	NIL	1983-84	5	73	NIL
1984-85	14	157	NIL	1984-85	5	72	A2, B2
1985-86	13	147	10D	1985-86	5	69	B1, B6
1986-87	11	130	NIL	1986-87	4	62	NIL
1987-88	10	118	14A, 14C	1987-88	5	66	NIL
1988-89	6	77	NIL	1988-89	3	46	NIL
1989-90	6	75	NIL	1989-90	4	53	NIL
1990-91	7	83	NIL	1990-91	3	46	NIL
1991-92	6	77	14C, 12C	1991-92	4	52	NIL
1992-93	6	76	NIL	1992-93	4	55	NIL
1993-94	9	103	16A	1993-94	4	58	В3
1994-95	9	109	14B, 12D, 10C	1994-95	3	43	NIL
1995-96	9	107	16C, 12C, 10D	1995-96	2	29	NIL
1996-97	14	158	NIL	1996-97	2	31	NIL
1997-98	13	153	NIL	1997-98	3	44	NIL
1998-99	12	139	10C, 10E	1998-99	4	54	C1
1999-00	12	141	16C, 14A, 12E	1999-00	5	63	A1, B2
2000-01	11	128	14D, 10A	2000-01	5	71	A1
2001-02	11	123	16A, 14E	2001-02	5	72	NIL

2002-03	10	132	16A, 12A, 10B	2002-03	6	89	NIL
2003-04	9	115	16A	2003-04	7	103	B5, B7
2004-05	9	101	16B, 16C, 14A, 14B, 12B	2004-05	6	117	B4
2005-06	13	146	14A, 12A, 12D	2005-06	6	106	NIL
2006-07	13	153	16A, 14A, 10A	2006-07	7	106	C1
2007-08	12	137	16C, 14A, 10A	2007-08	8	125	B1, B2, B8
2008-09	14	155	16A, 12A, 12E, 10A	2008-09	9	138	NIL
2009-10	17	189	12A	2009-10	12	203	A2
2010-11	13	149	14A, 12A	2010-11	12	200	B7
2011-12	13	149	16A, 14E	2011-12	11	177	B5
2012-13	14	157	16A, 16C, 14A	2012-13	10	158	B6, C1
2013-14	16	178	16A	2013-14	7	127	C2
2014-15	14	163	16A, 16B-1	2014-15	8	144	B3, C1
2015-16	17	191	10A, 10C	2015-16	8	135	C2
2016-17	12	143	NIL	2016-17	7	119	B1
2017-18	12	132	16C, 12A, 10A, 10F	2017-18	7	125	B2, B3
2018-19	14	141	16A, 12A, 10A	2018-19	5	88	NIL
SEASON	JUNIOR TEAMS	JUNIOR PLAYERS	PREMIERSHIPS	SEASON	SENIOR TEAMS	SENIOR PLAYERS	PREMIERSHIPS

JUNIOR PREMIERSHIP TEAMS

Since the establishment of the Junior Club in 1959-60 and at the conclusion of the 2018-19 season the Club has won 101 Junior Premierships.

16A	16B	16C
1977-78	1971-72	1976-77
1978-79	1981-82	1995-96
1993-94	2004-05	1999-00
2001-02	2014-15	2004-05
2002-03		2007-08
2003-04		2012-13
2006-07		2017-18
2008-09		
2011-12		
2012-13		
2013-14		
2014-15		
2018-19		

14A	14B	14C	14D	14E
1971-72	1965-66	1976-77	1970-71	2001-02
1987-88	1968-69	1987-88	1974-75	2011-12
1999-00	1975-76	1991-92	1975-76	
2004-05	1976-77		1980-81	
2005-06	1980-81		2000-01	
2006-07	1981-82			
2007-08	1994-95			
2010-11	2004-05			

2012-1	3		

12A	12B	12C	12D	12E
1969-70	1967-68	1974-75	1982-83	1973-74
1970-71	2004-05	1991-92	1994-95	1999-00
1973-74		1995-96	2005-06	2008-09
1975-76				
1978-79				
1980-81				
2002-03				
2005-06				
2008-09				
2009-10				
2010-11				
2017-18				
2018-19				

10A	10B	10C	10D	10E	10F
1973-74	1968-69	1972-73	1972-73	1998-99	2017-18
1976-77	1970-71	1973-74	1975-76		
1978-79	2002-03	1977-78	1981-81		
2000-01		1994-95	1985-86		
2006-07		1998-99	1995-96		
2007-08		2015-16			
2008-09					
2015-16					
2017-18					
2018-19					

SENIOR PREMIERSHIP TEAMS

 $Since\ establishment\ in\ 1967-86\ and\ as\ the\ conclusion\ of\ the\ 2018-19\ season\ the\ Club\ has\ won\ 48\ Senior\ Premierships.$

A1	A2	A3	B1	B2	В3
1968-69	1967-68	1976-77	1985-86	1981-82	1969-70
1969-70	2009-10		2007-08	1984-85	1973-74
1970-71			2016-17	1999-00	1978-79
1973-74				2007-08	1993-94
1977-78				2017-18	2014-15
1978-79					2017-18
1981-82					
1984-85					
1999-00					
2000-01					

B4	B5	B6	В7	B8	C1	C2
1972-73	2003-04	1982-83	2003-04	2007-08	1998-99	1978-79

1977-78	2011-12	1985-86	2010-11	2006-07	1979-80
1979-80		2012-13		2012-13	2013-14
1982-83				2014-15	2015-16
2004-05					

CLUB RECORDS

NOTE: - EDCC JUNIOR RECORDS

In the season of 1991/92 the junior competition rules were changed as follows: from time limit to an over limit game, with restrictions on individual bowlers, the number of competition rounds were set at ten. In the younger age groups Introductory and Modified rules were introduced. In 2018/19 junior competition rules were changed by Cricket Australia as follows: the U10 & U12 competitions changed from two day matches to one day matches, the length of the pitch shortened, number of fielders reduced and compulsory retirement at a set number of balls faced by the batsman. Because of these alterations the following EDCC junior club batting, bowling and wicket keeping records have been separated into three eras: 1959/60 to 1990/91, 1991/92 to 2017/18 and 2018/19 onwards. The senior batting, bowling and wicket keeping records remain unchanged.

CURRENT JUNIOR RECORDS

Junior Batting Records - 2018/19 Onwards

2018/19 Onwards - (U16 & U14 - 150 runs or more / U12 & U10 - 100 runs or more - excludes Finals)

BATTING AGGREGATE			BATTING STRIKE RATE (U10) OR AVERAGE (U12,U14,U16)				
GRADE	BATSMAN	RUNS	YEAR	GRADE	BATSMAN	STR	YEAR
10A	TOM FAULKNER	422	2018-19	10A	TOM FAULKNER	159.2	2018-19
10B	HARRISON DANNE	248	2018-19	10B	HARRISON DANNE	119.2	2018-19
10C	JAMES YOCK	126	2018-19	10C	JAMES YOCK	55.50	2018-19
10D				10D			
10E				10E			
10F				10F			
GRADE	BATSMAN	RUNS	YEAR	GRADE	BATSMAN	AVE	YEAR
12A	LACHLAN SNELL	249	2018-19	12A	LACHLAN SNELL	35.57	2018-19
12B	MASON FARDELL	171	2018-19	12B	MASON FARDELL	28.50	2018-19
12C				12C			
12D	COOPER MARTIN	167	2018-19	12D	COOPER MARTIN	23.86	2018-19
12E				12E			
12F				12F			
14A	KOBEY FREER	312	2018-19	14A	KOBEY FREER	39.00	2018-19
14B				14B			
14C	LUKE CARTER-BENJAMIN	178	2018-19	14C	LUKE CARTER-BENJAMIN	89.00	2018-19
14D	JARED CASPERSONN	216	2018-19	14D	JARED CASPERSONN	19.64	2018-19
14E				14E			
16A				16A			
16B	LACHLAN BROWNSCOMBE	243	2018-19	16B	LACHLAN BROWNSCOMBE	27.00	2018-19
16C	BRAYDEN JOHNSTON	449	2018-19	16C	BRAYDEN JOHNSTON	49.89	2018-19
16D				16D			

Junior Bowling Records - 2018/19 Onwards

2018/19 Onwards - (U16 & U14 – 12 wickets or more / U12 & U10 – 10 wickets or more – excludes Finals)

BOWLING AGGREGATE			BOWLING AVERAGE				
GRADE	BOWLER	WKTS	YEAR	GRADE	BOWLER	AVE	YEAR
10A	JAYDEN DUNDAS	19	2018-19	10A	JAYDEN DUNDAS	10.21	2018-19
10B	CAMERON HARDIMAN	12	2018-19	10B	CAMERON HARDIMAN	16.42	2018-19
10C	PAT CHRISTMANN	16	2018-19	10C	PAT CHRISTMANN	10.13	2018-19

57

10D				10D			
10E	BEN McDONOUGH	11	2018-19	10E	BEN McDONOUGH	20.09	2018-19
10F				10F			
12A	TYSON BURKE	12	2018-19	12A	TYSON BURKE	19.17	2018-19
12B	KYLE BLAKENEY	14	2018-19	12B	LUCAS SHEEHY	4.64	2018-19
12C				12C			
12D	COOPER MARTIN	18	2018-19	12D	TRAVIS MORAN	5.50	2018-19
12E				12E			
12F				12F			
14A				14A			
14B				14B			
14C				14C			
14D	JAYDEN DRISCOLL	12	2018-19	14D	JAYDEN DRISCOLL	15.67	2018-19
14E				14E			
16A	HAYDEN LINDSAY	16	2018-19	16A	HAYDEN LINDSAY	8.63	2018-19
16B	LAYTHEN CARLISLE	15	2018-19	16B	ZAC JOHNSON	9.77	2018-19
16C	NATHAN ALLEN	15	2018-19	16C	BEAU McINERNEY	7.17	2018-19
16D				16D			

Junior Wicket Keeping Records – 2018/19 Onwards 2018/19 Onwards - (U16 & U14 – 7 dismissals or more / U12 – 5 dismissals or more – excludes Finals)

GRADE	KEEPER	CATCHES	STUMPINGS	AGRT	YEAR
10A					
12A	AIDEN STEWART	4	1	5	2018-19
12B					
12C					
12D					
12E					
14A					
14B					
14C					
14D					
14E					
16A					
16B					
16C					
16D					

SENIOR RECORDS

Senior Batting Records

Since establishment 1967/68 onwards (200 Runs or more – excludes Finals)

BATTING AGGREGATE			BATTING AVERAGE				
DATTING	AGGILGATE			DATTING AVE	INAGE		
GRADE	BATSMAN	RUNS	YEAR	GRADE	BATSMAN	AVE	YEAR
A1	RAY NOAKES	739	1968-69	A1	STEVE MESSITER	111.00	1987-88
A2	DENNIS HIGGINS	542	1978-79	A2	CHRIS LAKE	98.50	2006-07
A3	GREG HEFFERNAN	626	1982-83	А3	GREG HEFFERNAN	78.25	1982-83
B1	STEWART VELLA	466	1981-82	B1	ADAM PASCOE	82.00	2012-13
B2	STEWART VELLA	903	2006-07	B2	JOHN SHEEHY	117.50	2017-18
В3	BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN	568	2016-17	В3	BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN	76.25	2017-18
B4	PAT BIRD	606	2018-19	B4	DOUG RITCHIE	77.00	2016-17
B5	PAT BIRD	472	2017-18	B5	JOHN WESTLAKE	68.00	2015-16
В6	TIM BERRY	928	2015-16	В6	TIM BERRY	185.6	2015-16
В7	JOHN SHEEHY	587	2010-11	В7	JOHN SHEEHY	73.38	2010-11
B8	GLENN CAUKILL	376	2005-06	B8	GLENN CAUKILL	34.18	2005-06
В9	DARREN CHAPMAN	440	2010-11	В9	DARREN CHAPMAN	44.00	2010-11
C1	JARROD MAZURKIEWICZ	697	2014-15	C1	JOHN SHEEHY	127.00	2009-10
C2	SAM HAYNES	637	2010-11	C2	SAM HAYNES	57.91	2010-11
C3	RUSS WADDELL	400	1985-86	C3	RUSS WADDELL	33.33	1985-86

Senior Bowling Records

Since establishment 1967/68 onwards (20 Wickets or more – excludes Finals)

5	omec establishment 2507/ 60 chivarus (20 trickets of more exchanges finals)							
BOWLING AGGREGATE			BOWLING AVERAGE					
GRADE	BOWLER	WKTS	YEAR	GRADE	BOWLER	AVE	YEAR	
A1	FRED TERONE	55	1969-70	A1	ROSS STUART	5.84	1998-99	
A2	JOHN RICHARDSON	50	1983-84	A2	JASON CRIMLISK	7.92	1992-93	
A3	WAYNE WISHART	50	1976-77	А3	DON WATTS	6.60	1972-73	
B1	STEVE GORRY	70	1979-80	B1	STEVE GORRY	6.90	1979-80	

58

B2	PETER ROYLE	62	1976-77	B2	MARK OLIFF	6.50	1983-84
В3	GERRY DWARSHUIS	51	1978-79	В3	DARREN PARKES	6.50	1986-87
B4	KEVIN BESSANT	53	1974-75	B4	BRETT MARTIN	7.70	2004-05
					TIM RUSSELL	7.70	2010-11
B5	DAVID PERRITT	48	1984-85	B5	STEWART VELLA	5.50	2003-04
В6	GREG LANGSTON	55	1982-83	В6	PETER BLAND	5.80	1981-82
В7	ROBIN DODD	58	1988-89	B7	JOHN SHEEHY	7.75	2010-11
B8	PAUL DIXON	44	2004-05	B8	PAUL DIXON	9.72	2004-05
В9	ANTHONY CRISAFULLI	28	2009-10	В9	ALAN ROBERTS	10.35	2002-03
C1	BEAU KNOWLES	45	1998-99	C1	ROBERT KNIGHT	6.35	2000-01
C2	JOHN RICHARDSON	77	1977-78	C2	JOHN RICHARDSON	7.40	1977-78
C3	MARK CURNESS	38	1984-85	C3	CURTIS BLUNDELL	5.81	2005-06

Senior Wicket Keeping Records

1967/68 Onwards (10 Dismissals or more – excludes Finals)

Grade	Keeper	Catches	Stumpings	Aggr	Year
A1	TED TERONE	28	13	41	1968-69
A2	BARRY BLANCHARD	27	9	36	1967-68
A3	MICHAEL STEPHENSON	20	4	24	1980-81
B1	STEVE MESSITER	24	9	33	1979-80
B2	JONATHAN WRIGHT	18	5	23	2016-17
В3	MARK JOHNSON	17	12	29	1969-70
B4	MICHAEL STEPHENSON	18	5	23	1982-83
B5	JARYD DUNCAN	16	8	24	2011-12
В6	ANTHONY LOVETT	21	4	25	1985-86
В7	JIM COLLINS	19	0	19	1999-00
	GREGORY RICHARDS	14	5	19	2010-11
B8	MICHAEL SMITH	15	1	16	2009-10
В9	CLINTON ALLEN	12	1	13	2009-10
C1	ADRIAN VIRDUN	17	3	20	1992-93
C2	N/Q	-	-	-	-
C3	MITCHELL RYAN	13	_	13	2005-06

ARCHIVED JUNIOR RECORDS

Archived Junior Batting Records - 1991/92 to 2017/18

(Traditional 150 Runs or more/*Introductory & Modified 100 Runs or more – excludes Finals)

BATTING AGGREGATE			BATTING AVERAGE				
GRADE	BATSMAN	RUNS	YEAR	GRADE	BATSMAN	AVE	YEAR
10A	NATHAN MARCIANTE	328	2006-07	10A	MATTHEW SIMPSON	64.75	2009-10
10B	LACHLAN RITCHIE	209	2014-15	10B	LACHLAN RITCHIE	209.00	2014-15
10B*	DANIEL McDONALD	125	2010-11	10B*	DANIEL McDONALD	25.00	2010-11
10C*	CHRIS McMAHON	151	1998-99	10C*	RYAN McLAUCHLAN	121.00	1994-95
10D*	DYLAN PARKES	143	2010-11	10D*	DYLAN LEES	27.75	2006-07
10E*	GLENN CAUKILL	153	1998-99	10E*	GLENN CAUKILL	38.30	1998-99
10F*	COOPER HOLMES	309	2017-18	10F*	TOM FAULKNER	72.00	2017-18
12A	LUKE RITCHIE	593	2015-16	12A	BEN MARCIANTE	159.66	2002-03
12B	RYAN MARLOW	329	2006-07	12B	CHRIS REEVES	42.00	2000-01
12C	DYLAN BEARDOW	549	1999-00	12C	DYLAN BEARDOW	91.50	1999-00
12D	HAMISH JACKA	270	2014-15	12D	HAMISH JACKA	67.50	2014-15
12E*	JACKSON GARRETT	227	2008-09	12E*	HAMISH JACKA	77.00	2013-14
12F*	RHYS INGHAM	141	2010-11	12F*	JASON RAPER	37.67	1999-00
14A	RYAN SHEPHERD	665	1999-00	14A	RYAN SHEPHERD	95.00	1999-00
14B	KEVIN STEWART	414	1994-95	14B	KEVIN STEWART	51.75	1994-95
14C	HAMISH JACKA	638	2016-17	14C	HAMISH JACKA	106.00	2016-17
14D	RYAN MORRIS	396	2003-04	14D	DYLAN PARKES	199.00	2012-13
14E	OMAR SAMAD	392	2001-02	14E	OMAR SAMAD	65.33	2001-02
16A	NATHAN MARCIANTE	547	2012-13	16A	RYAN SHEPHERD	96.20	2000-01
16B	CHRIS REEVES	494	2004-05	16B	CHRIS REEVES	54.89	2004-05
16C	RYAN EMERSON	665	2007-08	16C	STEVEN GREEN	65.30	2017-18
16D	MATTHEW QUINNELL	222	2013-14	16D	MATTHEW QUINNELL	22.20	2013-14

Archived Junior Bowling Records - 1991/92 to 2017/18

(Traditional 15 Wickets or more / *Introductory & Modified 10 Wickets or more – excludes Finals)

BOWLING AGGREGATE			BOWLING AVERAGE				
GRADE	BOWLER	WKTS	YEAR	GRADE	BOWLER	AVE	YEAR
10A	NATHAN MARCIANTE	24	2006-07	10A	NATHAN MARCIANTE	3.67	2006-07
10B	N/Q	-	-	10B	N/Q	-	_
10B*	NATHAN HALL	12	2010-11	10B*	LIAM HERNE	3.18	2002-03
10C*	TIAN WALKINGTON DUNCAN ELLEM TYLER COLDWELL	12 12 12	2002-03 2005-06 2012-13	10C*	DUNCAN ELLEM	3.75	2005-06
10D*	ANURAAG VARANASI	20	2006-07	10D*	SIMON ANDREWS	1.72	1993-94
10E*	GLENN CAUKILL	18	1998-99	10E*	GLENN CAUKILL	2.00	1998-99
10F*	NATHAN HALL	16	2009-10	10F*	NATHAN HALL	6.56	2009-10
12A	MATTHEW BARNES	25	1994-95	12A	MICHAEL GORE	1.33	1992-93
12B	N/Q	-	-	12B	N/Q	-	-
12C	KELLY ROLLESTON	24	2003-04	12C	NATHAN DEL MEDICO	5.82	2009-10
12D	SIMON ANDREWS	20	1994-95	12D	SIMON ANDREWS	2.84	1994-95
12E*	JUSTIN BYRNES	17	2008-09	12E*	JUSTIN BYRNES	3.65	2008-09
12F*	JAMES PUNSHON	14	1999-00	12F*	OMAR SAMAD	3.08	1999-00
14A	JOEL D'IMPERIO	28	2007-08	14A	ALEX GERSBACH	5.12	2010-11
14B	RYAN MARLOW	34	2004-05	14B	RYAN MARLOW	4.29	2004-05
14C	CHRIS NELSON TRISTAN McGUIRE	20 20	1998-99 2012-13	14C	KIERAN LEVIN	3.79	2011-12
14D	PETER BOURKE	24	1994-95	14D	PETER BOURKE	5.29	1994-95
14E	AARON FANOUS	25	2011-12	14E	AARON FANOUS	4.28	2011-12
16A	MARK RICE	28	2007-08	16A	NICK AMOS	5.72	2015-16
16B	CAMERON HEARD	24	2005-06	16B	JAMES STONE	6.43	2004-05
16C	BRETT MARTIN	40	1999-00	16C	HARRY LONG	4.61	2017-18
16D	DANIEL BOYLE	21	2001-02	16D	MATTHEW JONES	10.17	2013-14

NOTE: N/Q (NO QUALIFIERS FOR THIS RECORD) * (INTRODUCTORY OR MODIFIED RECORDS)

Archive Wicket Keeping Records – 1991/92 to 2017/18 (10 Dismissals or more – excludes Finals)

GRADE	KEEPER	CATCHES	STUMPINGS	AGRT	YEAR
10A	DYLAN RAE	11	2	13	2006-07
12A	JORDAN DOW	6	6	12	2005-06
12B	ADAM SMITH	7	4	11	2004-05
12C	N/Q	-	-	-	-
12D	N/Q	-	-	-	-
12E	JASON RAPER	9	4	13	2000-01
12F	N/Q	-	-	-	-
14A	JORDAN DOW	17	8	25	2007-08
14B	CHRIS REEVES	12	-	12	2002-03
14C	JOSH BERRY	3	7	10	2011-12
14D	KIRBY-ANN MARSH	4	7	11	2003-04
14E	N/Q	-	-	-	-
16A	RYAN CROOM	15	2	17	2005-06
16B	ROBERT DUMBRELL	11	2	13	2002-03
16C	JOSHUA BERRY	8	8	16	2012-13
16D	N/Q	-	-	-	-

Note: N/Q – No Qualifiers

BRETT MARTIN

DARREN PRICE

14C

Archived Junior Batting Records – 1959/60 to 1990/91 (200 Runs or more – excludes Finals)

480

370

1976-77

1990/91

BATTING AGGREGATE BATTING AVERAGE GRADE BATSMAN **RUNS** YEAR GRADE **BATSMAN** AVE YEAR 10A NATHAN MORANDO 479 1983-84 10A NATHAN MORANDO 1983-84 IAN CRANSTON 1967-68 10B IAN CRANSTON 77.40 1967-68 **CAMERON ROSSITER** 384 1977-78 **10C CAMERON ROSSITER** 64.00 1977-78 1990-91 12A 51.50 CHRIS LAKE 576 **CHRIS LAKE** 1978-79 12B 12B IAN CRANSTON 479 **DEAN KEMBER** 1977-78 1968-69 60.33 12C PETER DOHERTY 276 12C MICHAEL GOTLEY 1963-64 40.66 1982-83 MITCH HEALEY 306 1979-80 12D **GAVIN McGUIRK** 48.20 1982-83 **CRAIG PARSONS** 471 1980-81 G. CLARKE 82.33 1973-74 12F CRAIG HILLHOUSE 207 1984-85 **CRAIG HILLHOUSE** 34.50 1984-85 14A 14A PETER DOHERTY 553 1966-67 RODNEY ENTWISTLE 45.89 1980-81

14B

14C

BRETT MARTIN

BRAD DAVIS

60.00

46.80

1976-77

1981-82

14D	CRAIG DOW	503	1976-77	14D	CRAIG DOW	38.69	1976-77
14E	WARREN GREEN	430	1980-81	14E	WARREN GREEN	35.83	1980-81
16A	BARRY McMANUS	578	1964-65	16A	BARRY McMANUS	72.25	1964-65
16B	PETER DOHERTY	449	1967-68	16B	JOHN SMITH	60.20	1979-80
16C	BART THORNTHWAITE	355	1984-85	16C	RODNEY HIRST	51.50	1976-77
16D	PHILLIP DAENELL	240	1985-86	16D	PHILLIP DAENELL	30.00	1985-86

Archived Junior Bowling Records – 1959/60 to 1990/91 20 Wickets or more – excludes Finals)

BOWLING	AGGREGATE			BOWLING A	AVERAGE		
GRADE	BOWLER	WKTS	YEAR	GRADE	BOWLER	AVE	YEAR
10A	WAYNE WISHART	83	1971-72	10A	WAYNE WISHART	3.01	1971-72
10B	ROBERT MCPHEE	85	1966-67	10B	PHILLIP GEORGE	1.52	1967-68
10C	STEVE GORREY	70	1972-73	10C	STEVE GORRY	2.14	1972-73
10D	MICHAEL PORTER	35	1972-73	10D	CAMERON NAPPER	1.87	1981-82
12A	GREG HEFFERNAN	80	1975-76	12A	GREG HEFFERNAN	3.88	1975-76
12B	IAN CRANSTON	76	1968-69	12B	JOHN CARLSON	3.42	1962-63
12C	JOHN SHOOTER	67	1966-67	12C	JAMES INNES	2.66	1974-75
12D	W. TEAL	62	1964-65	12D	DAVID O'TOOLE	4.20	1976-77
12E	DAVID ROBERTS	66	1969-70	12E	G. CLARKE	3.24	1973-74
12F	CHAD MOODIE	34	1984-85	12F	CHAD MOODIE	3.60	1984-85
14A	NATHAN MORANDO	47	1987-88	14A	BRETT FERGUSON	7.66	1975-76
	BARRY MCMANUS	47	1962-63				
14B	ROBERT CARROLL	70	1964-65	14B	JOHN SHOOTER	5.20	1967-68
14C	JOHN CARLSON	70	1964-65	14C	LANCE BARRETT	2.12	1971-72
14D	BRIAN ANDREWS	73	1974-75	14D	BRIAN ANDREWS	3.17	1974-75
14E	IAN COOK	26	1978-79	14E	IAN COOK	5.43	1978-79
16A	IAN CRANSTON	40	1973-74	16A	WAYNE WISHART	8.46	1977-78
16B	WAYNE HEADLEY	55	1967-68	16B	JOHN WESTLAKE	5.33	1981-82
16C	WARREN WILCOX	30	1984-85	16C	PAUL ASHTON	6.80	1987-88
16D	PHILLIP DAENELL	22	1985-86	16D	PHILLIP DAENELL	10.82	1985-86

Archived Junior Wicket Keeping Records - 1959/60 to 1990/91

GRADE	KEEPER	CATCHES	STUMPINGS	AGRT	YEAR
12A	BRETT JOHNSON			32	1970/71

CENTURY MAKERS

Highest Recorded Junior Score: JONATHAN HASLAM (14A) 167no v St John Bosco Round 6 – 2008-09 Highest Recorded Senior Score: TIM BERRY (B6) 339no v St. Patricks Round No.7 – 2015-16 Highest Partnership: TIM BERRY (B6) 329 v St. Patricks Round No.7 – 2015-16 2018-19 BRAYDEN JOHNSTON (16C) 123 v Miranda Round No.5 CALEB NEWTON (16C) 105no v Bangor Round No.1 TYLER CUSSEN (16A) 115 v St Patricks Round No.6 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 105 v Como-Jannali Round No.12 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 103 v Illawong Menai Round No.6 COREY MOORS (16A) 100 v St Patricks Round No.6 2016-17 HAMISH JACKA (14C) 150no v Bangor Comets Round No.5 ANDREW RITCHIE (16A) 115 v St. Patricks Round No.6 DANE COURTNEY (14C-2) 103 v Como-Jannali Round No.6 DANE COURTNEY (14C-2) 103 v Como-Jannali Round No.7 DANE COURTNEY (14C-2) 103 v Como-Jannali Round No.2 BRAD SIMPSON (14A) 102no v Gymea Bay Round No.7 2014-15 HARRY TATTERSALL (16A) 123 v Caringbah Sports Round No.1 LUKE RICHARDS (B2) 111no v Caringbah Inn Round No.5	Junior (1959 Onwards)	Senior (1967 Onwards)
BRAYDEN JOHNSTON (16C) 123 v Miranda Round No.5 CALEB NEWTON (16C) 105no v Bangor Round No.1 TIM RUSSELL (B1) 140 v St Patricks Round No.6 TIM RUSSELL (B2) 125no v Illawong Menai Round No.8 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 105 v Como-Jannali Round No.1 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 103 v Illawong Menai Round No.1 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 103 v Illawong Menai Round No.1 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 102 v Como-Jannali Round No.6 COREY MOORS (16A) 100 v St Patricks Round No.6 2016-17 HAMISH JACKA (14C) 150no v Bangor Comets Round No.3 ANDREW RITCHIE (16A) 115 v Bangor Comets Round No.6 DANE COURTNEY (14C-2) 103 v Como-Jannali Round No.6 DANE COURTNEY (14C-2) 103 v Como-Jannali Round No.7 BRAD SIMPSON (14A) 102no v Gymea Bay Round No.7 2014-15 HARRY TATTERSALL (16A) 123 v Caringbah Sports Round No.1 LUKE RICHARDS (B2) 111no v Caringbah Inn Round No.5	JONATHAN HASLAM (14A)	TIM BERRY (B6) 339no v St. Patricks Round No.7 – 2015-16 Highest Partnership: TIM BERRY (B6) & MATTHEW BERRY (B6)
ANDREW MERRIMAN (16A) 108 v Caringbah Sports Round MATHEW BARNES (B2) 110 v Gymea Bay Round No.4 No.1 MATHEW BARNES (B2) 103 v Illawong Menai Round No.1	BRAYDEN JOHNSTON (16C) 123 v Miranda Round No.5 CALEB NEWTON (16C) 105no v Bangor Round No.1 2017-18 TYLER CUSSEN (16A) 115 v St Patricks Round No.6 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 105 v Como-Jannali Round No.12 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 103 v Illawong Menai Round No.1 STEVEN GREEN (16C) 102 v Como-Jannali Round No.6 COREY MOORS (16A) 100 v St Patricks Round No.6 2016-17 HAMISH JACKA (14C) 150no v Bangor Comets Round No.3 HAMISH JACKA (14C) 125 v St. Patricks Round No.1 ANDREW RITCHIE (16A) 115 v Bangor Comets Round No.5 BEAU WALLACE (12A) 114no v St. Patricks Round No.6 2015-16 LUKE RITCHIE (12A) 119no v Como-Jannali Round No.6 DANE COURTNEY (14C-2) 103 v Como-Jannali Round No.2 BRAD SIMPSON (14A) 102no v Gymea Bay Round No.7 2014-15 HARRY TATTERSALL (16A) 123 v Caringbah Sports Round No.1	PAT BIRD (B4) 156no v Gymea Bay Round No.14 TIM RUSSELL (B1) 140 v St Patricks Round No.6 TIM RUSSELL (B1) 131 v Engadine (GI) Round No.1 JOSH KEDWELL (B2) 125no v Illawong Menai Round No.8 MATHEW BARNES (B1) 110no v Caringbah Inn Round No.4 JONATHAN MOSLEY (B1) 104no v Gymea Bay Round No.2 PAT BIRD (B4) 101no v St Patricks Round No.1 JOSH KEDWELL (B2) 101 v Gymea Bay Round No.3 2017-18 SPENCER WHITE (A2) 244 v Illawong Menai Round No.4 JOSHUA KEDWELL (B3) 153 v Illawong Menai Round No.9 PATRICK DELANEY (B5) 131 v Loftus Round No.12 BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN (B3) 127no v Illawong Menai Round No.9 TIM RUSSELL (A1) 120 v Heathcote Round No.1 MATHEW BARNES (B2) 118 v Como-Jannali Round No.2 JOHN SHEEHY (B2) 113 v Caringbah Sports Inn Round No.6 STUART DIBB (A1) 112no v Heathcote Round No.1 LUKE RICHARDS (B2) 111no v Caringbah Inn Round No.5 MATHEW BARNES (B2) 111no v Gymea Bay Round No.4

MAX BATTY (16B-1) 105 v Engadine Dragons 16B-2 Round No.2

2013-14

JOSHUA JOHNSTON (16A) 105no v St Patricks Round No.7 2012-13

HARRY TATTERSALL (14A) 157 v Illawong Menai Round 7 NATHAN MARCIANTE 16A 152 v Gymea Bay Round 3 HARRISON BLACKER 12A 151no v DLS Seagulls Round 2

2011-12

NIL

2010-11

ALEX GERSBACH (14A) 153 v Illawong Menai Round 5 DANE FISHER (14A) 150 No v Caringbah Round 3 ALEX GERSBACH (14A) 115 v Sylvania Round 4 JACK DWARSHUIS (12A) 103 v Illawong Menai Round 3

JACKSON GARRETT (14E) 121 v Sylvania Heights Round 2 CAMERON LANE (16C) 103no v Caringbah Round 6 CAMERON LANE (16C) 101no v Gymea Bay Round 3

JONATHAN HASLAM (14A) 167no v St John Bosco Round 6 JONATHAN HASLAM (14A) 112 v Illawong Menai Round 3 RYAN ALMOND (16A) 105 v St John Bosco Round 3 RYAN ALMOND (16A) 100 v St John Bosco Round 6

RYAN EMERSON (16C) 118no v St John Bosco Round 6 RYAN ALMOND (14A) 116 v St Patricks Final RYAN EMERSON (16C) 107no v Aquinas Round 3 RYAN EMERSON (16C) 107 v Illawong Menai Round 5 JOEL D'IMPERIO (14A) 105 v Gymea Bay Round 10 RYAN MARLOW (16A) 103 v Illawong Menai Round 5 RYAN ALMOND (14A) 100no v Como Jannali Round 9

BEN MARCIANTE (16A) 160 BEN DWARSHUIS (14A) 101 no BEN MARCIANTE (16A) 101 ANDREW HERNE (16A) 100 no

2005-06

MARK RICE (14A) 113 no v Illawong-Menai Final (The first century made in a Final for Engadine)

BLAKE DUNCUM (14C) 106

2004-05

CHRIS REEVES (16B) 122 retired RYAN CROOM (16B) 108 retired CHRIS REEVES (16B) 104 retired

2003-04

CAMERON TURNER (16A) 162 no RYAN MARLOW (12A) 119 RYAN MORRIS (14D) 113 JAMES STONE (14B) 112 ALEX SAMBUCO (14D) 107 CAMERON TURNER (16A) 106 LIAM HERNE (10A) 102 no

2002-03

JAY DAVIS (16A) 135 no BEN MARCIANTE (12A) 108 no CHRIS REEVES (14B) 102 JAY DAVIS (16A) 101 no

2001-02

RYAN SHEPHERD (16A) 125 OMAR SAMAD (14E) 109 no RYAN SHEPHERD (16A) 103 no MICHAEL LAVALLEE (16A) 100 no

2000-01

MICHAEL LAVALLEE (14A) 111 no JAY DAVIS (14A) 103 no CHRIS REEVES (12B) 103 no RYAN SHEPHERD (16A) 100 no

1999-2000

CHRIS PENDERGAST (16A) 130 no RYAN SHEPHERD (14A) 128 no DYLAN BEARDOW (12C) 113 no MARK MITCHELL (16C) 109 no DYLAN BEARDOW (12C) 109 no RYAN SHEPHERD (14A) 100 no 1998-99

2016-17

MATTHEW BERRY (B3) 176 v Illawong-Menai Round No.3
DOUG RITCHIE (B4) 169 v Illawong-Menai Round No.3
BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN (B3) 141 v Illawong-Menai Round No.3
JOSHUA BERRY (C1) 140 v Gymea Bay Round No.3
BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN (B3) 125 v Como-Jannali Round No.9
DOUG RITCHIE (B4) 122 v Gymea Bay Round No.2
JOSHUA BERRY (C1) 115 v Bangor Semi-Final
MARK MITCHELL (B1/1) 102no v Engadine Dragons B1/2
Round No.8

TIM RUSSELL (B1/2) 100no v St. Patricks Round No.9 JOHN WESTLAKE (B4) 100 v Illawong-Menai Round No.3 2015-16

TIM BERRY (B6) 339no v St. Patricks Round No.7
TIM BERRY (B6) 167 v IMCC Round No.2
BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN (B6) 157 v St. Patricks Round No.1
JOHN WESTLAKE (B5) 152no v Loftus Round No.13
TIM BERRY (B6) 138 v IMCC Round No.6
TIM BERRY (B6) 136 v St. Patricks Round No.1
TIM BERRY (B6) 115 v Gymea Bay Round No.4
TODD SHEPHERD (C2) 102 v Gymea Bay Round No.10
JOHN WEST:LAKE (B5) 101 v St. Patricks Round No.7
2014-15

DOUG RITCHIE (C1) 179 v Bangor Comets Round No.15
BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN (B6) 140 v Caringbah Inn Round No.3
JONATHON MOSLEY (B3) 137 v Gymea Bay Round No.13
SAM HAYNES (A2) 130no v Heathcote Round No.2
JOHN WESTLAKE (C1) 127 v Gymea Bay Final
JONATHON MOSLEY (B3) 120 v Gymea Bay Round No.6
TRISTON McGUIRE (C1) 117 v St Patricks Round No.3
ANTHONY CAMPEY (B1-2) 113 v Gymea Bay Round No.13
JARROD MAZURKIEWICZ (C1) 111 v Bangor Round No.15
JOHN WESTLAKE (C1) 108 v Gymea Bay Round No.9
KEVIN ISSAC (B1-1) 105 v Caringbah Inn Round No.1

2013-14

2011-12

TIM BERRY (C2) 174 v St Patricks Round No.2
SAM HAYNES (B3) 172 v Caringbah Inn Round No.2
MATHEW BARNES (B4) 144no v Gymea Bay Round No.11
HAYDEN SMITH (B2) 135no v Miranda Magpies Round No.14
JOSHUA KEDWELL (C2) 130 v St John Bosco Round No.13
MATTHEW JONES (B2) 119no v Caringbah Inn Round No.2
MATT WRIGHT (C2) 118 v Bangor Comets Round No.4
SAM RUSSELL (B3) 109 v Gymea Bay Round No.1
MATT BERRY (C2) 103no v Como-Jannali Round No.1
2012-13

ADAM TURVEY (B3) 148 v Gymeay Bay Round 3
NATHAN McNAMARA (B6) 146 v Loftus Round 5
ADAM PASCOE (B1) 130 v Gymea Bay Round 8
DEAN McMILLAN (C1) 127 v DLS Seagulls Round 14
DAVID McMILLAN (C1) 120 v Como-Jannali Round 5
CHRIS PENDERGAST (A1) 119 v Bangor Round 1
MATTHEW BARNES (B6) 114no v Illawong-Menai Round 2
JAMES ANDREW (B3) 107no v Gymea Bay Round 10
STEWART VELLA (B1) 106 v Illawong-Menai Round 1
SAM HAYNES (B7) 105no v Caringbah Inn Round 1
DAVID McMILLAN (C1) 105 v St John Bosco Round 2
MICHAEL BEDFORD (C1) 105 v St John Bosco Round 9
DANE LOGAN (B6) 100no v Loftus Round 5

MARTIN McKENZIE (C1) 164 v Gymea Bay Round 1
STEWART LUMSDEN (B6) 153 v Gymea Bay Round 8
DREW LAKE (B2) 131no v St Patricks Round 13
SAM HAYNES (C2) 125 v St John Bosco Round 1
MYLES GARNER (B2) 124 v Illawong Menai Round 8
DEAN McMILLAN (B9) 119 Gymea Bay Round 1
GREG INGS (B5) 117 v St Patricks Round 1
NATHAN McNAMARA (B4) 115no v Illawong Menai Round 10
SAM HAYNES (C2) 112 v St John Bosco Round 11
BEN LATHAM (B1) 110 v Caringbah Inn Round 2
LUKE RICHARDS (B4) 102no v DLS Seagulls Round 1
NATHAN McNAMARA (B4) 101 v Kareela Round 5
2010-11

JOHN SHEEHY (B7) 213no v Gymea Bay Round 7 JOHN SHEEHY (B7) 150 v Miranda Magpies Round 11 SAM HAYNES (C2) 141 v Gymea Bay Round 14 HUNTER McKINLAY (C2) 139 v Gymea Bay Round 7 CHRIS WARD (14E) 100 no SPENCER WHITE (B2) 134no v Como-Jannali Round 5 1997-98 DARREN CHAPMAN (B9) 128 v St Patricks Round 5 CHRIS PENDERGAST (14A) 113 no HAYDEN SMITH (B5) 123 v Bangor Round 12 1996-97 ALEX TEUMA (C1) 122 v St John Bosco Round 4 CHRIS PENDERGAST (14A) 106 no PAUL BARNES (A2) 121no v Bangor Round 13 SAM HAYNES (C2) 121 v St Patricks Round12 1995-96 DAVID BOURKE (12A) 121 no DARREN CHAPMAN (B9) 119 v Gymea Bay Round 7 1994-95 SPENCER WHITE (B2) 118 v St Patricks Round 4 DANIEL FILETTI (12D) 119 no, DREW LAKE (B5) 115 v Como-Jannali Round 1 KEVIN STEWART (14B) 114 no JOHN WESTLAKE (B5) 104no v Heathcote Round 7 CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE (16A) 112 MATTHEW PENGLASE (B3) 102 v Como-Jannali Round 13 CHRIS LOWE (12D) 108 no ALEX TEUMA (C1) 101 v Bangor Round 10 HAYDEN SMITH (B5) 100no v Illawong Menai Round 2 1993-94 **CHRIS LAKE (16A) 135** CHRIS LAKE (16A) 107 JOHN SHEEHY (C1) 143no v Bangor Round 13 DANIEL McLAUCHLAN (16A) 103 MATTHEW BARNES (B3) 128 v Miranda Round 9 John Short (16C) 100 no MATTHEW BARNES (B3) 126no v St Patricks Round 6 1992-93 MATTHEW RUSSELL (B6) 121 v Miranda Round 11 ANTHONY CAMPEY (C1) 113 v Illawong Menai Round 4 CHRIS LAKE (14A) 159 CHRIS LAKE (14A) 136 JAMES WOOD (B7) 108 v Miranda Round 2 CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE (14A) 128 ANDREW WATTS (B3) 105 v Bangor Round 1 CHRIS LAKE (14A) 114 no JORDAN DOW (A2) 104no v St Patricks Round 9 MARK VARLEY (B8) 104 v Bangor Round 5 KEVIN STEWART (12A) 101 no GRAHAM PRICE (14C) 103 no 2008-09 1991-92 PAUL BARNES (A2) 188no v Como Jannali Round 6 KEVIN STEWART (12C) 115 no JASON GILMORE (C1) 143no v St Patricks Round 4 **CHRIS LAKE (14A) 118** ADAM DOW (B1-2) 112 v Heathcote Round 5 DEAN HASLEHURST (16A) 114 no DAVID MCMILLAN (C1) 111 v Illawong Menai Round 11 DEAN HASLEHURST (16A) 105 no MICHAEL BEDFORD (C2) 108no v Gymea Bay Round 10 1990-91 JAMES STONE (A2) 107 v Illawong Menai Round 1 CHRIS LAKE (12A) 160 JARYD DUNCAN (B7) 105 v Illawong Menai Round 8 SPENCER WHITE (B1-1) 104no v Como Jannali Round 13 CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE (12A) 126 no & 103 **CHRIS LAKE (12A) 108** WADE HORSNELL (B1-1) 104no v Heathcote Round 1 CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE (12A) 103 CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE (B1-1) 103 v Taren Point Round 12 1989-90 SIMON ANDREWS (B5) 102no v Loftus Round 7 2007-08 NII 1988-89 GEOFF MORRISS (B2) 114 v Caringbah Inn Round 4 NATHAN MORANDO (16A) 110 DANE LOGAN (B7) 101(ret) v Illawong Round 2 JAMES STONE (B1) 103 v Como Jannali Round 1 1987-88 NII PAUL BARNES (B1) 122 v Gymea Bay Round 6 STEWART VELLA (B1) 139 v Taren Point Round 9 1986-87 NATHAN MORANDO (14A) 103 no BRENT WOODLEY (C1) 102no v St Patricks Round 3 PETER O'REILLY (C1) 100no v Gymea Bay Round 1 CRAIG PARSONS (16A) 113 no MICHAEL SMITH (C1) 151 v Cronulla Round 14 1984-85 2006-07 GLENN CAUKILL (C1) 231 no NIL 1983-84 CHRIS LAKE (A2) 162 NATHAN MORANDO (10A) 120 no STEWART VELLA (B2) 156 TRENT WOODHILL (14A) 105 no STEWART VELLA (B2) 153 1982-83 **DREW LAKE (A2) 141** ANDREW THOMAS (14C) 125 SPENCER WHITE (B3) JOHN WESTLAKE (16A) 106 CHRIS REEVES (A2) 112 no 1981-82 DALE BATES (C2) 102 no **RUSSELL LANGSTON (14B) 107** STEWART VELLA (B2) 102 PETER BLAND (16A) 107 no MATT RUSSELL (C1) 102 RUSSELL LANGSTON (14B) 104 no SPENCER WHITE (B3) 101 no BRAD DAVIS (14C) 103 no STEWART VELLA (B2) 100 GAVIN PHILLIPS (14C) 100 no 2005-06 GLENN CAUKILL (B8) 150 no 1980-81 SCOTT LONGMUIR (16A) 125 no NICK STEWART (C3) 142 no GRANT ROSSITER (14B) 116 no DREW LAKE (A2) 141 **GRANT ROSSITER (14B) 109** SAM RUSSELL (C1) 131 no LEE IRWIN (14B) 109 STUART DIBB (C1) 113 no WILLIAM GREEN (14E) 102 no NATHAN ALTERATOR (B2) 105 1979-80 STEWART VELLA (B2) 104 no STEPHEN URQUHART (16A) 116 ret STUART DIBB (C1) 102 no STEWART LUMSDEN (C1) 101 no GRAHAM RYAN (14D) 114 WAYNE MARTIN (16B) 111 no 2004-05 GEOFF MORRISS (B1) 109 no JOHN SMITH (16B) 109 no, PETER BLAND (14A) 102 no ADAM LOGAN (B4) 109 GLENN ANDERSON (16A) 101 TROY CLIFFORD (B6) 102 no 1978-79 BRETT MARTIN (16A) 150 no TOD SKEVINGTON (B7) 182 no PAUL COSTANZO (14D) 101 no IAN MITCHELL (C1) 138

DAMIEN COLLINS (B2) 144

PETER O'RIELLY (B7) 115

CRAIG ALEWOOD (16C) 100 ret

1977-78

CAMERON ROSSITER (10C) 113 no, MICHAEL LAVALLEE (B6) 100 no CHRIS BOLAND (16C) 112 no 2002-03 NATHAN ALTERATOR (B5) 142 DEAN KEMBER (12B) 108 no GRANT LOVETT (10A) 101 WILL WOOSTER (B3) 115 GRANT ROSSITER (10A) 100 GREG FAUL (B8) 114 no 1976-77 GREG GOODMAN (A1) 109 no BRETT MARTIN (14B) 122 ALAN ROBERTS (B9) 105 no CRAIG DOW (14D) 113 no 2001-02 WILL WOOSTER (B3) 116 no CRAIG DOW (14D) 109 no BRETT MARTIN (14B) 103 no PETER O'RIELLY (C1) 109 1975-76 MARK MITCHELL (B6) 105 GRAHAM JONES (16B) 104 no ROSS STUART (A1) 110 no 1974-75 DEAN FERGUSON (16A) 111 WILL WOOSTER (B5) 107 DEAN FERGUSON (16A) 104 1999-2000 LEE BAILEY (B2) 111 GRAEME BEAMES (16A) 109 DAVID WEST (C2) 104 no 1972-73 STUART SLACK (B2) 103no NIL 1998-99 1971-72 LEE BAILEY (B4) 112 GRAEME BEAMES (14A) 101 no RON SHEPHERD (C1) 110 ROGER GREY (C1) 105 no NIL DREW LAKE (A1) 103 no 1969-70 MARCUS LOXLEY (B4) 103 no LANCE HOWES (14A) 143 no 1997-98 1968-69 JASON CRIMLISK (A1) 101 no LANCE HOWES (14B) 109 no 1996-97 JASON CRIMLISK (A1) 115 IAN CRANSTON (12B) 109 no DREW LAKE (A1) 100 1967-68 IAN CRANSTON (10B) 100 no 1995-96 ADRIAN VANNAN (B7) 128 no 1966-67 DREW LAKE (A1) 112 NIL 1965-66 1994-95 PETER BAIN (14B) 104 PAUL CAMERON (B2) 130 no 1964-65 1993-94 ROBERT SMITH (A3) 136 no ROBERT RUSHBOURNE (16A) 118 **ANTHONY STANLEY (B3) 103** BARRY McMANUS jnr (16A) 108 no PETER DOHERTY (12A) 100 1992-93 MICHAEL BAIN (10B) 100 1963-64 1991-92 BARRY McMANUS jnr (14A) 100 GREG HEFFERNAN (A1) 119 1962-63 JEFF GOODMAN (B1) 108 no PETER BAIN (12B) 113 no PAUL CAMERON (B1) 107 GREG HEFFERNAN (A1) 100 no 1961-62 NIL 1990-91 1960-61 NIL NIL 1989-90 1959-60 MARK CURNESS (B2) 101 ROBERT BAIN (U/14) 108 no 1988-89 NIL 1987-88 CRAIG TEVER (B3) 112 CRAIG TEVER (B3) 110 no 1986-87 JOHNNO RIDLEY (B2) 100 HILTON LEES (C1) 100 no 1985-86 DEREK SPENCER (B7) 131 no RUSS WADDELL (C3) 113 1984-85 JOHN McDONALD (B5) 101 1983-84 SHANE CLINCH (A2) 102 no CHRIS GASKELL (B2) 100 1982-83 GREG HEFFERNAN (A3) 113 no MICHAEL STEPHENSON (B4) 107 1981-82 DOUG STUVE (B1) 103 SHANE CLINCH (B2) 102 no MICHAEL PRICE (B6) 102 no 1980-81 NII GREG HEFFERNAN (C2) 101 no 1978-79

DENNIS HIGGINS (A2) 114 1977-78 NIL 1976-77 NIL 1975-76 BRETT JOHNSON (A2) 100 no 1974-75 NIL 1973-74 COL KEENAN (B2) 122 no R. STEWART (B4) 103 no GRAHAM CHUDLEIGH (A1) 102 no BARRY BLANCHARD (A1) 108 1971-72 COL KEENAN (B2) 125 1970-71 ROBERT RUSHBOURNE (A1) 130 MARK JOHNSON (A2) 129 no GEOFF MAJOR (A1) 126 BARRY BLANCHARD (A1) 109 ROBERT RUSHBOURNE (A1) 102 no 1969-70 RAY NOAKES (A1) 107 JOHN LEEBOLD (B3) 107 1968-69 RAY NOAKES (A1) 123 RAY NOAKES (A1) 109 no HARRY ROBBINS (A1) 108 no 1967-68 BARRY BLANCHARD (A2) 138 **ROBERT RUSHBOURNE (A2) 133** BARRY BLANCHARD (A2) 100 no

HAT TRICKS

Junior (1959 Onwards)	Senior (1967 Onwards)
2018-19 NIL 2017-18 SETH O'KEEFE (12D) 3 FOR 9 v Cronulla Seagulls Round No.2	2018-19 MATHEW BARNES (B1) 5 FOR 63 v Gymea Bay Round No.3 CHRIS JACKSON (B1) 4 FOR 55 v Illawong Menai Round No.5 GREG INGS (B1) 3 FOR 1 v Engadine (TR) Round No.1
2016-17 NIL 2015-16 NIL	2017-18 DREW LAKE (A1) 4 FOR 59 v St Patricks Round No.3 2016-17 NIL
2014-15 JACOB GUNN (12D-1) 4 FOR 23 v Bangor Comets Round No.2 2013-14 JACK METCALF (12A) 2 FOR 3 & 2 FOR 6 v Caringbah Sports	2015-16 NIL 2014-15 NIL
Round No.3 2012-13 NIL 2011-12	2013-14 PAUL BREMNER (A1) 7 FOR 12 v Gymea Bay Round No.4 PAUL BREMNER (A1) 5 FOR 19 v Como-Jannali Round No.6 DEAN GRIFFITH (B3) 5 FOR 32 v St Patricks Round No.10
NIL 2010-11 NIL 2009-19	2012-13 JOEL MANNS (B1) 5 FOR 25 v Caringbah Inn Round No.7 2011-12 ANDREW HYDE (B6) 5 FOR 25 MATTHEW WRIGHT (C1) 4 FOR 26
BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN (14A) 3 FOR 11 2008-09 REECE KELLY (8A1) 5 FOR 7 JONAH NEWTON (8A1) 3 FOR 9 2007-08	2010-11 PAUL BREMNER (B2) 8 FOR 20 KURT MITCHELL (B6) 4 FOR 12 2008-09
NIL 2006-07 CONOR ELLEM (14D) ROBBIE FARNAN (14D)	STEWART VELLA (A2) 5 for 6 JORDAN DUNCAN (B7) 4 for 13 PETER O'REILLY (B6) 3 for 45 2007-08
MATTHEW FRASER (16C) 2005-06 MICHAEL FAVALORO (1A) NICK CHAMBERLAIN (12D) Double Hat Trick	LEE BAILEY (B2) 4 for 25 v Gymea Bay Final 2006-07 COREY DAVIS (C2) 2005-06
2004-05 BRENDAN CURTIS (8A) DEAN FENNER (16C)	JOSHUA CHRISTISON (B2) 2004-05 NIL

2003-04 2003-04 **BRENDAN CURTIS (8A) EVAN DEACON (B5)** 2002-03 2002-03 GREG INGS (14B) NIL **JOSHUE CHRISTISON (14B)** 2001-02 MATTHEW CHRISTISON (10E) PETER JOHNSON (A3) 2000-01 2001-02 JOHN WATSON (10E) ROBBIE KNIGHT (C1) Double Hat Trick SAM NEWMAN (10A) 1999-2000 2000-01 DAVID WEST (C2) Took two Hat Tricks JAMES GARDNER (14A) 1998-99 1999-2000 **BRETT MARTIN (16C)** MARK RICE (U8) 1997-98 1998-99 MARCUS LOXLEY (B5) SAM DIXON (14E) PAUL WADDELL (B6) 1997-98 NIL 1993-94 TO 1995-96 1996-97 NIL ANDREW WISE (10E) OMAR SAMAD (10E) 1992-93 1995-96 G. SHAW (B2) JOSHUA COLLINS (12A) MARK NOAKES (C1) Brett Gorrey (16C) 1991-92 1994-95 NIL TIM CUTLER (14B) 1993-94 1990-91 DAVID COOK (10E) Took six (6) wickets with six (6) balls JASON CRIMLISK (B2) 1984-85 TO 1989-90 DAVID BOURKE (12C), 1992-93 NIL 1983-84 NIL 1991-92 PAUL BROSNAN (B6) BRIAN SOMERVILLE (16C) Double Hat Trick 1982-83 1990-91 NIL NIL 1981-82 1989-90 NII 1980-81 NIL DAVE MESSITER (C2) 1988-89 1979-80 NIL 1987-88 ERNIE ELRICK (C2) MICHAEL PRICE (C2) 1978-79 1986-87 CHAD MOODIE (14C) Double Hat Trick ERNIE PRICE (A2) Double Hat Trick DAVID ENGLAND (C2) 1985-86 NATHAN MORANDO (12A) Double Hat Trick 1977-78 **ERNIE PRICE (A2) CAMERON NAPPER (14B)** 1984-85 1976-77 NIL NIL 1983-84 1975-76 MICHAEL GLEESON (10A) NIL MICHAEL ADAMS (14A) 1974-75 1982-83 PETER ROYLE (B3) PETER DALLEY (14C) 1973-74 1981-82 STEVEN HOLE (B3) JASON CANNINGS (10D) 1972-73 STEVEN GORDON (12C) G. STUART (B3) 1980-81 1971-72 **GLENN SADLER (12D)** NIL JOHN SHORT (14E) 1970-71 1979-80 NIL MICHAEL ADAMS (10C) 1969-70 **GLENN LANGSTON (14A)** NIL **BRETT ALLEN (16B)** 1968-69 1978-79 ANTHONY KINDER (10B) 1967-68 MARK NOAKES (10A) **ROBERT RUSHBOURNE (A2)** DAVID ELRICK (14D) DARREN BARRATT (14D) 1977-78 JOHN RYAN (10C) Took two Hat Tricks 1976-77 WAYNE WISHART (16A) STEVEN O'TOOLE (14C) **ROBERT ELWORTHY (10C)** 1975-76 PETER STANFORD (14B)

MICHAEL DRIES (12C) COLIN RYMER (12C) 1974-75 STEVE WEARNE (12A) DEAN RUSSELL (10A) 1973-74 STEVE WEARNE (12A) **GERARD WISEMAN (12B)** MICHAEL PORTER (10A) MARK ELDER (10A) 1972-73 STEVEN GORRY (10C) STEVE WEARNE (10C) MARK ELDER (10D) 1971-72 **BRAD ATKINS (10A)** WAYNE WISHART (10A) 1970-71 BRUCE CROSBY (14D) TERRY HUMPHRIES (12A) 1969-70 JASON CRIMLISK (14A) DAVID ROBERTS (12E) took four Hat Tricks STEVEN ATKINS (10C) 1968-69 LANCE HOWES (14B) PETER NOAKES (10B) 1967-68 PETER SULLIVAN (14B) IAN CRANSTON (10B) 1966-67 NIL 1965-66 WAYNE HEADLEY (14B) Double Hat Trick PHILLIP GEORGE (10B) ROBERT McPHEE (10B) 1964-65 ROBERT CARROLL (14B) took two Hat Tricks W. SHEEHY (14B) JOHN CARLSON (14C) J. AHEARN (12A) W. TEALE (12D) 1963-64 **ROBERT CARROLL (14A)** PAUL QUINNEY (14C) JOHN CARLSON (12A) PETER DOHERTY (12C) 1962-63 MARK HOOLEY (16B) **ROBERT RUSHBOURNE (14C)** TED TERONE (14C), KEITH BUNT (10A) Took Two Hat Tricks MICHAEL BAIN (10C) 1961-62 NIL 1960-61 NIL 1959-60 LARRY HOOLEY (U/14) RAY BINNER (U/14) C. PICKERING (U/14) R. COLEMAN (U/14) TREVOR HODKINSON (U/12) CHRIS WELLMAN (U/10)

OUTSTANDING BOWLING PERFORMANCES

From the establishment of the Junior Club in 1959/60 and the Senior Club in 1967/68 the Club deemed seven wickets or more in an innings as an "Outstanding Bowling Performance". When bowling restrictions were introduced in the 1995/96 season for all junior bowlers the Club reset the Junior criteria for "Outstanding Bowling Performance" from seven to five wickets or more in an innings.

Junior (1959 Onwards)	Senior (1967 Onwards)
9 FOR 22 MATTHEW BARNES (12A) 1994-95	9 FOR 15 GREG ROWE (C1) 1986-87
9 FOR 37 PETER NOAKES (10B) 1968-69	9 FOR 16 MATTHEW CARROLL (B2) 2005-06

9 FOR 24 MICHAEL PRICE (B6) 1981-82 8 FOR 21 CHAD MOODIE (14C) 1986-87 8 FOR 21 MICHAEL GORE (12A) 1992-93 9 FOR 38 ROBERT KNIGHT (C1) 2011-12 8 FOR 27 PETER NOAKES (10B) 1968-69 9 FOR 71 PAUL CAMERON (B2) 1994-95 8 FOR 68 LEE IRWIN (14B) 1980-81 9 FOR 74 PAUL DIXON (B8) 2007-08 7 FOR 3 MATTHEW SAMBUCO (16B) 2002-03 8 FOR 11 PATRICK BIRD (C2-2) 2009-10 8 FOR 14 MATTHEW BARNES (B6) 2012-13 7 FOR 10 TERRY HUMPRIES (12A) 1970-71 7 FOR 11 ROBERT BARNES (12B) 1975-76 8 FOR 15 PETER BLAND (B6) 1981-82 7 FOR 10 PAUL WADDELL (16C) 1987-88 8 FOR 18 NABEEL CHAUDHRY (B3) 2006-07 7 FOR 13 JOHN SHOOTER (14B) 1968-69 8 FOR 19 PAUL WADDELL (B7) 1995-96 7 FOR 14 WAYNE WISHART (16A) 1977-78 8 FOR 20 PAUL BREMNER (B2) 2010-11 (Semi-Final) 7 FOR 20 CHAD MOODIE (14C) 1986-87 8 FOR 21 PETER ROYLE (B3) 1974-75 7 FOR 20 NATHAN MORANDO (14A) 1987-88 8 FOR 30 MICHAEL KEENAN (B4) 1979-80 8 FOR 31 BLAKE COUSEMAKER (A1) 2000-01 7 FOR 20 JOHN WATSON (16A) 2007-08 7 FOR 26 JOHN SHOOTER (14B) 1968-69 8 FOR 36 ROSS STUART (A1) 1998-99 7 FOR 29 AARON PERRITT (16C) 1986-87 8 FOR 37 BEN WILLIAMS (B1) 2017-18 7 FOR 29 PAUL WADDELL (16D) 1986-87 8 FOR 41 PHILLIP BLOM (C1) 1989-90 7 FOR 29 MITCHELL DIBB (16C) 2009-10 8 FOR 42 KEVIN BESSANT (B4) 1974-75 7 FOR 31 BRETT GORREY (14B) 1993-94 8 FOR 43 RON DUDMAN (B1) 1969-70 7 FOR 32 JOHN SHOOTER (14B) 1968-69 8 FOR 46 GERRY DWARSHUIS (B3) 1978-79 7 FOR 36 NATHAN MORANDO (14A) 1987-88 8 FOR 47 ROSS STUART (A1) 1998-99 6 FOR 2 LACHLAN RITCHIE (U/8) 2012-13 8 FOR 48 MATTHEW CARROLL (B2) 2005-06 6 FOR 3 ANDREW MANSELL (16C) 2002-03 8 FOR 53 PAUL MEDDINGS (B1) 1981-82 6 FOR 3 DYLAN SMITH (16B-1) 2014-15 8 FOR 59 PETER CROSBY (B4) 19774-75 6 FOR 5 GLENN CAUKILL (16C) 2004-05 8 FOR 59 PAUL WADDELL (B4) 2005-06 6 FOR 6 NATHAN MARCIANTE (16A) 2012-13 8 FOR 75 AARON PERRITT (B2) 1991-92 6 FOR 7 MITCHELL BETTS (10A) 2011-12 8 FOR 95 RAY NOAKES (A1) 1968-69 6 FOR 17 RYAN ALMOND (16A) 2009-10 7 FOR 2 PHIL HEFFERNAN (A2) (B6) 1967-68 6 FOR 18 JAMES STONE (16B) 2004-05 7 FOR 3 MICHAEL PRICE (B6) 1982-83 6 FOR 19 KAINE JOHNSON (16D) 1997-98 7 FOR 7 PETER ROYLE (B4) 1977-78 6 FOR 19 BRYCE ALEWOOD (12B) 2002-03 7 FOR 7 MARK OLIFF (B2) 1983-84 6 FOR 19 KURT PEYCHERS (12D-1) 2014-15 7 FOR 9 STUART SLACK (B4) 1998-99 6 FOR 20 MATTHEW JONES (16D) 2013-14 7 FOR 10 BRETT MARTIN (B4) 2004-05 6 FOR 21 SAM NEWMAN (10A) 2001-02 7 FOR 11 DEAN RUSSELL (C2) 1979-80 6 FOR 24 STUART BRANDMAN (12A) 1997-98 7 FOR 11 MARK ELRICK (C2) 1979-80 6 FOR 24 AUSTIN MADDEN (16D) 2013-14 7 FOR 11 PAUL WADDELL (B6) 1996-97 6 FOR 25 ANTHONY MCNAMARA (14D) 2008-09 7 FOR 11 STEWART VELLA (B5) 2003-04 6 FOR 28 ANGUS BROWN (16B-2) 2014-15 7 FOR 12 PAUL BREMNER (A1) 2013-14 6 FOR 35 ANTHONY CRISAFULLI (16C) 2007-08 7 FOR 14 GAVIN TULLEY (B1) 1981-82 5 FOR 0 CHRISTIAN HAYNES (16C) 2005-06 7 FOR 16 NABEEL CHAUDHRY (C1) 2007-08 (FINAL) 5 FOR 2 DAVID McMILLAN (12B) 2000-01 7 FOR 16 STEPHEN HOLE (B3) 1973-74 5 FOR 2 MATTHEW BRYAN (16B) 2002-03 7 FOR 16 RON LOVETT (A2) 1975-76 7 FOR 17 PAUL WADDELL (B1) 2004-05 5 FOR 2 BRENDAN CURTIS (8A) 2004-05 5 FOR 2 ANDREW RITCHIE (12A) 2012-13 7 FOR 18 ROBIN DODD (B7) 1988-89 5 FOR 3 LACHLAN RITCHIE (U8 BLUE) 2013-14 7 FOR 19 JOHN RICHARDSON (C2) 1977-78 5 FOR 4 MICHAEL WARD (14C) 1996-97 7 FOR 21 FRED TERONE (A1) 1969-70 5 FOR 4 OMAR SAMAD (14E) 2001-02 7 FOR 22 GAVIN SHAW (B2) 1992-93 5 FOR 5 NATHAN MARCIANTE (10A) 2006-07 7 FOR 22 MARCUS LOXLEY (B2) 1999-2000 5 FOR 5 AARON FANOUS (14E) 2011-12 7 FOR 22 REECE PENINGTON (B8) 2004-05 5 FOR 5 LUKE GOODMAN (12D) 2011-12 7 FOR 22 BRAD CALLAGHAN (C3) 2005-06 5 FOR 6 MATTHEW THOMPSON (14B) 2002-03 7 FOR 22 MITCHELL DAVIS (B6) 2012-13 5 FOR 7 JOHN WATSON (10E) 2001-02 7 FOR 23 DON WATT (B2) 1971-72 5 FOR 7 BRENDAN CURTIS (8A) 2004-05 7 FOR 24 DARREN CHAPMAN (B2) 2017-18 5 FOR 7 JOSHUA PERRITT (14A) 2012-13 7 FOR 25 MIKE FORDYCE (A2) 1970-71 5 FOR 8 HARRY LONG (16C) 2017-18 7 FOR 25 WADE HORSNEL (B8) 2002-03 5 FOR 8 SAM NEWMAN (14A) 2005-06 7 FOR 26 KURT MITCHELL (C2) 2007-08 5 FOR 8 JASON RADFORD (12E) 1995-96 7 FOR 26 DEAN McMILLAN (B2) 2014-15 5 FOR 8 KIERAN LEVIN (14C) 2011-12 7 FOR 27 ROBERT RUSHBOURNE (A1) 1972-73 5 FOR 8 BALIN CARLISLE (8 BLUE) 2014-15 7 FOR 27 TREVOR BAILEY (A1) 1978-79 5 FOR 8 DOM SPOWART (14d) 2015-16 7 FOR 27 PAUL MEDDINGS (B1) 1981-82 5 FOR 9 ANGUS BROWN (16D) 2013-14 7 FOR 28 GREG HERNE (B2) 1981-82 5 FOR 9 BRETT MARTIN (16A) 2000-01 7 FOR 29 DEAN WATT (B2) 1971-72 5 FOR 9 JAMES PUNSHON (16B) B/D 2002-03 7 FOR 29 ADRIAN VANNAN (B6) 1983-84 5 FOR 9 RYAN MARLOW (14B) 2004-05 7 FOR 30 MARK CURNESS 1984-1985) 5 FOR 9 MATTHEW FRASER (16C) 2007-08 7 FOR 30 RAY COWAN (B3) 1993-94 5 FOR 10 TIAAN WALKINGTON (10B) 2002-03 7 FOR 31 MATTHEW CARROLL (B1) 2015-2016 5 FOR 10 CAMERON HEARD (16B) 2005-06 7 FOR 31 PAUL WADDELL (B2) 1999-2000 5 FOR 10 MARK RICE (16A) 2007-08 7 FOR 31 SAM DIXON (B8) 2004-05 5 FOR 11 GREG INGS (10A) 1999-00 7 FOR 32 PHILLIP HEFFERNAN (A2) 1967-68 5 FOR 11 GREG INGS (14B) 2002-03 7 FOR 32 MATT WHITNEY (C3) 1998-99 5 FOR 11 SAM NEWMAN (14A) 2005-06 7 FOR 33 MALCOLM HAYNES (B1) 1969-70 5 FOR 11 JOEL D'IMPERIO (14A) 2007-08 7 FOR 33 JIM BLACK (B3) 1971-72 5 FOR 11 MITCHELL BETTS (14A) 2014-15 7 FOR 33 STEWART LUMSDEN (B5) 2007-08 5 FOR 12 MATTHEW CARROLL (16C) 1999-00 7 FOR 34 SCOTT DUDMAN (B2) 1975-76 5 FOR 12 JOHN WATSON (10E) 2001-02 7 FOR 37 PETER BLAND (A1) 1987-88 5 FOR 12 JOSH NOAKES (12C) 2010-11 7 FOR 37 LUKE RICHARDS (B4) 2013-14 5 FOR 12 DYLAN RAE (16A) 2012-13 7 FOR 38 BRAYDEN HEFFERNAN (B6) 2015-2016

5 FOR 12 LUKE GOODMAN (16C) 2016-17 5 FOR 13 GREG INGS (14B) 2002-03 5 FOR 13 BEN DONOUGH (10F) 2017-18 5 FOR 13 PETER WADDINGTON* (16C) 2003-04 5 FOR 14 EDEN MURPHY (14C) 2009-10 5 FOR 14 RITHIK SAHAY (14B-1) 2013-14 5 FOR 14 BEAU McINERNEY (16C) 2018-19 5 FOR 15 BRETT GORREY (16C) 1995-96 5 FOR 15 PETER BOURKE (16B) 1996-97 5 FOR 15 BRETT BULLOCK (14A) 1999-00 5 FOR 15 RYAN MARLOW (14B) 2004-05 5 FOR 15 SCOTT BOYTON (16C) 2008-09 5 FOR 15 FYNN RODGERS (14E) 2011-12 5 FOR 15 FYNN RODGERS (16B-1) 2014-15 5 FOR 16 NICK AMOS (16A) 2015-16 5 FOR 16 RYAN SHEPHERD (14A) 1999-00 5 FOR 16 JOSHUA JOHNSTON (16A) 2012-13 5 FOR 17 BRETT MARTIN (16C) 1999-00 5 FOR 17 DANIEL TENCH (16C) 2006-07 5 FOR 17 JOEL D'IMPERIO (14A) 2006-07 5 FOR 17 RYAN ALMOND (16A) 2008-09 5 FOR 17 ALEX GERSBACH (14A) 2010-11 5 FOR 18 BRETT GORREY (16C) 1995-96 5 FOR 18 TIM CUTLER (14A) 1995-96 5 FOR 19 HARRY LONG (16C) 2017-18 5 FOR 19 ANDREW MAIR (14E) 1996-97 5 FOR 19 GREG INGS (16B) 2004-05 5 FOR 19 ALEX GERSBACH (14A) 2010-11 5 FOR 20 TIM BERRY (16C) 2010-11 5 FOR 20 HAYDEN LINDSAY (16A) 2018-19 5 FOR 21 TIM JONES (16B) 2002-03 5 FOR 22 JAY DAVIS (16A) 2001-02 5 FOR 22 JASON RADFORD (16A) 2000-01 5 FOR 22 KEELAN JENKINS (12D) 2010-11 5 FOR 23 DANIEL BOYLE (16D) 2001-02 5 FOR 24 JAMES GARDNER (14A) 2000-01 5 FOR 25 PAUL BREMNER (16B) 2004-05 5 FOR 25 MARK RICE (16A) 2007-08 5 FOR 26 TRENT EDWARDS (16C) 2010-11 5 FOR 27 HAYDEN SMITH (14A) 2008-09 5 FOR 28 JAMES BARNES (16A) 2008-09 5 FOR 30 PATRICK EADES* (16B) B/D 2002-03 5 FOR 30 JAMES BARNES (16A) 2009-10 5 FOR 33 GREG INGS (14B) 2002-03 5 FOR 34 JACK DWARSHUIS (16A) 2014-15 5 FOR 35 ANTHONY McNAMARA (16C) 2010-11 5 FOR 36 OMAR SAMAD (16A) 2003-04 5 FOR 37 COREY ALFORD (14A) 2016-17 5 FOR 38 DANE FISHER (14A) 2010-11 5 FOR 39 MARK KIDD (16C) 2008-09 5 FOR 41 IAN MITCHELL (16B) 2000-01 5 FOR 41 MICHAEL RODDAN* (14C) B/D 2002-03

7 FOR 39 JOHN RICHARDSON (B1) 1979-80 7 FOR 40 GREG LANGSTON (B6) 1982-83 7 FOR 40 ROSS STUART (A1) 1999-2000 7 FOR 40 CLINTON ALLEN (C1) 2012-2013 7 FOR 41 GREG LANGSTON (B2) 1983-84 7 FOR 41 TOM TEUMA (C1) 2012-13 7 FOR 42 ROBERT RUSHBOURNE (A1) 1968-69 7 FOR 42 RAY COWAN (B2) 1990-91 7 FOR 42 STEWART LUMSDEN (B3) 2012-13 7 FOR 43 STEWART LUMSDEN (B3) 2013-14 7 FOR 46 MATTHEW BERRY (B6) 2015-2016 7 FOR 47 JASON CRIMLISK (A1) 1993-94 7 FOR 48 FRED TERONE (A1) 1972-73 7 FOR 49 ROBERT KNIGHT (B6) 2008-09 7 FOR 49 ANDREW ROBERTS (B4) 2011-12 7 FOR 50 NEIL LOVELOCK (A1) 1988-89 7 FOR 51 TREVOR BAILEY (A1) 1974-75 7 FOR 52 ERNIE PRICE (A2) 1975-76 7 FOR 56 PETER BLAND (A1) 1986-87 7 FOR 56 RICHARD LONG (B7) 1987-88 7 FOR 57 DENNIS PULLEN (A1) 1975-76 7 FOR 57 ANTHONY STANLEY (B3) 1993-94 7 FOR 58 ROBERT KNIGHT (B4) 2012-13 7 FOR 60 GAVIN SHAW (B2) 1992-93 7 FOR 61 ANTHONY STANLEY (B2) 1994-95 7 FOR 61 ANTHONY CRISAFULLI (B9) 2011-12 7 FOR 64 SAM DIXON (B7) 2008-09 7 FOR 68 PETER CHUDLEIGH (C1) 1986-87 7 FOR 97 CHRIS NELSON (B4) 2008-09

ARCHIVED MAJOR CLUB AWARD WINNERS

Note: The below trophies and awards were either replaced after 1996/97 or discontinued.

Senior Club Champion – "The Les Johnson Trophy" INCEPTION OF AWARD 1969-70 SEASON

5 FOR 48 MARK RICE (14A) 2004-05

1969-70	ROBERT RUSHBOURNE	1983-84	JOHN RICHARDSON
1970-71	BARRY BLANCHARD	1984-85	IAN CRANSTON
1971-72	COL KEENAN	1985-86	MICHAEL PRICE
1972-73	RAY NOAKES	1986-87	ANTHONY LOVETT
1973-74	WARREN ATKINS	1987-88	DAVID PERRITT
1974-75	CLEM HEFFERNAN	1988-89	CRAIG TEVER
1975-76	ERNIE PRICE	1989-90	NO AWARD
1976-77	PETER ROYLE	1990-91	NO AWARD
1977-78	BRETT JOHNSON	1991-92	GREG HEFFERNAN
1978-79	JEFF HUYBEN	1992-93	JASON CRIMLISK
1979-80	STEVE GORRY	1993-94	ANTHONY STANLEY

1980-81	CRAIG ALEWOOD	1994-95	ANTHONY STANLEY
1981-82	STEVE WEARNE	1995-96	DREW LAKE
1982-83	GREG HEFFERNAN		

Junior Club Champion – "The Joe Weymouth Trophy" INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1962-63 SEASON

1962-63	BARRY McMANUS jnr	1979-80	GLENN ANDERSON
1963-64	PETER DOHERTY	1980-81	DEAN RUSSELL
1964-65	ROBERT CARROLL	1981-82	PETER BLAND
1965-66	WAYNE HEADLEY	1982-83	JOHN WESTLAKE
1966-67	MIKE FORDYCE	1983-84	TRENT WOODHILL
1967-68	TREVOR BAILEY	1984-85	CRAIG PARSONS
1968-69	LANCE HOWES	1985-86	CRAIG PARSONS
1969-70	MALCOLM HAYNES	1986-87	TRENT WOODHILL
1970-71	JIM SHOOTER	1987-88	NATHAN MORANDO
1971-72	STEVE WISHART	1988-89	NATHAN MORANDO
1972-73	IAN CRANSTON	1989-90	GREG GOODMAN
1973-74	STEVE WISHART	1990-91	GREG GOODMAN
1974-75	DEAN FERGUSON	1991-92	DEAN HESLEHURST
1975-76	BRETT FERGUSON	1992-93	CHRIS LAKE
1976-77	BRETT MARTIN	1993-94	CHRIS LAKE
1977-78	WAYNE WISHART	1994-95	CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE
1978-79	GLENN ANDERSON	1995-96	NOT AWARDED

Outstanding Junior in Men's Cricket – "EDCC Trophy" INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1975-76 SEASON

1975-76	BRETT JOHNSON	1986-87	ROBERT LONG
1979-80	MICHAEL PRICE	1987-88	MICHAEL FAUST
1980-81	COL BERRY	1988-89	KEL PARSONS
1981-82	PETER BLAND	1989-90	JASON CRIMLISK
1982-83	GLENN HICKEY	1992-93	BRAD GLENNAN
1983-84	GLENN NELSON	1993-94	CHRIS LAKE
1984-85	JOHN WESTLAKE	1994-95	DARREN PRICE
1985-86	TRENT WOODHILL	1995-96	STUART SLACK

Club Sportsman of the Year – "The Ron Dudman Trophy" INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1969-70 SEASON

1969-70	PHILLIP WARNER	1983-84	SHANE CLINCH
1970-71	WAYNE HORSNELL	1984-85	RON LOVETT
1971-72	MARK JOHNSON	1985-86	RUSS WADDELL
1972-73	STEVE WISHART	1986-87	DOUG WEIR & ALAN HITCHINGS
1973-74	DEAN FERGUSON	1987-88	JOHN RICHARDSON
1974-75	GEORGE DALEY	1988-89	NO AWARD
1975-76	PETER ROYLE	1989-90	MRS VAL TEVER
1976-77	MIKE FORDYCE	1990-91	ROBERT VANNAN
1977-78	BRIAN MESSITER	1991-92	ROSS KNOWLES
1978-79	ALF LEMMON	1992-93	ROBERT PRICE
1979-80	GREG HEFFERNAN	1993-94	JOHN UEBEL & BILL KNOWLES
1980-81	STEVE MESSITER	1994-95	NO AWARD
1981-82	ADRIAN VANNAN	1995-96	JUDY LOFTHOUSE
1982-83	PAUL MEDDINGS		

Top Boys Club Batsman – "The Peter Schiller Trophy" INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1974-75 SEASON

1974-75	MICHAEL BLACK	1985-86	CRAIG PARSONS
1975-76	WAYNE WISHART	1986-87	NATHAN MORANDO
1976-77	CRAIG DOW	1987-88	NATHAN MORANDO
1977-78	CAMERON ROSSITER	1988-89	NATHAN MORANDO
1978-79	GLENN ANDERSON	1989-90	GREG GOODMAN
1979-80	PETER BLAND	1990-91	CHRIS LAKE

1980-81	RODNEY ENTWISTLE	1991-92	DEAN HESLEHURST
1981-82	RUSSELL LANGSTON	1992-93	CHRIS LAKE
1982-83	GAVIN PHILLIPS	1993-94	CHRIS LAKE
1983-84	NATHAN MORANDO	1994-95	CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE
1984-85	BART THORNTHWAITE	1995-96	JARRYD VANDENBERGH

Top Boys Club Bowler – "The Peter Schiller Trophy" INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1975-76 SEASON

1975-76	PETER STANFORD	1986-87	NATHAN MORANDO
1976-77	JOHN WESTLAKE	1987-88	NATHAN MORANDO
1977-78	NEIL LOVELOCK	1988-89	NATHAN MORANDO
1978-79	ANTHONY GEORGE	1989-90	JASON CRIMLISK
1979-80	RODNEY JENNINGS	1990-91	AARON JONES
1980-81	JOHN SHORT	1991-92	BRIAN SOMERVILLE
1981-82	JOHN WESTLAKE	1992-93	CHRIS LAKE
1982-83	PAUL BRONSAN	1993-94	LIAM HUBBARD
1983-84	MICHAEL GLEESON	1994-95	STEPHEN CARLISLE
1984-85	MICHAEL GLEESON	1995-96	BRETT GORREY
1985-86	NATHAN MORANDO		

Top Under Sixteen Batsman – "The Ken Johnson Trophy" INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1971-72 SEASON

1971-72	GRAEME BEAMES	1984-85	BART THORNTHWAITE
1972-73	GRAEME BEAMES	1985-86	CRAIG PARSONS
1973-74	GRAEME BEAMES	1986-87	COLIN BALLARD
1974-75	DEAN FERGUSON	1987-88	STEVE STEELES
1975-76	GRAHAM JONES	1988-89	NATHAN MORANDO
1976-77	RODNEY HURST	1989-90	GREG GOODMAN
1977-78	WAYNE WISHART	1990-91	GREG GOODMAN
1978-79	BRETT MARTIN	1991-92	DEAN HESLEHURST
1979-80	STEVE URQUHART	1992-93	DANIEL McLAUCHLAN
1980-81	DEAN RUSSELL	1993-94	CHRIS LAKE
1981-82	PETER BLAND	1994-95	CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE
1982-83	JOHN WESTLAKE	1995-96	BRETT GORREY
1983-84	GEOFF MACDONALD		

Top Boys Club Wicket Keeper – "The George Beames Memorial Trophy" INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1975-76 SEASON

1975-76	STEVE PEARCE	1986-87	GREG GOODMAN
1976-77	MICHEAL HAMMOND	1987-88	DAVID STEWART
1977-78	GEOFF MACDONALD	1988-89	GREG GOODMAN
1978-79	ANTHONY LOVETT	1989-90	GREG GOODMAN
1979-80	BRETT LANDRIGAN	1990-91	GREG GOODMAN
1980-81	ANTHONY LOVETT	1991-92	ALAN BIDDLE
1981-82	ANTHONY LOVETT	1992-93	DANIEL WACKWITZ
1982-83	GLENN NELSON	1993-94	PAUL GARVAN
1983-84	BRAD STUVE	1994-95	NO AWARD
1984-85	BART THORNTHWAITE	1995-96	PAUL GARVAN
1985-86	COLIN BALLARD	_	-

Wicket Keeper Encouragement INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1981-82 SEASON

1981-82	SEAN STEWART	1989-90	STUART SLACK
1982-83	TIM YULE	1990-91	TROY GLENNAN
1983-84	GREG GOODMAN	1991-92	TROY GLENNAN
1984-85	MATTHEW MILLER	1992-93	KEVIN CLARK
1985-86	DAVID HINE	1993-94	TIM MORELAND
1986-87	DAVID STEWART	1994-95	MITCHELL LUCOCK
1987-88	ANDREW PRESTON	1995-96	MATTHEW NEWMAN
1988-89	BRENDAN LOFTHOUSE		

71

Ray Noakes Memorial Scholarship

INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1983-84

1983-84	DAVE CRANE & DAVE PERRITT	1986-87	AARON PERRITT & BRAD COX
1984-85	CRAIG PARSONS & DARREN LEES	1987-88	ROSS STUART & ANDREW GELDART
1985-86	STEVEN GORDON & DEREK SPENCER	1988-89	CAMERON NAPPER & ADAM PASCOE

Ray Noakes Memorial Trophy

INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1990-91

1990-91	ADAM MACKRELL	1993-94	BRETT ENGLAND
1991-92	ANTHONY ELLIS	1994-95	GRAHAM PRICE
1992-93	DARREN PRICE	1995-96	MARK SURTEES

Rookie of the Year – "The Lance Bartlett Trophy" INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1979-80 SEASON

1979-80	JOHN SMITH	1988-89	MICHAEL CROFT & EVAN MANNELL
1980-81	MATTHEW HANDLEY	1989-90	BRAD BERRYMAN
1981-82	GREG JARVIS	1990-91	KEVIN STEWART
1982-83	GAVIN McGUIRK	1991-92	MICHAEL CALLANDER
1983-84	CLAYTON HANDLEY	1992-93	MATTHEW EMBLETON
1984-85	BRAD COX	1993-94	LEE BAILEY
1985-86	DEAN JONES	1994-95	BEN HERMAN
1986-87	BRIAN COWAN	1995-96	NATHAN HUGHES
1987-88	JOSEF ZABARAS		

Most Improved Team - "The Alan Wishart Memorial Trophy"

INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1975-76 SEASON

1975-76	10A	JOHN BLAND	1986-87	12D	GAVIN PHILLIPS
1976-77	10C	RAY NOAKES	1987-88	14E	MARK GOOD
1977-78	14C	MONTY PERRY	1988-89	16A	STEVE MORANDO
1978-79	10C	GRAHAM CHUDLEIGH	1989-90	10C	JACK NORMAND
1979-80	12D	CLIFF DALLEY	1990-91	12D	ROBERT PRICE
1980-81	14D	IAN CRANSTON & MICHAEL	1991-92	10A	TONY GLEESON
		HAMMOND			
1981-82	12D	JOHN RICHARDSON	1992-93	-	NOT AWARDED
1982-83	10C	GEOFF GOODMAN	1993-94	14D	BRIAN SOMERVILLE
1983-84	14E	JOHN COX	1994-95	14D	ARTHUR BRIEN
1984-85	14D	PETER CLOTHIER & RUSS WADDELL	1995-96	12E	STUART SLACK & BRENDAN
					LOFTHOUSE
1985-86	14C	PETER CLOTHIER & RUSS WADDELL			

Robert Tickner Encouragement Trophy

INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1986-87 SEASON

1986-87	NEIL HARRIS	1990-91	DARREN HOCKEY		
1987-88	CRAIG BROWNSCOMBE	1991-92	GRAHAM PRICE		
1988-89	DARREN PRICE	1992-93	NATHAN ALTERATOR		
1989-90	NATHAN BAGGELER				

Robert Tickner Fielding Trophy INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1994-95 SEASON

1994-95	MICHAEL McCARTHY 14D	1996-97	JARRYD WARD 10D
1995-96	JOSHUA COLLINS 12A	1997-98	GORDON BOYD 12E

Barry McManus Memorial Shield INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 1994-95 SEASON

1994-95	MATTHEW CARROLL 12E	1996-97	JEFF FIESS 16C
1995-96	NATHAN ALTERATOR 14E	1997-98	CHRIS MAHONEY 12B

Wesley Adams Memorial Award INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 2005-06 SEASON

2005-06	Blake Sutcliffe	2006-07	Andrew Jones 16A Blue	2007-08	2007/08 Daniel Walsh 16C
2008-09	James Loughran 16C	2009-10	Matthew Berry 14C	2010-11	2010/11 Daniel Pascoe 10A
2011-12	Ben Barford 14C	2012-13	Ben Barford 16C	2013-14	2013/14 Aaron Fanous 16A
2014-15	2014/15 Rithik Sahay 16B-1	2015-16	Lucas Mann 10B		
			Ryan Plant 12E-2		

EDCC Bradman Scholarship INCEPTION OF THE AWARD 2001-02 SEASON

2001-02	Bryce Daenell (12A) Andrew Jones (12A)	2002-03	Ben Marciante (12A) Daniel Ward (12A)	2003-04	Ryan Marlow (12A) Mark Rice (12A)
2004-05	Nathan Loder (14A) Kelly Rolleston (12B)	2005-06	Joel D'Imperio (12A) Ben Dwarshuis (12A)	2006-07	Hayden Smith (14A) Nicholas Chamberlain (12B)
2007-08	Marcus Beattie (12A) Brendan Curtis (12A)	2008-09	Nathan Marciante (12A) Brayden Heffernan (12A)	2009-10	Joshua Johnston (12A) Joel Almond (12A)
2011-12	Luke Miller (12A) Jarrod Mazurkeiwicz (12A) Jack Dwarshuis (12A)	2011-12	Matthew Simpson (12A) Dylan Croker (12A)	2012-13	Cameron Westlake (12A) Andrew Ritchie (12A)
2013-14	Bradley Simpson (12A) Mitchell Betts (12A)				

CURRENT MAJOR CLUB AWARDS

In the 1996/97 season the Committee decided to make changes to our major awards and perpetuals. This season saw the introduction of Performance Awards in the Junior (U10 & U12) and Intermediate (U14 & U16) Divisions for Batting, Bowling and Wicket Keeping. All previous trophies except for the "Barry McManus Memorial Shield" and the "Robert Tickner Fielding Trophy" were archived and replaced with new trophies named after each of the Life Members at that time.

In the 1998/99 season the "Senior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award" was introduced and the "Barry McManus Memorial Shield" was replaced by the "Bob Price Encouragement Shield". The "Junior Club Champion Trophy" was re-introduced as the "Junior Club Champion Trophy (Junior & Intermediate Divisions)" fittingly bearing the name of Club's founder Barry McManus and the "Robert Tickner Fielding Trophy" was replaced by the "Greg Heffernan Fielding Trophy".

In the 2001/02 season the Senior Division Batting and Bowling Performance awards were introduced and the first two recipients of the "EDCC Bradman Foundation Scholarship" went to the Bradman coaching camp in Bowral. 2003/04 saw the introduction of the "Junior Club All Rounder (Junior & Intermediate Divisions)" followed by the "Senior Club All Rounder" in 2011/12. In 2005/06 the "Wesley Adams Memorial Award" was first issued. Wesley was the editor and publisher of the Engadine District News and provided great publicity for our Club for many years. This was the only Club trophy not to carry the name of a Life Member. In the 2016/17 season the Junior and Senior Division Fielding Performance Awards were introduced with the "Greg Heffernan Trophy" becoming the "Intermediate Division Fielding Performance Award". The "EDCC Bradman Foundation Scholarship" and the Wesley Adams Memorial Award" were discontinued in 2014/15 and 2016/17 respectively.

In 2018/19 all Junior Division Performance and Club awards were made ineligible to U10 players due to the changes in the U10 format. As consequents the "Most Consistent U10 Player Trophy" was introduced.

All Major Club Awards 1996/97 onwards –

- Junior Club Champion (Junior & Intermediate Divisions) "The Barry McManus Trophy" (Introduced in 1998/99)
- Senior Club Champion "The Harry Robbins Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)

- Junior Club All Rounder (Junior & Intermediate Divisions) "The Ian Latham Trophy" (Introduced in 2003/04)
- Senior Club All Rounder "The Dean Griffith Trophy" (Introduced in 2011/12 and named in 2018/19)
- Wesley Adams Memorial Award (Introduced in 2005/06 and discontinued in 2016/17)
- Junior Rookie of the Year "The Ken Tever Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- Senior Rookie of the Year "The Bill Knowles Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- Most Improved Team "The Bob Vannan Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- The Bob Price Encouragement Shield "The Bob Price Shield" (Introduced in 1998/99)
- Club Member of the Year "The Val Tever Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- EDCC Bradman Foundation Scholarship (Introduced in 2001/02 and discontinued in 2014/15)
- Most Consistent U10 Player "The EDCC Trophy" (Introduced 2018/19)
- Junior Division Batting Performance Award "The Ray Noakes Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- Junior Division Bowling Performance Award "The Col Keenan Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- Junior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award The Mike Fordyce Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- Junior Division Fielding Performance Award "The Paul Waddell Trophy" (Introduced in 2016/17)
- Intermediate Division Batting Performance Award "The Russ Waddell Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- Intermediate Division Bowling Performance Award "The Alf Lemmon Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- Intermediate Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award "The Clem Heffernan Trophy" (Introduced in 1996/97)
- Intermediate Division Fielding Performance Award "The Greg Heffernan Trophy" (Introduced in 1998/99)
- Senior Division Batting Performance Award "The Drew Lake Trophy" (Introduced in 2001/02)
- Senior Division Bowling Performance Award "The John Carlisle Trophy" (Introduced in 2001/02)
- Senior Division Wicket Keeping Performance Award "The Col Berry Trophy" (Introduced in 1998/99)
- Senior Division Fielding Performance Award "The Greg Knowles Trophy" (Introduced in 2016/17)

Perpetual Trophies and Awards Criteria

Below is the criteria at this time used to access the awarding of the above Club awards.

GUIDELINES

The Management Committee reserves the right to withhold the allocation of any award where in its assessment the criteria have not been met or for any other valid reason.

Where the assessment of the award calls for nominations all such nominations must be in writing, with reasons in support. Nominations must be forwarded to be in the hands of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary by no later than two weeks after the date of the final match has been played or any other such date as the Management Committee may announce or publish.

In the absence of nominations the Management Committee shall consider the merits of each award and may determine a recipient on its knowledge of the available candidates.

The Management Committee may make any special award it sees fit to acknowledge exceptional circumstances or to provide encouragement. The Management Committee may also adjust criteria's from season to season to reflect changed conditions of play.

All considerations of the Management Committee and/or the Executive are confidential. Neither body shall be required to give reasons for the acceptance or rejection of any nomination.

All perpetual trophies remain the property of Engadine Dragons Cricket Club. All perpetual trophies must be returned in good order to the Club Secretary at such date as the Management Committee may announce or publish.

ADMENDMENTS

Due to the implementation of Cricket Australia Junior Cricket Stage 1 in 2018/19 and the subsequent changes to the U10 playing format our Club decided to no longer award U10 "Individual Team Awards". Instead all U10 players shall be presented with a participation trophy. It was also decided that U10 players will be ineligible to be awarded "Performance Awards" or "Special Club Awards". The Club has introduced the "Most Consistent U10 Player" trophy to recognise the most consistent performance by an U10 player. The "Junior Division" has been amended to only represent U12 teams and players, while the "Intermediate Division" remains unchanged and still represents U14 & U16 teams and players.

GENERAL CRITERIA

To provide a measure of objectivity and consistency throughout all levels of the Club for the determination of performance awards, the following criteria shall apply uniformly. Where a bowler is competing with a batsman and/or wicket keeper for a Club honour, the following system shall apply –

- · For each 10 runs scored 1 point
- · For each wicket taken 1.3 points
- · For each catch/stumping made 1 point

Where two batsmen or two bowlers are vying for an honour/award the Management Committee will take into account the ratio of runs to innings, and/or wickets to overs noting the strike and economy rates and in each instance make judgment based on its assessment of all circumstances. The above may also be used for determining "All-rounders" but with respect to the junior, intermediate and senior divisions it is to be read in conjunction with the criteria specified.

PARTICIPATION AWARDS

(Personal Trophies)

Master Blasters and U10 Teams

All U8 Master Blasters and U10 players will be presented with a participation trophy.

INDIVIDUAL TEAM AWARDS

(Personal Trophies)

Junior and Intermediate Divisions

For U12, U14 and U16 teams engaged in SSJCA competition cricket there will be four awards per team presented. The awards are - Batting, Bowling, Fielding (including wicket keeper) and Coaches. For batting, bowling and fielding the awards will be based on the highest aggregates achieved in their graded team and derived from the official Scorebooks and be inclusive of first and second innings but exclusive of Finals Series. In the case of more than one player sharing the highest batting or bowling aggregate the player with the highest average will be awarded the trophy. In the case of more than one fielder/wicket keeper sharing the highest aggregate the player greater number of catches will be awarded the trophy. In the instance of a player winning all three awards priority will be given to the batting and bowling awards with the "General Criteria" used to determine which award, batting or bowling is presented. The other award batting or bowling will be presented to the player with the second highest aggregate. In the case of the batting or bowling award winner also achieving the greatest number of fielding /wicket keeping dismissals the fielding award will be presented to the fielder/wicket keeper with the next highest number of fielding/wicket keeping dismissals. The Coaches award will be nominated by the Team Management (Coach and Manager). No one person may win more than one of the above four awards.

Senior Division

To each team there shall be awards for batting, bowling, and, where earned, all-rounder. For batting, and bowling the award will be based on the highest aggregates derived from the official scorebooks and be inclusive of first and second innings but exclusive of Finals Series. In the event of more than one player sharing the highest aggregate the player with the highest average will be awarded the trophy. In addition, consideration will be given by the Management Committee to recognizing "all rounder" skills where the efforts of an individual player provide justification for an all-rounder award. As a guide, minimum 200 runs scored and 15 wickets taken or minimum 200 runs scored and 12 wicket keeping dismissals (catches/stumpings). In the event of a bowler/wicket keeper qualifying the standard is set as 200 runs scored and a combination of bowling wickets taken/wicket keeping catches/stumpings equalling a minimum of 15 dismissals. All team awards shall be based on aggregates achieved in their graded team.

PERFORMANCE AWARDS

Batting Performance Award

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophies awarded)

Junior Division (U12) Intermediate Division Senior Division

"The Ray Noakes Trophy" "The Russ Waddell Trophy" "The Drew Lake

Trophy"

Shall go to the player within the Division nominated who scores the most runs in the season playing traditional cricket. There is no weighting for grade. The most runs will be the aggregate of all runs credited to the batsman as shown in the official scorebook and shall be inclusive of first and second innings, but exclusive of Finals Series. In the event of a tied aggregate the award will be determined on average.

Bowling Performance Award

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophies awarded)

<u>Junior Division</u> (U12) <u>Intermediate Division</u> <u>Senior Division</u>

"The Col Keenan Trophy" "The Alf Lemmon Trophy" "The John Carlisle

Trophy"

Shall go to the player within the Division nominated who takes the greatest number of wickets in the season playing traditional cricket. There is no weighting for grade. The greatest number of wickets will be the aggregate of all wickets credited to the bowler as shown in the official scorebook and shall be inclusive of first and second innings, but exclusive of Finals Series. In the event of a tied aggregate the award will be determined on average.

Wicket Keeping Performance Award

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophies awarded)

<u>Junior Division</u> (U12) <u>Intermediate Division</u> <u>Senior Division</u>

"The Mike Fordyce Trophy" "The Clem Heffernan Trophy" "The Col Berry Trophy"

Shall go to the player within the Division nominated who as the wicketkeeper is credited with the greatest number of wicket keeping dismissals in the season. There is no weighting for grade. The greatest number of dismissals will include all catches and stumpings credited to the keeper as shown in the official score book and shall be inclusive of first and second innings, but exclusive of Finals Series. In the event of a tied aggregate the award will be determined by the lowest average of byes to dismissals.

Fielding Performance Award

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophies awarded)

<u>Junior Division</u> (U12) <u>Intermediate Division</u> <u>Senior Division</u>

"The Paul Waddell Trophy" "The Greg Heffernan Trophy" "The Greg Knowles Trophy"

Shall go to the player within the Division nominated who as the fielder is credited with the greatest number of fielding dismissals in the season. There is no weighting for grade. The greatest number of dismissals will be the aggregate of all fielding catches and unassisted run outs credited to the fielder as shown in the official score books and shall be inclusive of first and second innings, but exclusive of Finals Series. In the event of a tied aggregate the award will be determined on the most catches taken.

CLUB AWARDS

Most Improved Team

"The Bob Vannan Trophy"

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophy awarded to players, coach & manager)

Determined by the Management Committee and awarded to the team that on results shows improvements in the second half of the season relative to the first half. While the points scored acts as an indicator, the grading and age group of the team will be taken into account.

Encouragement Shield

"The Bob Price Shield"

(Perpetual shield and personal shield)

Nominations are sought and awarded to a player within the Junior and/or Intermediate Divisions. Determined by the Management Committee the award recognises the need to encourage players. Any player may be nominated but the Management Committee will take into account age, performance, level at which played, years of experience, commitment, effort, enthusiasm for the game are key determinants. Basically, and as simply as possible, the award is designed to encourage a young cricket to follow his love for the game through playing as long as possible. Generally, a more established player, playing at the higher levels would be seen to be in less need of encouragement

than one coming through the levels.

Rookie of the Year

"The Ken Tever Trophy"

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophy)

Nominations are sought and determined by the Management Committee and awarded to a player who has completed in their first season of competition cricket and has displayed a high level of skill, ability, potential and enthusiasm for the game. There is no weighting for grade, but preference will be given to the younger age groups.

Senior Rookie of the Year

"The Bill Knowles Trophy"

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophy)

Nominations are sought in writing and determined by the Management Committee and awarded to a player who is ineligible for junior cricket and has competed in their first season as a senior cricketer. The award will be determined by the player who has displayed a high level of skill, ability, potential and enthusiasm for the game. There is no weighting for grade.

Most Consistent U10 Player

"EDCC Trophy"

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophy)

Determined by the Management Committee and derived from an examination of the Scorebooks, but be exclusive of Final Series. To be awarded to the most consistent U10 player, who through efforts with bat, ball or gloves has proved him/herself competitive in the SSJCA U10 competition. In determining the merits relative to a batsman, bowler or wicket keeper the "General Criteria" set above shall apply to assessing this award.

Player of the Round Award

(Personal trophy)

At the completion of each round/rounds one player from U10, U12, Intermediate and Senior division who has achieved the best performance shall be awarded the "Player of the Round". No player can receive the award more than once in a season. If two performances in the one division are deemed equal the Management Committee may use its digression to reward both efforts. Management Committee reserves the right to not award a 'Player of the Round' if in their assessment the performance in any of the divisions does not deserve recognition.

EDCC Service Awards

(Memento awarded)

Club Service Awards were introduced in 1996-1997. Service Award acknowledges continuous club playing service and seeks to promote pride in the club. The awards are in periods of five years – five, ten, fifteen, twenty and at twenty-five years Life Membership may be awarded.

SPECIAL CLUB AWARDS

Junior Club All Rounder

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophy)

"The Ian Latham Trophy"

Determined by the Management Committee and derived from an examination of the scorebooks and awarded to the most outstanding all round performance in U12 & Intermediate Division. As a guide the following qualification apply – U12, minimum 100 runs scored and 8 wickets taken or minimum 100 runs scored and 7 wicket keeping catches/stumpings. In the event of a bowler/wicketkeeper qualifying the standard is set as 100 runs scored and a combination of bowling wickets taken/wicket keeping catches/stumpings equalling a minimum of 10 dismissals. Intermediate Division, minimum 150 runs scored and 12 wickets taken or minimum 150 runs scored and 8 wicket keeping catches/stumpings. In the event of a bowler/wicketkeeper qualifying the standard is set as 150 runs scored and a combination of bowling wickets taken/wicket keeping catches/stumpings equalling a minimum of 12 dismissals. The criteria shall be based on aggregates achieved in their graded team and shall be inclusive of first and second innings, but exclusive of Finals Series. Please note: For the purpose of assessing and determining the award the above criteria shall apply with 1 point for each 10 runs scored, 1.3 points for each wicket taken and 1 point for each wicket keeping catch/stumping made. In addition 1 point will be awarded for each fielding catch and unassisted run out.

Senior Club All Rounder (Senior Division)

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophy)

"The Dean Griffith Trophy"

Determined by the Management Committee and derived from an examination of the scorebooks and awarded to the most outstanding all round performance in Junior/Intermediate Divisions. As a guide the following qualification apply, minimum of 200 runs scored and 15 wickets taken or minimum 200 runs scored and 12 wicket keeping catches/stumpings. In the event of a bowler/wicketkeeper qualifying the standard is set as 200 runs scored and a combination of bowling wickets taken/wicket keeping catches/stumpings equalling a minimum of 15 dismissals. A player who represents the club in more than one senior team shall have all efforts credited. All awards shall be based on aggregates and be inclusive of first and second innings, but exclusive of Finals Series. Please note: For the purpose of assessing and determining the award the above criteria shall apply with 1 point for each 10 runs scored, 1.3 points for each wicket taken and 1 point for each wicket keeping catch/stumping made. In addition 1 point will be awarded for each fielding catch and unassisted run out.

Club Member of the Year

"The Val Tever Trophy"

(Perpetual trophy & personal gift)

Nominations are sought in writing and determined by the Management Committee and awarded to a club member who gives freely of his/her time and energies in supporting the Club in its activities. Management Committee members may be nominated in which event the Executive Committee shall determine the recipient.

Junior Club Champion

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophy)

"The Barry McManus Trophy"

Determined by the Management Committee and derived from an examination of the scorebooks and shall be inclusive of first and second innings, but exclusive of Finals Series. Awarded to the most outstanding cricketer in U14 & U16 through efforts with bat, ball or gloves has proved him/herself competitive at the higher levels of the SSJCA Competition. In determining the merits relative to a

batsman, bowler or wicket keeper the "General Criteria" set above shall apply to assessing this award.

Senior Club Champion

(Perpetual trophy and personal trophy)

"The Harry Robbins Trophy"

Determined by the Management Committee and derived from an examination of the scorebooks and shall be inclusive of first and second innings, but exclusive of Finals Series. To be awarded to the most outstanding senior cricketer in the club who through their efforts with bat, ball or gloves has proved competitive at the higher levels of the SSCA Competition. In determining the merits relative to a batsman, bowler or wicket keeper the "General Criteria" set above shall apply to assessing this award.

LIFE MEMBERSHIP

Life Membership

(Life Membership Badge)

In considering any such nomination the committee will be guided by the Club Constitution, in particular – Membership Part No.2 – 2.7 Life Membership –

- (a) A Life member is a club member awarded the honorary title of Life Member for outstanding services to the Club.
- (b) There shall be for the purposes of recognising outstanding service two streams of entry to Life Membership, playing service and administrative service.
- (c) Consideration for Life Membership may only be exercised when the nominee has given no less than 25 years service to the club as Playing Member (as defined in Rule 2.2) or, no less than 10 years service to the club as a Committee Member, or some other Club support service of a non-playing nature.
- (d) Consideration for Life Membership will be undertaken in the first instance by the Management only upon receipt of a written nomination containing reasons in support. Any club members may make such nomination to any member of the Management Committee.
- (e) The Management Committee will examine all such nominations and in exercising absolute discretion accept or reject any nomination. Any decision taken is neither subject to explanation nor appeal.
- (f) The Management Committee determines for approval that the nominee is worthy of the honour proposed, shall advise members at the next general monthly meeting. That recommendation shall contain details of the service given by the nominee and justification for the action proposed. Approval being a majority vote.
- (g) A Life Member whose award derives from 25 years playing service shall henceforth pay no playing fee to the Club beyond that which the Club will impose to cover costs associated with Association registration, insurance and any other like matter.
- (h) A Life Member shall pay no fees to the Club (with the exception set out above in Rule 2.7(g)) and

shall be entitled to vote at any club meeting and receive any special consideration as the Management Committee may determine.

- (i) Each life member shall be presented with a suitably designed Life Membership badge.
- (j) A Life member is subject to the rules and regulations and Code of Conduct of the Club.

Current Major Award Recipients

Most Consistent II10 Dlaver	"The EDCC Translar"	
Most Consistent U10 Player –	The EDGC Trophy	
2018/19 Cooper Holmes 10A		
Junior Club Champion – "The H	Barry McManus Trophy"	
1998/99 Michael Lavallee 12A	1999/00 Ryan Shepherd 14A	2000/01 Ryan Shepherd 16A
2001/02 Ryan Shepherd 16A	2002/03 Jay Davis 16A	2003/04 Cameron Turner 16A
2004/05 Chris Reeves 16B	2005/06 Ben Marciante 16A	2006/07 Ben Marciante 16A Blue
2007/08 Mark Rice 16A	2008/09 Ryan Almond 16A	2009/10 Ben Dwarshuis 16A
2010/11 Dane Fisher 14A	2011/12 Dane Fisher 16A	2012/13 Nathan Marciante 16A
2013/14 Matthew Simpson 14A	2014/15 Dylan Koprivec 16A	2015/16 Luke Ritchie 12A
2016/17 Andrew Ritchie 16A	2017/18 Luke Ritchie 14A	2018/19 Kobey Freer 14A
Senior Club Champion – "Harr		
1996/97 Paul Waddell B6	1997/98 Marcus Loxley B5	1998/99 Beau Knowles C1
1999/00 Andrew Hine B2	2000/01 Will Wooster B5	2001/02 Greg Goodman A1
2002/03 Paul Cameron A1	2003/04 Jim Bonser B2	2004/05 Greg Heffernan A1
2005/06 Drew Lake A2	2006/07 Stewart Vella B2	2006/07 Stewart Vella B1
2007/08 Stewart Vella B1	2008/09 Matthew Sambuco B1	2009/10 Stewart Vella A1
2010/11 Paul Barnes A2	2011/12 Drew Lake B2	2012/13 Adam Pascoe B1-2
2013/14 Adam Pascoe A2	2014/15 Jaryd Duncan A2	2015/16 Matthew Sambuco A1
2016/17 Jaryd Duncan B1-2	2017/18 Spencer White A2	2018/19 Tim Russell B1 (TR)
Junior Club All Rounder – "The	· Ian Latham Trophy"	
2003/04 James Bills 16A	2004/05 Chris Reeves 16B	2005/06 Blake Duncum 14C
2006/07 Ben Marciante 16A Blue	2007/08 Mark Rice 16A	2008/09 Ryan Almond 16A
2009/10 Ryan Almond 16A	2010/11 Alex Gersbach 14A	2011/12 Tim Berry 16A
2012/13 Nathan Marciante 16A	2013/14 Matt Wright 16A	2014/15 Luke Miller 16A
2015/16 Nick Amos 16A	2016/17 Not Awarded	2017/18 Luke Ritchie 14A
2018/19 Cooper Martin 12D		
Senior Club All Rounder – "The	1 3	
2011/12 Stewart Lumsden B6	2012/2013 Matthew Barnes B6	2013/14 Joshua Kedwell C2
2014/15 Jonathon Mosley B3	2015/16 Brayden Heffernan B6	2016/17 Ben Williams B1-1
2017/18 Ben Williams B1	2018/19 Steven Green B4	
Junior Doolrie of the Veer "Th	no Von Towor Trophy"	
Junior Rookie of the Year – "Th		1009/00 lon Mitchell 14F
1996/97 Darren Baxter 14C	1997/98 Jess Correy 10A	1998/99 Ian Mitchell 14E
1999/00 Matthew Hoff 10D	2000/01 Daniel Boyle 14D	2001/02 Ryan Marlow 10A
2002/03 Hayden Smith 10A	2003/04 Ryan Morris 14D	2004/05 Rhys Marlow 10C
2005/06 Brendan Curtis 10A	2006/07 Anuraag Varanasi 10D	2007/08 Jarrod Mazurkiewicz 10A
2008/09 Dylan Croker 10A	2009/10 Nathan Del Medico 12C	2010/11 Nathan Freestone 10B

2011/12 Kieran Levin 14C	2012/13 Tyler Cussen 10A	2013/14 Hamish Jacka 12E
2014/15 Lachlan Ritchie 10B	2015/16 Elijah Dundas 10A	2016/17 Riley Cussen 12A
2017/18 Lucas Sheehy 10A	2018/19 Josh Watson 14C	
Senior Rookie of the Year – "Tl	ne Bill Knowles Trophy"	
1996/97 Michael Ralston B6	1997/98 Lee Bailey B5	1998/99 Tim Cutler B4
1999/00 Andrew Hine B2	2000/01 Mitchell Thompson A1	2001/02 Jay Davis A3
2002/03 Chris Nelson B5	2003/04 Michael Lavallee B6	2004/05 Adam Logan B4
2005/06 Chris Reeves A2	2006/07 James Stone B2	2007/08 Andrew Herne A2
2008/09 Ryan Marlow B1-2	2009/10 Nathan McNamara B3	2010/11 Matthew Penglase B3
2011/12 Andrew Roberts B4	2012/13 Tyler Heaton C2	2013/14 Matt Berry C2
2014/15 Brayden Heffernan B6	2015/16 Fynn Rodgers C2	2016/17 Rithik Sahay C1
2107/18 Luke Goodman B5	2018/19 Steven Green B4	
,	.,	
Most Improved Team – "The B	ob Vannan Trophy"	
1996/97 12B – Bob & Darren	1997/98 12B – Peter Ward &	1998/99 16A – Dennis Pendergast & Harry
Price	Ian Davis	Robbins
1999/00 16A – Steve Routh &	2000/01 Brett Johnson & Steve	2001/02 14E – Rob Lowe & Roger McNee
Steve Daniels	Routh 16A	
2002/03 14B – Rob Lowe &	2003/04 14B – Nathan	2004/05 14B – Robbie Knight & Bruce
Gordon Scott	Alterator & Bob McMillan	Smith
2005/06 16C – Craig Townsend &	2006/07 16A – Red Coach:	2007/08 14A – Coach: Rob Knight
Keith White	Nathan Alterator & Manager:	Manager: Gerry Dwarshuis
	Phil Alterator	
2008/09 12C – Coach: John	2009/10 14E – Glenn Tonna &	2010/11 14C – Coach: Adam Logan & Ben
Westlake Manager: Anthony & Mandy Goodman	Stephen Thode	Jamison and Manager: John & Patty-Anne Westlake)
2011/12 12B – Coach: John	2012/13 12A – Coach: John	2013/14 12E – Coach: Steve Carlisle, Steve
Mifsud Manager: Joanne Spring	Westlake Manager: Dean	Jacka & Mark Allen and 10D – Coach: Pat
	Blacker	Hall & Matt Franklin and Manager: Marty
		Dunn
2014/15 14D – Coach: Tim	2015/16 14B – Coach: Adam	2016/17 12D – Coach: Brett Wood
Russell & Chris Moreland	Coldwell Manager: Mal	Manager: Marty Dunn
Manager: Lucy Munro	Campbell	
2017/18 12D - Coach: Tim	2018/19 12D - Coach: Tim	
Shiletto Manager: Tammi Clark	Shiletto Manager: Denise	
	Martin	
Engouragement Arrand "The	Dab Drigg Chield"	
Encouragement Award – "The		2000/01 Aloy Soreh 125
1998/99 Chris McMahon 10C	1999/00 Ryan Woodley 12C	2000/01 Alex Sambuco 12E
2001/02 Jeffrey Walsh 12D	2002/03 Scott Middlemiss 12B	2003/04 Alex Lewis 14D
2004/05 Michael Bedford 14B	2005/06 Mitchell Cox 14C	2006/07 Matt Lister 12B
2007/08 Josh Kennedy 12D	2008/09 Zac Byrnes (14A)	2009/10 Jake Goulding 14A
2010/11 Luke Goodman 10B	2011/12 Harry Furlong 14C	2012/13 Jacob Zoppi 10D
2013/14 Aimee Hall 10D	2014/15 Luke Carter-Benjamin 10C	2015/16 Byron Thomas 10A
2016/17 Aiden Wood 12D	2017/18 Bradford Beencke	2018/19 Alex Caspersonn 12D
2010/17 Addit Wood 120	10B	LOTO, 15 Mick Cospersorm 120

Encouragement Award – "The Bob Price Shield"							
1998/99 Chris McMahon 10C	1999/00 Ryan Woodley 12C	2000/01 Alex Sambuco 12E					
2001/02 Jeffrey Walsh 12D	2002/03 Scott Middlemiss 12B	2003/04 Alex Lewis 14D					
2004/05 Michael Bedford 14B	2005/06 Mitchell Cox 14C	2006/07 Matt Lister 12B					
2007/08 Josh Kennedy 12D	2008/09 Zac Byrnes (14A)	2009/10 Jake Goulding 14A					
2010/11 Luke Goodman 10B	2011/12 Harry Furlong 14C	2012/13 Jacob Zoppi 10D					
2013/14 Aimee Hall 10D	2014/15	2015/16 Byron Thomas 10A					
	Luke Carter-Benjamin 10C						
2016/17 Aiden Wood 12D	2017/18 Bradford Beencke	2018/19 Alex Caspersonn 12D					
	10B						

Club Member of the Year – The Val Tever Trophy"						
1996/97 Laurie Daly	1997/98 Ian Latham	1998/99 Steve Daniels				
1999/00 Harry Robbins	2000/01 Brad Moreland	2001/02 Stuart Slack & Neil Jamieson				
2002/03 Allan Lofthouse	2003/04 Robbie Knight	2004/05 Tony Gleeson & Ken Newman				
2005/06 Judy Lofthouse & Bob	2006/07 Dennis Pendergast	2007/08 Andrew Mazurkiewicz				
Price						
2008/09 Russ Waddell and Ian	2009/10 Jim Lee	2010/11 Peter Cox and Paul Marsh				
Latham						
2011/12 Neil Croker	2012/13 Tony Marciante	2013/14 John Westlake				

2014/15 Adam Pascoe	2015/16 Antony Goodman	2016/17 Chris Moreland & Tim Russell
2017/18 Michelle Ritchie	2018/19 Not Awarded	2010/17 CHIIS MOFEIANG & THII RUSSEN
2017/16 WICHEIR RICCIIE	2010/19 NOt Awarded	
Junior Division Batting Perform	nance Award – "The Ray Noal	kes Trophy"
1996/97 Ben Cutler 12B	1997/98 Ryan Shepherd 12A	1998/99 Michael Lavallee 12A
1999/00 Dylan Beardow 12C	2000/01 Chris Reeves 12B	2001/02 Andrew Jones 12A
2002/03 Ben Marciante 12A	2003/04 Liam Herne 10A	2004/05 Liam Herne 12B
2005/06 Ben Dwarshuis 12A	2006/07 Rhys Marlow 12B	2007/08 Brendan Curtis 12A
2008/09 Nathan Marciante 12A	2009/10 Dylan Croker 10A	2010/11 Joshua Berry 12C
2011/12 Bradley James 12D	2012/13 Andrew Ritchie 12A	2013/14 Blake Barden 12C
2014/15 Hamish Jacks 12D-2	2015/16 Luke Ritchie 12A	2016/17 Lachlan Ritchie 12A
2017/18 Kobey Freer 12A	2018/19 Lachlan Snell 12A	
Junior Division Bowling Perfor		· · ·
1996/97 Sanjay Patel 12C	1997/98 Mitchell Durie 12A	1998/99 Cameron Turner 12A
1999/00 Chris McMahon 12C	2000/01 Daniel Ward 10A	2001/02 Sam Newman 10A
2002/03 Sam Newman 12A	2003/04 Kelly Rolleston 12C	2004/05 Kelly Rolleston 12B
2005/06 Nicholas Chamberlain	2006/07 Nathan Marciante	2007/08 Joel Almond 10A
12D	10A	2010/11 Nicholas Blunkett 12D
2008/09 Justin Byrnes 12E 2011/12 Mitchell Betts 10A	2009/10 Nathan Hall 10F 2012/13 Luke Ritchie 10A	2010/11 Nicholas Plunkett 12D
2011/12 Witchen Betts 10A 2014/15 Luke Ritchie 12A	2015/16 Lachlan Ritchie 10A	2013/14 Harrison Long 12C 2016/17 Patrick Hughes 12D
2107/18 Connor Ganderton 10A	2018/19 Cooper Martin 12D	2010/17 Patrick Hughes 12D
2107/18 Collifor Galiderton 10A	2018/19 Cooper Wartin 12D	
Junior Division Wicket Keepin	g Performance Award – "The I	Mike Fordyce Trophy"
1996/97 Brett Bullock 12C	1997/98 Jarryd Ward 10A	1998/99 Chris Moreland 12A
1999/00 Jarryd Ward 12A	2000/01 Jason Raper 12E	2001/02 Bryce Alewood 10A
2002/03 Bryce Daenell 12A	2003/04 Robbie Farnan 10A	2004/05 Matthew Christison 12B
2005/06 Jordan Dow 12A	2006/07 Dylan Rae 10A	2007/08 Joey Cox 10A
2008/09 Dylan Rae 12A	2009/10 Joey Cox 12A	2010/11 Joshua Berry 12C
2011/12 Matthew Simpson 12A	2012/13 Cameron Westlake 12A	2013/14 Brayden Johnston 12C
2014/15 Joshua Sheehy 12A	2015/16 Beau McInerney 12A	2016/17 Mackay Johnson 12D
2107/18 Koby Lillis 12A	2018/19 Aiden Stewart 12A	
Junior Division Fielding Assent	"The Dayl Maddell Trenby)
Junior Division Fielding Award 2016/17 Jared Caspersonn 12D	2017/18 Beau Wallace 12B	2018/19 Jackson Taylor 12A
2010/17 Jared Caspersonii 12D	2017/16 Beau Wallace 12B	2010/19 Jackson Taylor 12A
Intermediate Division Batting	Performance Award – "The Ru	ıss Waddell Trophy"
1996/97 Lee Bailey 16B	1997/98 Chris Pendergast 14A	1998/99 Kaine Johnson 16C
1999/00 Ryan Shepherd 14A	2000/01 Ryan Shepherd 16A	2001/02 Ryan Shepherd 16A
2002/03 Jay Davis 16A	2003/04 Cameron Turner 16A	2004/05 Chris Reeves 16B
2005/06 Blake Duncum 14C	2006/07 Ben Marciante 16A Blue	2007/08 Ryan Emerson 16C
2008/09 Jonathan Haslam 14A	2009/10 Jackson Garret 14E	2010/11 Dane Fisher 14A
2011/12 Dane Fisher 16A	2012/13 Nathan Marciante 16A	2013/14 Matthew Simpson 14A
2014/15 Dylan Koprivec 16A	2015/16 Dane Courtney 14C-2	2016/17 Hamish Jacka 14C
2107/18 Steven Green 16C	2018/19 Brayden Johnston 16C	
Intermediate Division Bowling	Performance Award - "The A	Alf Lemmon Trophy"
1996/97 Darren Baxter 14C	1997/98 Kaine Johnson 16D	1998/99 Chris Nelson 14C
1999/00 Brett Martin 16C	2000/01 Brett Martin 16A	2001/02 Daniel Boyle 16D
2002/03 Greg Ings 14B	2003/04 Matthew Sambuco 16A	2004/05 Ryan Marlow 14B
2005/06 Sam Newman 14A	2006/07 Daniel Tench 16C	2007/08 Joel D'Imperio 14A
2008/09 Hayden Smith (14A)	2009/10 Marcus Beattie 14A	2010/11 Alex Gersbach 14A

2011/12 Aaron Fanous 14E	2012/13 Nathan Marciante 16A	2013/14 Matthew Jones 16D
2014/15 Angus Brown 16B-2	2015/16 Nick Amos 16A	2016/17 Mitchell Betts 16A
2017/18 Harrison Long 16C	2018/19 Hayden Lindsay 16A	
Intermediate Division Wicket I		· ·
1996/97 Brad Collins 16B	1997/98 Andrew Hine 16A	1998/99 Andrew Hine 16A
1999/00 Mark Mitchell 16C	2000/01 Stuart Dibb 14A	2001/02 Ben Jamieson 14A
2002/03 Chris Moreland 16A	2003/04 Robert Dumbrell 16A	2004/05 Adam Smith 14B
2005/06 Ryan Croom 16A	2006/07 Mitchell Floyd 16A Blue	2007/08 Jordan Dow 14A
2008/09 Jordan Dow 16A	2009/10 Jordon Dow 16A	2010/11 Timothy Berry 16C
2011/12 Timothy Berry 16A	2012/13 Joshua Berry 16C	2013/14 Matt Wright 16A
2014/15 Max Batty 16B-1	2015/16 Hamish Jacka 14C-1	2016/17 Hamish Jacka 14C
2017/18 Joshua Sheehy 16A	2018/19 Koby Lillis 14A	
Intermediate Division Fieldi		
-		lding Trophy was renamed the Intermediate
Division Fielding Performance Awar		
1998/99 Alan Wood 12A	1999/00 Stuart Brandman 14A	2000/01 Andrew Jones 10A
2001/02 Stuart Brandman 16A	2002/03 Ben Holt 14C	2003/04 Cameron Turner 16A
2004/05 Ryan Marlow 14B	2005/06 Greg Ings 16A	2006/07 Brendan Curtis 10A
2007/08 Ben Dwarshuis 14A	2008/09 Brendan Curtis 12A	2009/10 Alex Gersbach 14A
2010/11 Joshua Smith 10A	2011/12 Luke Miller 14A	2012/13 Alex Roberts 16A
2013/14 Luke Miller 16A	2014/15 Luke Miller 16A	2015/16 Dylan Croker 16A
2016/17 Cameron Westlake 16A	2017/18 Corey Moors 16A	2018/19 Angus Wheatley 14D
Senior Division Batting Perform	nance Batting Award – "The I	Orew Lake Trophy"
2001/02 Peter O'Reilly C1	2002/03 Jim Bonser B3	2003/04 Ryan Salakas B7
2004/05 Greg Heffernan A1	2005/06 Stuart Dibb C1	2006/07 Stewart Vella B2
2007/08 Stewart Vella B1	2008/09 David McMillan C1	2009/10 John Sheehy C1
2010/11 Samuel Haynes C2	2011/12 Stewart Lumsden B6	2012/13 Matthew Barnes B6
2013/14 Sam Haynes B3	2014/15 Jarrod Mazurkiewicz C1	2015/16 Tim Berry B6
2016/17 Brayden Heffernan B3	2017/18 Mathew Barnes B2	2018/19 Patrick Bird B4
Senior Division Bowling Award	l – "The John Carlisle Trophy"	
2001/02 Matthew Carroll B6	2002/03 Paul Cameron A1	2003/04 Chris Nelson B6
2004/05 Brett Martin B4	2005/06 Matthew Carroll B2	2006/07 Stewart Vella B2
2007/08 Mitchell Davis B7	2008/09 Kurt Mitchell B7	2009/10 Anthony Campey C1
2010/11 John Sheehy B7	2011/12 Robbie Knight C1	2012/13 Robbie Knight B4
2013/14 Stewart Lumsden B3	2014/15 Matthew Sambuco B2	2015/16 Matthew Carroll B1
2016/17 Ben Williams B1-1	2017/18 Ben Williams B1	2018/19 Chris Jackson B1 (TR)
Senior Division Wicket Keeping	g Performance Award – " <u>T</u> he	Col Berry Trophy"
1998/99 Brad Collins B4	1999/00 Jim Collins B7	2000/01 Mark Mitchell B7
2001/02 Colin Berry A3	2002/03 Matthew Newman B9	2003/04 Ryan McLauchlan B5
2004/05 Chris Moreland B6	2005/06 Stewart Vella B2	2006/07 Chris Moreland B6
2007/08 Chris Moreland B5	2008/09 Michael Smith B6	2009/10 Michael Smith B8
2010/11 Gregory Richards B7	2011/12 Jaryd Duncan B5	2012/13 Jonathon Wright A1
2013/14 Jonathon Wright A1	2014/15 Jonathon Wright A1	2015/16 Gregory Richards A2-2
2016/17 Jonathan Wright B2-2	2017/18 Jonathan Wright A2	2018/19 Anthony McNamara B2

Senior Division Fielding Award	d - "The Greg Knowles Trophy	7"
2016/17 Ben Williams B1-1	2017/18 Tim Berry B3	2018/19 Joshua Kedwell B2

SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION **REPRESENTATIVE HONOURS**

NSWDCA Male Shield Players

Note: The NSWDCA (NSW District Cricket Association). Previous to October 1997 it was known as the NSWJCU (NSW Junior Cricket Union)

YEAR	FOSTER U/10	CREAK U/11	CAWSEY U/12	GEE U/13	MOORE U/14	WEBLIN U/15	WATSON U/16
2018-19	No Team	Tyson Bourke Lucas Sheehy Lachlan Snell Jackson Taylor	Kobey Freer	Koby Lillis Lachlan Ritchie Tom Sheehy	Aiden Rider	Hayden Lindsay Luke Ritchie	Tyler Cussen Charlie Johnston Corey Moors Huon Whittingham
2017-18	No Team	Kobey Freer	Koby Lillis Lachlan Ritchie Thomas Sheehy		Lachlan Brownscombe Hayden Lindsay Luke Ritchie	Corey Moors Joshua Sheehy	
2016-17	No Team	Koby Lillis Lachlan McKenzie Lachlan Ritchie Thomas Sheehy		Hayden Lindsay Luke Ritchie	Corey Moors Joshua Sheehy	Brad Simpson	Andrew Ritchie
2015-16	No Team		Hayden Lindsay Beau McInerney Luke Ritchie	Corey Moors Joshua Sheehy	Mitchell Betts Bradley Simpson	Andrew Ritchie	Nick Amos Dylan Croker Alex Lee Louis Whitehouse
2014-15	No Team	Luke Ritchie		Bradley Simpson	Harrison Blacker Andrew Ritchie	Nick Amos Dylan Croker Alex Lee Louis Whitehouse	Jack Dwarshuis Dylan Koprivec Harry Tattersall
2013-14	No Team	Luke Ritchie	Mitchell Betts Reece Kelly Bradley Simpson	Andrew Ritchie	Nick Amos Dylan Croker Alex Lee Matt Simpson	Jack Dwarshuis Dylan Koprivec Jarrod Mazurkiewicz Harry Tattersall	Joshua Johnston Matt Wright
2012-13	No Team	Mitchell Betts Reece Kelly Bradley Simpson	Andrew Ritchie	Nicholas Amos Alex Lee Matthew Simpson	Jack Dwarshuis Dylan Koprivec Jarrod Mazurkiewicz Luke Miller Harry Tattersall	Joey Cox Joshua Johnston Lachlan Smith	Matt Wright
2011-12	No Team	Andrew Ritchie Cameron Westlake	Nick Amos Dylan Croker Alexander Lee Matt Simpson	Jack Dwarshuis Jarrod Mazurkiewicz Luke Miller Harry Tattersall	Joey Cox Joshua Johnston Lachlan Smith	Dane Fisher Alex Gersbach Nathan Marciante	
2010-11	No Team	Dylan Croker Alexander Lee Matt Simpson	Jack Dwarshuis Jarrod Mazurkiewicz Luke Miller Dylan Smith Harry Tattersall	Joel Almond Joey Cox Joshua Johnston Lachlan Smith	Brendan Curtis Dane Fisher Alex Gersbach Brayden Heffenan Jacob Heffenan Nathan		

					Marciante Dylan Rae		
2009-10	No Team	Jack Dwarshuis Jarrod Mazurkiewicz Luke Miller Dylan Smith Harry Tattersall	Joel Almond Joey Cox Joshua Johnston Lachlan Smith	Brendan Curtis Alex Gersbach Brayden Heffenan Nathan Marciante Dylan Rae		Jonathan Haslam Hayden Smith	Ryan Almond Jordan Dow Ben Dwarshuis Nigel Garton
2008-09	No Team	Joel Almond Joey Cox Joshua Johnston Jarrod Mazurkiewicz Dylan Smith	Brendan Curtis Brayden Heffernan Nathan Marciante Dylan Rae		Jonathan Haslam Hayden Smith	Jordan Dow Ben Dwarshuis Bradley Ford Matthew Hobden	
2007-08	No Team	Brendan Curtis Braiden Heffernan Jacob Heffernan Nathan Marciante Dylan Rae		Hayden Smith Nicholas Chamberlain	Ryan Almond Joel D'Imperio Jordan Dow Ben Dwarshuis Matthew Hobden	Nathan Loder	Jordan Duncan Ryan Marlow Mark Rice John Watson
2006-07	No Team		Hayden Smith Nicholas Chamberlain	Ryan Almond Joel D'Imperio Jordan Dow Ben Dwarshuis Liam Herne Hayden Morton	Nathan Loder	Sam Newman Mark Rice Ryan Marlow	Ben Marciante Daniel Ward Andrew Herne Grant Johnson Mitchell Floyd
2005-06	No Team	Hayden Smith	Ryan Almond Joel D'Imperi Ben Dwarshuis Liam Herne Matthew Hobden	Nathan Loder	Sam Newman Mark Rice Ryan Marlow	Bryce Daenell Ben Marciante Daniel Ward Andrew Herne	Greg Ings
2004-05	No Team	Liam Herne	Nathan Loder	Sam Newman Mark Rice Ryan Marlow Adam Smith	Bryce Daenell Andrew Jones Ben Marciante Daniel Ward Andrew Herne	Greg Ings	
2003-04	No Team	Nathan Loder	Sam Newman Mark Rice	Bryce Daenell Andrew Jones Ben Marciante Daniel Ward	Greg Ings		Adam Logan
2002-03	Liam Herne Nathan Loder	Sam Newman Mark Rice	Bryce Daenel Andrew Jones Ben Marciante Daniel Ward				Jay Davis James Gardner Luke Maloney Thomas Ward
2001-02	Sam Newman Mark Rice	Bryce Daenell Andrew Jones Ben Latham Daniel Ward Brent Woodley	Ben Jamieson Aaron Mall			Jay Davis James Gardner Michael Lavallee Jonathan Ward	Ryan Shepherd Brett Bullock Stuart Brandman Chris Mahoney
2000-01	Andrew Jones Ben Latham Daniel Ward		Ben Jamieson Aaron Mall		Jay Davis James Gardner Chris Moreland Michael Lavallee	Stuart Brandman Brett Bullock Toby Nash Ryan Shepherd	Braiden Gilbert Brett Martin Kieran Routh
1999-00	Daniel Ward	Ben Jamieson		Jay Davis Michael Lavallee Chris Moreland Jonathan Ward	Stuart Brandman Brett Bullock Ryan Shepherd	Braiden Gilbert Kieran Routh	Chris Mar Chris Pendergast Mitchell Thompson
1998-99	Ben Jamieson		Eamon Hillen Chris Moreland Michael Lavallee	Ryan Shepherd Stuart Brandman	Braiden Gilbert	Chris Pendergast Mitchell Thompson Chris Mar^	Andrew Hine Steve Okkonen
1997-98	Jess Correy Adam Logan^	Eamon Hillen Chris Moreland Michael Lavallee^	Ryan Shepherd (S)	Braiden Gilbert Kieran Routh [^]	Chris Pendergast Joshua Collins* Matthew Daniels* Chris Mar*	Andrew Hine	Tim Cutler*

					Ben Mar*		
					Mitchell		
					Thompson*		
					Jarred Vandenbergh*		
1996-97	Michael			Chris	Matthew Barne		
	Lavallee			Pendergast	Andrew Hine		
	Eamon Hillen^			Mitchell			
				Thompson Jarred			
				Vandenbergh^			
1995-96	Ryan Shepherd		Chris	Andrew Hine			Brett Gorrey
			Pendergast Jarred	Matthew Barnes			
			Vandenbergh	Troy Selvage			
			Mitchell				
			Thompson Joshua Colins				
1994-95		Chris			Tim Cutler		Craig
		Pendergast					Brownscombe
							Mark Howell Stephen
							Carlilse
1993-94			Tim Moreland			Chris Lake	Darren McCrea
			Troy Glennan Tim Cutler^			Craig Brownscombe	Daniel McLauchlan
						Mark Howell	
						Matthew Heffernan	
						Stephen	
						Carlilse^	
1992-93	Matthew Barnes	Tim Moreland	Kevin Stewart		Chris Lake	Darren McCrea Daniel	Brian Somerville
	Troy Selvage	Troy Glennan			Craig Brownscombe	McLauchlan	Somerville
	, 0				Stephen		
1001.03	Trav. Clauses			Chris Lake	Carlilse	Cara Caralanaa	Adam Mackrell
1991-92	Troy Glennan Tim Moreland			Craig	Darren McCrea Daniel	Greg Goodman Brian	Dean Dean
	Andrew Hine			Brownscombe	McLauchlan	Somerville	Heslehurst
	(S)			Stephen Carlilse			
1990-91	Troy Glennan		Chris Lake	Darren McCrea		David Clissold	Darren Crossley
			Craig				
1989-90		Chris Lake	Brownscombe Daniel	Brian		Greg Goodman	Nathan
		Craig	McLauchlan	Somerville		Darren Crossley	Morando
4000.00		Brownscombe				Adam Fraser	Chad Moodie
1988-89	Craig Brownscombe		Daniel McLauchlan		Greg Goodman Darren		Nathan Morando
	Chris Lake				Crossley*		Chad Moodie*
							Adam Pascoe*
							Sheldon Steeles*
							Ross Stuart*
1987-88	Darren Hands Daniel				Nathan Morando		Cameron Napper*
	McLauchlan				Adam Pascoe		Nappel
	Darren				Mark Tozer		
1986-87	McCrea*				Jason Crimlisk* Nathan		Steven Gordon
1380-87					Morando		Colin Ballard*
					Cameron		
					Napper Adam Pascoe*		
1985-86			Nathan				Craig Parsons
			Morando				Trent Woodhill
			Adam Pascoe*				Peter Garment Steven
							Gordon*
							Derek Spencer*
1984-85	Michael		Nathan		Trent Woodhill		Colin Ballard* David Perritt
	Gleeson		Morando		Peter Garment		Craig Parsons*
	Craig Surrey		Colin Bland*		Steven Gordon		
	John Cowan				Colin Ballard*		

	Dradlay			
	Bradley Meades			
	Brett Adams*			
	David Thomas*			
1983-84	Nathan	Aaron Perritt	Steven Gordon	Russell
	Morando		Trent	Langston*
	Michael		Woodhill*	David Perritt*
	Gleeson Adam Pascoe		Colin Ballard* Peter	
	Peter Fraser*		Garment*	
1982-83	Michael	Trent Woodhill	David Perritt	John Westlake
	Gleeson*	Brad Stuve*		
	Nathan			
	Morando*			
	Graham Murdock*			
	Tim Yule*			
1981-82	Aaron Perritt	Trent Woodhill		Peter Bland
	710.01.1 01.10	Todd Liddy*		Steven Atkins
		Peter		
		Chudleigh*		
1980-81	Trent Woodhill	James Gleeson	Rodney	Dean Russell
		Geoff	Entwistle	
		McDonald David Perritt*	Dean Kember John Short	
		David Ferritt	John Westlake*	
1979-80	Brett Landrigan	James Gleeson	Peter Bland*	Glen Anderson
	Peter	Russell	Neil Lovelock*	Chris Gaskell
	Chudleigh	Langston		
	Todd Stewart			
1978-79	James Gleeson	Dean Kember	Dean Russell*	Glen Anderson
	Daryl Lees	John Westlake		
	Gavin Phillips Mark Noakes			
1977-78	Wark Woakes	Peter Bland	Chris Gaskell	Wayne Wishart
1377 70		Scott Bond	Greg Heffernan	Steve Messiter
		Neil Lovelock	Dean Russell*	Gerry
		Dean Kember*		Dwarshuis
				Geoff Price
				Brett Ferguson*
1976-77	John Westlake	Dean Russel		Graham Jones*
137077	Peter Ryan	Neil Lovelock*		Steve
	•	Peter Bland*		Messiter*
1975-76	Neil Lovelock	Chris Gaskell	Wayne Wishart	
	Peter Bland	Dean Russell	Brett Ferguson	
	Greg Langston*	Steven Johnson	Geoff Price	
1074.75	Doon Bussell	Michael Baileu*	Gary Robinson*	Datas Naakas
1974-75	Dean Russell Steven Johnson	Michael Bailey* Chris Gaskell*	Brett Ferguson*	Peter Noakes Dean Ferguson
1973-74	Mark Elder	Brett Ferguson	Geoff Price*	Graham
	Chris Gaskell	Wayne Wishart	200	Beames
	Ken Robbins*	Michael Bailey*		Steve Wishart
	Dean Russell*			lan Cranston
	Craig Alewood*			Peter Noakes*
				Dean Ferguson*
1972-73		Tom Hole*	Peter Noakes	Graham
		Wayne	Dean Ferguson	Beames
		Wishart*	Brett Johnson	Steve Wishart
1971-72	Wayne Wishart	Greg King*	Brett Johnson	
	Brett Ferguson		Steve Wishart	
	Geoff Price		Graham	
	Adrian Rodford*		Beames	
	Bedford*		Peter Noakes Terry	
			Humphries	
			lan Cranston	
			Dean	
			Ferguson*	
			Andrew	
1970-71	Murray	Terry	Waugh* G. Harris	
13/0-/1	Morrison*	Humphries	Eric Hinton	

			Brett Johnson		Larry Warner*		
			Peter Noakes		Steve Wishart*		
			J. Ford		Trevor Bailey*		
			P. Murray		Ian Cranston*		
1969-70			Peter Noakes		Lance Howes		Malcolm
			Steve Wishart		Trevor Bailey*		Haynes
			Ian Cranston				
			Brett Johnson*				
1968-69	Peter Noakes		Eric Hinton				
	Brett Johnson		Trevor Bailey				
	Alan Wood		Ian Cranston				
			John Cusack				
1967-68	Ian Cranston		Steven Johnson				
	Phillip George		Trevor Bailey				
1966-67	Trevor Bailey				Peter Doherty		
	John Cusack						
1965-66							
1964-65			Peter Doherty		Robert Ross		Barry
							McManus
							Robert
							Rushbourne
1963-64			Peter Bain		Robert		Barry
4000.00					Rushbourne		McManus
1962-63					Barry McManus		
1961-62					K. Jones		
					Barry McManus		
1960-61			Barry McManus		Larry Hooley		
					Tony Carroll		
1959-60			Trevor		Robert Bain		
			Hodkinson				
			Barry McManus				
YEAR	FOSTER U/10	CREAK U/11	CAWSEY U/12	GEE U/13	MOORE U/14	WEBLIN U/15	WATSON U/16

Note: *Shield Second Team & ^Shadow Player - Creak, Gee & Weblin Shield Competitions were introduced in the 1989-90 Season. As of the 2003-04 season Sutherland ceased entering a Foster Shield Team.

NSWDCA Female Shield Players

2018-19	U15 MARGARET PEDEN SHIELD	Maeve Martin (Bankstown)
2018-19	U13 MOLLIE DIVE SHIELD	Maeve Martin (Bankstown)
2017-18	U13 MOLLIE DIVE SHIELD	Maeve Martin, Bianca McKenzie
2016-17	U13 MOLLIE DIVE SHIELD	Maeve Martin, Bianca McKenzie
2015-16	U13 MOLLIE DIVE SHIELD	Amie Hall, Bianca McKenzie
2004-05	U12 JIM GOULDER SHIELD	Kelly Rolleston (capt)

SSJCA Under 10 Development Squad Players (Established 2005-06)

2018-19	Jayden Dundas, Mason Fardell, Tom Faulkner, Cooper Holmes, Ryan Lillis
2017-18	Tyson Burke, Lucas Sheehy, Lachlan Snell
2016-17	Bailey Croker, Elijah Dundas
2015-16	Kobey Freer, Koby Lillis, Lachlan McKenzie, Lachlan Ritchie, Thomas Sheehy
2014-15	Lachlan Ritchie, Thomas Sheehy
2013-14	Beau McInerney
2012-13	Harry Goldsmith, Luke Ritchie, Joshua Sheehy
2011-12	Bradley Simpson
2010-11	Harrison Blacker, Daniel Entwistle, Andrew Ritchie
2009-10	Dylan Croker, Alex Lee, Matthew Simpson
2008-09	Dylan Croker, Jack Dwarshuis, Luke Miller, Harry Tattersall
2007-08	Joel Almond, Joey Cox, Joshua Johnston, Jarrod Mazurkiewicz, Lachlan Smith
2006-07	Joel Almond, Matthew Berry, Brendan Curtis, Jake Goulding, Brayden Heffernan,
	Jacob Heffernan, Connor Hetherington, Nathan Marciante, Dylan Rae
2005-06	Tim Berry, Alex Clark, Brendan Curtis, Nathan Marciante

SSJCA Inter Districts Presidents Players Note: This Competition Was Established In the 1997-98 Season

YEAR	U/11	U/12	U/13	U/14	U/15	U/16
	· /	· /	U - U	· / - ·	<u> </u>	U/ -U

2018-19	Kade Payne		Riley Edwards Mackay Johnson Alex Tremberth		Lachlan Brownscombe Kyan Holder Luke Morris	Corey Alford Tyler Cussen Hamish Jacka
2017-18		Zane Bell Riley Edwards Angus Knight Lachlan McKenzie Alex Trenberth			Hamish Jacka	Dane Coombs Tyler Cusson
2016-17	Alex Trenberth Riley Edwards		Lachlan Brownscombe	Brayden Johnston James Touma Ollie Kennedy	Mitchell Betts	Josh Mathews Lachlan Cartwright William Whitehouse
2015-16		Ty Parkes	Brayden Johnston Ollie Kennedy	Dane Coombs Zac McLoughlin	Josh Mathews Jesse Michel William Whitehouse	Ben Gilbert Rithik Sahay
2014-15	Lachlan Brownscombe Ty Parkes	Brayden Johnston Joshua Sheehy		Jesse Michel Joshua Smith Cameron Westlake William Whitehouse	Ben Gilbert Rithik Sahay	Andrew Merriman Luke Miller Julian Scott
2013-14	Joshua Sheehy		Harrison Blacker Daniel Entwistle Nathan Freestone Cameron Westlake	Joshua Alford Ben Gilbert Joshua Perritt		
2012-13		Harrison Blacker Ryan Collins Daniel Entwistle Nathan Freestone Cameron Westlake	Dylan Croker Joshua Perritt			Matthew Berry Matt Wright
2011-12	Daniel Entwistle	Joshue Perritt			George Stivaktos	Tim Berry Jackson Roberts- Young
2010-11	Joshua Perritt		Matt Wright	Chris Hall	Tim Berry	. ourig
2009-10	No Team	Matt Wright	No Team	Joel Beattie Marcus Beattie Campbell Jackson	No Team	Brad Ford Liam Herne Cameron Lane
2008-09	No Team	Jacob Heffernan Lachlan Smith	No Team	Jeol Beattie	No Team	Nigel Garton Matthew Reynolds
2007-08	No Team	Marcus Beattie Jeol Beattie	No Team	Liam Herne Patrick Bird	No Team	Blake Duncum Nick Bird
2006-07	No Team		No Team		No Team	Sean Garton
2005-06	No Team		No Team	Adam Smith	No Team	Paul Bremner Andrew Jones
2004-05	No Team		No Team	Jordan Duncum Andrew Herne	No Team	
2003-04	No Team	Jordan Duncan Matthew Launt Will Lawson Adam Smith	No Team	Greg Ings	No team	James Bills Robert Dumbrell
2002-03	No Team	Michael Dumbrell Andrew Herne Adam Smith Dean Smith	No Team		No Team	James Bills Robert Dumbrell Adam Logan
2001-02	No team	Greg Ings Dean McMillan	No Team	Dylan Andrews Adam Logan	No Team	
2000-01	No Team		No Team	Dylan Andrews Adam Logan Jonathan Ward	No Team	Jason Radford
1999-00	No Team		No Team	Chris Mahoney Jonathan Ward	No Team	Brett Martin Jason Radford Ben Mar
1998-99	No Team	Jonathan Ward	No Team	Stuart Brandman Matthew Daniels	No Team	David Chapman Paul Hughes

				Kieran Routh		Ben Mar Chris Mar
1997-98	No Team	Ryan Shepherd	No Team		No Team	
YEAR	U/11	U/12	U/13	U/14	U/15	U/16

CRICKET NSW ACADEMY, EMERGING BLUES & NSWJCU PLAYERS

Cricket NSW Academy Players

Note: The NSW Academy was introduced in 2012 and was previously known as the Emerging Blues.

YEAR	U/13 Metro Academy	U/14 Metro Academy	U/15 Metro Academy	U/16 Metro Academy	U/13 NSW Female Academy	U/18 NSW Female Academy	U/17 NSW Metro	U/19 NSW Metro
2018-19	Lachlan Ritchie				Maeve Martin		Brad Simpson	
2016-17				Bradley Simpson				
2015-16		Bradley Simpson				Claudia Johnston		
2014-15			Nic Amos					
2013-14	Andrew Ritchie	Matthew Simpson						
2012-13	Nicholas Amos Alex Lee Matthew Simpson							Ben Dwarshuis
YEAR	U/13 Metro Academy	U/14 METRO Academy	U/15 METRO Academy	U/16 METRO Academy		U/18 NSW Female Academy	U/17 NSW City	U/19 NSW City

Cricket NSW State Challenge Players

Cricket NSW Metropolitan Players

YEAR	U/13 NSW Metro Players	U/14 NSW Metro Players	U/15 NSW Metro Players	U/16 NSW Metro Players	U/17 NSW Metro Players
2018-19	Maeve Martin Lachlan Ritchie				
2016-17					Bradley Simpson
2015-16		Bradley Simpson		Nick Amos	
2014-15	Bradley Simpson	Harrison Blacker			
YEAR	U/13 NSW Metro Players	U/14 NSW Metro Players	U/15 NSW Metro Players	U/16 NSW Metro Players	U/17 NSW Metro Players

Emerging Blues Players

Note: The Emerging Blues was introduced in 1997 and was previously known as NSWJCU. The Emerging Blues program concluded in 2012 season.

YEAR	U/13 Emerging Blues	U/14 Emerging Blues	U/15 Emerging Blues	U/16 Emerging Blues	U/17 NSW City	U/19 NSW City
2011-12	Jack Dwarshuis Jarrod Mazurkiewicz Luke Miller	Joel Almond Joey Cox Lachlan Smith	Alex Gersbach Dane Fisher			
2010-11	Joel Almond Lachlan Smith	Alex Gersbach				
2009-10	Nathan Marciante			Joel D'Imperio Jordan Dow		Ben Marciante Sam Newman

2008-09		Hayden Smith	Joel D'imperio Ben Dwarshuis	Nathan Loder	Sam Newman Mark Rice	
2007-08	Hayden Smith	Ryan Almond Joel D'imperio Ben Dwarshuis		Sam Newman		
2006-07	Joel D'imperio Hayden Morton		Sam Newman	Daniel Ward		
2005-06						
2004-05						
2003-04		Ben Marciante Kelly Rolleston				
2002-03	Andrew Jones Kelly Rolleston					
2001-02						
2000-01				Braiden Gilbert		
1999-00				Chris Pendergast		
1998-99			Chris Pendergast			
1997-98		Chris Pendergast				
YEAR	U/13 Emerging Blues	U/14 Emerging Blues	U/15 Emerging Blues	U/16 Emerging Blues	U/17 NSW City	U/19 NSW City

NSWJCU Players

Note: In October 1997 the NSWJCU (NSW Junior Cricket Union) changed to the NSWDCA (NSW District Cricket Association). The below list of names is incomplete due to the lack of records prior to conclusion of the Junior Union program in 1997.

1993-94	Chris Lake	U/15
1992-93	Chris Lake	U/14
1991-92	Chris Lake	U/13
1988-89	Cameron Napper	U/16
1987-88	Nathan Morando	U/14
	Mark Tozer	,
1986-87	Mark Tozer Nathan Morando	U/13
1986-87 1984-85		U/13 U/14
	Nathan Morando	

School Representatives Players

Note: Engadine Dragon players that have played and represented the below school associations — Please note that the records are incomplete prior to the 2003 season so there may well be other players that have represented at different levels.

2018	Kobey Freer PSSA Sydney East Kobey Freer NSW PSSA Team Lachlan Ritchie CIS Primary Lachlan Ritchie NSW PSSA Team Tom Sheehy PSSA Sydney East
2017	Kobey Freer PSSA Sydney East Maeve Martin CPS MacKillop Lachlan Ritchie CIS Primary Dylan Croker CHSSA Sydney East Jack Dwarshuis CHSSA Sydney East Alex Lee CHSSA Sydney East Luke Miller CHSSA Sydney East Brad Simpson U/15 NSWCCC Brad Simpson U/15 NSW Combined High Schools Louis Whitehouse NSWCCC
2016	Claudia Johnston CHSSA Sydney East Claudia Johnston NSWCHS 2nd Team Bianca McKenzie PSSA Sydney East Corey Moors PSSA Sydney East Joshua Sheehy PSSA Sydney East Alex Lee CHSSA Sydney East Luke Miller CHSSA Sydney East Brad Simpson U/15 NSWCCC

	Brad Simpson U/15 NSW Combined High Schools Harry Tattersall CHSSA Sydney East
2015	Luke Ritchie CIS Primary
	Luke Miller CHSSA Sydney East Harry Tattersall CHSSA Sydney East
	Dylan Koprivec U/19 NSWCCC
2014	Bradley Simpson CPS MacKillop
	Harry Tattersall CHSSA Sydney East
	Harry Tattersall U/15 NSWCHS NSW
	Dylan Koprivec U/15 NSWCCC Dylan Koprivec U/15 All Schools NSW
2013	Dane Fisher CHSSA Sydney East
	Alex Roberts CHSSA Sydney East
	Dane Fisher NSWCHS NSW 2nd Team
2012	Dane Fisher NSWCHS UK Tour Ben Dwarshuis CHSSA Sydney East
2012	Nicholas Amos PSSA Sydney East
	Luke Miller PSSA Sydney East
	Jack Dwarshuis PSSA Sydney East
	Jack Dwarshuis NSW PSSA Team
	Ben Dwarshuis CHSSA Sydney East Ben Dwarshuis NSWCHS 2nd Team
2010	Joey Cox PSSA Sydney East
	Jarrod Mazurkiewicz PSSA Sydney East
	Lachlan Smith CPS MacKillop
	Sam Newman CHSSA Sydney East Mark Rice CHSSA Sydney East
	Sam Newman NSWCHS 2nd Team
	Mark Rice NSWCHS Team
2009	Nathan Marciante CPS MacKillop
	Nathan Loder CHSSA Sydney East Sam Newman CHSSA Sydney East
	Mark Rice CHSSA Sydney East
	Sam Newman NSWCHS Team
	Ryan Almond All Schools U/15 NSW Team
2008	Sam Newman All Schools U/19 NSW Team Brendan Curtis PSSA Sydney East
2006	Dylan Rae PSSA Sydney East
	Mitch Floyd CHSSA Sydney East
	Grant Johnson CHSSA Sydney East
	Sam Newman CHSSA Sydney East Kelly Rolleston CHSSA Sydney East
	Sam Newman NSWCHS 2nd XI
	Joel D'Imperio NSWCCC TEAM
***	Sam Newman U/19 All Schools NSW Team
2007	Grant Johnson CHSSA Sydney East Caryn-Lee Rolleston CHSSA Sydney East
	Kelly Rolleston CHSSA Sydney East
	Daniel Ward CHSSA Sydney East
2006	Ben Dwarshuis PSSA Sydney East
	Ben Dwarshuis NSW PSSA Team Hayden Smith PSSA Sydney East
	Joel D'Imperio CPS MacKillop
	Vickie Meyer CHSSA Sydney East
	Caryn-Lee Rolleston CHSSA Sydney East
2005	Kelly Rolleston CHSSA Sydney East Sam Newman PSSA Sydney East
2005	Mark Rice PSSA Sydney East
	Vickie Meyer CHSSA Sydney East
	Caryn-Lee Rolleston CHSSA Sydney East
2004	Kelly Rolleston CHSSA Sydney East Kellie Rolleston PSSA Sydney East
2004	Jay Davis CHSSA Sydney East
2003	Kelly Rolleston PSSA Sydney East
	Andrew Jones CPS MacKillop
	Ben Marciante CPS MacKillop

	Jay Davis CHSSA Sydney East
2002	Jay Davis CHSSA Sydney East
	Daniel Ward PSSA Sydney East
1999	Chris Pendergast CHSSA Sydney East
1996	Craig Brownscombe CHSSA Metropolitan East
	Stephen Carlisle CHSSA Metropolitan East
	Chris Lake CHSSA Metropolitan East
	Chris Lake NSW CHSI
1990	Chris Lake PSSA Metropolitan East
	Chris Lake NSW PSSA Team
1986	Nathan Morando PSSA Metropolitan East (capt)
	Nathan Morando NSW PSSA Team (capt)
1983	Trent Woodhill PSSA Metropolitan East
	Trent Woodhill NSW PSSA Team
1967	L. Leebold PSSA Metropolitan East

SUTHERLAND SHIRE CRICKET ASSOCIATION REPRESENTATIVE **HONOURS**

NSWDCA Shield Players
Note: The NSWDCA (NSW District Cricket Association). Previous to October 1997 it was known as the NSWJCU (NSW Junior Cricket

Matthew Berry Tim Berry Josh Kedwell	Union).			
Tim Berry Josh Kedwell	YEAR	Durham U/19	Telegraph U/23	Martin Open
Tim Berry Josh Kedwell	2018-19		Tim Berry	
Tim Berry Josh Kedwell			Tim Berry	
Tim Berry	2016-17		Tim Berry	
2013-14 2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 Nick Bird	2015-16		•	
2012-13 2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 2008-09 Nick Bird Andrew Herne Sean Garton John Watson 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Stuart Start Stuart Start Stuart Stuar	2014-15			
2011-12 2010-11 2009-10 Nick Bird	2013-14			
2010-11				
2009-10 2008-09 Nick Bird Andrew Herne Sean Garton John Watson 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2011-12			
2008-09 Nick Bird Andrew Herne Sean Garton John Watson 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2001-02 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2010-11			
Andrew Herne Sean Garton John Watson 2007-08 2006-07 2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers Ross Stuart 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2009-10			
2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers Ross Stuart 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Paul Cameron Blake Cousem	2008-09	Andrew Herne Sean Garton	Chris Moreland	
2005-06 2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Greg Goodman Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers Ross Stuart 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2007-08			
2004-05 2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Greg Goodman Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers Ross Stuart 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2006-07			
2003-04 2002-03 2001-02 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Greg Goodman Adam Davis Paul Cameron Jeremy Vickers Ross Stuart 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2005-06			
2001-02 Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Greg Goodman Adam Davis Paul Cameron Jeremy Vickers Ross Stuart 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2004-05			
Blake Cousemaker Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Blake Cousemaker Blake Cousemaker Blake Cousemaker Blake Cousemaker	2003-04			
Greg Goodman Ross Stuart Stuart Slack* 2000-01 Stuart Slack Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Blake Cousemaker	2002-03			
Adam Davis Jeremy Vickers 1999-2000 Andrew Hine Stuart Slack Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2001-02			Greg Goodman Ross Stuart
Tim Long Jeremy Vickers 1998-99 Lee Bailey Tim Cutler Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Paul Cameron Blake Cousemaker	2000-01		Adam Davis	Paul Cameron
Tim Cutler Blake Cousemaker Ross Stuart 1997-98 Joshua Dunn Stuart Slack Blake Cousemaker Blake Cousemaker	1999-2000	Andrew Hine	Tim Long	
Stuart Slack Blake Cousemaker	1998-99	•	Stuart Slack	Blake Cousemaker
Ross Stuart				Blake Cousemaker Jason Crimlisk
1996-97 Paul Cameron				
1995-96 Jason Crimlisk Blake Cousemaker	1995-96		Jason Crimlisk	Blake Cousemaker

		- 1-	
1994-95		Paul Cameron	Mark Curness
1993-94		Jason Crimlisk Paul Cameron	
1002.02		Paul Callieloli	
1992-93			
1991-92			
1990-91	Adam Danas		
1989-90	Adam Pascoe		
4000.00	Phillip Blom		
1988-89	D 11D 111		
1987-88	David Perritt	Grant Lovett Neil Lovelock	
1986-87	Anthony Loyatt	Neil Lovelock	
1300-07	Anthony Lovett Paul Waddell		
1985-86	Tuur Wuuden		lan Cranston
1984-85			lan Cranston
1983-84	Greg Langston		ian cranston
1363-64	Dean Russell		
1982-83	Paul Meddings	Kevin Dolan-Brown	
1302 03	Dean Russell	Steve Wearne	
	Greg Langston	Michael Keenan	
	Col Berry	Greg Heffernan	
		Steve Gorry	
		Michael Hammond	
1981-82	Kevin Dolan-Brown		
	Steve Wearne		
	Chris Gaskill		
1980-81	Glen Anderson		
	Kevin Dolan-Brown		
	Steve Gorry		
	Steve Messiter		
	Mark Short		
1979-80		5	
1978-79		Peter Noakes	
1977-78		lan Cranston	
1976-77			Ray Noakes
1975-76	Ian Cranston		Ted Terone
			Ray Noakes Fred Terone
1974-75		Mark Johnson	ried refolie
1374-73		Trevor Bailey	
1973-74	Trevor Bailey	·	Barry Blanchard
			Ray Noake
			Harry Robbins
			Trevor Jones
			Mike Fordyce
1972-73		Robert Rushbourne	Barry Blanchard
		Mark Johnson	Ray Noakes
			Phillip Wood
			Fred Terone
1971-72		Robert Rushbourne	Fred Terone
		Ted Terone	Trevor Jones
			Ray Noakes Anthony Peters
1970-71		Robert Rushbourne	Ray Noakes
1570-71		Nobelt Nashbourile	Barry Blanchard
			Fred Terone
			Dennis Pullen
			Geoff Calderwood
			lan Cooper
1969-70			Ray Noakes
			Barry Blanchard
			Fred Terone
			Harry Robbins
			Graham Chudleigh
1000.00	Dala de Dala		Trevor Jones
1968-69	Robert Rushbourne		Ray Noakes
	Ted Terone		Barry Blanchard Fred Terone
			Peter Doherty
1967-68	Robert Rushbourne		Barry Blanchard
1907-08	Nobelt Muslibouffle		Fred Terone
YEAR	Durham U/19	Telegraph U/23	Martin Open
127111	Darnam-0/13	relegium 0/23	- панторен

SYDNEY DISTRICT GRADE CRICKET HONOURS

Sutherland District Cricket Club Academy

(Established 2005-06 concluded 2008-09)

- 2008-09 Ryan Almond, Joel D'Imperio, Ben Dwarshuis, Nathan Loder
- 2007-08 Joel D'Imperio, Ben Dwarshuis, Nathan Loder, Sam Newman, Mark Rice
- 2006-07 Joel D'Imperio, Ben Dwarshuis, Hayden Morton, Mark Rice
- 2005-06 Greg Ings, Mark Rice

Sutherland District Cricket Club AW Green Shield Players

(Established 1965-66)

- 2018-19 Luke Ritchie
- 2017-18 Nil
- 2016-17 Andrew Ritchie, Cameron Westlake
- 2015-16 Nick Amos, Dylan Croker, Alex Lee, Louis Whitehouse
- 2014-15 Nick Amos, Jack Dwarshuis, Dylan Koprivec, Alex Lee, Harry Tattersall
- 2013-14 Dylan Koprivec, Harry Tattersall
- 2012-13 Dane Fisher, Dylan Koprivec, Nathan Marciante, Alex Roberts
- 2011-12 Dane Fisher, Alex Gersbach, Alex Roberts
- 2010-11 Dane Fisher
- 2009-10 Ryan Almond, Joel D'Imperio, Jordan Dow, Ben Dwarshuis
- 2008-09 Ryan Almond, Joel D'Imperio, Ben Dwarshuis, Nathan Loder
- 2007-08 Joel D'Imperio, Ben Dwarshuis, Nathan Loder, Sam Newman (c), Mark Rice (vc)
- 2006-07 Mitchell Floyd, Grant Johnson, Nathan Loder, Ben Marciante, Sam Newman, Daniel Ward
- 2005-06 Sam Newman, Daniel Ward
- 2002-03 Jay Davis, Luke Maloney
- 2001-02 Brett Bullock, Jay Davis, Ryan Shepherd
- 2000-01 Braiden Gilbert, Brett Martin, Ryan Shepherd
- 1999-00 Chris Mar, Chris Pendergast, Mitchell Thompson
- 1998-99 Stephen Okkonen, Chris Pendergast
- 1994-95 Craig Brownscombe, Stephen Carlisle, Mark Howell, Chris Lake
- 1993-94 Chris Lake, Darren Mccrea, Daniel Mclauchlan
- 1991-92 Dean Heslehurst
- 1990-91 Darren Crossley, Dean Heslehurst
- 1989-90 Chad Moodie, Nathan Morando
- 1988-89 Nathan Morando, Cameron Napper
- 1987-88 Cameron Napper
- 1986-87 Collin Ballard, Peter Garment, Trent Woodhill
- 1985-86 Craig Parsons, Trent Woodhill
- 1984-85 David Perritt
- 1980-81 Dean Russell
- 1979-80 Glen Anderson, Chris Gaskell
- 1975-76 Dean Ferguson, Peter Noakes
- 1974-75 Dean Ferguson, Peter Noakes

- 1973-74 Graham Beames, Ian Cranston, Peter Noakes
- 1972-73 Graham Beames, Peter Noakes, Steve Wishart

Sydney Grade Cricket AW Green Shield Players

- 2018-19 Charlie Johnston, Corey Moors, Huon Whittingham St. George
- 2017-18 Bradley Simpson Bankstown
- 2016-17 Bradley Simpson Bankstown
- 2015-16 Bradley Simpson Bankstown, Matthew Simpson Bankstown
- 2014-15 Jarrod Mazurkiewicz St. George, Matthew Simpson Bankstown
- 2013-14 Jarrod Mazurkiewicz St. George
- 1964-65 Robert Rushbourne St. George

Sydney Combined AW Green Shield Players

- 2015-16 Nick Amos (Merit XII)
- 2012-13 Nathan Marciante
- 2011-12 Alex Gersbach
- 2007-08 Mark Rice
- 2006-07 Ben Marciante
- 2002-03 Jay Davis

Sutherland District Cricket Club Poidevin-Gray Shield Players (Established 1965-66)

- 2018-19 Nick Amos
- 2017-18 Nick Amos, Josh Johnston, Alex Lee
- 2014-15 Ryan Almond, Ben Dwarshuis
- 2013-14 Ben Dwarshuis (capt), Nathan Loder, Nathan Marciante
- 2012-13 Ryan Almond, Ben Dwarshuis, Nathan Loder
- 2011-12 Ben Dwarshuis, Nathan Loder, Mark Rice
- 2010-11 Ryan Almond, Mark Rice
- 2009-10 Grant Johnson, Ben Marciante, Sam Newman, Mark Rice
- 2008-09 James Bills, Ben Marciante, Mark Rice
- 2007-08 James Bills, Ben Marciante
- 2006-07 Ryan Shepherd
- 2005-06 Braiden Gilbert
- 2004-05 Ryan Shepherd
- 2003-04 Ryan Shepherd
- 2002-03 Ryan Shepherd
- 2001-02 Braiden Gilbert
- 1998-99 Chris Lake, Daniel McLauchlan
- 1997-98 Chris Lake, Daniel McLauchlan
- 1996-97 Chris Lake, Daniel McLauchlan
- 1995-96 Chris Lake, Daniel McLauchlan
- 1994-95 Daniel McLauchlan
- 1991-92 Nathan Morando, Trent Woodhill
- 1990-91 Nathan Morando, Craig Parsons, Trent Woodhill
- 1989-90 Craig Parsons, Trent Woodhill
- 1988-89 Craig Parsons
- 1980-81 Wayne Wishart
- 1979-80 Wayne Wishart
- 1978-79 Ian Cranston, Dean Ferguson, Brett Johnson, Steve Wishart
- 1977-78 Steve Wishart

Sydney Grade Cricket Poidevin-Gray Shield Players

- 2018-19 Bradley Simpson Bankstown
- 2017-18 Bradley Simpson Bankstown, Matthew Simpson Bankstown

2016-17 Matthew Simpson – Bankstown

Sydney Grade Cricket 1st Grade Players

- John Bain St. George (Player Number 301)
- Glen Anderson Randwick
- Daniel McLauchlan St. George (2004/05, 2005/06, 2009/10, 2017/18)
- Daniel McLauchlan Bankstown (2010/11)
- Daniel McLauchlan Western Suburbs (2013/14, 2014/15)
- Daniel McLauchlan Campbelltown-Camden (2016/17)
- Tim Cutler Eastern Suburbs (Player Number 588 / Debut 29/09/2001)
- Ben Marciante Randwick Petersham (Player Number 88 / Debut 15/12/2012)
- Mark Rice Western Suburbs (Player Number 667 / Debut 10/11/2013)
- Brad Simpson Bankstown (Debut 20/10/2018)

Other Grade Cricket 1st Grade Players

- Daniel McLauchlan Scarborough (Western Australia) (2006/07, 2007/08, 2008/09)
- Daniel McLauchlan Cardiff-Boolaroo (Newcastle) (2015/16)

Sutherland District C.C. 1st Grade Players (Established 1965-66)

Player Number	Player	Debut
269	Nick Amos	14-10-17
246	Ben Dwarshuis	14-10-12
240	James Bills	22-10-11
231	Ben Marciante	26-10-08
181	Chris Lake	18-10-98
170	Daniel McLauchlan	19-11-94
154	Trent Woodhill	16-11-91
152	Craig Parsons	02-02-91
101	Brett Johnson	24-10-81
90	Wayne Wishart	02-02-80
61	Ted Terone	22-12-73
2	Robert Bain	25-09-65

HIGHER HONOURS

Daniel McLauchlan

- NSW U/17 (1994-95)
- Sutherland 1st Grade (1994/95 to 2003/04)
- NSW U/19 (1996-97)
- Australia U/19 (1996-97)
- NSW Colts (1997-98)
- St. George 1st Grade (2004/05, 2005/06, 2009/10, 2017/18)
- Scarborough 1st Grade (Western Australia) (2006/07, 2007/08, 2008/09)
- Western Australia Warriors (2006/07 & 2007/08)
- Bankstown 1st Grade (2010/11)
- Western Suburbs 1st Grade (2013/14, 2014/15)
- Cardiff-Boolaroo 1st Grade (Newcastle) (2015/16)
- Campbelltown-Camden 1st Grade (2016/17)

Ben Dwarshuis

- Sutherland 1st Grade (2012/13 to 2018/19)
- NSW U/19 (2012/13)
- NSW Blues Rookie Contract (2013/14 to 2014/15)
- NSW Blues (2015/16 to 2018/19)

- Sydney Sixers (2013/14 to 2018/19)
- Kings XI Punjab Indian Premier League (2018)
- Australian T20 Squad (2018)
- Prime Ministers XI verse South Africa (2018)

Brad Simpson

- Cricket Australia Pathways Rookie Squad (2016/17 to 2018/19
- U/16 Australian Squad (2017)
- U/17 Cricket Australia XI (2018)
- U/16 Australian Team (2018)
- U/17 NSW Metro Squad (2018)
- Bankstown 1st Grade (2018)
- U/19 Cricket Australia XI (2018)

SUTHERLAND SHIRE CRICKET ASSOCIATION INDIVIDUAL AWARD WINNERS

2018/19

- SSCA Batting Aggregate Pat Bird (B4) 538
- SSCA Batting Average Pat Bird (B4) 67.25
- B1 Batting Average Tim Russell (B1) 43.44
- B2 Batting Aggregate Josh Kedwell (B2) 457
- B2 Batting Average Josh Kedwell (B2) 65.29
- B4 Batting Aggregate Pat Bird (B4) 538
- B4 Batting Average Pat Bird (B4) 67.25

2017-18

- SSCA Bowling Award Ben Williams (B1) 30
- A2 Batting Average Spencer White (A2) 62.13
- A2 Batting Aggregate Spencer White (A2) 497
- A2 Wicket Keeping Jonathan Wright (A2) 12 catches + 2 stumpings = 14
- B1 Bowling Aggregate Ben Williams (B1) 30
- B1 All Rounder Award Ben Williams (B1) 267 runs + 30 wickets = 56.7
- B2 Batting Average John Sheehy (B2) 117.50
- B3 Bowling Aggregate Rithik Sahay (B3) 20

2016-17

- SSCA Wicket Keeper Award Jonathan Wright (B2/2) 17 catches + 5 stumpings = 22
- B1 Bowling Aggregate Ben Williams (B1/1) 27 wickets
- B1 Wicket Keeping Award Jaryd Duncan (B1/2) 15 catches + 1 stumping = 16
- B2 Wicket Keeper Award Jonathan Wright (B2/2) 17 catches + 5 stumpings = 22
- B3 All Rounder Award Tim Berry (B3) 342 runs + 21 wickets = 55.2
- C1 Bowling Average Award Josh Berry (C1) 11.75
- C1 Bowling Aggregate Award Rithik Sahay (C1) 28 wickets
- C1 All Rounder Award Josh Berry (C1) 300 runs + 20 wickets = 50.0

2015-16

- SSCA Cricketer of the Year Tim Berry
- SSCA Batting Aggregate Tim Berry 928
- SSCA Batting Average Tim Berry 185.60
- A2 Bowling Aggregate Andrew Jones 26
- B1 Wicket Keeping Ian Mitchell 13c + 2st = 15
- B2 Wicket Keeping Andrew Wise 10c + 2st = 12
- B6 Batting Aggregate Tim Berry 928
- B6 Batting Average Tim Berry 185.60
- B6 Bowling Aggregate Matt Berry & Brayden Heffernan 26 each
- B6 Bowling Average Brayden Heffernan 8.80
- B6 All Rounder Brayden Heffernan 419r + 26w = 67.9
- C2 Bowling Aggregate Angus Brown 25

- A2 Batting Aggregate Sam Haynes 370
- B2 Bowling Average Matthew Sambuco 8.65
- B6 Batting Aggregate Tim Berry 346
- C1 Batting Aggregate Jarrod Mazurkiewicz 679
- C1 Batting Average Jarrod Mazurkiewicz 97.00
- C1 Wicket Keeping Jarrod Mazurkiewicz 8c + 3st = 11

- A1 Wicket Keeping Jonathan Wright 20c + 1st = 21
- B1 Bowling Aggregate Matthew Carroll 28
- B2 Bowling Average Matthew Sambuco 9.75
- B2 Bowling Aggregate Matthew Sambuco 24
- B2 All Rounder Matthew Sambuco 299r + 24w = 53.9
- B3 Batting Aggregate Sam Haynes 410
- B3 All Rounder Stewart Lumsden 222r + 29w = 51.2
- B4 Bowling Average Luke Richards 13.85
- B4 Bowling Aggregate Luke Richards 27
- B4 All Rounder Luke Richards 238r + 27w = 50.8
- C2 Bowling Average Matt Berry 12.40
- C2 Bowling Aggregate Matt Berry 25

2012-13

- A1 Wicket Keeping Jonathan Wright 18c + 0st = 18
- B1 Batting Average Adam Pascoe 82.00
- B2 Score Book Award Judy Lofthouse
- B6 Bowling Average Matthew Barnes 10.16
- B6 Bowling Aggregate Mitchell Davis 32
- B6 All Rounder Matthew Barnes 611r + 25w = 86.1

2011-12

- SSCA Best Bowling Aggregate Robbie Knight 42
- SSCA Wicket Keeping Jaryd Duncan 16c & 8st = 24
- B1 Batting Aggregate Ben Latham 371
- B1 Batting Average Ben Latham 46.38
- B1 Bowling Average Paul Bremner 7.38
- B2 Batting Aggregate Drew Lake 379
- B2 Batting Average Drew Lake 47.38
- B5 Batting Aggregate Greg Ings 349
- B5 Bowling Aggregate Kurt Mitchell 40
- B5 Wicket Keeping Jaryd Duncan 16c & 8st = 24
- B5 Score Book Award Judy Lofthouse
- B6 Bowing Aggregate Stewart Lumsden 37
- B9 Batting Average Dean McMillan 37.86
- C1 Batting Aggregate Martin McKenzie 365
- C1 Bowling Average and Aggregate Robbie Knight 42 @ 9.43
- C2 Batting Average Sam Haynes 47.13

2010-11

- SSCA Batting Average John Sheehy 73.38
- SSCA All rounder John Sheehy 587r + 40w = 98.7
- A2 Batting Average Paul Barnes 68.60
- A2 Bowling Aggregate Matthew Carroll 22
- B4 Bowling Aggregate Timothy Russell 27
- B5 Batting Average Hayden Smith 67.60
- B5Bowling Average Drew Lake 10.54
- B6 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse
- B7 Batting Average John Sheehy 73.38
- B7 Batting Aggregate John Sheehy 587
 B7 Bayling Aygregate John Sheehy 7.75
- B7 Bowling Average John Sheehy 7.75
- B7 Bowling Aggregate John Sheehy 40
 B7 All rounder John Sheehy 587r + 40w = 98.7
- B7 Wicket Keeper Greg Richards 14c + 5S = 19 dismissals
- B9 Batting average Darren Chapman 44.00

- SSCA Batting Average John Sheehy 127.0
- SSCA Wicket Keeping Michael Smith 30c + 2s = 32 dismissals
- B1 Bowling Aggregate Wade Horsnell 27
- B3 Wicket Keeping Nathan McNamara 12c + 3s = 15
- B6 Score Book Award Judy Lofthouse
- B8 Bowling Aggregate Mark Varley 34
- B8 Wicket Keeping Michael Smith 30c + 2s = 32 dismissals
- C1 Batting Average John Sheehy 127.00
- C1 Bowling Aggregate Anthony Campey 41

- A2 Batting Avaerage Paul Barnes 67.50
- B4 Wicket Keeping Chris Moreland 13c = 13 dismissals
- B5 Batting Average Simon Andrews 56.00
- B6 Wicket Keeping Michael Smith 11c + 1s = 12
- B7 Score Book Award Judy Lofthouse
- B7 Bowling Average Kurt Mitchell 9.49
- C1 All Rounder Dale Bates 200r + 26w = 46.00 pts

2007-08

- B1 Batting Average Paul Barnes 57.25
- B1 Batting Aggregate Stewart Vella 466
- B2 Batting Average Geoff Morris 54.83
- B2 Wicket Keeping Jonathan Wright 9 dismissals
- B7 Bowling Average Mitchell Davis 9.34
- B7 Bowling Aggregate Mitchell Davis 35
- B8 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

2006-07

- SSCA Batting Average Chris Lake 98.5 avg
- SSCA Batting Aggregrate Stewart Vella 903 runs
- SSCA All Rounder Stewart Vella 903 runs + 30 wickets = 120.3 pts
- A2 Batting Average Chris Lake 98.5 avg
- A2 All Rounder Chris Lake 394 runs + 25 wickets = 64.4 pts
- B2 Batting Aggregrate Stewart Vella 903 runs
- B2 All Rounder Stewart Vella 903 runs + 30 wickets = 120.3 pts
- B2 Wicket Keeping Mark Mitchell 16 catches
- B3 Bowling Average Nabeel Chaudhry 10 avg
- B3 Wicket Keeping Jonathon Wright 13 catches + 5 stumpings = 18 dismissals
- B6 All Rounder Tim Russell 307 runs + 25 wickets = 55.7 pts
- C1 Batting Average Glenn Caukill 63.2 avg
- C1 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

2005-06

- B2 Bowling Aggregate Matthew Carroll 36
- B2 Wicket Keeping Stewart Vella (18)
- C1 All Rounder Stuart Dibb 467 runs & 22 wkts
- C3 Bowling Average Chris Blundell 5.81
- C3 All Rounder Nick Stewart 358 runs & 22 wkts
- C3 Wicket Keeping Mitchell Ryan 13c
- B8 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

2004-05

- A1 Batting Aggregate Greg Heffernan 508
- A1 Batting Average Greg Heffernan 56.44
- B6 Wicket Keeping Chris Moreland 24
- B8 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

2003-04

- SSCA Bowling Average Stewart Vella 5.50
- B5 Bowling Average Stewart Vella 5.50
- B5 All Rounder Stewart Vella 246 runs & 28 wkts
- B6 Bowling Aggregate Chris Nelson 35
- B6 Wicket Keeping Chris Moreland 16c
- C1 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

- SSCA Bowling Average Ian Mitchell 7.25
- A1 Bowling Average Paul Cameron 12.43
- B8 Wicket Keeping Ed Bullock 11
- B9 Bowling Average Ian Mitchell 7.25
- B9 Wicket Keeping Matthew Newman 12
- B9 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

- A1 Batting Average Jason Crimlisk 53.60
- A1 Bowling Average Blake Cousemaker 9.0
- B5 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse
- B7 Scorebook Award Bob Price

1999-00

- B2 Bowling Aggregate Paul Waddell 40
- B7 Bowling Average Michael Green 9.88
- B7 Wicket Keeping Jim Collins 17
- C2 All Rounder David West (210 runs & 28 wkts)
- B3 Scorebook Award Bob Price
- C2 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

1998-99

- A1 Bowling Average Ross Stuart 5.84
- B4 Batting Aggregate Lee Bailey 356
- B4 Bowling Aggregate Paul Waddell 36
- B4 Bowling Average Paul Waddell 10.4
- B4 Wicket Keeping Brad Collins 20
- C1 Wicket Keeping Jim Collins 13
- C1 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

1997-98

• B5 Bowling Average – Marcus Loxley 8.96

1996-97

- B6 Bowling Aggregate Paul Waddell 46
- B6 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

1995-96

- A1 Wicket Keeping Stuart White
- B7 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

1994-95 •

- A1 Batting Aggregate Drew Lake 463
- A1 Wicket Keeping Award Stuart White

1993-94

- A1 Batting Aggregate Brian McKenna 435
- B3 Bowling Aggregate Anthony Stanley 41
- B3 Bowling Average Anthony Stanley 8.3
- C2 Wicket Keeping Adrian Virdun
- C2 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

1992-93

- A2 Bowling Aggregate Jason Crimlisk 42
- A2 Bowling Average Jason Crimlisk 7.95
- B2 Bowling Aggregate Gavin Shaw 41
- B2 Bowling Average Gavin Shaw 10.39
- C1 Wicket Keeping Award Adrian Virdun
- C1 Scorebook Award Judy Lofthouse

1991-92

- A1 Batting Aggregate Greg Heffernan 492/li>
- A1 Batting Average Greg Heffernan 61.5
- B1 Batting Aggregate Paul Cameron 396
- B1 Bowling Aggregate Paul Cameron 36

1990-91

- B2 Bowling Average Ray Cowan 8.96
- C1 Scorebook Award Bob Vannan

- B2 Bowling Aggregate Adrian Vannan 35
- B2 Bowling Average Adrian Vannan 8.2
- C1 Bowling Average Phillip Blom 8.06

- A1 Bowling Average Glenn Hickey 10.73
- B3 Batting Average Craig Tever 41.1
- B7 Bowling Aggregate Robin Dodd 58
- B7 All Rounder Robin Dodd

1987-88

A1 Batting Average – Steve Messiter 111

1986-87

- A1 Batting Aggregate Greg Heffernan 491
- A1 Batting Average Greg Heffernan 44.6
- B2 Batting Aggregate Anthony Lovett 407
- B2 Batting Average Anthony Lovett 33.91
- B2 Scorebook Award Bob Vannan
- B3 Scorebook Award Barry Spencer

1985-86

- B1 Bowling Aggregate Michael Price 39 wkts
- B1 Wicket Keeping Award Michael Stephenson
- B6 Batting Average Craig Parsons 53.75
- B6 Bowling Aggregate David Perritt 52
- B6 Bowling Average David Perritt 8.52
- B6 Wicket Keeping Anthony Lovett 25
- B7 Batting Average Trent Woodhill 32.12
- B7 Scorebook Award Barry Spencer
- C3 Batting Aggregate Russ Waddell 400

1984-85

- A1 Bowling Aggregate Ian Cranston 37
- A1 Bowling Average Steve Gorry 12.68
- B5 Batting Aggregate John McDonnell 452
- B5 Bowling Average David Perritt 7.87
- C3 Bowling Average Mark Curness 7.29

1983-84

- A1 Bowling Aggregate Steve Gorry 39 & Gerry Dwarshuis 39
- A1 Wicket Keeping Steve Messiter
- A2 Bowling Aggregate John Richardson 50
- B2 Bowling Average Mark Oliff 6.50
- B2 Scorebook Award Mrs. R Langston
- B6 Bowling Average Adrian Vannan 8.00
- B6 Scorebook Award Bob Vannan
- C1 Bowling Aggregate Chad Smith 44

1982-83

- A1 Batting Average Clem Heffernan 41.4
- A1 Bowling Aggregate Steve Gorry 42
- A1 Bowling Average Steve Gorry 9.6
- A3 Batting Aggregate Greg Heffernan 626
- A3 Batting Average Greg Heffernan 78.25
- B4 Bowling Aggregate Greg Herne 50
- B4 Wicket Keeping Michael Stephenson 23
- B6 Bowling Average Michael Price 6.53
- B6 All Rounder Award Michael Price

1981-82

- B1 Scorebook Award Di Lovette
- B2 Batting Average Steve Clinch 49.70
- B6 Bowling Average Peter Bland 5.8

- A1 Scorebook Award Elizabeth Fordyce
- A3 Wicket Keeping Michael Stephenson 24

- A3 Scorebook Award Di Lovette
- C2 Scorebook Award Karlene Messiter

- A1 Scorebook Award Miss C. Chudleigh
- B1 Bowling Aggregate Steve Gorry 70 wkts
- B1 Wicket Keeping Steve Messiter 33
- B4 Batting Aggregate Michael Bailey 485 runs

1978-79

- Batting Aggregate Clem Heffernan 459
- Batting Average Clem Heffernan 51
- A1 Wicket Keeping Clem Heffernan 30
- A2 Batting Aggregate Darren Higgins 542
- A2 Bowling Aggregate Tony Pearsall 46
- B3 Batting Average Ted Russell 39.6
- B3 Bowling Aggregate Gerry Dwarshuis 51

1977-78

- A1 Batting Average Ray Noakes 51.83
- A1 Bowling Average Wayne Wishart 10.75
- A1 Wicket Keeping Brett Johnson 34
- A2 Bowling Average Ernie Price 10.87
- B4 Scorebook Award Ann Stanford
- C2 Bowling Aggregate John Richardson 77 wkts

1976-77

- A1 Batting Average Ray Noakes 85.00
- A1 Wicket Keeping Ron Phillips
- A3 Bowling Aggregate Wayne Wishart 50
- A3 Bowling Average Wayne Wishart 8.50
- B2 Bowling Aggregate Peter Royle 62 wkts

1975-76

A1 Batting Average – Clem Heffernan 46.30

1974-75

- A1 Batting Average Clem Heffernan 82.80
- B3 Scorebook Award Miss S. Perry

1973-74

- A1 Wicket Keeping Barry Blanchard 33
- A1 Scorebook Award Shela Jones
- B3 Batting Average Jim Black 52.75

1972-73

- A1 Batting Average Ray Noakes 36.2
- A1 Scorebook Award Shela Jones
- A3 Bowling Average Don Watts 6.60
- B2 Batting Aggregate Warren Moodie 527
- B3 Batting Average G. Stuart 52
- B4 Batting Average Jim Black 57.8

1971-72

A1 Batting Average – Robert Rushbourne 39.73

1970-71

- A1 Batting Aggregate Robert Rushbourne 659
- A1 Batting Average Robert Rushbourne 50.69
- A1 All Rounder Robert Rushbourne
- A1 Wicket Keeping Award Barry Blanchard 33
- A2 Aggregate Ray Dunn 43

1969-70

- A1 Bowling Aggregate Fred Terone 55
- A1 Bowling Average Fred Terone 10.80
- A1 Wicket Keeping Barry Blanchard 29
- B3 Wicket Keeping Mark Johnson 29 Dismissals

1968-69

• A1 Batting Average – Ray Noakes 67.02

- A1 All Rounder Award Ray Noakes (739 runs & 43 wkts)
- A1 Wicket Keeping Award Ted Terone 41

- A2 Wicket Keeping Award Barry Blanchard 36
- A2 Batting Average Barry Blanchard 40.3

SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION INDIVIDUAL AWARD WINNERS

SSJCA awards 16 trophies annually (or more or less as required) to premiership winning teams in all grades from U16A down through to 10F. Further to this there are another 15 awarded for individual performance.

2018/19

- Andrew Hilditch Trophy Best Performance 10A Cooper Holmes
- Cliff Paddy Memorial Trophy Representative Individual (Boys) Achievement Award NSWDCA Lachlan Ritchie (Gee Shield)
- Harry Peters Trophy Representative Individual Achievement Award Presidents XII Tyler Cussen
- Sutherland Medal Best Performance in the 16A Final Corey Moors
- Brian Quinn Trophy Best Bowling Performance U10/U12 Cooper Martin (12D) 18 wickets
- 16A Bowling Aggregate Hayden Lindsay (16A) 16 wickets
- 16C Batting Aggregate Brayden Johnston (16C) 422 runs
- 16C Batting Average Brayden Johnston (16C) 49.89
- 16C Bowling Average Nathan Allen (16C) 7.33
- 14C Batting Average Luke Carter-Benjamin (14C) 89
- 14D Bowling Aggregate Jayden Driscoll (14D) 12 wickets
- 12D Bowling Aggregate Cooper Martin (12D) 18 wickets
- 10A Batting Aggregate Tom Faulkner (10A) 422 runs
- 10B Batting Aggregate Harrison Dannes (10B) 248 runs

2017/18

- Andrew Hilditch Trophy Best Performance 10A Lucas Sheehy
- Cliff Paddy Memorial Trophy Representative Individual (Boys) Achievement Award NSWDCA Lachlan Ritchie (Cawsey Shield)
- The Michael Ryan Trophy Representative Individual (Girls) Achievement Award NSWDCA Bianca McKenzie (Mollie Dive)
- The Chatland Medal Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14 Steven Green (16C)
 653 runs @ 65.30
- 16C Batting Aggregate Steven Green (16C) 653 runs
- 16C Batting Average Steven Green (16C) 65.30
- 16C Bowling Aggregate Harrison Long (16C) 31 wickets
- 16C Bowling Average Harrison Long (16C) 4.61
- 14D Batting Average Beau Wallace (14D) 180.50
- 12A Bowling Average Lachlan Ritchie (12A) 7.50
- 12D Bowling Aggregate Seth O'Keefe (12D) 11 wickets
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Connor Ganderton (10A)14 wickets

2016/17

- The Chatland Medal Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14 Hamish Jacka (14C)
 638 runs @ 106.33
- 16C Bowling Average Jack Stewart (16C) 6.93
- 14C Batting Aggregate Hamish Jacka (14C) 638 runs
- 14C Batting Average Hamish Jacka (14C) 106.33
- 12D Bowling Average Patrick Hughes (12D) 3.06

2015/16

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Nick Amos (16A) 371 runs @ 37.10 & 25 wickets @ 5.72
- Alan Craston Memorial Trophy Best Performance 12A Luke Ritchie (12A) 593 runs @ 148.25 & 4 wickets @ 24.75

- Cliff Paddy Memorial Trophy NSWDCA Representative Individual Achievement Award Nick Amos (Watson Shield)
- Service to Shire Junior Cricket Harry Robbins
- Service to Shire Junior Cricket Ian Latham
- The Stan Steed Trophy Best Association Bowling Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14 Nick Amos (16A) 25 wickets @ 5.72
- The Jim Lynch Trophy Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U12/U10 Luke Ritchie (12A)
 593 runs @ 148.25
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Lachlan Ritchie (10A) 13 wickets
- 10A Bowling Average Lachlan Ritchie (10A) 7.62 average
- 10C Batting Aggregate Ryan Davidson (10C) 113 runs
- 12A Batting Aggregate Luke Ritchie (12A) 593 runs
- 12A Batting Aggregate Luke Ritchie (12A) 148.25 average
- 14C Batting Aggregate Dane Courtney (14C-2) 380 runs
- 16A Bowling Aggregate Nick Amos (16A) 25 wickets
- 16A Bowling Average Nick Amos (10A) 5.72 average

2014/15

- Sutherland Medal Best Performance in the 16A Final Jack Dwarshuis (16A)
- Jack Rutty Memorial Trophy Most Catches U12/U10 Traditional Cricket Kye Robson (12D-1) 12 catches
- 16A Batting Average Dylan Koprivec (16A) 72.67 ave
- 16A Bowling Average Jack Dwarshuis (16A) 9.64 ave
- 16B Batting Aggregate Max Batty (16B-1) 303 runs
- 16B Batting Average Julian Scott (16B-1) 34.86 ave
- 12A Bowling Aggregate Luke Ritchie (12A) 16 wkts
- 12A Bowling Average Luke Ritchie (12A) 8.19 ave
- 12D Batting Average Hamish Jacka (12D-2) 67.50 ave
- 10B Batting Aggregate Lachlan Ritchie (10B) 209 runs
- 10B Batting Average Lachlan Ritchie (10B) 209 ave

2013/14

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Harry Tattersall (16A) 297 runs @ 37.13 & 12 wkts @ 8 33
- The Jim Lynch Trophy Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U12/U10 Blake Barden (12C) 388 runs @ 64.67
- Sutherland Medal Best Performance in the 16A Final Jarrod Mazurkiewicz (16A)
- U16 Wicket Keeper of the Year Matt Wright (16A) 11c & 4st
- 16A Batting Aggregate Joshua Johnston (16A) 298 runs
- 16A Batting Average Joshua Johnston (16A) 59.60 ave
- 16A Bowling Average Harry Tattersall (16A) 8.33 ave
- 16D Bowling Aggregate Matthew Jones (16D) 18 wkts
 14B Batting Average Max Batty (14B-1) 46.29 ave
- 12C Batting Aggregate Blake Barden (12C) 388 runs
- 12C Batting Average Blake Barden (12C) 64.67 ave
- 12E Batting Average Hamish Jacka (12E) 77.00 ave

2012/13

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Nathan Marciante (16A) 547 runs @ 54.70 & 23 wkts
 @ 8.52
- The Chatland Medal Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14 Nathan Marciante (16A) 547 runs @ 54.70
- Sutherland Medal Best Performance in the 16A Final Dylan Rae (16A)
- Harry Peters Trophy Representative Individual Acheivement Award Presidents XII Matt Wright (16A)
- 16A Batting Aggregate Nathan Marciante (16A) 547 runs
- 16A Batting Average Nathan Marciante (16A) 54.70 ave
- 16C Batting Aggregate George Stivaktas (16C) 331 runs
- 16C Batting Average George Stivaktas (16C) 41.38 ave
- 14D Batting Average Dylan Parkes (14D) 199.00 ave
- 14E Batting Aggregate Bradley James (14E) 230 runs
 14E Batting Average Bradley James (14E) 57.50 ave
- 16C Bowling Aggregate Jack Mapp (16C) 15 wkts
- 16C Bowling Aggregate Kieran Levin (16C) 15 wkts
- 14C Bowling Aggregate Tristan McGuire (14C) 20 wkts

- 14E Bowling Average Bradley James (14E) 4.90 ave
- 10A Bowling Average Luke Ritchie (10A) 5.73 ave
- 10C Bowling Aggregate Tyler Coldwell (10C) 12 wkts

2011/12

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Dane Fisher Engadine (16A)
- Sutherland Medal Best Performance in the 16A Final Dane Fisher (16A)
- 10A Bowling Average Mitchell Betts (10A) 6.75
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Mitchell Betts (10A) 16
- 12A Batting Average Matthew Simpson (12A) 31.17
- 14C Bowling Average Kieran Levin (14C) 3.79
- 16A Batting Average Dane Fisher (16A) 43.88

2010/11

- The Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- S.D.C.C. Trophy Best Performance 14A Dane Fisher (14A)
- The Chatland Award Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14 Dane Fisher (14A)
- Jack Rutty Memorial Trophy Most Catches U12/U10 Traditional Cricket Joshua Smith (10A) & Nicholas Plunkett (12D)
- 14A Batting Average Dane Fisher (16A) 113.60
- 14A Batting Aggregate Dane Fisher (14A) 568
- 14A Bowing Average Alex Gersbach (14A) 5.12
- 14C Batting Aggregate Matt Wright (14C) 188
- 12C Batting Average Josh Berry (12C) 36.71
- 12C Batting Aggregate Josh Berry (12C) 257
- 12D Bowling Average Fynn Rodgers (12D) 5.21
- 12D Bowling Aggregate Nicholas Plunkett (12D) 17
- 12F Batting Aggregate Rhys Ingham (12F) 141
- 12F Bowling Average Ben Grimison (12F) 4.69
- 12F Bowling Aggregate Ben Grimison (12F) 13

2009/10

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- 10A Batting Average Matt Simpson (10A) 64.75
- 10C Batting Average Andrew Ritchie (10C) 41.67
- 10C Bowling Average Harrison Blacker (10C) 5.88
- 14A Bowling Aggregate Marcus Beattie (14A) 22
- 14E Batting Aggregate Jackson Garrett (14E) 346
- 14E Batting Average Jackson Garrett (14E) 49.43

16C Batting Average - Cameron Lane (16C) 48.29

2008/09

This season saw the highest number of SSJCA awards going to Engadine Dragon players. It goes to show what a fantastic year the club had and what unbelievable talent we have in our players and their respective coaches.

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Ryan Almond (16A)
- SDCC Trophy Best Performance 14A Jonathan Haslam Engadine (14A)
- Alan Craston Memorial Trophy Best Performance 12A Nathan Marciante Engadine (12A)
- Andrew Hilditch Trophy Best Performance 10A Jarrod Mazurkiewicz Engadine (10A)
- Alan Ward Memorial Trophy Best Representative Team Performance NSWDCA Cawsey Shield Coached by Peter Schofield, EDCC Players included Brendan Curtis (C), Brayden Heffernan, Nathan Marciante & Dylan Rae
- 16A Batting Aggregate Ryan Almond (16A) 507
- 16A Batting Average Benjamin Dwarshuis (16A) 57.5
- 16A Bowling Average Ryan Almond (16A) 12.93
- 16C Batting Aggregate Samuel Haynes (16C) 372
- 12A Batting Aggregate Nathan Marciante (12A) 396
- 12A Batting Average Brendan Curtis (12A) 45.67
- 12A Bowling Aggregate Brayden Heffernan (12A) 14
- 12A Bowling Average Brayden Heffernan (12A) 7.86
- 12C Batting Aggregate Matt Wright (12C) 362
- 12C Batting Average Matt Wright (12C) 40.22
- 12E Batting Aggregate Jackson Garrett (12E) 227
- 12E Batting Average Jackson Garrett (12E) 56.75
- 12E Bowling Aggregate Justin Byrnes (12E) 17
- 12E Bowling Average Justin Byrnes (12E) 3.65

- 10A Batting Aggregate Jarrod Mazurkiewicz (10A) 314
- 10A Batting Average Jarrod Mazurkiewicz (10A) 62.8

2007/08

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Ryan Marlow (358 runs at 29.83 & 12 wickets at 18.75)
- The Chatland Award Best Association Batting Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14 Ryan Emerson
- The Stan Steed Trophy Best Association Bowling Performance Traditional Cricket U16/U14 Joel D'Imperio
- Don Masters Memorial Trophy Best Association Wicketkeeper Traditional Cricket Jordan Dow
- Alan Ward Memorial Trophy Best Representative Team Performance NSWDCA Gee Shield Coached by Dennis
 and Chris Pendergast, Managed by Kerrie Smith, EDCC Players included Hayden Smith (C) and Nicholas
 Chamberlain
- 16A Batting Aggregate Ryan Marlow 358
- 16A Bowling Aggregate John Watson 26
- 16C Batting Aggregate Ryan Emerson 665
- 16C Batting Average Ryan Emerson 55.42
- 14A Bowling Aggregate Joel D'Imperio 28
- 14A Bowling Average Ryan Almond 5.52
- 14A Wicket Keeping Association Record Jordan Dow 25
- 12D Batting Aggregate Joshua Kedwell 241
- 12D Batting Average Jarrod Cosgriff 40.5
- 10A Bowling Average Jarrod Mazurkiewicz 4.29

2006-07

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Ben Marciante (464 runs @ 58 & 19 wkts @ 13.74)
- Brian Quinn Trophy Best Bowling Performance U10/U12 Nathan Marciante (24 wkts @ 3.67)
- Cliff Paddy Trophy NSWDCA Representative Individual Achievement Award Hayden Smith
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Nathan Marciante 24
- 10A Wicket Keeping Award Dylan Rae 13 Dismissals
- 14A Bowling Aggregate Joel D'Imperio
- 16A Batting Aggregate & Average Ben Marciante 464 runs
- 16A Batting Average Ben Marciante 58

2005-06

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Brendan Curtis 19
- 12A Wicket Keeping Award Jordan Dow (12 Dismissals)
- 12D Bowling Average Nicholas Chamberlain 3.74
- 14C Batting Aggregate Blake Duncum 368
- 14C Batting Average Blake Duncum 33.45
- 14A Bowling Aggregate Sam Newman 24 wkts
- 16A Wicket Keeping Award Ryan Croom 17 Dismissals
- 16A Bowling Aggregate Ben Marciante 21

2004-05

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- Stan Steed Trophy Best Bowling Performance U14/U16 Ryan Marlow 34 wkts (Association Record)
- 12B Wicket Keeping Award Matthew Christison (7 Dismissals)
- 14D Batting Aggregate Clint Allen 362 runs
- 14B Wicket Keeping Award Adam Smith (12 Dismissals)
- 14B Bowling Aggregate Ryan Marlow 34
- 14A Bowling Aggregate Mark Rice 27
- 16C Bowling Aggregate Glenn Caukill 26
- 16B Batting Aggregate Chris Reeves 494 runs
- 16B Batting Average Chris Reeves 54.89
- 16B Bowling Average James Stone 6.43

2003-04

- 10A Bowling Aggregate Hayden Smith 22
- 14D Bowling Aggregate Clint Allen 23

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Jay Davis (525 runs @ 58.33 & 18 wkts @ 11.89)
- 12B Batting Average Michael Dumbrell 39.50

- 12A Batting Aggregate Ben Marciante 479
- 12A Batting Average Ben Marciante 159.67 (Average an Association Record)
- 14B Batting Aggregate Chris Reeves 411
- 14B Bowling Aggregate Greg Ings 33
- 14B Bowling Average Greg Ings 7.60
- 16A Batting Aggregate Jay Davis 525
- 16A Batting Average Jay Davis 58.33
- 16A Bowling Average James Gardner 11.05

- Brian Quinn Trophy Best Bowling Performance U12/U14 Sam Newman 23
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Sam Newman 23
- 14E Batting Aggregate Omar Samad 392
- 14E Batting Average Omar Samad 56.00
- 14E Bowling Average Omar Samad 4.89

2000-01

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Ryan Shepherd (481 runs @ 96.2 & 7 wkts @ 18.40)
- 12A Batting Average Chris Reeves 42
- 14A Batting Average Jay Davis 53.17
- 14D Batting Average Mitchell Ryan 54
- 16A Batting Aggregate Ryan Shepherd 481
- 16A Batting Average Ryan Shepherd 96.2
- 16A Bowling Aggregate Brett Martin 18 & Jason Radford 18

1999-00

- SSDC Award Best Performance 14A Ryan Shepherd (665 runs @ 95 & 22 wkts @ 10)
- Chatland Award Best Batting Performance U14/U16 Ryan Shepherd (665 runs @ 95)
- Jim Lynch Trophy Best Batting Performance U10/U12 Dylan Beardow (549 runs @ 91.5)
- Bill Lawler Trophy Most Catches U14/U16 Ryan Shepherd 15
- 12C Batting Aggregate & Average Dylan Beardow (549 runs @ 91.5) Association Record
- 12C Bowling Aggregate & Average Chris McMahon (20 wkts @ 8.60) Association Record
- 14A Batting Aggregate & Average Ryan Shepherd (665 runs @ 95)
- 14A Bowling Aggregate Ryan Shepherd (22 wkts)
- 16C Bowling Average Brett Martin (7.98)
- 16A Bowling Average Chris Mar (7.94)

1998-99

- 14A Bowling Average Jason Radford (8.88)
- 12A Bowling Aggregate Cameron Turner (20 wkts)
- 10C Batting Aggregate Chris McMahon (151 runs)
- 10E Bowling Aggregate Glenn Caukill (18 wkts)

1997-98

• 12A Bowling Average – Mitchell Durie (5.80)

1996-97

- 16B Bowling Average Lee Bailey (10.55)
- 14C Bowling Aggregate Darren Baxter (20 wkts)
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Eamon Hillen (18 wkts)

1995-96

- Best Bowling Performance in Introductory Cricket Nathan Hughes 10D (15 wkts @ 2.13)
- 10D Bowling Aggregate & Average Nathan Hughes (15 wkts @ 2.13)

1994-95

- Best Batting Performance in Introductory Cricket Ryan McLauchlan (10C) (121 runs @ 121.00)
- 14B Batting Aggregate & Average Kevin Stewart (414 runs @ 51.75)
- 12A Bowling Average Matthew Barnes (8.56)
- 12D Batting Aggregate Daniel Latham (222 runs)
- 12D Bowling Aggregate & Average Simon Andrews (20 wkts @ 2.70) Average Association Record
- 10C Batting Aggregate & Average Ryan McLauchlan (121 runs @ 121.00) Association Record
- 10C Bowling Aggregate Mitchell Durie (7 wkts)

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Chris Lake (510 runs @ 63.75 & 19 wkts @ 11.47)
- 16A Batting Aggregate Chris Lake (510 runs)

- 16C Bowling Aggregate Liam Hubbard (23 wkts)
- 14B Bowling Aggregate & Average Brett Gorry (19 wkts @ 7.47)
- 12A Wicket Keeping Award Tim Moreland
- 10D Bowling Aggregate & Average Simon Andrews (18 wkts @ 1.72) Average Association Record
- 10E Bowling Average Luke Watt (5.60)

- SDCC Trophy Best Performance 14A Chris Lake (643 runs @ 71.44 & 19 wkts @ 9.21)
- 14A Batting Aggregate & Average Chris Lake (643 runs @ 71.44)
- 14A Bowling Aggregate Chris Lake (19 wkts)
- 14C Wicket Keeping Award Daniel Wackwitz

1991-92

- 16A Wicket Keeping Award Alan Biddle
- 16A Batting Average Dean Heslehurst (68.67)
- 16C Bowling Aggregate Brian Somerville (39 wkts)
- 14A Batting Average Chris Lake (68.50)
- 12C Batting Aggregate & Average Kevin Stewart (195 runs @ 39)
- 12C Bowling Aggregate & Average Kevin Stewart (30 wkts @ 3.33)
- 10A Wicket Keeping Award Troy Glennan

1990-91

- Best Performance 12A Chris Lake (576 runs @51.50)
- 14C Batting Aggregate & Average Darren Price (370 runs @ 33.64)
- 12A Batting Aggregate & Average Chris Lake (576 runs @ 51.50)
- 10A Wicket Keeping Award Tim Moreland

1989-90

- Best Performance 12A Chris Lake (442 runs @ 44.2)
- 16A Batting Average Greg Goodman (59)
- 16A Bowling Aggregate Jason Crimlisk (20 wkts)
- 14D Bowling Average Ben Taylor (3.46)
- 12A Batting Aggregate Chris Lake (442)

1988-89

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Nathan Morando (354 runs @ 39.33 & 30 wkts @ 12.76)
- 16A Bowling Aggregate Nathan Morando (30 wkts)

1987-88

- 16C Wicket Keeping Award Brad Wardrobe
- 14A Bowling Aggregate Nathan Morando (47 wkts)
- 14C Batting Aggregate Josef Zabaras (232 runs @ 23.2)
- 14C Bowling Average Matthew Miller (6.54)
- 14D Batting Aggregate Daniel Walton (328 runs)

1986-87

- 16C Wicket Keeping Award Gavin McGuirk
- 14C Wicket Keeping Award David Steward
- 14C Bowling Aggregate Chad Moodie (42 wkts)
- 12A Wicket Keeping Award Greg Goodman
- 12A Batting Average Greg Goodman (62.20)
- 12B Bowling Aggregate Troy Atkins (27 wkts)

1985-86

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Craig Parsons (343 runs @ 57.16 & 19 wkts @ 14.63)
- 12A Bowling Aggregate Nathan Morando (42 wkts)
- 10B Wicket Keeping Award Anthony Lawrence
- 10D Bowling Average Darren Hands (1.50)
- 10E Bowling Aggregate Chris Chapman (9 wkts)

1984-85

- 16C Wicket Keeping Award Bart Thornthwaite
- 16C Bowling Aggregate Warren Wilcox (30 wkts)
- 12F Bowling Aggregate Chad Moodie (34 wkts)
- 10A Wicket Keeping Award Greg Goodman
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Michael Gleeson (37 wkts)
- 10A Bowling Average Steven Morando (7.13)

- Best Performance 10A Nathan Morando (479 runs @ 59.88 & 32 wkts @ 7.22)
- 14A Wicket Keeping Award Brad Stuve
- 14D Batting Average Robbie Harvey (35.62)
- 10A Wicket Keeping Award Greg Goodman
- 10A Batting Aggregate Nathan Morando (479 runs)

- 12E Bowling Aggregate Matthen McGilvray (32 wkts)
- 10C Batting Aggregate Nathan Brown (180 runs)

1981-82

- 16A Bowling Average Greg Langston (9.74)
- 16B Batting Average John Westlake (32.5)
- 16B Bowling Average John Westlake (5.33)
- 14B Wicket Keeping Award Anthony Lovette (11 Dismissals)
- 12C Wicket Keeping Award Brad Stuve
- 12C Bowling Aggregate Steven Gordon (38 wkts)
- 12E Batting Average Derek Spencer (80.50)
- 10D Bowling Average Cameron Napper (1.87)

1980-81

- 16A Bowling Average Peter Bland (10.53)
- 14A Bowling Aggregate John Short (26 wkts)
- 14B Bowling Average Robert Allan (8.89)
- 14D Batting Aggregate & Average David Crane (348 runs @ 34.8)
- 14D Bowling Average Darren Parkes (5.71)
- 12A Wicket Keeping Award Anthony Lovette
- 12B Wicket Keeping Award Glenn Langston
- 10C Batting Aggregate Matthew Handley (136 runs)

1979-80

- 16B Batting Average John Smith (60.20)
- 14B Wicket Keeping Award Glenn Nelson
- 10A Wicket Keeping Award Brett Landrigan

1978-79

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- 16A Batting Average Glenn Anderson ((55.20)
- 16A Bowling Average Steve Gorry (9.86)
- 12E Bowling Average Stuart Kenny (4.63)
- 10A Wicket Keeping Award Anthony Lovette

1977-78

- 16A Bowling Average Wayne Wishart (8.46)
- 12B Batting Average Dean Kember (60.33)
- 10C Batting Aggregate & Average Cameron Rossiter (384 runs @ 64.00) Association Record

1976-77

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- 16C Batting Average Rodney Hirst (51.5)
- 14D Batting Aggregate & Average Craig Dow (503 runs @ 38.69) Aggregate Association Record
- 14D Bowling Average Craig Dow (5.00)
- 10A Bowling Aggregate John Westlake (68 wkts)
- 10B Wicket keeping Award Grant Martin
- 10C Wicket keeping Award Anthony Lovette

1975-76

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- SDCC Trophy Best Performance 14A Brett Ferguson
- 14A Bowling Aggregate & Average Brett Ferguson (44 wkts @ 7.66)
- 12A Bowling Aggregate & Average Greg Heffernan (80 wkts @ 3.88) Association Record
- 10A Batting Aggregate Neil Lovelock (282 runs)
- 10D Wicket Keeping Award Shane Pearce

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- 14D Bowling Aggregate & Average Brian Andrews (73 wkts @ 3.17)
- 12A Bowling Average Gerard Wiseman (5.30)

- 12C Bowling Average John Innes ((2.66)
- 10A Bowling Aggregate Steven Johnson (52 wkts)
- 10C Batting Aggregate T. Short (212 runs)

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- Best Performance 12A Wayne Wishart
- 16A Wicket Keeping Award Gordon Beames (22 Dismissals)
- 16A Bowling Aggregate Ian Cranston (40 wkts)
- 12A Batting Aggregate & Average Wayne Wishart (267 runs @ 38.7)
- 12A Bowling Average Brett Ferguson (5.8)
- 12B Bowling Aggregate Gerald Wiseman (55 wkts)
- 12E Batting Aggregate & Average G. Clarke (247 runs @ 82.33)
- 12E Bowling Aggregate & Average G. Clarke (50 wkts @ 3.24)
- 10A Bowling Average Greg Heffernan (3.5)
- 10C Batting Aggregate Bruce Dixon (231 runs)
- 10C Batting Average L. Nicholls (25.33)

1972-73

- 16A Bowling Aggregate Trevor Bailey (31 wkts)
- 12A Bowling Average Wayne Wishart (4.790
- 10C Batting Average Graham Roberts (33.6)
- 10C Bowling Aggregate & Average Steve Gorry (70 wkts @ 2.14)
- 10D Bowling Average Michael Porter (2.08)

1971-72

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- 16B Batting Aggregate Paul Bennett (187 runs)
- 14C Bowling Average Lawrence Barrett (2.12) Association Record

1970-71

- Bertshell Trophy Club Champions Engadine Dragons
- Best Performance 12A Terry Humphries (233 runs @ 33.2 & 70 wkts @ 4.6)
- Best Association Wicket Keeper Brett Johnson 12A (32 Dismissals)
- 14D Wicket Keeping Award Andrew Waugh
- 14D Bowling Average Grant Collie (3.18) Association Record
- 12A Batting Average Terry Humphries (33.2)
- 12A Bowling Aggregate Terry Humphries & Peter Noakes (70 wkts) Joint Association Record
- 10B Bowling Aggregate Tom Hole (44 wkts)
- 10B Bowling Average Wayne Wishart (2.49)

1969-70

- 14C Wicket Keeping Award David Hattee
- 12A Wicket Keeping Award Brett Johnson
- 12A Bowling Average Scott Dudman (4.64)
- 12C Wicket Keeping Award Andrew Waugh

1968-69

- 14B Wicket Keeping Award Steven Johnson
- 14B Bowling Aggregate John Shooter (50 wkts)
- 12A Wicket Keeping Award Larry Warner
- 12B Bowling Aggregate Ian Cranston (76) Association Records
- 10B Wicket Keeping Award Brett Johnson
- 10B Batting Average Brett Johnson (45.33)
- 10B Bowling Aggregate Peter Noakes (78 wkts)
- 10B Bowling Average P. Murray (2.89)

1967-68

- 16B Batting Aggregate & Average Peter Doherty (449 runs @ 49.88)
- 12B Wicket Keeping Award Steven Johnson
- 12B Bowling Average Lance Howes (3.89)
- 10B Batting Average Ian Cranston (77.4) Association Record
- 10B Bowling Average Phillip George (1.52)

1966-67

• 10B Bowling Aggregate – Robert McPhee (85 wkts) Association Record

14B Bowling Aggregate – Wayne Headley (59 wkts)

1964-65

- John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy Cricketer of the Year Barry McManus (578 runs @ 72.25 & 37 wkts @ 14.51)
- 16A Batting Aggregate & Average Barry McManus (578 runs @ 72.25)
- 14B Batting Aggregate Robert Carroll (478 runs @ 47.8)
- 14B Bowling Aggregate Robert Carroll (70 wkts)
- 14C Bowling Aggregate & Average John Carlson (70 wkts @ 3.98) Association Record
- Most Catches All Grades K. Carpenter 12D (26) Association Record

1963-64

No Awards

1962-63

- 14A Bowling Aggregate Barry McManus (47 wkts)
- 14C Batting Aggregate William Millar (318 runs)
- 12B Batting Aggregate Robert Ross (197 runs)
- 12B Bowling Average John Carlson (3.42)Wayne Headley
- 10A Batting Aggregate & Average Keith Bunt (364 runs @ 36.4)

1961-62

No Awards

1960-61

No Awards

1959-60

• U/14 Wicket Keeping Award – Robert Bain

NSWDCA & NSWJCU AWARD WINNERS

Note: The NSWDCA (NSW District Cricket Association). Previous to October 1997 it was known as the NSWJCU (NSW Junior Cricket Union).

- 2018-19 Lachlan Ritchie NSWDCA Gee Shield Cricketer of the Year 278 runs @ 34.8 & 12 wkts @ 12.40
- 2010-11 Alex Gersbach NSWJCU Moore Shield Batting Award
- 1993-94 Chris Lake NSWJCU Weblin Shield Cricketer of the Year 320 runs @ 80 (5 innings 56, 125no, 101, 0, 38)
- 1992-93 Chris Lake NSWJCU Moore Shield Batting Award 264 runs @ 52.80
- 1985-86 Nathan Morando NSWJCU Cawsey Shield Batting Award 379 @ 42.10
- 1971-72 Ed Terone NSWJCU Telegraph Shield Wicket Keeping Award

SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION "CRICKETER OF THE YEAR"

"JOHN WOODHOUSE MEMORIAL TROPHY"

Engadine Dragons Recipients

Engadine Dragons have had 13 recipients of this prestigious award, more than any other club.

Nick Amos (16A – 2015/16)

- Right handed top order batsman
- Left arm medium/fast bowler
- Batting Aggregate 371 Ave 37.10
- Bowling Aggregate 25 Ave 5.72

It is a great honour and privilege to be able to write this report on the cricketing achievements of the 2015/2016 "John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy" winner Nick Amos. This prestigious award caps off a wonderful season and impressive junior career for Nick by finishing as the SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year"

Nick is a very talented, right hand, opening batsman and left arm opening bowler who commenced his junior career in the 2006/2007 season with the Bangor Barden Ridge Comets where he played six seasons, many while playing up an age group. In the 2011/2012 season Nick joined the Engadine Dragon's 12A team and went on to play five seasons and 53 matches for the club, which included four Finals, and achieving Premierships in the 2012/2013 14A and 2014/2015 16A competitions.

At representative level Nick served the SSJCA from 2008/2009 starting off in the U10 Development Squad for two seasons, then going on in the following seasons to Captain Sutherland's Creak,

Cawsey, Gee, Moore, Weblin and Watson Shield teams with distinction. His efforts along the way in these Shield competitions saw him selected in the U13 and U15 CRICKET NSW Academy. In his final two seasons of junior cricket Nick proudly represented the Sutherland District Grade Club in AW Green Shield competition.

The 2015/2016 representative season saw Nick's great potential realised. Starting first in the Watson Shield competition, where he scored 198 runs @ 33.00 and 5 wickets @ 11, then backing up this effort in the AW Green Shield competition with 274 runs @ 54.80 and 10 wickets @ 15.70. Nick's outstanding and consistent performances throughout these series saw him deservedly selected in the AW Green Shield Merit team and also the Metropolitan Team to compete in the U16 Cricket NSW State Challenge.

In this season's 16A's Nick was by far the best all round cricketer in the competition and steered his team to the Minor Premiership with an outstanding personal contribution of 371 runs @ 37.10 and 25 wickets @ 5.72. Nick's ability with both bat and ball was instrumental in his team's success and with the added responsibility of the Captaincy he showed great leadership on match day and at training.

Nick's exceptional performance this season speaks for itself, but it is the way that he has conducted himself on and off the field that makes him a true champion. Nick always plays hard, but fair and is highly respected by not only his own players, but the opposition players as well.

On behalf of the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club and your team mates, I would like to congratulate you on all of your achievements this season. Nick, you are a very worthy recipient of "Cricketer of the Year".

lan Latham.

Harry Tattersall (16A – 2013/14)

- Right handed top order batsman
- Right arm fast bowler
- Batting Aggregate 297 Ave 37.13
- Bowling Aggregate 12 Ave 8.33

It is a great pleasure and privilege to write the report for the 2013/14 'Cricketer of the Year', Harry Tattersall.

Harry commenced his cricketing career with Sylvania Heights in 2004/05 playing four seasons before joining Engadine's 10A team in 2008/09. My first look at Harry was as an opposition player in the 2006/07 10A Final against the Dragon's team that I was coaching at that time. Harry was still eligible for U/8's, but held his own against the older boys and showed the potential of becoming a very good cricketer.

Harry came to the 16A's this season with a reputation of a boy that could swing the bat hard and scare the living daylights out of the batsmen. I'm pleased to say that he lived up to this reputation and more. Harry this season demonstrated great leadership qualities on and off the field and his batting matured with the responsibility of batting in the top order scoring 303 runs @ 33.78. Unable to bowl due to injury at different stages throughout the season Harry still took 16 wickets @ 7.06, 4 of which came in the Final.

Harry has been a long serving member of SSJCA representative teams and this season represented with distinction in the Weblin Shield, Green Shield, CHSSA Sydney East and NSWCHHS U/15 teams. Harry always plays the game with a smile on his face and as a first year U16 recipient of this award has a very promising cricket career ahead of him.

On behalf of the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club I would like to congratulate Harry Tattersall on being awarded this season's SSJCA 'Cricketer of the Year'.

Peter Schofield.

Nathan Marciante (16A – 2012/13)

- Right Handed Top Order Batsman
- Right Arm Fast Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 547 Ave 54.70
- Bowling Aggregate 23 Ave 8.52

It is a great pleasure for me to be able to write the report on the career and achievements of the SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year", Nathan Marciante.

Nathan commenced his junior cricket as a U/8 player in 2003/04 for Engadine. In a ten year, 112 match junior career Nathan scored 2733 runs, captured 136 wickets, took 38 catches and achieved five "A" Grade Premierships. In 2005/06 Nathan was selected in the SSJCA U/10 Development Squad and went on to represent Sutherland Shire with distinction in the Shell Shield competition for five seasons. In the 2008/09 season Nathan was awarded the Alan Craston Memorial Trophy for the SSJCA 'Best Performance 12A', which was the signal for greater things ahead.

My association with Nathan goes back to the 2006/07 season when I first coached him as a nine year old in the Dragon's 10A Premiership team. In my end of season 'Year Book' report I wrote "What a good cricketer this boy will grow into" as it was quite evident at that early age that Nathan possessed all the attributes to become an outstanding cricketer. Since that time I have had the greatest of pleasure to coach Nathan in Sutherland Shire Representative teams, Green Shield and his final two seasons of junior cricket.

This season Nathan dominated the 16A competition with both bat and ball scoring 547 runs at 54.7, which included a brilliant 152, and took 23 wickets at 8.52 with the best figures of 6 for 6 off 5.5 overs. In Green Shield Nathan had an equally great season scoring 265 runs at 37.7, including 117 against Sydney, and took 14 wickets at 20.3, thus earning selection in the Combined Green Shield No.1 team. Nathan also dominated the Weet-Bix Twenty20 competition scoring 269 runs at 67.25 and took 8 wickets at 10.37. Nathan's outstanding performances this season assisted his club team to win back to back 16A Premierships and being crowned both Weet-Bix Twenty20 Cup 'Metropolitan' and 'State' champions.

On behalf of the Engadine Dragon's Cricket Club, congratulations Nathan on the way you have conducted yourself as a representative of our club. We are all extremely proud of every one of your achievements throughout your junior cricket career, and your performance this season makes you a very worthy recipient of 'Cricketer of the Year'.

Peter Schofield

Dane Fisher: (16A – 2011-12)

- Right Handed Top Order Batsman
- Right Arm Leg Spin Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 351 Ave 43.88
- Bowling Aggregate 7 Ave 26.14

Dane comes to the strong Engadine Dragons with whom he has played the last two seasons. Before that honing his skills as a junior at Gymea Bay CC. I have been involved with Dane at both Rep level, Club and Green Shield for the past four years. It was obvious to me when I first met Dane he was a gifted cricketer with above average ability for his age. But what really stood out was his passion for the game and his willingness to train. In this wonderful game you get out as much as you are willing to put in. Dane is always willing to put in that extra time. Apart from all the other commitments we spent the whole of last winter every Wednesday night at the indoor centre. All this extra work has really paid off for Dane.

Apart from being selected in Sutherland Rep sides, Dane was selected last year as an U14 into the Sutherland grade Green Shield, and was selected this year. He has also been an Emerging blue for the last three years. Dane was also selected to play various Grade games this season. He captained a very young U16A Engadine to a premiership. He led his team by example in being selected for the "Sutherland Medal" as the best and fairest in the Final. I feel Dane as a cricketer will only get better and better as he matures. It is no mean feat to win "Cricketer of the Year" as a first year boy.

I look forward to following Danes' career and wish him every success in the future, in the words of that famous English Cricket Captain "Pelham Warner" if he keeps his head inside his cap, he should go far.

Peter Schofield

Ryan Almond: (16A - 2008/09)

- Right Handed Top Order Batsman
- Right Arm Fast Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 507 Ave 58.11
- Bowling Aggregate 15 Ave 12.93

It comes with great pleasure to write a few words about the 2008-09 SSJCA Cricketer of the Year, Ryan Almond.

I first started coaching Ryan 5 years ago in the Creak Shield and witnessed a lanky fast bowler who could field well but couldn't hold a bat to save himself. An automatic 12th man with the bat, Ryan decided to start working on this part of his game and hasn't looked back since. After looking down the barrel of 5 ducks on the trot in his first year of U12's, he has turned those stats around in the space of 4 years in achieving 507 runs from 9 innings at an average of 56.33 including two centuries and a few half tons this season.

Ryan was also fiery with the ball, taking 15 scalps in the regular season at 12.93. Many opening batsmen weren't too keen to walk out and face Ryan with a new pill this year and he always showed them why, knocking over plenty of them.

A giant in the covers made it hard to drive anything and a freak in slips made the educated edges that usually get runs turn into wickets.

Not only a great player, but a great bloke with a lovely family, it is awesome to see the best player in the shire recognised for this.

Ryan also enjoyed success in the Emerging Blues U15 squad; was selected in the U15 NSW All Schools team; and the A.W Green Shield side for Sutherland this season.

On behalf of the Engadine Dragons Cricket Club I would like to congratulate Ryan Almond on being this year's SSJCA Cricketer of the Year.

Rob Knight

Ryan Marlow: (16A - 2007/08)

- Left Handed Top Order Batsman
- Left Arm Medium Fast Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 358 Ave 29.83
- Bowling Aggregate 12 Ave 18.75

It is a great honour and privilege to be able to write this report on the cricketing achievements of the 2007/08 'Cricketer of the Year', Ryan Marlow.

Ryan commenced his cricket career in 2001/02 when he was graded in the Club's 10A side. From the outset Ryan displayed potential to develop into a promising all round cricketer and accordingly he was awarded that seasons 'Rookie of the Year'.

As a 12A player in 2002/03, Ryan's enthusiasm and drive was rewarded when he became the recipient of the Club's much sought after 'Bradman Coaching Scholarship' to help further his development.

The following season Ryan made his Representative debut in the Gee Shield and has been a permanent member of Sutherland representative teams ever since.

I have been fortunate to have coached Ryan for three of his seven seasons with the Dragons. I have also been fortunate to witness a number of his memorable milestones including his first century,

scored in the 12As. The following season he demonstrated his all round ability by taking 34 wickets @ 4.29.

Over the past seven years Ryan has continually developed as a cricketer and this season has been rewarded for all his hard work. Ryan has finished his junior career in style boasting the following impressive statistics – 358 runs @ 29.83 and 12 wickets @ 18.75.

Ryan's outstanding record speaks for itself but it is the way that he has conducted himself on and off the field that makes him a true champion. Ryan has always played the game in good spirit and in a highly sporting manner. I can speak on behalf of the club when I say that, we are all extremely proud of your achievements. Congratulations Ryan, you are a very worthy recipient of 'Cricketer of the Year'.

Rob Knight

Ben Marciante: (16A - 2006/07)

- Left Handed Top Order Batsman
- Right Arm Medium Fast Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 464 Ave 58.00
- Bowling Aggregate 19 Ave 13.74

It gives me great pleasure as the Watson Shield and Engadine's coach of the 16A's whom Ben both represented in 2006/07 to write of his cricket performances as the recipient of Sutherland Shires' most prestigious cricket award, the junior Cricketer Of The Year.

Ben came to our club as a second year U/12 player in 2002/03. As an aggressive left handed batsman and an off break bowler we were impressed from his initial net trial. I still recall Harry Robbins exact comment upon seeing him the very first time "this boy will get a lot of runs for our club" wise words indeed!

That prediction didn't take long for that same season Ben set a batting average that may never be beaten, 479 runs @ 159.67. That same season Ben scored his maiden century, 108*. Meanwhile his representative career was showing promise but was still one season away from blossoming. In 2003/04 Ben scored his first representative century, 106* against Hawkesbury after Sutherland were in real trouble at 4-27. His century coupled with a great partnership of 223 with Michael Sharkey setting up a great victory for his side.

In the meantime Ben was busy adding an extra string to his bow, as a threatening medium pace bowler. With developing height and strength Ben progressed from a first/second change bowler to an aggressive opener sharing the new ball. His developing skills saw him selected in the Emerging Blues. By 2005/06 Ben's all round talent was such, that as a first year 16A player he was the team's outstanding bowler with 21 wickets @ an average under 10. All the while compiling runs at a steady rate.

This past season was always Ben's. In club cricket his 464 runs @ 58 average was more than a hundred runs clear of anyone whilst he was equal top wicket taker with 19 scalps. Ben scored two centuries, 101 (retired himself) and a murderous 160, an innings which rates as possibly the best I have witnessed in junior competition. His fine form carried over into the districts Green Shield where his powerful batting accounted for 278 @ 46 per innings. With limited bowling opportunities Ben still managed 4 wickets from 15 overs with his best return 3-9. His great form culminated with his inclusion into the 1st Green Shield combined team.

In the four years as Ben's coach I am proud to say that he has always shown nothing but respect to all associated with his cricket, team-mates and opponents. He comes from a very close family who has always supported and only encourages his sporting ambitions.

Ben, your junior cricket may have finished, but the door is only opening to what should be a very promising cricket career. As an extremely worthy winner we wish you every success in the future of this great game.

Dennis Pendergast

Jay Davis: (16A - 2002/03)

- Right Handed Opening Batsman
- Leg Spin Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 525 Ave 58.34
- Bowling Aggregate 18 Ave 11.89

This prestigious award caps off a fabulous season and impressive junior career for Jay by finishing as the Shire's leading junior player.

Jay first showed his ability with the bat during the 1996/97· season as a member of the premiership winning Illawong 10A side where he scored 319 runs for the season at an Association record average of 79.75. He scored the only century in 10A's that season (127 not out)

He was selected in the Foster Shield representative team that year and his consistency at this level has been demonstrated by his selection in every SSJCA representative team of his junior career.

He was back in prominence in the 2000/01 season by having the best Association batting average in 14A's (53.17 scoring, again, 319 runs including one innings of 103). This season also saw Jay emerge as a quality "all-rounder" in the Moore Shield representative team.

The statistics for this season (525 runs at 58.33 including 2 centuries (135no, 101) and a 89, 18 wickets at 11.89 -also taking 5 for 25 in the final, and 7 catches) reflect Jay's outstanding performance as well as emphasising his all round ability.

As well as being a member of the C S Watson Shield team, Jay was a member of the A W Green Shield team for 2 years. This season he excelled and his efforts were rewarded with selection into the Combined No.1 Green Shield team. In recognition of his outstanding representative season he was invited to trial for the metropolitan NSW U/17 team in which he made the last 30, only just missing out on the final squad of 24.

Jay also got the opportunity to play grade cricket for SDCC and played a number of games in 5th grade this season (after being called up to play in 4th grade the previous season).

I have coached Jay for the past four seasons and have had the pleasure of witnessing first hand how hard he has worked to attain the level of play that he displays today. He has made significant contributions to the premiership winning Engadine 14A's in 1999/00 and the back to back 16A premierships last season and this season.

This was Jay's second season as captain of his Engadine club team and his efforts both on and off the field have proved successful. Jay led by example, his enthusiasm helped to lift the other boys knowing that their captain was keen to do well. His close in fielding and catching was, at times, inspirational.

He set the example with the results he achieved and deserves every bit of success that comes his way. Jay is a player that every coach wants in his team with his enthusiasm and dedication to the game. A team player that always enjoyed the success of his peers and has a good relationship with all the players.

Jay's natural ability cannot be questioned – the statistics and results from Under 10's to now are testimony to that. The success that Jay has achieved this season comes from his dedication, application, team commitment and support combined with a diet of junior cricket at a club & representative level, men's cricket, grade cricket school cricket and the training hours that are required for all of these. It is his commitment to the game along with a lot of hard work and sacrifices that have resulted in this accolade being awarded.

Congratulations Jay and may future cricketing successes come your way.

Stuart Slack.

Ryan Shepherd: (16A - 2000/01)

- Right Handed Opening Batsman
- Right Arm Fast Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 481 Ave 96.20
- Bowling Aggregate 7 Ave 18.14

It is with great pleasure, as coach of EDCC 16A's in 2000/2001 that I have been asked to write about Ryan (also known as and referred to as "Shep").

Although in my first year of team coaching, having been actively involved in cricket at all levels in the Sutherland Shire for over 36 years, I feel confident in my judgment that Ryan is something very special and capable of progressing to the very top.

The 16A's competition was well contested with a host of quality players, many of who would have been worthy recipients of this prestigious award. However, in Ryan not only statistically was he the

best performed, he was easily the most respected opponent of all opposing players and coaches. This is often far more relevant than anything else.

Ryan was the premier batsman in the competition, a model of consistency, only missing out once when he was run out in the final. Suffice to say his impact on any game when at the crease is so great, that it was clearly the turning point of the game. I know all those associated with the eventual premiers Miranda, breathed a huge sigh of relief when Shep walked from the field.

The most significant fact about Shep's batting is the manner in which he scores his runs. Always looking to dominate opposing attacks, scoring quickly, plundering anything loose, whilst accumulating runs all round the wicket through his complete array of strokes. Another key feature of his batting, which is often a weakness particularly with young players, is his excellent running between wickets.

Almost every partnership of note that our team enjoyed involved Ryan. Each player enjoyed batting with him, although it can be hazardous at the non-striker's end when the ball whistles past you at great speed. The team's confidence grew every time Ryan began to dominate.

Ryan plays the game the way it should be played letting his willow do the talking for him. What impressed me most about him was the manner in which he accepted his dismissals whether they are dubious or otherwise. There were no remonstrations, sulking or excuses he simply accepted what occurred.

Most of this report has concentrated on Shep's batting but one should not forget his bowling and fielding. As is the case with many of our shires elite players, they are athletes capable of performing all disciplines. Ryan bowls at good pace, using his strength to maximum advantage. At first slip he took several good snares & even wicket kept on occasions with distinction.

Shep was an integral member of both the Watson & Green Shield teams. Filled in for the Engadine Dragons Al team and Sutherland District 5th grade, again demonstrating everyone's confidence in his ability and temperament to play against those many years his senior. It also shows his love for the game, as boys these days seem to be playing or practicing cricket almost every day of the week. What I failed to mention earlier is that Ryan is in his first season of 16's! One can only wonder what he might do next season.

When you look at the statistics below please remember last season was an Olympic year, meaning 4 of the 10 games played were 30 over a side games. It was also a particularly wet period with grass coverage on fields, presenting an unfair challenge to all of our young cricketer's.

I know everyone associated with EDCC is extremely proud of Ryan and would acknowledge that he is not only a fine ambassador of our club but to cricket as a whole.

Congratulations Ryan, continue to play the game the way it should be played and may you fulfil that enormous potential.

Brett Johnson.

Chris Lake: (16A – 1993/94)

- Right Handed Top Order Batsman
- Right Arm Medium Fast Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 510 Ave 63.75
- Bowling Aggregate 19 Ave 11.4

I first saw Chris Lake in the 1987 Foster Shield Team and his abilities even then were very evident. He has played all his junior cricket with Engadine Dragons Club and was a member of the current 16A

Premiers. Achievements during the rest of his junior cricket career will see his name regularly appear in the records column.

Chris's representative career continued from Foster Shield through to Weblin Shield and he was a member of the winning Creak, Gee and Moore Shields — Captaining the Gee, Moore and Weblin Shield sides. This year he was named Weblin Shield Player of the Year and has been selected to tour the Northern Territory.

A member of the NSW Metropolitan Squad since U13 years where in the early days he was considered an opening bowler and a No. 11 Bat. How times have changed – he now opens or is No. 3 Bat in the same squad!

Chris was selected as this year's Green Shield Semi-finalist, along the way surpassing a long standing batting record held at Sutherland Grade Club. He capped off a successful year being graded in 5th for the Sutherland Club. He has a love for the game and a personal desire to compete at the highest levels available which I know will be realised.

He is well supported by a lovely family who I have had the pleasure of knowing for some time. I look forward to watching Chris continue his success and think he is a very worthy recipient of the prestigious Cricketer of the Year.

Congratulations 'LAKEY'

Nathan Morando: (16A – 1988/89)

- Right Handed Top Order Batsman
- Right Arm Medium Fast Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 354 Ave 39.33
- Bowling Aggregate 30 Ave 12.76

Nathan's first season was with the Engadine Dragons in 1982/83 and whilst not setting the world on fire with bat and ball he did signal that here was a cricketer of some ability by taking 10 catches for the season. His second season saw Nathan unleash his full potential by scoring 479 runs including a century, and taking 32 wickets at an average of 7.22.

Since then there has been no looking back and his year to year statistics tell the story dramatically, that here is a player who is a cut above the rest. His achievements are too many to list in full but some of the best are listed below.

1985/86 took 42 wickets including a double hat trick for his club, scored a massive 379 in the "Cawsey Shield" series at an average of 42.1 and took 37 wickets at an average of 5.4. Captained the Metropolitan East School team at the NSW titles and the NSW team at the Australian titles.

In the past 3 seasons he has more than 300 runs and taken 30 or more wickets on every occasion. In addition to this he has been selected in the Metropolitan Youth Squad in each of the 3 years.

Representing the Shire on no less than seven occasions Nathan has been in the first division five times and was Vice Captain of the Cawsey No 1 team and Captain of the Moore No. 1 team.

In the 1988/89 season in Club cricket, Nathan has scored 352 runs including a century and taken 30 wickets. Additionally he has represented the Shire in the Watson Shield series scoring 110 runs and taking 14 wickets, also represented the Shire in the Green Shield series and played 5th grade for Sutherland on a number of occasions. In addition to all this he has, this year undertaken the coaching of an under 14B team for the Marton club, and has been selected as Engadine Dragons Club Champion for the second year in succession.

A fast bowler of devastating speed and accuracy and a hard hitting batsman whose conduct and sportsmanship have been first class at all times, Nathan Morando is a worthy winner of the Cricketer of the Year for 1988/89.

Craig Parsons: (16A - 1985/86)

- Right Handed Top Order Batsman
- Left Arm Fast Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 343 Ave 57.16
- Bowling Aggregate 19 Ave 14.63

Craig is a left arm pace bowler and bats right handed. He has Captained many teams through his career from his first year in cricket in the U/IO in the 1979/80 season.

In the 1980/81 season in the U/12E he broke the Association Batting Aggregate (which still stands) 471 runs with an average 67.28, his bowling figures took 37 wickets at an average of 3.49.

In 1981/82 he Captained the Arch Cawsey (2) side and played representative cricket every season.

In the 1984/85 season Craig won his Clubs "Player of the year award". He played in the 1985/86 Sutherland Green Shield team, also played 5th Grade for the District Club.

Craig, as you will agree has a great future in cricket and is held in very high esteem by all.

Barry McManus: (16A - 1964/65)

- Right Handed Top Order Batsman
- Right Arm Off Spin Bowler
- Batting Aggregate 578 Ave 72.25
- Bowling Aggregate 37 Ave 14.51

ALL TIME BEST ENGADINE DRAGONS TEAMS

During the 2007/08 season, the Club ran a number of initiatives to celebrate our 50th year as a Cricket Club. The first of these was the selection of the All Time Best EDCC 16A Team. The team was selected by a number of long serving EDCC members, going back through all 50 years of records. The 16A team was announced at the Club Trivia Night in February 2008. The A1 team was also selected by the same panel of members and announced at the 50th Anniversary luncheon the same year. Players present at the dinner from both teams were presented with a replica of the Club's original black and red cap. Ten years on both teams were reviewed to select the best 60th Anniversary sides and as a result there was only one change to the 16A team with Nathan Marciante added to the squad, the A1 team remained unchanged.

60th Anniversary A1 Team

(Unchanged from the 50th Anniversary Team)

- **1.** Barry Blanchard Captain (A1 1968/69) *Senior Club Champion* Left hand bat – 585 runs & 27 wicket keeping catches & 9 stumpings
- 2. Robert Rushbourne (A1 1970/71) Senior Club Champion
 Right hand bat 659 runs @ 50.69 & Right arm fast/medium 42 wkts
- 3. Ray Noakes Vice Captain (A1 1968/69) *Senior Club Champion* Right hand bat 739 runs @ 67.02 & Leg spin
- **4.** Clem Heffernan Wicket Keeper (A1 1974/75) Senior Club Champion Right hand bat 414 runs @ 82.80 (SSCA record)
- **5. Greg Heffernan** (A1 2004/05) *Senior Club Champion* Right hand bat 508 runs @ 56.46
- **6. Drew Lake** (A1 1994/95) *Senior Club Champion* Left hand bat 463 runs & Left arm medium/fast
- 7. **Paul Cameron** (A1 1997/98) *Senior Club Champion*Right hand bat 351 runs & Right arm off spin 30 wkts @ 12.43
- 8. Ross Stuart (A1 1998/99) Left hand bat & Left arm orthodox spin – 37 wkts @ 5.40
- 9. Graham Chudleigh (A1 1971/72) Right hand bat & Right arm leg spin – 42 wkts @ 12.33
- **10.** Ian Cranston (A1 1984/85)
 Right hand bat & Right arm medium/fast 37 wkts @ 13.00
- **11. Steve Gorry** (A1 1982/83)
 Right hand bat & Right arm fast/medium 42 wkts @ 9.60
- **12. Fred Terone** (A1 1969/70) Right hand bat & Right arm fast/medium – 55 wkts

Captain: Barry Blanchard
Vice Captain: Ray Noakes
Wicket Keeper: Barry Blanchard

NOTE: Best A1 season performance in brackets.

60th Anniversary 16A Team

(One change made from the 50th Anniversary Team with Nathan Marciante added to the squad)

- 1. Barry McManus (16A 1964/65) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat – 578 runs @ 72.25 & Right arm off spin – 37 wkts
- 2. Jay Davis (16A 2002/03) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat – 525 runs @ 58.34 & Right arm leg spin – 18 wkts @ 11.89
- 3. Chris Lake (16A 1993/94) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat – 510 runs @ 63.75 & Right arm medium/fast – 19 wkts @ 11.47
- 4. Ryan Shepherd (16A 2001/02) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat – 533 runs @ 59.22 & Right arm medium/fast
- 5. Nathan Morando (16A 1988/89) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat – 354 runs @ 37.33 & Right arm medium/fast – 30 wkts @ 12.76
- 6. Ben Marciante (16A 2006/07) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Left hand bat – 464 runs @ 58 & Left arm medium/fast – 19 wkts @ 13.74
- 7. Nathan Marciante (16A 2012/13) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat – 547 runs @ 54.70 & Right arm medium/fast – 23 wkts @ 8.52
- 8. Glen Anderson (16A 1979/80) Junior Club Champion Left hand bat – 379 runs @ 37.90 & Left arm orthodox spin – 45 wkts @ 11.86
- 9. Stephen Wishart (16A 1973/74) Junior Club Champion Left hand bat – 334 runs @ 47.71 & Left arm orthodox spin – 20 wkts @ 10.75
- **10. Brett Johnson** (16A 1974/75) 326 runs @ 32.60 & Wicket Keeper
- **11. Daniel McLauchlan** (16A 1993/94) Right hand bat – 419 runs @ 52.38 & Left arm fast – 16 wkts @ 9.63
- 12. Wayne Wishart (16A 1977/78) Junior Club Champion Right hand bat – 347 runs @ 49.57 & Right arm fast – 28 wkts @ 8.46
- **13.** Ian Cranston (16A 1973/74) *Junior Club Champion* Right hand bat & Right arm medium - 40 wkts @ 9.85

Captain: Barry McManus Vice Captain: Brett Johnson Wicket Keeper: Brett Johnson

Coaches: Stuart Slack & Harry Robbins

NOTE: Best 16A season performance in brackets.

BEST ENGADINE DRAGONS JUNIOR TEAMS OF THE MILLENNIUM

Since the start of the new millennium in the 1999/2000 season the Club has competed in 81 junior Finals, winning 49 Junior Premierships. During this era the Club has contested 44 'A' Grade Finals, winning 31 Premierships ($16A \times 10$, $14A \times 7$, $12A \times 7 & 10A \times 7$).

Over these 20 seasons the Club has been awarded the SSJCA "Club Champions" on 6 occasions with 9 of our 16A players being awarded the SSJCA "Cricketer of the Year". To commemorate these fine achievements 4 squads of 13 players have been selected in each of the age groups that have represented our Club in traditional cricket from 1999/00 to 2018/19.

16A Team

- 1. Jay Davis (16A 2002/03) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat 525 runs @ 58.33 & Right arm leg spin 18 wkts @ 11.89
- 2. Nick Amos (16A –2015/16) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat 371 runs @ 37.10 & Left arm medium/fast 25 wkts & 5.72
- **3.** Dane Fisher (16A 2011/12) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat 351 runs @ 43.88 & Right arm leg spin 7 wkts @ 26.14
- **4.** Ben Marciante (16A 2006/07) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Left hand bat 464 runs @ 58.00 & Right arm medium /fast 21 wkts @ 9.24
- **5.** Ryan Shepherd (16A 2000/01) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat 481 runs @ 96.20 & Right arm medium/fast 7 wkts @ 18.40
- 6. Ben Dwarshuis (16A 2008/09) *Junior Club Champion*Left hand bat 345 runs @ 57.50 & Left arm medium/fast 12 wkts @ 20.75
- 7. Cameron Turner (16A 2003/04) *Junior Club Champion*Right hand bat 482 runs @ 53.56 & Left arm orthodox spin 11 wkts @ 24.54
- 8. Dylan Koprivec (16A 2014/15) Junior Club Champion
 Left hand bat 436 runs @ 72.67 & Left arm medium 5 wkts @ 21.20
- 9. Nathan Marciante (2012/13) SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion Right hand bat – 547 runs @ 54.70 & Right arm medium/fast – 23 wkts @ 8.52
- **10.Ryan Almond** (16A 2008/09) *SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion* Right hand bat 507 runs @ 56.33 & Right arm medium/fast 17 wkts @ 10.76
- **11.Mark Rice** (16A 2007/08) *Junior Club Champion*Right hand bat 405 runs @ 31.15 & Right arm off spin 28 wkts @ 9.57
- **12.James Bills** (16A 2003/04) *Junior Club All rounder*Right hand bat 316 runs @ 35.11 & Right arm medium/fast 22 wkts @ 12.73
- **13.Tim Berry** (16A 2011/12) 254 runs @ 25.40 & Wicket keeper – 14 (catches – 7 & stumpings – 7)

Captain: Jay Davis Vice Captain: Ben Dwarshuis Wicket Keeper: Tim Berry

Also considered -

Ryan Marlow (2007/08) – SSJCA Cricketer of the Year

Right hand bat – 358 runs @ 29.83 & Right arm medium – 12 wkts @ 18.75

Andrew Ritchie (2016/17) – *Junior Club Champion*

Right hand bat – 361 runs @ 32.82 & Right arm medium/fast – 12 wkts @ 16.42

Harry Tattersall (2013/14) – *SSJCA Cricketer of the Year & Junior Club Champion* Right hand bat – 297 runs @ 37.13 & Right arm medium/fast – 12 wkts @ 8.33

TE. Doct 164 company would warmen in hymolysts

14A Team

- 1. Joel D'Imperio (14A 2007/08) SSJCA Best Association Bowler
 Right hand bat 241 Runs @ 40.17 & Right arm leg spin 28 wkts @ 5.71
- 2. Matthew Simpson (14A 2013/14) *Junior Club Champion*Right hand bat 383 runs @ 47.88 & Wicket keeper 8 (catches 5 & stumpings 3)
- 3. Jay Davis (14A 2000/01) Right hand bat – 319 runs @ 53.17 & Right arm leg spin – 9 wkts @ 16.10
- **4.** Ryan Shepherd (14A 1999/2000) *SSJCA Best Performance 14A & Junior Club Champion* Right hand bat 665 runs @ 95.00 & Right arm medium/fast 22 @ 10.04
- **5.** Dane Fisher (14A 2010/11) *SSJCA Best Performance 14A & Junior Club Champion* Right hand bat 586 Runs @ 113.60 & Right arm leg spin 13 wkts@ 10.77
- 6. Alex Gersbach (14A 2010/11) Left hand bat – 432 runs @ 86.40 & Left arm orthodox spin – 17 wkts @ 5.12
- 7. Jonathan Haslam (14A 2008/09) SSJCA Best Performance 14A
 Right hand bat 532 runs @ 58.11 & Right arm medium 4 wkts@ 65.00
- 8. Ben Marciante (14A 2003/04) Left hand bat – 333 @ 27.75 & Right arm medium/fast – 13 wkts @ 19.46
- 9. Nathan Marciante (14A 2010/11)
 Right hand bat 302 runs @ 30.20 & Right arm medium/fast 17 wkts @ 7.82
- **10.** Harry Tattersall (14A 2012/13) Right hand bat – 301 runs @ 37.63 & Right arm medium/fast – 7 wkts @ 11.43
- **11. Ryan Almond** (14A 2007/08) Right hand bat – 270 runs @ 45.00 & Right arm medium/fast – 21 wkts @ 5.52
- **12.** Mark Rice (14A 2004/05) Right hand bat – 209 @ 23.22 & Right arm off spin – 27 wkts @ 8.26
- **13.** Jordan Dow (14A 2007/08) SSJCA Best Association Wicket Keeper
 Right hand bat 190 runs @ 38.00 & Wicket keeping 25 (catches 17 & stumpings 8)

Captain: Jay Davis

Vice Captain: Ryan Shepherd Wicket Keeper: Jordan Dow

NOTE: Best 14A season performance in brackets.

12A Team

1. Joel D'Imperio (12A – 2005/06)

Right hand bat – 284 Runs @ 40.57 & Right arm leg spin – 16 wkts @ 8.06

2. Lachlan Ritchie (12A – 2017/2018)

Right hand bat – 264 Runs @ 33.00 & Right arm medium – 14 wkts @ 7.71

3. Luke Ritchie (12A – 2015/16) SSJCA Best Performance 12A & Junior Club Champion

Right hand bat - 593 runs @ 148.25 & Right arm medium - 4 wkts @ 24.75

4. Ben Marciante (12A – 2002/03)

Left hand bat – 479 runs @ 159.67 & Right arm medium – 8 wkts @ 15.12

5. Ben Dwarshuis (12A – 2005/06)

Left hand bat - 323 runs @ 46.14 & Left arm chinaman - 8 wkts @ 11.50

6. Kobey Freer (12A – 2017/18)

Right hand bat - 322 @ 53.67 & Right arm off spin - 6 wkts @ 24.33

7. Brendan Curtis (12A – 2007/08)

Right hand bat - 302 runs @ 37.75 & Right arm medium - 11 wkts @ 10.18

8. Nathan Marciante (12A - 2007/08) SSJCA Best Performance 12A

Right hand bat - 396 runs @ 44.00 & Right arm medium - 7 wkts @ 22.29

9. Ryan Marlow (12A – 2003/04)

Right hand bat - 253 Runs @ 28.11 & Right arm medium - 11 wkts @ 11.73

10.Andrew Ritchie (12A – 2015/16)

Right hand bat - 278 runs @ 30.89 & Right arm medium - 10 wkts @ 11.90

11.Brayden Heffernan (12A – 2007/08)

Right hand bat - 254 runs @ 42.33 & Right arm off spin - 14 wkts @ 7.80

12.Sam Newman (12A – 2002/03)

Right hand bat – 11 runs @ 11.00 & Left arm wrist spin – 18 wkts @ 11.83

13.Jordan Dow (12A – 2005/06)

Right hand bat – 156 runs @ 52.00 & Wicket keeper – 12 (catches – 6 & stumpings – 6)

Captain: Ben Dwarshuis Vice Captain: Lachlan Ritchie Wicket Keeper: Jordan Dow

NOTE: Best 12A season performance in brackets.

10A Team

- 1. Jarrod Mazurkiewicz (10A 2008/09) SSJCA Best Performance 10A

 Right hand bat 314 Runs @ 62.80 & Right arm slow/medium 12 wkts @ 8.00
- **2.** Matthew Simpson (10A 2009/10) Right hand bat – 259 Runs @ 64.75 & Right arm off spin – 2 wkts @ 48.00
- **3. Liam Herne** (10A 2003/04) Right hand bat – 290 Runs 29.00 @ & Right arm medium – 16 wkts @ 11.63
- **4.** Hayden Smith (10A 2003/04) Right hand bat – 277 Runs @ 30.78 & Right arm medium – 22 wkts @ 9.91
- 5. Nathan Marciante (10A 2006/07) SSJCA Best Association Bowler
 Right hand bat 328 Runs @ 36.44 & Right arm medium/fast 24 wkts @ 3.67
- **6. Dylan Croker** (10A 2009/10) Right hand bat – 274 Runs @ 45.67 & Right arm medium – 7 wkts @ 14.57
- 7. Lachlan Ritchie (10A 2015/16) Right hand bat – 247 Runs @ 35.29 & Right arm medium – 13 wkts @ 7.62
- **8. Joshua Johnston** (10A 2007/08) Left hand bat – 222 Runs @ 27.75 & Right arm medium – 7 wkts @ 9.29
- 9. Brendan Curtis (10A 2006/07) Right hand bat – 197 Runs @ 21.89 & Right arm medium/fast – 19 wkts @ 4.89
- **10.Mark Rice** (10A 2001/02) Right hand bat – 214 Runs @ 26.75 & Right arm slow/medium – 11 wkts @ 13.20
- **11.Daniel Ward** (10A 2000/01) Right hand bat – 150 runs @ 18.75 & Right arm medium – 13 wkts @ 8.61
- **12.Sam Newman** (10A 2001/02) *SSJCA Best Association Bowler*Right hand bat 46 runs @ 11.50 & Left arm wrist spin 23 wks @ 6.30
- **13.Dylan Rae** (10A 2006/07) Right hand bat – 141 Runs @ 20.14 & Wicket keeper – 13 (catches – 11 & stumpings – 2)

Captain: Daniel Ward
Vice Captain: Brendan Curtis
Wicket Keeper: Dylan Rae

NOTE: Best 10A season performance in brackets.

Nathan Marciante is the only player selected in all four teams.

SPONSORS

Engadine Dragons Cricket Club would like to express its appreciation to all the sponsors that have supported and contributed to our Club. The list below was compiled from our Club's Annual Reports over the past 60 years and may not contain all businesses. We apologise for any omissions due to our records being incomplete.

- A1 Metaltech (Paul Marsh)
- Active Sports Coaching
- Adam Pascoe Electrical
- Alan Stephenson Plumbing
- Arthur Beard Carrier & Removalist
- Bakers Delight Engadine Central
- Barnwell Cambridge Electrical Contractors
- BP Engadine Auto Repairs & Servicing (Rick Thomas)
- Bob Taylor Real Estate
- Bundeena Service Centre
- Brunzn Home Brew Supplies
- Caltex
- Carpet One Engadine
- Choc Deli
- Corner Brew
- Cosmo Lighting (Jim Emirian)
- Dixie Queen Ice Creamery
- Elaines Candid Studio
- Engadine Barbers (Perce McArthur)
- Engadine Bowling Club
- Engadine Family Tavern (Liddy's)
- Engadine Hardware
- Engadine Mechanical Repairs (Rick Thomas)
- Engadine Town Square Shopping Centre
- Engadine RSL Club (Club Engadine)
- EyeQ Optometrists
- Fab Floors (Wayne Schofield)
- Fine Gold Jewellers
- Generation Legal
- GNP Marine Trimmings
- Holden (R. Daley)
- I Wanna P Driving School
- J & D Gilbert
- Jester Fancy Dress
- Jonray Meats
- Kent Land Clearing
- KFC Engadine
- Marine Products Marketing (Harry & Carol Peters)
- Max Fraser sewing Machine Repairs
- Metal Deck Roofing Supplies
- MG Pools
- Mianger Timber
- Mick's Quality Family Meats
- Mike Fordyce Insurance
- Mitre 10 (Engadine)
- Norida's Bakery

- Oyster Bay Auto Centre (P. Boland)
- Parkside Physiotherapy
- Pluis Builders
- Plus Fitness Engadine
- Purex Price Chemicals (Michael Price)
- UCS Underground Civil Supplies
- Razor Cut Barbers
- Reg Sommer Electrical
- RenXtend Pools
- Ross Davidson Automotive
- Scott Care
- Southern Cross Framing & Mirrors
- Speedy Keys Engadine
- Sportsworld Caringbah
- Sportzone Engadine (Steve Mullaley)
- State Building Society
- Stewart Toyota
- Sutherland Credit Union
- Terry Mackay Realty
- The Shire Local Banking
- Thrifty Skips
- Video Ezy
- View Line Homes (Tim Loneragan)
- Vision Printing Services Engadine
- Waltons Engadine
- Waratah Meats (C. Adams)
- Wizard Home Loans Engadine
- Whitto's Pizza
- 20/20 Sports Physiotherapy

SUTHERLAND SHIRE JUNIOR CRICKET ASSOCIATION ARCHIVES

SSJCA Junior Club Championship - Bertshell Trophy - By Number of Wins

Note: Based on all Clubs that have competed since the inception of the Trophy in 1965/66 and is correct as of the conclusion of the 2018-19 season.

POS	CLUB	WINS	YEAR OF SUCCESS
1	CARINGBAH SPORTS	16	1981-82, 1986-87, 1987-88, 1988-89, 1989-90, 1991-92, 1992-93, 1993-94, 1994-95, 1995-96, 1996-97, 1997-98, 1998-99, 2002-03, 2013-14, 2016-17
2	ENGADINE DRAGONS	13	1970-71, 1971-72, 1973-74, 1974-75, 1975-76, 1976-77, 1978-79, 2000-01, 2004-05, 2005-06, 2007-08,2009-10, 2010-11
3	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	6	1968-69, 1969-70, 1982-83, 1984-85, 1985-86, 2001-02
4	GYMEA BAY	4	1983-84, 1990-91, 2006-07, 2008-09
5	COMO-JANNALI	2	1999-00, 2011-12
5	MIRANDA MAGPIES	2	1972-73, 1977-78
5	ST. PATRICKS	2	1980-81, 2012-13
5	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	2	2017-18, 2018-19
5	JANNALI	2	1965-66, 1966-67
6	ILLAWONG MENAI	1	2003-04
6	CRONULLA RSL	1	1967-68
6	СОМО	1	1979-80
6	DLS SEAGULLS	1	2014-15
6	BANGOR BARDEN RIDGE	1	2015-16
7	AQUINAS	0	
7	CARINGBAH DLS	0	
7	ST. JOHN BOSCO	0	
7	LOFTUS	0	

SSJCA Junior Club Championship - Bertshell Trophy - By Season

1965/66 - JANNALI

1966/67 – JANNALI

1967/68 - CRONULLA RSL

1968/69 – SYLVANIA HEIGHTS

1969/70 – SYLVANIA HEIGHTS

1970/71 - ENGADINE DRAGONS

1971/72 – ENGADINE DRAGONS

1972/73 – MIRANDA MAGPIES

1973/74 - ENGADINE DRAGONS

1974/75 – ENGADINE DRAGONS

1975/76 – ENGADINE DRAGONS

. 1976/77 – ENGADINE DRAGONS

1977/78 – MIRANDA MAGPIES

1978/79 – ENGADINE DRAGONS

1979/80 - COMO

1980/81 - ST PATRICKS

1981/82 – CARINGBAH SPORTS

1982/83 – SYLVANIA HEIGHTS

1983/84 - GYMEA BAY

1984/85 – SYLVANIA HEIGHTS

1985/86 – SYLVANIA HEIGHTS

1986/87 – CARINGBAH SPORTS

1987/88 - CARINGBAH SPORTS

1988/89 – CARINGBAH SPORTS 1989/90 – CARINGBAH SPORTS

1990/91 – GYMEA BAY

1991/92 - CARINGBAH SPORTS

1992/93 - CARINGBAH SPORTS

1993/94 – CARINGBAH SPORTS

1994/95 - CARINGBAH SPORTS

```
1995/96 - CARINGBAH SPORTS
1996/97 - CARINGBAH SPORTS
1997/98 - CARINGBAH SPORTS
1998/99 - CARINGBAH SPORTS
1999/00 - COMO JANNALI
2000/01 - ENGADINE DRAGONS
2001/02 – SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
2002/03 - CARINGBAH SPORTS
2003/04 - ILLAWONG MENAI
2004/05 - ENGADINE DRAGONS
2005/06 - ENGADINE DRAGONS
2006/07 - GYMEA BAY
2007/08 - ENGADINE DRAGONS
2008/09 - GYMEA BAY
2009/10 - ENGADINE DRAGONS
2010/11 - ENGADINE DRAGONS
2011/12 - COMO JANNALI
2012/13 – ST PATRICKS
2013/14 - CARINGBAH SPORTS
2014/15 - DLS SEAGULLS
2015/16 - BANGOR BARDEN RIDGE
2016/17 - CARINGBAH SPORTS
2017/18 - CRONULLA SEAGULLS
2018/19 - CRONULLA SEAGULLS
SSJCA Cricketer of the Year – John Woodhouse Memorial Trophy
1961/62 - R.TOZER (MIRANDA MAGPIES)
1962/63 - M. KING (ST PATRICKS)
1963/64 - B. DAVISON (MIRANDA MAGPIES)
1964/65 – B. McMANUS (ENGADINE DRAGONS)
1965/66 – G. BAILEY (JANNALI)
1966/67 – P. VENN (ST PATRICKS)
1967/68 - M. RAY (CARINGBAH DE LA SALLE)
1968/69 - P. HART (SYLVANIA HEIGHTS)
1969/70 – J. DYSON (JANNALI)
1970/71 – S. ANDERSON (SYLVANIA HEIGHTS)
1971/72 - A. HILDITCH (CARINGBAH SPORTS)
1972/73 - B. HANDLEY (GYMEA BAY)
1973/74 - B. HANDLEY (GYMEA BAY)
1974/75 - K. HUDSON (MIRANDA MAGPIES)
1975/76 – G. WHATLEY (MIRANDA MAGPIES)
1976/77 - P. BISHELL (GYMEA BAY)
1977/78 - K. RYNNE (CARINGBAH DE LA SALLE)
1978/79 – G. ARNOLD (GYMEA BAY)
1979/80 - M. GARDNER (MIRANDA MAGPIES)
1980/81 - J. STEED (CARINGBAH SPORTS)
1981/82 - K.TUITE (ST PATRICKS)
1982/83 - A. QUINN (ST PATRICKS)
1983/84 - M. CONDON (JANNALI)
1984/85 – J.SMITH (COMO)
1985/86 - C. PARSONS (ENGADINE DRAGONS)
1986/87 - D. WALLIS (ST PATRICKS)
1987/88 - S. DUFF (ST PATRICKS)
1988/89 - N. MORANDO (ENGADINE DRAGONS)
1989/90 - M. O'BRIEN (ST JOHN BOSCO)
1989/90 - M. O'BRIEN (ST JOHN BOSCO)
1990/91 – C. HARAN (ST JOHN BOSCO)
1991/92 - J. HOLLEY (GYMEA BAY)
1992/93 - M. BRADLEY (CARINGBAH SPORTS)
1993/94 - C. LAKE (ENGADINE DRAGONS)
1994/95 – B. WICKS (COMO JANNALI)
1995/96 - D. REYNOLDS (CARINGBAH SPORTS)
1996/97 - D. MITCHELL (SYLVANIA HEIGHTS)
1997/98 - L. DUDMAN (CARINGBAH SPORTS)
1998/99 – J. DRINKWATER (ILLAWONG)
1999/00 - M. HUGHSTON (CARINGBAH SPORTS)
2000/01 - R. SHEPHERD (ENGADINE DRAGONS)
```

2001/02 - C. WILLIAMS (SYLVANIA HEIGHTS) 2002/03 - J. DAVIS (ENGADINE DRAGONS) 2003/04 - G. RICHARDS (CARINGBAH SPORTS) 2004/05 - A. DAVIS (CARINGBAH SPORTS) 2005/06 - J. HUDSON (ILLAWONG MENAI) 2006/07 - B. MARCIANTE (ENGADINE DRAGONS) 2007/08 - R. MARLOW (ENGADINE DRAGONS) 2008/09 - R. ALMOND (ENGADINE DRAGONS) 2009/10 - J. BROWN (ILLAWONG MENAI) 2010/11 - H. SMITH (ST PATRICKS) 2011/12 - D. FISHER (ENGADINE DRAGONS) 2012/13 - N. MARCIANTE (ENGADINE DRAGONS) 2013/14 - H. TATTERSALL (ENGADINE DRAGONS) 2014/15 - L.HAWKSWORTH (ILLAWONG MENAI) 2015/16 - N. AMOS (ENGADINE DRAGONS) 2016/17 - J. MOORS (CRONULLA SEAGULLS) 2017/18 – D. HOLDSTOCK (BANGOR) SSJCA Life Members

JACK MOODIE* (1963)

JACK DALY* (1965)

REX KING* (1965)

WAL CROUCHER* (1965)

MORT EDSON* (1968)

CEC THOMSON* (1968)

FRED MALBON* (1969)

N. (SNOW) DAVIES (1971)

JACK RUTTY* (1973)

RON HILDITCH* (1973)

KEN PRENDERGAST (1974)

IRENE RUTTY* (1974)

FRANK PATTINSON (1975)

JOHN BANNON* (1975)

LANCE HANDLEY (1976)

KEN WHATLEY* (1977)

DON CLARK* (1981)

JIM LYNCH* (1981)

KEN GARDNER* (1985)

STAN STEED (1985)

DON MASTERS* (1987)

BRIAN QUINN (1989)

WILLIAM LAWLER* (1990)

RAY BRENNAN (1993)

IVOR CHALMERS* (1995)

HARRY PETERS (1999)

PETER SCHOFIELD (1999) VICKI ROUTH (2002)

RUSS WADDELL* (2002)

PETER FRIEND (2003)

PETER SMITH (2007)

MICHAEL MOONEY (2007)

IAN CONNOR (2009)

TOM CROUCHER (2009)

BILL JOHNSON (2013)

BARRY DAVISON* (2014)

DENNIS PENDERGAST (2015)

ROY AMOS (2018)

(*Deceased)

NOTE: Russ Waddell (2002) and Dennis Pendergast (2015) are the only members of Engadine Dragons to be awarded a Life Membership of the SSJCA.

SSJCA Service to Shire Junior Club Cricket Warren Daley (St Patricks) 2016 Errol Gilbert (St John Bosco) 2016 Ian Latham (Engadine Dragons) 2016 Harry Robbins (Engadine Dragons) 2016

SSJCA Office Bearers

The below lists Office Bearers that have served the Sutherland Shire Junior Cricket Association since its inception in 1957.

SEASON	PRESIDENT	SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT	JUNIOR VICE PRESIDENT	TREASURER
1957-58	L. Ticehurst			J. Woodhouse
1958-59	A. Tredinnick			J. Woodhouse
1959-60	J. Daly	R. Longbottom	K. Hopkins	J. Woodhouse
1960-61	J. Daly	R. Longbottom	J. Dunstan	J. Woodhouse
1961-62	J. Daly	R. Longbottom	J. Turpie	E. Hilzinger
1962-63	J. Daly	K. Hopkins	J. Turpie	E. Hilzinger
1963-64	J. Daly	J. Turpie	L. Flynn	E. Hilzinger
1964-65	J. Daly	J. Turpie	L. Flynn	E. Hilzinger
1965-66	J. Daly	G. Merritt	G. Thomson	E. Hilzinger
1966-67	J. Daly	G. Thomson	N. Davies	C. Taylor
1967-68	J. Daly	G. Thomson	N. Davies	C. Taylor
1968-69	J. Daly	G. Thomson	N. Davies	C. Taylor
1969-70	N. Davies	L. Ray	M. Edson	C. Taylor
1970-71	N. Davies	F. Pattinson	K. Prendergast	C. Taylor
1971-72	N. Davies	F. Pattinson	K. Prendergast	G. Anderson
1972-73	F. Pattinson	K. Prendergast	R. Hilditch	C. Lawton
1973-74	F. Pattinson	K. Prendergast	L. Handley	C. Lawton
1974-75	F. Pattinson	K. Prendergast	L. Handley	C. Lawton
1975-76	K. Prendergast	L. Handley	D. Clark	M. Fordyce
1976-77	K. Prendergast	L. Handley	D. Clark	I. Rutty
1977-78	K. Prendergast	D. Clark	K. Whatley	I. Rutty
1978-79	D. Clark	K. Whatley	R. Moore	I. Rutty
1979-80	D. Clark	K. Whatley	R. Moore	I. Rutty
1980-81	D. Clark	K. Whatley	R. Moore	S. Steed
1981-82	K. Whatley	R. Hill	K. Gardner	S. Steed
1982-83	K. Whatley	K. Gardner	B. Quinn	S. Steed
1983-84	K. Whatley	K. Gardner	B. Quinn	S. Steed
1984-85	K. Whatley	K. Gardner	B. Quinn	D. Thwaites
1985-86	K. Whatley	K. Gardner	B. Quinn	D. Thwaites
1986-87	K. Whatley	K. Gardner	B. Quinn	R. Brennan
1987-88	K. Whatley	K. Gardner	B. Quinn	R. Brennan
1988-89	K. Whatley	K. Gardner	B. Quinn	R. Brennan
1989-90	K. Whatley	K. Gardner	B. Quinn	R. Brennan
1990-91	K. Whatley	I. Chalmers	B. Quinn	R. Brennan
1991-92	P. Friend	I. Chalmers	B. Quinn	R. Brennan
1992-93	P. Friend	H. Peters	A. Cranston	R. Brennan
1993-94	P. Friend	H. Peters	I. Chalmers	R. Brennan
1994-95	P. Friend	H. Peters	I. Chalmers	R. Brennan
1995-96	P. Friend	H. Peters	P. Schofield	R. Brennan
1996-97	P. Friend	H. Peters	B. Phillips	R. Brennan
SEASON	PRESIDENT	VICE PRESIDENT	VICE PRESIDENT	FINANCE MANAGER
		DEVELOPMENT	PANNING &	
			MARKETING	
1997-98	P. Friend	B. Phillips	H. Peters	R. Brennan
1998-99	P. Friend	B. Phillips	H. Peters	R. Brennan
1999-00	P. Friend	H. Peters	K. Bowmer	R. Brennan
2000-01	P. Friend	H. Peters	P. Smith	R. Brennan
2001-02	H. Peters	R. Waddell	P. Smith	R. Brennan
2002-03	P. Smith	Greg Thomas	Vacant	R. Brennan
2003-04	P. Smith	Greg Thomas	Vacant	R. Brennan
2004-05	P. Smith	Greg Thomas	Vacant	I. Connor
2005-06	G. Thomas	B. Loder	P. Brown	I. Connor
2006-07	A. Chapman	B. Loder		I. Connor
2007-08	A. Chapman		M. Mooney	I. Connor
SEASON	PRESIDENT	VICE PRESIDENT	COMMUITY MANAGER	FINANCE MANAGER
			IVIANAGER	

2009-10	M. Cole	R. Amos		S. Martin
2010-11	M. Cole	R. Amos		S. Martin
2011-12	M. Cole	R. Amos	M. Vandermaal	S. Martin
2012-13	R. Amos	A. Hess	M. Vandermaal	S. Martin
2013-14	R. Amos	A. Hess		B. Bryant
2014-15	R. Amos	B. Bryant		J. Derrick
2015-16	R. Amos	T. Croucher	C. Hewitt	J. Derrick
2016-17	R. Amos	C. Hewitt	C. Hewitt	J. Lee
2017-18	C. Hewitt			R. Miletich
2018-19	C. Hewitt			R. Miletich

ASSISTANT SECRETARY	2018-19	C. Hewitt			R. Miletich
1957-58	NOTE: The Man	nagement Committee was	restructured after the con	clusion of the 1996/1997	and 2007/2008 seasons.
1959-80	SEASON	SECRETARY	ASSISTANT SECRETARY		REGISTRAR
1959-90	1957-58	A. Tredinnick			
1990-61 J. Moodie E. Hilzinger G. Merritt	1958-59	J. Moodie			
1961-62 J. Moodie L. Flynn G. Merritt 1962-63 J. Moodie L. Flynn G. Merritt 1963-64 M. Edson R. Tumeth G. Merritt 1964-65 M. Edson J. Rutty 1967-68 M. Edson M. Edson J. Rutty 1968-69 M. Edson J. Rutty J. Rutty 1970-71 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1970-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend I. Rutty 1976-77 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-79 J. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-86 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-87 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-89 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1985-80 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1985-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1985-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1985-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1985-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1995-91 R. Cranston L. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1995-92 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1995-93 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1995-94 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney	1959-60	J. Moodie			
1962-63 J. Modole L. Flynn G. Merritt 1963-64 M. Edson R. Tumeth G. Merritt 1964-65 M. Edson R. Tumeth G. Merritt 1965-66 M. Edson M. Hart A. Mahony 1966-67 M. Edson B. Haines N. Davies 1967-68 M. Edson B. Cox N. Davies 1967-68 M. Edson B. Cox J. Rutty 1969-70 R. Hildlich G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1970-71 R. Hildlich G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-72 R. Hildlich G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1973-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1975-76 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend J. Rutty 1977-78 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1977-79 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-80 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1980-81 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-80 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-91 M. A. Cranston L. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-92 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1993-94 R. Stafford J. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-95 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1993-96 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 1900-01 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1900-01 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1900-01 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1000-03 J. Cheber T. Croucher A. Chapman 1000-04 J. Cheber T. Croucher A	1960-61	J. Moodie	E. Hilzinger		
1963-64 M. Edson R. Tumeth G. Merritt 1964-65 M. Edson M. Fumeth G. Merritt 1966-66 M. Edson M. Hart A. Mahony 1966-67 M. Edson B. Haines N. Davies 1967-68 M. Edson B. Cox N. Davies 1968-69 M. Edson B. Cox N. Davies 1968-69 M. Edson B. Cox J. Rutty 1970-71 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1970-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend I. Rutty 1976-77 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1977-78 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-79 J. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1988-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1999-91 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1999-92 A. Cranston L. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1999-93 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1999-94 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-95 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-96 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-97 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1000-00 T. Croucher A. Chapman 1000-00 T. Croucher A. Chapman 1000-00 T.	1961-62	J. Moodie	L. Flynn		G. Merritt
1964-65 M. Edson M. Hart A. Mahony	1962-63	J. Moodie	L. Flynn		G. Merritt
1965-67 M. Edson M. Hart A. Mahony 1966-67 M. Edson B. Haines N. Davies 1967-68 M. Edson B. Cox N. Davies 1968-69 M. Edson B. Cox J. Rutty 1969-70 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1970-71 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1970-71 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1973-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1975-76 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1977-78 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1977-78 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1980-81 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-99 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1999-91 A. Cranston L. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1999-92 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1990-93 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1990-94 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1990-95 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1. Croucher A. Chapman T. Croucher A. Chapman 1. Croucher A. Chapman T. Croucher A. Chapman	1963-64	M. Edson	R. Tumeth		G. Merritt
1966-67 M. Edson	1964-65	M. Edson	R. Tumeth		G. Merritt
1967-68 M. Edson B. Cox J. Rutty J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hildlitch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hildlitch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hildlitch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1973-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend J. Rutty 1975-76 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend J. Rutty J. Lynch	1965-66	M. Edson	M. Hart		A. Mahony
1968-69 M. Edson B. Cox J. Rutty 1969-70 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1970-71 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon L. Rutty 1973-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon L. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon L. Rutty 1975-76 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend L. Rutty 1976-77 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend L. Rutty 1977-78 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1979-80 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1979-80 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1980-81 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1990-91 A. Cranston L. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-92 A. Cranston L. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-94 R. Stafford J. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1994-95 R. Stafford J. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-96 R. Stafford J. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-97 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1994-96 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1994-97 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1994-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1000-00 R. Waddell D. Watson T. Croucher A. Chapman 1000-00 T. C	1966-67	M. Edson	B. Haines		N. Davies
1969-70 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1970-71 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1973-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1973-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1975-76 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend J. Rutty 1976-77 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend J. Rutty 1977-78 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-80 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1979-80 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1980-81 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1998-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1993-95 R. Stafford J. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-96 R. Stafford J. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-97 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1993-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1993-90 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1990-90 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1000-00 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 1000-00 T. Croucher	1967-68	M. Edson	B. Cox		N. Davies
1970-71 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1971-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1973-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend I. Rutty 1975-76 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend I. Rutty 1976-77 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend I. Rutty 1978-79 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1979-80 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1980-81 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-91 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-92 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-93 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-94 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1999-95 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1999-96 R. Stafford D. Masters P. Schofield B. Probert 1999-97 D. Masters B. Phillips P. Schofield B. Probert 1999-99 R. Stafford J. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1999-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-90 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-90 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1990-91 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 1900-90 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 1900-90 J. Chesher A. Chapman T. Croucher A. Chapman 1900-90 J. Chesher	1968-69	M. Edson	B. Cox		J. Rutty
1971-72 R. Hilditch G. Thomson F. Malbon J. Rutty 1972-73 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1973-74 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon I. Rutty 1974-75 J. Rutty M. Lawton F. Malbon J. Rutty 1976-77 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend I. Rutty 1976-77 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1977-78 J. Rutty J. Lynch E. Townsend B. Hill 1978-79 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1978-89 J. Rutty D. Trevor J. Lynch B. Hill 1980-81 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1991-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-94 B. Probert W. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1993-95 R. Stafford J. Chambers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Crouch	1969-70	R. Hilditch	G. Thomson	F. Malbon	J. Rutty
1972-73	1970-71	R. Hilditch	G. Thomson	F. Malbon	J. Rutty
1973-74	1971-72	R. Hilditch	G. Thomson	F. Malbon	J. Rutty
1974-75	1972-73	J. Rutty	M. Lawton	F. Malbon	I. Rutty
1975-76	1973-74	J. Rutty	M. Lawton	F. Malbon	I. Rutty
1976-77	1974-75	J. Rutty	M. Lawton	F. Malbon	I. Rutty
1977-78	1975-76	J. Rutty	J. Lynch	E. Townsend	I. Rutty
1978-79	1976-77	J. Rutty	J. Lynch	E. Townsend	B. Hill
1979-80 J. Rutty	1977-78	J. Rutty	K. Moxham	J. Lynch	B. Hill
1980-81 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1987-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-99 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1998-90 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1998-90 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney N. SECRETARY MANAGER M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers T. Croucher T. Croucher T	1978-79	J. Rutty	D. Trevor	J. Lynch	B. Hill
1981-82 D. Masters G. Marshall J. Lynch F. Witcombe 1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1989-90 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-94 B. Probert B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford J. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR SECRETARY MANAGER M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney D. Watson D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney D. Watson D. Wa	1979-80	J. Rutty	D. Trevor	J. Lynch	B. Hill
1982-83 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1989-90 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield B. Probert 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-	1980-81	D. Masters	G. Marshall	J. Lynch	F. Witcombe
1983-84 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1987-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1989-90 D. Masters L. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston L. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston L. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 L. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Chalmers 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Chalmers T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean 200	1981-82	D. Masters	G. Marshall	J. Lynch	F. Witcombe
1984-85 D. Masters G. Marshall G. Berry F. Witcombe 1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1987-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1987-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1988-90 D. Masters I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield B. Probert 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR SECRETARY MANAGER M. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1900-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Chalmers T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean A. McLean	1982-83	D. Masters	G. Marshall	G. Berry	F. Witcombe
1985-86 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1987-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1989-90 D. Masters I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1993-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1900-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1000-02 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean	1983-84	D. Masters	G. Marshall	G. Berry	F. Witcombe
1986-87 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1987-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1989-90 D. Masters I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY MANAGER 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION MANAGER	1984-85	D. Masters	G. Marshall	G. Berry	F. Witcombe
1987-88 D. Masters B. Straker J. Lynch L. Buhagiar 1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1989-90 D. Masters I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINISTRATION MANAGER	1985-86	D. Masters	B. Straker	J. Lynch	L. Buhagiar
1988-89 D. Masters B. Straker A. Cranston B. Stafford 1989-90 D. Masters I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2007-08 J. Chesher T. COMPETITION ADMINISTRATION MANAGER	1986-87	D. Masters	B. Straker	J. Lynch	L. Buhagiar
1989-90 D. Masters I. Chalmers A. Cranston B. Stafford 1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher A. SSISTANT COMPETITION SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION MANAGER MANAGER MANAGER		D. Masters	B. Straker	J. Lynch	
1990-91 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION MANAGER					
1991-92 A. Cranston I. Chalmers P. Schofield B. Probert 1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1900-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 1002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 1003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 1003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 1004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 1005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 1005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 1005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 1005-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 1005-08 J. Chesher T. Competition Administration 1005-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 1005-08 J. Chesher T. Competition Administration 1005-08 M. Monager					
1992-93 B. Probert B. Phillips P. Schofield M. O'Brien 1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. COMPETITION ADMINISTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER MANAGER					
1993-94 B. Probert V. Routh B. Phillips M. O'Brien 1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER					
1994-95 R. Stafford V. Routh B. Phillips B. Probert 1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2007-08 J. Chesher T. COMPETITION ADMINISTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER MANAGER					
1995-96 R. Stafford J. Chamberlain V. Routh M. Mooney 1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER					
1996-97 I. Chalmers D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney				·	
SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT SECRETARY COMPETITION MANAGER REGISTRAR 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION MANAGER ADMINSTRATION MANAGER					
SECRETARY MANAGER 1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION MANAGER MANAGER					
1997-98 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION MANAGER MANAGER	SEASON	SECRETARY			REGISTRAR
1998-99 R. Waddell D. Watson V. Routh M. Mooney 1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION MANAGER MANAGER	1007-09	R Waddell			M Mooney
1999-00 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION MANAGER MANAGER					· ·
2000-01 R. Waddell V. Routh M. Mooney 2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION MANAGER MANAGER			D. Watson		
2001-02 M. Mooney V. Routh M. Mooney 2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION MANAGER MANAGER					· ·
2002-03 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER MANAGER					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
2003-04 M. Mooney T. Croucher T. Chalmers 2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER		· ·			·
2004-05 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2005-06 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. Chapman 2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER MANAGER		· ·			
2005-06M. MooneyT. CroucherA. Chapman2006-07M. MooneyT. CroucherA. McLean2007-08J. ChesherT. CroucherA. McLeanSEASONSECRETARYASSISTANT SECRETARYCOMPETITION MANAGERADMINSTRATION MANAGER		•			
2006-07 M. Mooney T. Croucher A. McLean 2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER MANAGER					
2007-08 J. Chesher T. Croucher A. McLean SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION MANAGER ADMINSTRATION MANAGER		· ·			
SEASON SECRETARY ASSISTANT COMPETITION ADMINSTRATION SECRETARY MANAGER MANAGER					
SECRETARY MANAGER MANAGER			ASSISTANT		
2008-09 A. Mazurkiewicz T. Croucher A. McLean					
	2008-09	A. Mazurkiewicz		T. Croucher	A. McLean

2009-10	A.Mazurkiewicz		T. Croucher	A. Handley
2010-11	A.Mazurkiewicz		T. Croucher	A. Handley
2011-12	B. Bryant	M. Vandermaal	T. Croucher	
2012-13	B. Bryant	M. Vandermaal	T. Croucher	
2013-14	B. Bryant		T. Croucher	
2014-15	A. Hess		T. Croucher	
2015-16	B. Bryant		M. Mood	E. Vandermaal
2016-17	B. Bryant		M. Mood	E. Vandermaal
2017-18	B. Bryant		M. Mood	
2018-19	T. Spyrides		B. Bryant	

NOTE: The Management Committee was restructured after the conclusion of the 1996/1997 and 2007/2008 seasons.

SSJCA Premiership TeamsSince the establishment of the junior association in 1957-58.

onice the cot	ablishment of the junior associa	111011 111 1337-36.		
SEASON	16A	16B	16C	16D
1957-58	MIRANDA RANGERS			
1958-59	MIRANDA RANGERS			
1959-60	CARINGBAH SPORTS			
1960-61	MIRANDA MAGPIES			
1961-62	MIRANDA MAGPIES			
1962-63	MIRANDA MAGPIES	BOYS TOWN		
1963-64	MIRANDA MAGPIES	JANNALI		
1964-65	MIRANDA MAGPIES	WORONORA		
1965-66	JANNALI	KIRRAWEE		
1966-67	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1967-68	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA		
1968-69	SYLVANIA			
1969-70	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH DLS		
1970-71	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH DLS		
1971-72	SYLVANIA	ENGADINE DRAGONS		
1972-73	MIRANDA MAGPIES	SYLVANIA	BOYS TOWN	
1973-74	GYMEA BAY	ST. PATRICKS	BOYS TOWN	
1974-75	MIRANDA MAGPIES	JANNALI		
1975-76	CARINGBAH SPORTS	СОМО	SYLVANIA	
1976-77	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
1977-78	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	SYLVANIA	
1978-79	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY	
1979-80	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CRON/SUTH LEAGUES	
1980-81	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
1981-82	ST. PATRICKS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA	
1982-83	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH DLS	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	
1983-84	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA	SYLVANIA	
1984-85	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA (1)	HEATHCOTE	
1985-86	ILLAWONG	CARINGBAH DLS	SYLVANIA (1)	ST. PATRICKS
1986-87	SYLVANIA	SYLVANIA	HEATHCOTE	SYLVANIA
1987-88	ST. PATRICKS	ST. PATRICKS	CARINGBAH DLS	SYLVANIA
1988-89	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	JANNALI	
1989-90	GYMEA BAY	CARINGBAH DLS	JANNALI	
1990-91	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY		
1991-92	GYMEA BAY	MARTON	CARINGBAH DLS	
1992-93	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS		

1993-94	ENGADINE DRAGONS	COMO-JANNALI	COMO-JANNALI	
1994-95	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA	SYLVANIA	
1995-96	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
1996-97	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA	COMO-JANNALI	
1997-98	CARINGBAH SPORTS	COMO-JANNALI	ILLAWONG MENAI	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1998-99	CARINGBAH DLS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
1999-00	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ENGADINE DRAGONS	COMO-JANNALI
2000-01	MIRANDA MAGPIES	SYLVANIA	AQINAS	ILLAWONG MENAI
2001-02	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG MENAI	ST. JOHN BOSCO	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2002-03	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. PATRICKS	COMO-JANNALI	
2003-04	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
2004-05	ILLAWONG MENAI	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
2005-06	ILLAWONG MENAI	ILLAWONG MENAI	COMO-JANNALI	
2006-07	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
2007-08	ILLAWONG MENAI	COMO-JANNALI	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
2008-09	ENGADINE DRAGONS	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2009-10	ILLAWONG MENAI	COMO-JANNALI	AQUINAS	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2010-11	ILLAWONG MENAI	GYMEA BAY	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ILLAWONG MENAI
2011-12	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG MENAI	BANGOR	
2012-13	ENGADINE DRAGONS	DLS SEAGULLS	BANGOR & ENGADINE	ILLAWONG MENAI
2013-14	ENGADINE DRAGONS	BANGOR	GYMEA BAY	BANGOR
2014-15	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	
2015-16	DLS SEAGULLS	GYMEA/DLS	COMO-JANNALI	
2016-17	DLS SEAGULLS	GYMEA BAY	BANGOR	
2017-18	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
2018-19	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	COMO-JANNALI	
SEASON	16A	16B	16C	16D

SEASON	14A	14B	14C	14D	14E
1957-58	EVOCA SUTHERLAND				
1958-59	MIRANDA MAGPIES				
1959-60	MIRANDA MAGPIES				
1960-61	MIRANDA MAGPIES	EVOCA SUTHERLAND			
1961-62	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH DLS			
1962-63	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA	CRONULLA RSL (1)		
1963-64	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1964-65	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MIRANDA MAGPIES	SYLVANIA		
1965-66	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ENGADINE DRAGONS	СОМО		
1966-67	MIRANDA MAGPIES	JANNALI (1)	СОМО		
1967-68	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA	ST. PATRICKS (1)		
1968-69	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
1969-70	CRONULLA RSL	GYMEA BAY	BOYS TOWN		
1970-71	JANNALI	ST. PATRICKS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
1971-72	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1972-73	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY	CRONULLA RSL	CARINGBAH SPORTS	JANNALI
1973-74	MIRANDA MAGPIES	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY	HEATHCOTE

1974-75	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH DLS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
1975-76	SYLVANIA	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
1976-77	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
1977-78	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CRONULLA RSL	HEATHCOTE	CRONULLA RSL	CRON SUTH LEAGUES
1978-79	CARINGBAH SPORTS	LOFTUS	ST. PATRICKS	CRON SUTH LEAGUES	BOYS TOWN
1979-80	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA	SYLVANIA (1)	CARINGBAH SPORTS	BOYS TOWN
1980-81	ST. PATRICKS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA (1)
1981-82	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH DLS
1982-83	CARINGBAH DLS	GYMEA BAY	ST. PATRICKS (1)	SYLVANIA (1)	
1983-84	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA (1)	GYMEA BAY	ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY
1984-85	SYLVANIA	LOFTUS	SYLVANIA (2)	JANNALI	SYLVANIA (1)
1985-86	SYLVANIA	HEATHCOTE	ST. PATRICKS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA
1986-87	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA	ST. JOHN BOSCO	ST. PATRICKS
1987-88	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA	ST. PATRICKS
1988-89	ST. JOHN BOSCO	ILLAWONG	GYMEA BAY	MARTON	
1989-90	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA	
1990-91	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	CARINGBAH DLS	ILLAWONG	
1991-92	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ENGADINE DRAGONS		
1992-93	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
1993-94	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	COMO-JANNALI	GYMEA BAY	1993-94
1994-95	SYLVANIA	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA	SYLVANIA	
1995-96	GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA	HEATHCOTE	CARINGBAH DLS	SYLVANIA
1996-97	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH DLS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	AQUINAS
1997-98	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. PATRICKS	
1998-99	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. JOHN BOSCO	ILLAWONG MENAI	ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY
1999-00	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG MENAI	ILLAWONG MENAI	COMO-JANNALI	ILLAWONG MENAI
2000-01	COMO-JANNALI	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH DLS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2001-02	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	MIRANDA MAGPIES	GYMEA BAY	ENGADINE
2002-03	ILLAWONG MENAI	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. PATRICKS	
2003-04	ILLAWONG MENAI	ST. PATRICKS	DLS SEAGULLS	ST. PATRICKS	
2004-05	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	CARINICRALLCROPEC	
2005-06			31. JOHN BOSCO	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG MENAI	MIRANDA MAGPIES	GYMEA BAY	
2006-07	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA			
2006-07			MIRANDA MAGPIES	GYMEA BAY	AQUINAS
	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO	AQUINAS ST. JOHN BOSCO
2007-08	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI	
2007-08	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS	ST. JOHN BOSCO
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS DLS SEAGULLS	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. JOHN BOSCO DLS SEAGULLS
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI GYMEA BAY ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS DLS SEAGULLS	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS DLS SEAGULLS AQUINAS	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS SYLVANIA	ST. JOHN BOSCO DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI GYMEA BAY ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS DLS SEAGULLS DLS SEAGULLS	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS DLS SEAGULLS AQUINAS GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS SYLVANIA SYLVANIA	ST. JOHN BOSCO DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ENGADINE DRAGONS
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI GYMEA BAY ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS DLS SEAGULLS DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS DLS SEAGULLS AQUINAS GYMEA BAY CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. PATRICKS	ST. JOHN BOSCO DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ENGADINE DRAGONS
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI GYMEA BAY ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS DLS SEAGULLS DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. PATRICKS	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS DLS SEAGULLS AQUINAS GYMEA BAY CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. PATRICKS MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. JOHN BOSCO DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ENGADINE DRAGONS
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI GYMEA BAY ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS DLS SEAGULLS DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. PATRICKS ILLAWONG-MENAI	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS DLS SEAGULLS AQUINAS GYMEA BAY CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. PATRICKS MIRANDA MAGPIES ST. PATRICKS	ST. JOHN BOSCO DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ENGADINE DRAGONS
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI GYMEA BAY ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS GYMEA BAY BANGOR	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS DLS SEAGULLS DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. PATRICKS ILLAWONG-MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS DLS SEAGULLS AQUINAS GYMEA BAY CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. PATRICKS MIRANDA MAGPIES ST. PATRICKS ST. PATRICKS	ST. JOHN BOSCO DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS
2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17	ENGADINE DRAGONS ENGADINE DRAGONS ILLAWONG MENAI GYMEA BAY ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS GYMEA BAY BANGOR CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS DLS SEAGULLS DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. PATRICKS ILLAWONG-MENAI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES GYMEA BAY MIRANDA MAGPIES AQUINAS DLS SEAGULLS AQUINAS GYMEA BAY CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. PATRICKS MIRANDA MAGPIES ST. PATRICKS ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. JOHN BOSCO DLS SEAGULLS CARINGBAH SPORTS ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS

SEASON	12A	12B	12C
1957-58	MIRANDA MAGPIES		
1958-59	ST. PATRICKS		
1959-60	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1960-61	KIRRAWEE	CRONULLA RSL (A)	
1961-62	CARINGBAH SPORTS	JANNALI	CRONULLA RSL
1962-63	MIRANDA MAGPIES	KIRRAWEE	KIRRAWEE
1963-64	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CRONULLA RSL	CRONULLA RSL
1964-65	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CRONULLA RSL (1)	TAREN POINT
1965-66	CARINGBAH SPORTS	KIRRAWEE	SYLVANIA
1966-67	GYMEA BAY	KIRRAWEE	CRONULLA RSL
1967-68	CRONULLA RSL	ENGADINE DRAGONS	WORONORA RSL
1968-69	JANNALI	CARINGBAH DLS	СОМО
1969-70	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1970-71	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	SUTH/GRAYS POINT
1971-72	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. JOHN BOSCO	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1972-73	CARINGBAH SPORTS	СОМО	GYMEA BAY
1973-74	ENGADINE DRAGONS	JANNALI	GYMEA BAY
1974-75	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1975-76	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CRONULLA RSL	BULLDOGS
1976-77	ST. PATRICKS	BULLDOGS	ST. JOHN BOSCO
1977-78	MIRANDA MAGPIES	GYMEA BAY	CRON SUTH LEAGUES
1978-79	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CRONULLA RSL	CRON SUTH LEAGUES
1979-80	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA	ILLAWONG
1980-81	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH DLS	ST. PATRICKS
1981-82	ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY	ST. JOHN BOSCO
1982-83	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH DLS	SYLVANIA/MIRANDA
1983-84	SYLVANIA	SYLVANIA	JANNALI
1984-85	SYLVANIA	ST. JOHN BOSCO	SYLVANIA
1985-86	SYLVANIA	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	MARTON
1986-87	ST. JOHN BOSCO	SYLVANIA	CRONULLA SEAGULLS
1987-88	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY	HEATHCOTE
1988-89	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS	CRONULLA SEAGULLS
1989-90	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MARTON	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1990-91	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ILLAWONG
1991-92	ILLAWONG	ST. PATRICKS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1992-93	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1993-94	GYMEA BAY	MIRANDA MAGPIES	HEATHCOTE
1994-95	CARINGBAH SPORTS	COMO-JANNALI	ST. PATRICKS
1995-96	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1996-97	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ILLAWONG	ILLAWONG
1997-98	SYLVANIA	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA
1998-99	ILLAWONG MENAI	GYMEA BAY	ILLAWONG-MENAI
1999-00	ILLAWONG MENAI	AQUINAS	CRONULLA SEAGULLS
2000-01	ILLAWONG MENAI	AQUINAS	MIRANDA MAGPIES

2001-02	SYLVANIA	AQUINAS	SYLVANIA
2002-03	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG-MENAI	SYLVANIA
2003-04	CARINGBAH SPORTS	LOFTUS	ILLAWONG-MENAI
2004-05	ILLAWONG MENAI	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2005-06	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG-MENAI	ILLAWONG-MENAI
2006-07	ILLAWONG MENAI	SYLVANIA	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2007-08	ST. PATRICKS	ILLAWONG-MENAI	GYMEA BAY
2008-09	ENGADINE DRAGONS	GYMEA BAY	ILLAWONG-MENAI
2009-10	ENGADINE DRAGONS	GYMEA BAY	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2010-11	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2011-12	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2012-13	CARINGBAH SPORTS	BANGOR COMETS	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2013-14	ST. PATRICKS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. PATRICKS
2014-15	CARINGBAH SPORTS	DLS SEAGULLS	BANGOR COMETS
2015-16	DLS SEAGULLS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2016-17	DLS SEAGULLS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2017-18	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2018-19	BANGOR & ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. JOHN BOSCO
SEASON	12A	12B	12C

SEASON	12D	12E	12F	12G
1957-58				
1958-59				
1959-60				
1960-61				
1961-62				
1962-63				
1963-64				
1964-65	SUTH/GRAYS POINT			
1965-66	JANNALI			
1966-67	GYMEA BAY			
1967-68	ST. PATRICKS			
1968-69	CARINGBAH SPORTS			
1969-70	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES		
1970-71	MIRANDA MAGPIES			
1971-72	MIRANDA MAGPIES			
1972-73	CARINGBAH SPORTS	KURNELL		
1973-74	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ENGADINE DRAGONS		
1974-75	CARINGBAH SPORTS			
1975-76	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY		
1976-77	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MIRANDA MAGPIES		
1977-78	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA (2)		
1978-79	ST. PATRICKS	LOFTUS		
1979-80	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS		
1980-81	CRONULLA RSL	ST. PATRICKS		
1981-82	GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA (2)		

1982-83	ENGADINE DRAGONS	BUNDEENA		
1983-84	ILLAWONG	ST. PATRICKS		
1984-85	SYLVANIA	ST. PATRICKS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
1985-86	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA	GRAYS POINT	
1986-87	GRAYS POINT	SYLVANIA		
1987-88	CARINGBAH DLS	GYMEA BAY		
1988-89	ST. JOHN BOSCO			
1989-90	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	CRONULLA SEAGULLS		
1990-91	SYLVANIA	C.SPORTS/ILLAWONG		
1991-92	ILLAWONG			
1992-93	COMO-JANNALI			
1993-94	CARINGBAH SPORTS	COMO-JANNALI		
1994-95	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES		
1995-96	НЕАТНСОТЕ	CRONULLA SEAGULLS		
1996-97	ILLAWONG	GYMEA BAY		
1997-98	ST.PATRICKS	ILLAWONG	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
1998-99	ST. JOHN BOSCO	ILLAWONG-MENAI		
1999-00	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG MENAI	ILLAWONG MENAI
2000-01	SYLVANIA	AQUINAS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
2001-02	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. JOHN BOSCO		
2002-03	CARINGBAH SPORTS			
2003-04	GYMEA BAY			
2004-05	GYMEA BAY			
2005-06	ENGADINE DRAGONS	DLS SEAGULLS		
2006-07	ILLAWONG-MENAI	LOFTUS		
2007-08	AQUINAS	ST.PATRICKS	COMO-JANNALI	
2008-09	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
2009-10	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY	ST. PATRICKS	
2010-11	ILLAWONG MENAI	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY	
2011-12	ILLAWONG MENAI	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
2012-13	CARINGBAH SPORTS			
2013-14	BANGOR COMETS	COMO-JANNALI		
2014-15	BANGOR COMETS	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
2015-16	ST. JOHN BOSCO	ILLAWONG-MENAI		
2016-17	BANGOR	DLS SEAGULLS		
2017-18	BANGOR COMETS	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
2018-19	GYMEA BAY	COMO-JANNALI		
SEASON	12D	12E	12F	12G

SEASON	10A	10B	10C
1957-58	NIL		
1958-59	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1959-60	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1960-61	MIRANDA MAGPIES		
1961-62	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CRONULLA RSL	
1962-63	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CRONULLA RSL	

1963-64	CRONULLA RSL	CRONULLA RSL	
1964-65	CRONULLA RSL	JANNALI	CRONULLA RSL
1965-66	CRONULLA RSL	JANNALI	CRONULLA RSL
1966-67	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH DLS	WORONORA RSL
1967-68	JANNALI	SYLVANIA	СОМО
1968-69	WORONORA RSL	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA
1969-70	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH DLS	ST. JOHN BOSCO
1970-71	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1971-72	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA
1972-73	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1973-74	ENGADINE DRAGONS	НЕАТНСОТЕ	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1974-75	SYLVANIA	GRAYS POINT	ST. PATRICKS
1975-76	ST. PATRICKS	НЕАТНСОТЕ	CRONULLA RSL
1976-77	ENGADINE DRAGONS	GRAYS POINT	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1977-78	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1978-79	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	СОМО
1979-80	СОМО	CRONULLA RSL	ST. PATRICKS
1980-81	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY
1981-82	SYLVANIA	CRON/SUTH LEAGUES	SYLVANIA
1982-83	SYLVANIA	ST. PATRICKS	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1983-84	SYLVANIA	GYMEA BAY	HEATHCOTE
1984-85	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA	SYLVANIA
1985-86	ILLAWONG	CARINGBAH DLS	GYMEA BAY
1986-87	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1986-87	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MIRANDA MAGPIES MARTON
		MIRANDA MAGPIES	
1987-88	CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MARTON
1987-88 1988-89	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI	MIRANDA MAGPIES ST. PATRICKS	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS		MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG	ST. PATRICKS	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99	CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI LOFTUS	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI SYLVANIA
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI LOFTUS ENGADINE DRAGONS	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI LOFTUS ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO AQUINAS
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI LOFTUS ENGADINE DRAGONS	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI LOFTUS ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO AQUINAS COMO-JANNALI AQUINAS
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI LOFTUS ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO AQUINAS COMO-JANNALI AQUINAS MIRANDA MAGPIES
1987-88 1988-89 1989-90 1990-91 1991-92 1992-93 1993-94 1994-95 1995-96 1996-97 1997-98 1998-99 1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06	CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI CARINGBAH SPORTS CARINGBAH SPORTS COMO-JANNALI ILLAWONG ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA ENGADINE DRAGONS CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI ILLAWONG MENAI SYLVANIA	ST. PATRICKS CARINGBAH SPORTS ILLAWONG MENAI ST. JOHN BOSCO COMO-JANNALI LOFTUS ENGADINE DRAGONS COMO-JANNALI GYMEA BAY ST. JOHN BOSCO	MARTON CRONULLA SEAGULLS MARTON SYLVANIA SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO MIRANDA MAGPIES ENGADINE DRAGONS SYLVANIA CARINGBAH SPORTS ST. JOHN BOSCO ENGADINE DRAGONS ST. PATRICKS COMO-JANNALI SYLVANIA ST. JOHN BOSCO AQUINAS COMO-JANNALI AQUINAS

2009-10	CARINGBAH SPORTS	DLS SEAGULLS	ST. PATRICKS
2010-11	GYMEA BAY	CARINGBAH SPORTS	SYLVANIA
2011-12	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2012-13	CARINGBAH SPORTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	BANGOR COMETS
2013-14	CARINGBAH SPORTS	COMO-JANNALI	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2014-15	CARINGBAH SPORTS	DLS SEAGULLS	ILLAWONG-MENAI
2015-16	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. PATRICKS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
2016-17	BANGOR	DLS SEAGULLS	BANGOR
2017-18	ENGADINE DRAGONS &	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	GYMEA BAY
2018-19	BANGOR ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH SPORTS
SEASON	10A	10B	10C
SEASON	10D	10E	10F
1957-58			
1958-59			
1959-60			
1960-61			
1961-62			
1962-63			
1963-64			
1964-65			
1965-66			
1966-67			
1967-68			
1968-69			
1969-70	CRONULLA RSL		
1970-71			
1971-72	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1972-73	ENGADINE DRAGONS		
1973-74	ST. PATRICKS		
1974-75			
1975-76	ENGADINE DRAGONS		
1976-77			
1977-78	JANNALI		
1978-79	ST. PATRICKS		
1979-80	MIRANDA MAGPIES		
1980-81	SYLVANIA		
1981-82	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGRALICECTO	
1982-83	SYLVANIA	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
1983-84	ILLAWONG	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
1984-85	SYLVANIA FNCADINE DRACONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
1985-86	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. JOHN BOSCO	
1986-87	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1987-88	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1988-89	ILLAWONG		
1989-90	CARINGBAH SPORTS		

1990-91	COMO-JANNALI		
1991-92	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1992-93	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1993-94	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY	
1994-95	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1995-96	ENGADINE DRAGONS		
1996-97	ILLAWONG	HEATHCOTE	
1997-98	ST. PATRICKS	ILLAWONG MENAI	
1998-99	ILLAWONG MENAI	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
1999-00	COMO-JANNALI	ILLAWONG MENAI	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2000-01	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
2001-02	BARDEN RD/DLS SEA	HEATHCOTE	
2002-03			
2003-04	DLS SEAGULLS		
2004-05	GYMEA BAY		
2005-06	GYMEA BAY		
2006-07	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
2007-08	MIRANDA MAGPIES	GYMEA BAY	ST. PATRICKS
2008-09	DLS SEAGULLS	GYMEA BAY	ST. PATRICKS
2009-10	CARINGBAH SPORTS	GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA
2010-11	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. PATRICKS	
2011-12	COMO-JANNALI	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
2012-13	ST. JOHN BOSCO	COMO-JANNALI	
2013-14	ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY	
2014-15	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. PATRICKS	
2015-16	ILAWONG MENAI	DLS SEAGULLS	CARINGBAH SPORTS
2016-17	ST.JOHN BOSCO	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
2017-18	BANGOR	GYMEA BAY	ENGADINE DRAGONS
2018-19	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	GYMEA BAY	CARINGBAH SPORTS
SEASON	10D	10E	10F

SUTHERLAND SHIRE CRICKET ASSOCIATION ARCHIVES

SSCA Life Members

Russ Luxford* (1957)

Jim Every* (1957)

Athol Eagles* (1959)

Rex King* (1959)

William Wakely* (1960)

Jack Moodie* (1961)

Doug Bray* (1963)

Ken Murphy (1965)

Monty Perry (1965)

Frank Jackson* (1966)

Vic Dwyer* (1966)

Jack Edwards* (1968)

Harry Robbins(1970)

Les Fisher* (1971)

Vince Ridge* (1971)

Wal Anderson*(1972)

Robert Davey (1974)

John Bannon* (1975)

Lance Handley (1975)

Ray Noakes* (1978)

David Dee*(1979)

NA - 1 - T- 1 - 14000

Martin Taylor (1980)

Jim Field* (1981)

Trevor Jones (1983)

Denis Walker (1986)

Don Masters* (1990)

Brian Baker (1990)

Leon Bunker (1993)

Robert Lightfoot (1993)

Graeme Thornley (1998)

Syd Edwards (2001)

Noel Taplin (2004)

Jeff Keats (2005)

Lance Taylor (2005)

Michael Mooney (2012)

(*deceased)

NOTE: Harry Robbins (1970) and Ray Noakes (1978) are the only members of Engadine Dragons to be awarded a Life Membership of the SSCA.

SSCA Office Bearers

SEASON PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER

1015.10			
1947-48	R.E.Luxford	L.Ticehurst	C.L.Wiseman
1948-49	R.E.Luxford	L.Ticehurst	C.L.Wiseman
1949-50	R.E.Luxford	L.Ticehurst	C.L.Wiseman
1950-51	R.E.Luxford	J.O'Neil	C.L.Wiseman
1951-52	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford	J.McClymont
1952-53	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford	J.McClymont
1953-54	J.McClymont	R.E.Luxford	D.Bray
1954-55	R.E.Luxford	D.Bray	J.W.Fraser
1955-56	E.H.Robinson	D.Bray	R.E.Luxford
1956-57	E.H.Robinson	D.Bray	R.E.Luxford
1957-58	J.D.Dransfield	D.Bray	R.E.Luxford
1958-59	J.W.Fraser	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1959-60	R.Moss	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1960-61	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1961-62	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1962-63	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1963-64	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1964-65	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1965-66	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1966-67	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1967-68	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1968-69	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1969-70	J.Edwards	R.J.King	R.E.Luxford
1970-71	J.Edwards	D.Bray	R.E.Luxford
1971-72	J.Edwards	D.Bray	R.E.Luxford
1972-73	J.Edwards	D.Bray	J.Boon
1973-74	J.Edwards	R.A.Davey	J.Boon
1974-75	J.Edwards	R.A.Davey	J.Boon
1975-76	J.Edwards	R.A.Davey	J.Boon
1976-77	J.Edwards	R.A.Davey	J.Boon
1977-78	J.Edwards	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1978-79	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1979-80	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1980-81	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1981-82	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1982-83	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1983-84	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1984-85	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1985-86	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1986-87	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1987-88	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1988-89	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	M.Taylor
1989-90	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	G.Thornley
1990-91	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	G.Thornley
1991-92	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	G.Thornley
1992-93	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	G.Thornley
1993-94	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	G.Thornley
1994-95	V.Ridge	R.A.Davey	G.Thornley
1995-96	L.Bunker	D.J.Dee	G.Thornley
1996-97	L.Bunker	D.J.Dee	G.Thornley
1997-98	L.Bunker	D.J.Dee	G.Thornley
1998-99	L.Bunker	D.J.Dee	G.Thornley
1999-00	L.Bunker	D.J.Dee	L.Taylor
2000-01	L.Bunker	D.J.Dee	L.Taylor
2001-02	L.Bunker	D.J.Dee	L.Taylor
2002-03	L.Bunker	N.Taplin	L.Taylor
2003-04	N.Taplin	T.Sommerville	L.Taylor
2004-05	N.Taplin	T.Sommerville	L.Taylor
2005-06	N.Taplin	T.Sommerville	L.Taylor
2006-07	N.Taplin	N.Calder	L.Taylor
2007-08	N.Taplin	J.Matuzic	L.Taylor
2008-09	N.Taplin	G.Davidson	L.Taylor
2009-10	N.Taplin	Vacant	L.Taylor
2010-11	N.Taplin	D.J.Dee	L.Taylor
2011-12	N.Taplin	M.Mooney	L.Taylor
2012-13	N.Taplin	M.Mooney	L.Taylor
2013-14	N.Taplin	M.Mooney	L.Taylor
2014-15	N.Taplin	M.Mooney	L.Taylor
2015-16	N.Taplin	M.Mooney	L.Taylor

2016-17	N.Taplin	M.Mooney	L.Taylor
2017-18	N.Taplin	M.Mooney	L.Taylor
2018-19	N.Taplin	M.Mooney	L.Taylor
SEASON	PRESIDENT	SECRETARY	TREASURER

SSCA Premiership Teams

The original men's competition commenced in the 1921-22 season and was disbanded at the conclusion of the 1936-37 season.

SEASON	A GRADE	B GRADE
1921-22	HELENSBURGH	
1922-23	MIRANDA	
1923-24	CRONULLA	CARINGBAH
1924-25	MIRANDA	HELENSBURGH
1925-26	CHURCHES	MIRANDA
1926-27	MIRANDA	MIRANDA
1927-28	CHURCHES	CHURCHES
1928-29	SUTHERLAND	MIRANDA
1929-30	SUTHERLAND	TRAMWAY
1930-31	SUTHERLAND NO.1	WATERFALL
1931-32	CHURCHES	SYLVANIA
1932-33	CHURCHES NO.2	SYLVANIA
1933-34	SUTHERLAND	SYLVANIA
1934-35	SUTHERLAND	CARINGBAH
1935-36	SUTHERLAND	WOOLOOWARE
1936-37	CHURCHES	

The Sutherland Shire Cricket Association (SSCA) reformed after World War Two in the 1947-48 season.

30011			
SEASON	A1	A2	A3
1947-48	CRONULLA		
1948-49	CRONULLA		
1949-50	WOOLOOWARE	KIRRAWEE	
1950-51	WOOLOOWARE	KIRRAWEE	
1951-52	WOOLOOWARE		
1952-53	WOOLOOWARE		
1953-54	SUTH SCHOOL OF ARTS		
1954-55	NORTH CRONULLA		
1955-56	ST. PATRICKS		
1956-57	MIRANDA RSL		
1957-58	SUTH SCHOOL OF ARTS	GYMEA BAY	
1958-59	ST. PATRICKS	OYSTER BAY	
1959-60	SUTH SCHOOL OF ARTS	MIRANDA RANGERS	
1960-61	ENGADINE HOTEL	MIRANDA/RANG & ENG/HOT	
1961-62	ENGADINE HOTEL	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
1962-63	WOOLOOWARE	SOUTHERN UNITED	
1963-64	ENGADINE HOTEL	GYMEA BAY	
1964-65	ENGADINE HOTEL	NORTH CRONULLA	
1965-66	SOUTHERN UNITED	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	
1966-67	WOOLOOWARE	СОМО	
1967-68	S.U.S. CLUB	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
1968-69	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH LEAGUES	
1969-70	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
1970-71	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SOUTHERN UNITED	
1971-72	CRON/SUTH LEAGUES	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	
1972-73	CRON/SUTH LEAGUES	CRONULLA WORKERS	CUMBERLAND
1973-74	ENG/DR & CRON/S LGS	CUMBERLAND	TAREN POINT
1974-75	CRONULLA WORKERS	MIRANDA RANGERS	CRONULLA RSL
1975-76	CRON/SUTH LEAGUES	GYMEA FOOTBALLERS	ST. PATRICKS
1976-77	GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1977-78	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA RANGERS	SUTHERLAND SOCCER
1978-79	ENGADINE DRAGONS	JANNALI	C'BAH DE LA SALLE
1979-80	CRON/SUTH LEAGUES	C'BAH DE LA SALLE	CUMBERLAND
1980-81	CRONULLA LEAGUES	CUMBERLAND	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1981-82	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ST. JOHN BOSCO
1982-83	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	CRONULLA RSL	C'BAH DE LA SALLE
1983-84	CARINGBAH DLS	CRONULLA WORKERS	CUMBERLAND

1984-85	ENGADINE DRAGONS	S.U.S. CLUB	LOFTUS
1985-86	CRON/SUTH LEAGUES	ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY
1986-87	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	CRONULLA RSL	JANNALI
1987-88	LOFTUS	CARINGBAH DLS	SUTHERLAND SOCCER
1988-89	LOFTUS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	
1989-90	LOFTUS	MIRANDA HOTEL	
1990-91	MIRANDA RANGERS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	
1991-92	LOFTUS	LOFTUS	
1992-93	LOFTUS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	
1993-94	GYMEA BAY	COMO-JANNALI	LOFTUS
1994-95	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY	SUTHERLAND DISTRICT
1995-96	GYMEA BAY #2	S.U.S.C.	ENGADINE HOTEL
1996-97	GYMEA BAY #1	LOFTUS	CARINGBAH INN
1997-98	GYMEA BAY #1	ST JOHN BOSCO	ILLAWONG
1998-99	GYMEA BAY #1	CARINGBAH DLS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1999-00	ENGADINE DRAGONS	S.U.S. CLUB	LOFTUS
2000-01	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH INN
2001-02	CARINGBAH INN	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY
2002-03	CARINGBAH INN	MIRANDA MAGPIES	S.U.S. CLUB
2003-04	CARINGBAH INN	ROYAL CREST	GYMEA BAY
2004-05	CARINGBAH INN	TAREN POINT	COMO-JANNALI
2005-06	CARINGBAH INN	TAREN POINT	HEATHCOTE
2006-07	CARINGBAH INN	CARINGBAH INN	
2007-08	CARINGBAH INN	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
2008-09	TAREN POINT	TAREN POINT	
2009-10	ROYAL CREST	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
2010-11	ROYAL CREST	ST. PATRICKS	
2011-12	COMO-JANNALI		
2012-13	ST. PATRICKS		
2013-14	ST. PATRICKS	DLS SEAGULLS	
2014-15	COMO-JANNALI	COMO-JANNALI	
2015-16	ILLAWONG-MENAI	HEATHCOTE	
2016-17	GYMEA BAY	COMO-JANNALI	
2017-18	COMO-JANNALI	COMO-JANNALI	
2018-19	ILLAWONG MENAI	BANGOR COMETS	
SEASON	A1	A2	A3

SEASON	A4	A5	B1
1947-48			NORTH CRONULLA
1948-49			ENGADINE
1949-50			HEATHCOTE
1950-51			ST. PATRICKS
1951-52			NORTHERN UNITED
1952-53			EVOCA
1953-54			MIRANDA RANGERS
1954-55			SOUTHERN UNITED
1955-56			EVOCA
1956-57			GYMEA BAY
1957-58			HEATHCOTE
1958-59			SOUTHERN UNITED
1959-60			EVOCA
1960-61			EVOCA SUTHERLAND
1961-62			MIRANDA RSL
1962-63			SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1963-64			MIRANDA RANGERS
1964-65			GYMEA REXONIANS
1965-66			СОМО
1966-67			JANNALI
1967-68			CARINGBAH LEAGUES
1968-69			C'BAH DE LA SALLE
1969-70			SUTH/GRAYS POINT
1970-71			C'BAH DE LA SALLE
1971-72			MIRANDA RSL
1972-73			TAREN POINT
1973-74			HEATHCOTE
1974-75			SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1975-76	TAREN POINT	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	HEATHCOTE SERVICES
1976-77	SUTHERLAND SOCCER	MIRANDA RANGERS	C'BAH DE LA SALLE

4077 70			CVI VAANIA LIELOLIEG
1977-78			SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1978-79			JANNALI
1979-80			CARINGBAH SPORTS
1980-81			JANNALI
1981-82			JANNALI
1982-83			BURRANEER
1983-84			PORT HACKING
1984-85			CARINGBAH SPORTS
1985-86			ENGADINE DRAGONS
1986-87			SUTHERLAND SOCCER
1987-88			SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1988-89			GYMEA BAY
1989-90			MIRANDA RANGERS
1990-91			CRON/SUTH LEAGUES
1991-92			GYMEA BAY
1992-93			S.U.S. CLUB
1993-94			MIRANDA HOTEL
1994-95			SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1995-96			CARINGBAH HOTEL
1996-97			COMO-JANNALI
1997-98			MIRANDA MAGPIES
1998-99			CARINGBAH INN
1999-00			COMO-JANNALI
2000-01			HEATHCOTE
2001-02			COMO-JANNALI
2002-03			MIRANDA MAGPIES
2003-04			ST. JOHN BOSCO
2004-05			KAREELA GOLF CLUB
2005-06			MARTON
2006-07			ILLAWONG
2007-08			ENGADINE DRAGONS
2008-09			COMO-JANNALI
2009-10			TAREN POINT
2010-11			HEATHCOTE
2011-12			BANGOR TAVERN
2012-13			COMO-JANNALI
2013-14			CARINGBAH INN
2014-15			COMO-JANNALI
2015-16			BBR
2016-17			ENGADINE DRAGONS
2017-18			BANGOR
2018-19			CARINGBAH INN SPORTS
SEASON	A4	A5	B1

SEASON	B2	B3	B4
1947-48	TAREN POINT		
1948-49	GUNNAMATTA BAY		
1949-50			
1950-51			
1951-52	JANNALI		
1952-53			
1953-54	SOUTHERN UNITED		
1954-55	COUNCIL EMPLOYEES		
1955-56	SOUTHERN UNITED		
1956-57	GYMEA BAY UNITED		
1957-58	SOUTHERN UNITED		
1958-59			
1959-60	GYMEA BAY		
1960-61	ENGADINE HOTEL		
1961-62			
1962-63	S.U.S. CLUB		
1963-64	C'BAH CHURCH OF CHR	JANNALI	
1964-65	SUTH/GRAYS POINT	MIRANDA RSL	
1965-66	MIRANDA RSL	CRONULLA CATHOLICS	
1966-67	JANNALI	СОМО	
1967-68	CARINGBAH SPORTS	KIRRAWEE	
1968-69	ST. PATRICKS	CARINGBAH SPORTS	
1969-70	KIRRAWEE	ENGADINE DRAGONS	

1970-71	COMO	ST. PATRICKS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1971-72	CRONULLA RSL	JANNALI	ENICADINE DDA CONS
1972-73	GYMEA BAY	PORT HACKING	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1973-74	GYMEA BAY	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1974-75	C'BAH DE LA SALLE C'BAH DE LA SALLE	COMO ST. PATRICKS	C'BAH DE LA SALLE
1975-76		PORT HACKING RUGBY	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1976-77	ST. PATRICKS CRONULLA WORKERS	JANNALI	TAREN POINT ENGADINE DRAGONS
1977-78 1978-79	SUTH FOOTBALLERS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	PORT HACKING RUGBY
1979-80	CRONULLA RSL	ST. PATRICKS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1980-81	CRONULLA WORKERS	ST PATRICKS	BUNDEENA RSL
1981-82	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA RSL	ST. PATRICKS
1982-83	SUTHERLAND SOCCER	CARINGBAH SPORTS	ENGADINE DRAGONS
1983-84	MIRANDA RANGERS	GRAYS POINT	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1984-85	ENGADINE DRAGONS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	SUTHERLAND SOCCER
1985-86	COMO	GWAWLEY OLD BOYS	HEATHCOTE SERVICES
1986-87	PORT HACKING RUGBY	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1987-88	MIRANDA RANGERS	JANNALI	ST PATRICKS
1988-89	COMO	MIRANDA BUSINESS	BUNDEENA
1989-90	CRONULLA LEAGUES	ST PATRICKS	S.U.S.C.
1990-91	ST. JOHN BOSCO	GYMEA BAY	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1991-92	S.U.S.C.	GYMEA BAY	MIRANDA RANGERS
1992-93	S.U.S. CLUB	GYMEA BAY	GWAWLEY OLD BOYS
1993-94	BONNET BAY	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST GEORGE/ENGADINE
1994-95	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	CARINGBAH DLS	GYMEA BAY
1995-96	ST JOHN BOSCO	COMO-JANNALI	GRAYS POINT
1996-97	ILLAWONG	GWAWLEY OLD BOYS	ST GEORGE/ENGADINE
1997-98	HEATHCOTE	MARTON	MARTON
1998-99	MARTON	ST PATRICKS	COMO-JANNALI
1999-00	ENGADINE DRAGONS	S.U.S. CLUB	LOFTUS
2000-01	KAREELA GOLF CLUB	MIR BUILDERS & BUS	GYMEA BAY
2001-02	GYMEA BAY	S.U.S. CLUB	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2002-03	ST. GEORGE LEAGUES	ILLAWONG	AQUINAS
2003-04	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ROYAL CREST	CARINGBAH INN
2004-05	HEATHCOTE	MARTON	ENGADINE DRAGONS
2005-06	MARTON	COMO-JANNALI	COMO-JANNALI
2006-07	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH INN	TAREN POINT
2007-08	ENGADINE DRAGONS	COMO-JANNALI	CARINGBAH INN
2008-09	CARINGBAH INN	ST. JOHN BOSCO	ILLAWONG
2009-10	KAREELA GOLF CLUB	COMO-JANNALI	ST. PATRICKS
2010-11	CARINGBAH INN	ILLAWONG	ILLAWONG
2011-12	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	GYMEA BAY	COMO-JANNALI
2012-13	CARINGBAH INN	GYMEA BAY	CARINGBAH INN
2013-14	CARINGBAH INN	BANGOR TAVERN	GYMEA BAY
2014-15	MIRANDA RSL	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. PATRICKS
2015-16	ILLAWONG-MENAI	CARINGBAH INN	ST. PATRICKS
2016-17	ST. PATRICKS	ILLAWONG-MENAI	GYMEA BAY
2017-18	ENGADINE DRAGONS GYMEA BAY	ENGADINE DRAGONS GYMEA BAY	ST. PATRICKS SYLVANIA
SEASON	B2	B3	B4
- SEASON	-02	-50	
05100		20	
SEASON	B5	B6	B7
1947-48			
1948-49			
1949-50			
1950-51			
1951-52			
1952-53			
1953-54			
1954-55			
1955-56			
1956-57			
1957-58			
1958-59			
1959-60			
1960-61			
1961-62			
1962-63			

1963-64			
1964-65			
1965-66			
1966-67			
1967-68			
1968-69			
1969-70			
1970-71			
1971-72			
1972-73			
1973-74			
1974-75			
1975-76			
1976-77	CARINGBAH SPORTS		
1977-78	BURRANEER BAY	CARINGBAH SPORTS	JANNALI
1978-79	S.U.S. CLUB	PORT HACKING RUGBY	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1979-80	PORT HACKING RUGBY	JANNALI	SUTHERLAND SOCCER
1980-81	PORT HACKING	KAREELA GOLF	CARINGBAH DLS
1981-82	GYMEA BAY	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	ST. PATRICKS
1982-83	MIRANDA BUSINESS CL	ENGADINE DRAGONS	JANNALI
1983-84	SUTHERLAND SOCCER	СОМО	CRONULLA WORKERS
1984-85	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY	CARINGBAH SPORTS
1985-86	JANNALI	ENGADINE DRAGONS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1986-87	MIRANDA RSL	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1987-88	GYMEA BAY	HEATHCOTE	GWAWLEY OLD BOYS
1988-89	S.U.S.C.	CARINGBAH DLS	ST PATRICKS
1989-90	ST PATRICKS	HEATHCOTE SERVICES	HEATHCOTE
1990-91	HEATHCOTE	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	CRON/SUTH LEAGUES
1991-92	MIRANDA MAGPIES	MIRANDA RSL	S.U.S.C.
1992-93	MARTON	CARINGBAH HOTEL	GYMEA BAY
1993-94	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	HEATHCOTE
1994-95	HEATHCOTE	MIRANDA RSL	MARTON
1995-96	MARTON	MIRANDA RANGERS	CARINGBAH HOTEL
1996-97	HEATHCOTE	MIRANDA RSL	CARINGBAH INN
1997-98	CARINGBAH INN	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	GYMEA BAY
1998-99	LOFTUS	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY
1999-00	C'BAH DE LA SALLE	GYMEA BAY	GYMEA BAY
2000-01	ILLAWONG	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH INN
2001-02	MIRANDA MAGPIES	GYMEA BAY	ST. PATRICKS
2002-03	GYMEA BAY	HEATHCOTE	ILLAWONG
2003-04	ENGADINE DRAGONS	GYMEA BAY	ENGADINE DRAGONS
2004-05	ST. PATRICKS	COMO-JANNALI	ST. PATRICKS
2005-06	TAREN POINT	GYMEA BAY	CARINGBAH INN
2006-07	ILLAWONG	HEATHCOTE	ST. PATRICKS
2007-08	BANGOR TAVEN	COMO-JANNALI	ILLAWONG
2008-09	MIRANDA RSL	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. PATRICKS
2009-10	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	BANGOR TAVERN	BANGOR TAVERN
2010-11	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ENGADINE DRAGONS
2011-12	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CARINGBAH INN	GYMEA BAY
2012-13	CARINGBAH INN	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ILLAWONG-MENAI
2013-14	GYMEA BAY	BANGOR COMETS	BANGOR TAVERN
2014-15	ST. PATRICKS	ST. PATRICKS	ST. PATRICKS
2015-16	DLS SEAGULLS	ILLAWONG-MENAI	DLS SEAGULLS
2016-17	CARINGBAH INN	DLS SEAGULLS	BBR
2017-18	GYMEA BAY		
2018-19	MIRANDA MAGPIES	CARINGBAH INN SPORTS	
SEASON	B5	B6	B7

SEASON	B8	В9
1947-48		
1948-49		
1949-50		
1950-51		
1951-52		
1952-53		
1953-54		
1954-55		
1955-56		

1956-57		
1957-58		
1958-59		
1959-60		
1960-61		
1961-62		
1962-63		
1963-64		
1964-65		
1965-66		
1966-67		
1967-68		
1968-69		
1969-70		
1970-71		
1971-72		
1972-73		
1973-74		
1974-75		
1975-76		
1976-77		
1977-78		
1978-79		
1979-80		
1980-81		
1981-82		
1982-83		
1983-84		
1984-85		
1985-86		
1986-87		
1987-88		
1988-89		
1989-90		
1990-91		
1991-92		
1992-93		
1993-94		
1994-95		
1995-96		
1996-97		
1997-98	ENGADINE TAVERN	
1998-99	ENGABINE PAVERIN	
1999-00	CT DATDICKS	ILLAWONG
	ST. PATRICKS	
2000-01	GYMEA BAY	MARTON
2001-02	ST. PATRICKS	LOSTUS
2002-03	MARTON	LOFTUS
2003-04	ILLAWONG	GYMEA BAY
2004-05	ST. JOHN BOSCO	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2005-06	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
2006-07	COMO-JANNALI	CARINGBAH INN
2007-08	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
2008-09	ILLAWONG	
2009-10	ST. PATRICKS	GYMEA BAY
2010-11	MIRANDA MAGPIES	ST. PATRICKS
2011-12	CARINGBAH INN	GYMEA BAY
2012-13		
2013-14		
2014-15		
2015-16		
2016-17		
2017-18		
2017-18		
SEASON	RQ .	RO
SLASUN	B8	B9

SEASON	C1	C2	C3
1947-48			
19/18-/19			

1949-50			
1950-51			
1951-52			
1952-53			
1953-54			
1954-55			
1955-56			
1956-57			
1957-58			
1958-59			
1959-60			
1960-61			
1961-62			
1962-63			
1963-64			
1964-65			
1965-66			
1966-67			
1967-68			
1968-69			
1969-70			
1970-71			
1971-72			
1972-73			
1973-74			
1974-75			
1975-76			
1976-77			
1977-78	CRONULLA WORKERS	GYMEA BAY	
1978-79	C'BAH DE LA SALLE	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
1979-80	SUTHERLAND SOCCER	ENGADINE DRAGONS	CRONULLA RSL
1980-81	ST PATRICKS	MIRANDA RSL	JANNALI
1981-82	SUTHERLAND SOCCER	JANNALI	JAMMALI
			KAREELA COLE CILIR
1982-83	C'BAH DE LA SALLE	SUTHERLAND SOCCER	KAREELA GOLF CLUB
1983-84	HEATHCOTE	PORT HACKING	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1984-85	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	C'BAH DE LA SALLE	ST. PATRICKS
1985-86	LOFTUS	СОМО	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS
1986-87	TAREN POINT	LOFTUS	
1987-88	MIRANDA RSL	GRAYS POINT	
1988-89	MIRANDA RSL	ST PATRICKS	
1989-90	HEATHCOTE	CRONULLA LEAGUES	BONNET BAY
1990-91	CARINGBAH SPORTS	HEATHCOTE	MARTON
1991-92	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	MIRANDA RSL
1992-93	CRONULLA SEAGULLS	GYMEA BAY	ILLAWONG
1993-94	COMO-JANNALI	ST GEORGE/ENGADINE	MIRANDA MAGPIES
1994-95	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	SYLVANIA HEIGHTS	
1995-96	ENGADINE HOTEL	LOFTUS	
			CVMEA DAY
1996-97	MIRANDA HOTEL	ENGADINE TAVERN	GYMEA BAY
1997-98	ST PATRICKS	LOFTUS	COMO-JANNALI
1998-99	ENGADINE DRAGONS	GYMEA BAY	CARINGBAH DLS
1999-00	COMO-JANNALI	ST. PATRICKS	ILLAWONG
2000-01	HEATHCOTE	ST. JOHN BOSCO	
2001-02	AQUINAS	COMO-JANNALI	
2002-03			
2003-04	ST. PATRICKS	MIRANDA MAGPIES	
2004-05			
2005-06	ST. PATRICKS	ROYAL CREST	MIRANDA MAGPIES
2006-07	ENGADINE DRAGONS	AQUINAS	
2007-08	CARINGBAH INN	ST. PATRICKS	
2008-09	BANGOR TAVERN	ST. JOHN BOSCO	
2009-10	MIRANDA MAGPIES	GYMEA BAY	
2010-11	ST. JOHN BOSCO	CARINGBAH INN	
2011-12	ST. JOHN BOSCO	GYMEA BAY	COMO-JANNALI
2011-12	ENGADINE DRAGONS	ST. PATRICKS	CONTO JANUALI
2013-14	CARINGBAH INN	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
2014-15	ENGADINE DRAGONS		
2015-16	DSL SEAGULLS	ENGADINE DRAGONS	
2016-17	ST. PATRICKS		
2017-18	MIRANDA MAGPIES		

2018-19	BANGOR COMETS		
SEASON	C1	C2	C3